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2013 Severn Trent group highlights

= Delivering on dwidend policy -
8.2% growthvs. 2011/12.

« Total shareholder retum in the cumrent
regulatory period (AMPS)* - 72%.

- Creating long term value through
effident investment - £555 miltion
invested this year.

« Continued growth in RCV2 from
£7,089 million to £7,364 miliion
(+3 9%).

« Delivered significant operational
improvernents and higher levels
of custormer service

— Improved or stable performance on

13 out of 14 Ofwat KPIs year on year.

- Customer satisfaction {(SIM score)
improving.
- Efficiency improvements at
Severn Trent Water helping to offset
additional infrastructure investments.

» Non-requlated business delivered
revenue growth year on year?,

« Weli prepared for next price review.

« Full year dividend for 2013/14 set to
be 80.40 pence, up 6%, in line with
current RPI+3% growth policy.
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What we do

Our business

We provide clean water and waste water services
in the UK and internationally, principally through
our regulated and non-regulated businesses —
Severn Trent Water and Severn Trent Services.

Regulated - Severn Trent Water

One of the largest of the 10 regulated water

and sewerage companies in England and Wales.
We provide high quality services to more than
4.2 million households and businesses in the
Midlands and mid-Wales.

More on pages 12-23

Non-regulated - Severn Trent Services

One of the world’s leading commercial suppliers
of water and waste water treatment services
and products, with customers in the UK,

the Americas, Europe, Middle East and Asia.

More on pages 24-32

Find out more onour corporate wabsite www.sevemntrent.com
Severn Trent Water websites www.stwater.co.uk
Severn Trent Services website: www.sevemntrentservices.com
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The Severn
Trent World

2012/13 has been a year of continued focus and
evolution for Severn Trent. We fundamentally
believe in the positive impact of increasing
competition in our industry and the opportunities
it will bnng. The boundary between reguiated and
non-regulated activities in the UK 1s changing and
we are adapting our business to take full
advantage of the changes ahead, while
continuing to focus on ensuring our core activities
maintain quality and deliver excellent customer
service and value.

£5.6m

Water mlding

wﬂtertrodlng m the UK wtth
SevernTrert being

lly ﬂusmnned to
our neighbours.

£38m

! We’:gme vested £38 nﬂh?{é
We spent £5 6 million across n G stershire since t!
2007 floods. The Mythe water
gﬁvrgm mﬂgg gswlgrlgg:o%nl; treatrment works has new flood
energy defences and prpelnes to provide
gggce our mmﬁg:;r}: ;rﬁg dlternative supples to 160,000
o e ucesour S ammersand o sioem
carbon enssions. + tanks to prevent networks being
T overwhelmed by heavy rain,
! More on page 19
H Emage removed .
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133cm i
2012 recorded the second |
heghest annua rinfall n
England since 1910. We coliect ,
water from reservoirs, nivers and
underground borehales aaoss °
our reqgion, :
Severn Trent :
Services '
In October 2012 we formed a
business with Costam to offer
large mult-site o\?mer us;g a
singte supphier of water
wuste water seraces [tams to mll@ef;fecmfepwm
;lggerefﬁcencylmplergvements, copita ﬂdeﬁso"e'ym. o
mplnnr.eandrgkeandde[iver Effﬂms‘gf“ﬁs’@tgr‘f’;&h
witter efficiency solutions resmvesting of our network and
More on page 25 tregtrment assets to provde




89p

The

average cost to our custamer
per day for combined services s
89 pence Our customers benefit
from the lowest average

Regulatory
reform

We have continued to ploy an
octrve role Indisaussions about

the evo | and
oot o the

industry Many of the ideas
we have proposed in our
Changing Course senes of
publications have now been
adopted by policy makers.

More on page 33

combined bills in England

and Wales.

-

03

7000

Wa have camed out research
with more than 7,000 household
and business custorners cbout

the future of our services
11 years

; Severn Trent De Norawas
establshed in 2002 to provide
seawater and brine onsite
hypochlorte generation
systemns for marine, offshore
water ond waste water

. treatment applications.

Image removed

£555m

capital spend

Over the lost finanoal year
we have mvested £555 million
Into our network and above
ground gssets.

5%6

23 megat'rhes
We also wnrkwrth

through our operabon and
mamtenance controct with the

of Defence we have
cut the leakage gt ther sites

UKM
to andltmelow

Ieuzgucnon o

ers and

9500

We operate more than

800 municipal water and
wuaste water treatment facilies

ocraoss the US and Ewr I'Ope.
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Chairman’s statement

‘We continue to set ourselves high
standards in everything we do and
the continuous improvement that
we see owes much to the hard work
and commitment of our team at

Severn Trent.!
Andrew Duff, Chainman

Our focus on water and waste water services has
agan delivered benefits for our customers and good
returns for our shareholders. This year Severn Trent
Water customers saw the first positive impact of
some of the extra £150 million of nvestrment in

our water and waste water networks, which we
announced m May 2012,

In oddihon, we continue to leverage our skills

m water and waste woter services in our
non-requlated business Sevem Trent Services.

This year we completed the sole of our andlytical
services and metering operations in order to focus
on growth in the emerging markets for commercial
and industnal users in the UK, in the US and our
global water punfication products business.

fmage removed

Strong performance at Sevem Trent Water
In thes thurd year of our current 2010-2015
busness plan, [ am pleased to report further
progress in the operctional pedformance and
customer service delivered by our requlated
business, Severn Trent Water

Our customers continue to benefit from high quality
drinking water as well as the lowest average bills for
water and sewerage cornbined in England and
Wales Customer service standards improved

year on year and complaint levels have fallen for
the last two years.

Dunng the earty part of the year when we
expenenced drought in the Midlands, we carefully
managed our water resources, so that we avorded
the need for ahoseppe ban. Sevemn Trert Water 15
the only company targeting ssgnificant leakage
reductions over this five year regulatory penod
and in 2012/13, we cut leakage to a 20 year low,
beating our target inthe process.

Drought over the eary part of the year was followed
by extended rainfall during the rest of the year and
agam, our teams performed well to help protect
austomers from flooding Despite the ranfall,

we achieved record levels of compliance at

waste water treatrnent works and a reduction

in pofiution Inadents.
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Overview Chairman's staternent

The success of Severn Trent Water reflects the
cormmitment of everyone in our business to
contnuous mpravernent and our drive towards
higher standards of service, efficency and )
operational performance. I'm particularty proud that
the last year was our safest ever 1am personally
committed to pushing our safety standards even
higher so that everybody remains healthy ond safe
when they are at work.

Good financial perfformance

In 2012113, our finonaiol performance was as
expected. Total group revenue inceased by 3 4% to
£1,832 million, whilst undertying group profit before
tax decreased 3 3% to £266 3 millon This resulted
in adjusted bosic eamings per share of 98.9 pence,
up 11 2%.

Our policy dunng this current five year period to
March 2015 is to narease our dmdend each year
by 3% more than the retoil pnce index. The board
therefore proposes a final diwdend of 45 51 perxe,
to be paid on 26 July 2013 This will give a total
dividend for the year of 75 85 pence, an increase

of 8 2%

Dunng the year we were pleased to retum a further
£150 million to shareholders, through the special
dreidend of 63 pence per share in July 2012 and
we also announced the investment of an extra
£150 million in our woter and waste water network
for the benefit of our customers This reflects our
ability to create value from the business ptan
opproved by our regulator to the benefit of both
customers and shareholders.

Customers and shareholders have benefited from
our consistent delivery over recent years. Since the
start of the current cycle on 1 Apnl 2010, Severn
Trent's total shareholder retum induding the spedial
distributian has been 71 71%, well cheod of the

25 57% retum from the FTSE 100and the 61 4%
achieved by the utilibes sector as a whole,

Supporting our local economies

On other mportant matters, we're very mindful of
the economc, ervironmental and sodial benefits we
brng to the region in whuch we operate Where we
aun, we airm to maoke g positive difference,

In Sevemn Trent Woter, we directly employ over
5,500 paople and many more through our contract
partners and supply chams. With the UK econarmy
struggling to grow, investment by woter comparies
has a partiautarly significant rite. Irvesting m
infrastructure is one of the fastest ways to boost
economic acbvity and water companies use private
copital, rather than drawing on public funds wiich
could be usefully employed elsewhere. Dunng the
year, we nvested £555 million into our network,
making a substantial contribution to jobs and the

local econorny.

‘Customers and shareholders
have benefited from our
consistent delivery over
recent years.’

We olso help to create the skills that we, the
econormy and our reqion need Severn Trent Water
cumently has more than 80 opprentices in water,
waste water and customer service roles. The calibre
of young people we attracted for our apprenticeship
prograrmme has been particutarly hugh, showing the
ottractions of our traning and the prospect of a
long term career nawvital industry

Building for growth in non-regulated markets
Sevem Trent Services, our main non-regulated
business, has sharpened the focus of ks actvbies on
water punfication products and operating services,
having disposed of ts analybical services and
metenng cperabors,

Its undertying performance in the yeor was
encouraging Despite challenging conditions in its
markets, it has won contracts and seen growth in
sales of water purification products in emerging
markets, After a penod of consolidation, the
continuing businesses of Severn Trent Services are

again mokeng progress

Shaping the future of our industry

The last 12 months have seen much discussion
obout the direction of requiation in the water
ndustry Severn Trent continues to play a leading
role in shaping the course of regulobon and intends
to continue to do so. As a progressive business, we
have advocated changes which wil help the country
make the best use of its water resources, improve
outcomes for customers and prowide surtable
retums for investors.

We're therefore supportive of the proposed direction
of trovel for requiation and of the Water Bill, asit
passes through Pofiernent. In particuler, we're
positve about the prospects for wuter troding and
the opportunities it bnngs for greater resitence and
keeping customers’ costs down,
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Overview Choirman’s staterment

The coming year wil see the submission of our
final business plans for the next regulatory penod
2015-2020, following an extensive penod of
consultation with customers, stokeholders ond
regulctors. I would like to recognise the role of the
independent Water Forum, chared by Dome Yve
Bucktand, n providing a heatthy challenge aound
our plans as they have come together.

As a responsible comparty, our aim is to produce
a good plan, based on meanngful consultation,
whuch finds the right balance between making
improvermients where custormers value them the
rmost, keeping bills offordable and providing a far
return to our nvestors.

Foced with competing pressures to mantan
rvestrent and drive up standards, whilst keeping
bitis low, it s essential that our sector has cortinued
access to future financing and at o reasenable cost.
At Severn Trent, we believe that @ sustainable

long term opproach to financing should be

taken by the industry and that regulation must
therefare attract and ncentivise equity fmance
Excessive reliance on leverage choractenses much
of aur sector today

mage removed

Summary

In summary, good perfermance continues

to underpin confidence that we can create
value through the remander of the current
regulatory penod.

We have delivered further improvements in
operatonal performance and customer service
ot Sevem Trent Water, In Severn Trent Services
we retumed to underfying growth We met our
financial expectations and generated good
retuams for our shareholders.

This year's results owe agreat deal to the
commment, excellence and hard work of
our peopte. We continue to set ourselves high
standards n everything we do and [ woutd ke
to thank manogement and staff for putting us
m a strong pasition for future success.

Finally, I would like to use this opportunity to

note my thanks to our Chief Executive, Tony Wray,
who has informed the board of his intention to retire
from Severn Trentin Spring 2014

With astrong exacutive team in place the timing

of hus decision provides us with the continuity of
leadershup and the necessary time to search for
and dentify his successor over the coming months.,

Signature removed

Andrew Duff
Charman
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Chief Executive’s review

The world is changiné for water
companies and Severn Trent leads

the way in shaping that change.

We are continually improving our
performance, improving our customer
service and positioning the

group for sustainable growth.’

Tony Wray, Chief Executive

Irmage Removed

See our;'llm at wmvsa;nhé'mtcmwm
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Delivering the future of water

The UK water industry faces ssgnificant challenges.
We need to dedl with the real impact of cimate
chonge and the incregsing frequency of water
shortages and flooding. We need to access and use
water ond ervironmental resources more effiaently.
We need to keep improving customer service and
austomer choice whilst keeping our bils affordable
for our custorners. We need to mantam the
sigrificont rvestrnents that ore required to ensure
that our networks can deliver the essentbal water
and waste water services, And, whilst keeping bills
as low as we can lor our astomers, we need to
generate sustanable returns for our investors.
Proposals from the UK Govemment and Ofwat will
help us respond to these challenges. The changes
are evolubonary, but together they add up to the
largest shift in the industry’s rules snce prvatisation,
The Water Bill will allow more competition for
non-household austomers, greater ‘upstreant
competiton - water trading in particular - and
incease the scope for mergers and ocguisitions,
which shauld eventually lead to @ more efficent
industry structure.

Ofwat 15 consdenng mportant changes to the way
it regulates, os it prepares for the next pnce review
in 2014 (PR14). Notable differences from the
current regime include separate controls for the
wholesale part of the business - the networks and
treatment plants— and the retoil element, which
monoges cstomer relationships. This will ncrease
focus on delivering the best austomer service ot
lowest cost, and creote more choice for
non-household custormers.

There will be greater emphasis on achieving
objectives that companies set in consultation with
their customers, helping them to nnovate and
benefit oll stakeholders. Companies will be able to
choose larger incentives for outperformance, at the
risk of bigger pendalties  they fall short. Also our
customers and other stakeholders now have ¢
much bigger roe in influencing our next five year
plan. Further details of our stakeholder engagement
and the role of the Water Forumn are provided on
pages 18 and 20

Severn Trent welcomes these changes. We've been
octve m the debate chout the future of water and
we're pleased that the changes are aligned with our
own proposals. That's allowed us to prepare for
these changes, through o stretegy that aeates
opportunites o leveroge our core skills
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Overview Chief Executive’s review

Our strateqy

Sustainable

Syotegydm .
Delivering value for our customers
and investors.

Responsible leadership, protecting the
environment, thinking long term ond
setting high stondards m everything
wedo.

Sustainable ﬁnuncmg, ensunng we have
o strong and flexible balance sheet.

Growth

Stategyam_

Growing Sevemn Trent Water in the UK
through investment in our networks
and services

P05|t|on|ng Severn Trent to capitalise
on opportunities in a changing
regulctory framework.

Deploying Severn Trent Services business
into new markets.

Developing new trectment technologm

Hightights 201 2013 o .

. Ourregdoned business met ts
target, reduced nteruptions to
ard protected more homes from
sewer flooding.

- We mantamned the lowest averoge bills for
water and sewage combined in Engiand
and Woles.

« Cur non-regulated business delvered
top Ine growth, focused its operations
and 15 well postoned for the future

+ We continued to grow our dividend.

» Our Focus on Water strategy provides
wvalue for money for our austormers and
long term sustainable growth for owr
investors.

+ We achieved our best ever hedith and
safety performance,

- We continued to mvest inour sector
leading renewable energy operation.

+ We made further progress with our
catchment management progmmme.

« We continued tonfluence the requlatory
debote about the future of ourindustry,
through o senes of publications.

« We remairied prudently finarced and
mantained our strong credit rating

* We successfully refinanced £500 rillion
of cur debt and issued our first retail bond
drawing £75 millon from new rvestors.

Key measures

LLIM 419

Leakoge megolitres Customer written

per day complants per 1,000

{2012 464) properties (STW)
(2012.4.88)

» 02 Lost tirme madents per 100,000 hrs
worked (2012 0.3)

* We generate just under a quarter of the
electnaty needed by our regulated
business.

« We suppart the direction of the Water Bill,
whichis expected to becorne law later
this year

£731.2m 584%
Cashgenerated from  Net Debt/RCV Geanng

operations (2012 56.0%)
(2012: £725 9y}

Highlights 2013 R

. Wecontumedtonnkegood progress
with our preparctions for PR14,

* We invested £555 millon in our
infrastructure

* We increased our requiatory capitol
walue by £275 milbon,

- We created o new venture with
Costain to compete for large user
business customers.

- We strengthened Severn Trent De Nora
by acquinng certain product ines from
Chionne Engineers Comp, grvlng usan
opportunity for future growth in Jopan

-Wemvestedlnmmdweioprr\g
BALPURE® and continued to grow
its sales.

Key measures

3.9%

RCV growth
{2012-4.0%)

. HrstMilk,tl'lefrstbusmasmstomer
to switch water supphier

+ Input tessons from the first mut-site,
mutt-notional switch into
Regulatory bodies.

£113.4m

Water Punfication tumover
(2012. £98m)}

f£4.6m

New commermal orders
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A strateqgy to deliver the future of water

Our Focus on Water strategy, with the goal of
creating sustanable growth through our focus on
water and waste water services in the UK and key
intemabonal markets, drives everything that we do
This strotegy recogrises thot the boundary between
our regulated and non-regulated octivities is moving
and that in future, we will generate retums froma
broader range of operattons ccross the regulated
ond non-regulated areas. As one of the UK’s biggest
water and waste water companies, Severn Trent 1s
well pasthoned to succeed.

Our focus on sustainable growth means that we
balance the needs of our custorers, our people,

the environment and investors Achieving this
balance leads directly to good finanaat performance
and delivers value for our customers and investars
today and in the longer term

We recogrise that economic conditions are tough
and that our custorers have seen therr ncomes
squeezed. While pnces will inevitably nse because of
the engoing need for investment, we're determmed
to keep them as low as we can and deliver value for
money This means further improving our service,
protecting customers from the effects of drought
and floods and providing them with water that's
good to dnnk and abways available.

Protecting the ervironment 1s also key because we
and our customers depend ontt to provide the
resources we need.

Efficent investment allows us to deliver sustainable
retumns for our shareholders. Our strategy 5 to
remain focused on water and waste water services.

Our pecple are central to our future. We work hard
tomake sure they have the skills and tools they
need, and are motivated to conbnually improve our
service to customers,

With significant changes in the sector approaching,
we keep our strateqy under constant review This

indudes having open ond constructive relationships
with key stokeholders, such oS customer
representatives, our economuc and environmentat
reguiators and our investors, so we understand what
thery expect from us. We then formally review our
each year, involving both the Executive

Cormsmittee and the board, so it remams relevont,
balanced and sufficentty forward lookrg.

‘Our focus on sustainable
growth means that we
balance the needs of our
customers, our people, the
environment and investors.’

Business performance review

The group delivered o good financial performance
dunng the year, despite challenging conditions in
some markets. This underpins our dividend promise,
which 15 to grow our dividend by 3% more than the
retail price ndex up to 2014/15.

We also maintemed our finanaal stability, by
continuing to refinance our existing debt arx issuing
new debt to support our investment programme
This :ncluded our first ever retail bond, which raised
£75 milllon.

Requiated - focused on continuous improvement
Our customers benefited for the fourth year running
from the lowest average bils for water and
sewerage combined in England and Wales. Whilst
prices incregsed they were below the industry
averoge. We contimued to supply customers with
excellent dnnking water and, despite the drought
at the start of the year, we once ogan avoided a
hoseppe ban

Our UK requiated business, Severn Trent Water,
continued to improve its operationol and
envirenmental performance. These improvernents,
along with effective procurement and capital
delivery, help us to be more efficent. In this
Regulatory Penod we are re-investing £150 million
of our effinency gans into our plant and networks
to improve services for our custormiers further

This investment contnbuted to our ongoing
performance mproverment. We cut leakage to o

20 year low and beat our target. Undertying levels
of interruptions to supply also fell, with our Ofwat
measure improving, although a handful of burst
mains which affected numerous customers meant
that we didn’t meet our internal target. We further
reduced pollution nodents, while compliance at our
waste water treatment works reached a new record
hugh, contributing to mproving river water quality.
During the year, we delivered the outputs that
Ofwat required from us. We were pleased to see
that recent swvestrment in the flood defences at

the Mythe Water Treatment Works proved thesr
worth as the plant withstood exceptionally heavy
rains and flooding We also reduced the number

of homes at nsk of sewer flooding and there are
now fewer properties on the ‘at-risk’ register than
ever bafore.,

In previous years, we've identified customer serace
as an area where we would like to improve. Our
customer-axpenence programime is changing the
way we think about how we nteract with our
custorners, which has led to pleasing improvernents
IN our QUStomer Semvice SCOMes, s measured by
Ofwat’s Service Incentive Mechanisrm (SIM)
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Overview Chief Executive’s review

This contributed to a custormer satisfaction levet of
436 out of 5 in our SIM quontitative survey, as well
as faling levels of complaints However, we know we
have much fether to go and we are not complacent
This indudes resolving more of our customers’ ssues
to their satisfaction on first pomt of contact and
contnuing toinvest in our people, to help them form
a better appreciation of our customers’ needs and
concerns when they hove to contact us,

Our combined $IM score for 2012/13 was 78 1
against 69.9 in 2011/12. This represents a 12%
year on yecr impravernent and we're the most
improved water and woste water compary

Non-regulated - driving new markets in

the UK and overseas

We impraved our operational and finanaal
performance in our non-regulated business

Like for {ike revenue in Severn Trent Senices grew
by 5 3% and we mantaned underlymng profits
after nvesting further in business development.

We strengthenied our Severn Trent De Nora business
by acquinng some electrochlorination technologies
from Chiorine Engineers Corp for £1.3 million. This
gives Severn Trent De Nora an opportunity for future
growth in Japan Our Operating Services business
won severd! new contracts in the US, induding

21 from SouthWest Water Company as they exted
contract operabons i the Texas Muricipal Utilty
Distnct. We recently agreed to acquire service
contracts with 10 municipalises and three private
entities in Calfornia which will provide us with a base
for growth in the Westermn US We reorgarsed our
products business to create a regionol structure,
which will bring it doser to its customers and reduce
costs by sourang and assembling more locally

We diso sharpened our focus by disposing of the
metering and analytical setvices businesses.
Disposal of our analytical seraces business also
satisfied an undeytaking made to Ofwat who

have now dosed the section 26 investigationinto
this morket.

In the UK, we're driving forward retall competrbion
with the UK's first retoll switch when we signed
major dairy First Milk as a customer, induding sites
n England, Scotland and Wales.

We also contrue to leverage our sector leading
position In renewable and green energy. For the
second successive year, we generated around one
quarter of the electnaty needed by our UK reguiated
businesses. We lead the UK in anuerobic digestion
technology and are developing plons to expand into
the emerging UK opportunity from food woste
digestion. Dunng the year, we dlso extended our
crop digestion plant m Nottinghamshure and started
construchon of the first of three large wind turbines

People and cutture

The performance we've delivered this year shows
the quality of our people and therr desire to do an
excellent job. [ would like to thank them for
everything they have dane

We have talented and committed people throughout
the group Together, they have a wide breadth of
expertise, from hydrologists and engineers to
customer service experts and technologists

They apply these skills to our common mission,
delivering high standurds and the lowest possible
charges for austomers, with great people.

We've created a culture of continuous Improvernent
that sustains our desire to do better. This aulture s
key While we have q sophusticated set of taols which
combine behavioural saence and lean management
to help us improve the way we work, it’s the culture,
volues and atttude of our people that make those
tools effective and dnve us forward, every day,

Looking forward

Severn Trent 1s well positioned as the UK industry
enters the naxt phase of development. We have
accepted Ofwat's proposed hicence modifications
and are aligned ta the ogenda for regulatory reform
and the Water Bill, bath of which we contmue to
help shape.

Our preparations for PR14 are progressing well
Customers are at the heart of our planning, through
the widespread engogemnent we've already
conducted and through our customer challenge
panet, the Water Forum. Further details are provided
onpages 18 and 20

Regulatory and political support for water trading 1s
growing and companes are likely to be incentnvised
to trade in the future Severn Trent has an ongoing
dialogue with neighbeuring companies and we are
well placed to benefit from more effective use of the
country’s water resounces.

Lookmg further ahead, comparues will have to
ansure they're sustanably financed. The utilibes
sector in the UK will need to find billions of pounds
for rvestment and it isn't certain thet ofl of thes con
be done through debt. Equity 15 therefore required to
play a part, which means companies will hove to be
able to eam an appropnate return to attroct that
funding. We published mportant discussion papers
onthis subject duringthe year

In summary, Sevem Trent is operaling from a great
base. We have the nght people doing the right things
and delivering the nght cutcomes. Our markets
around the world need dean water and waste water
senaces, ond we have the nght focus to prosper.

Signature removed

Tony Wray
Chief Executive




Overview

Today...
We’re getting it right
first time for customers

We've ntroduced new ways of working so we fix 80% of
bursts on customers’ properbies, that ore eligible under our
free reparr scherne, after one call 1o us and with one wsit.

We put oursetves i our customers’ shoes to understond ther
expenence We mopped out our processes from when our
custorner first contacts us to resobvng the job and we
reviewed how we kept our custormers nformed We clso
stood m our ermployees’ shoes and looked ot the traning

we provided and the systerns they used.

The result s a redesigned training programme for our
tearns, improved colloboration between field and call centre
colleagues and o better custormer expenence of dealing with
Severn Trent.

mage removed

Image rmoved

Tomorrow...

We continue to
invest in excellent
customer service

Wework hard to provide our customers with a service
expenence that 1s consistently reessunng and rebable,
whilst domg whatever we can to personalise the way
nwhich we deal with each indmdual custorner query
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Regulated

Severn Trent Water

Severmn Trent Water aims to be the best water and waste
water company in the UK, by providing the highest standards
and lowest possible charges, through great people.

Seeu.rﬁim'lt’swhutwe do utwww.severnh-entcon#wrmwaio

Our long term objectives...

Over the last year, we have consulted widely with
our stakeholders and customers about mvestment
priorities for the medium and longer term.

Based on that consultation, we have set out ten
long term ObJECtIVES

1. Wewil prowde water that s good (1o dnnk

2. We will ensure water 15 olways there
when you need it

3 Wewll safely take your waste woter away
4 We wil provnde excellent customer service
5 Wewil have the lowest possible chcurges

6 Wewill help you if you struggle

7. Wewil protect our water envuronment

8. Wewil protect the wider en\nmnment )

9. Wewill moke a posrtlve difference in
the commumty

10. We will finance our busnness sustmnably

We measure our perforrnunce ogmnst 16 key
performance indicators (KPIs) Details of our KPIs
can be found on page 139.

Where we operate

Our region stretches across the heart of the UK.
We serve mare than 4.2 milion households

and businesses, from the Bnstol Channel to the
Humber, and from mid-Wales to the East Midlands.

bmage removed

~delivered through four focus areas

We Imnplement our strategy and plans by focusing
on four key areas our customers, , process

ond finance. We aim to deliver the highest standards
and lowest charges to our customers, through a
hightly skalled and comrrutted workforce.

Customers

Our household customers hove the lowest average
combined water and sewerage bills in England and
Woles. Delivenng custoimer satisfoction also requires
us to provide water that's good to drink and always
available, and to take away waste water, to reflect
customers’ pnorities In our plans, to communicate
dearty, and to keep our promises and put things
nght ifthey go wrong.

More on customers on page 17

People

Our people are the comerstone of our success.
We strive to recrut, develop and retain the best
people, provide them with great workploces and
rmaintain a strong cutture of safety, personal
responsbﬂrty and contlnuws tmprovemem.

Process

Our drve to work safer, better and faster s the
foundation of our approach to continuous
improvement. Making sure we have the right
processes and systems is fundamental to achieving
opemhonal excellence.

More on process on page 21

Finance

The higher our standards, the more effectively ond
efficiently we work This helps us to keep our costs
low and generate progressive, sustainable retums
which eam the trust of and rewand for our investors.
We look to finance the company n an efficent,
sustainable way and maintan an nvestment grode
credlt ruttng

More on fmmeon page 23

Drnkng water
suppbedperday

“}E;Sbn

Image:
removed

Waoste water
collected per day

H;LI-bn

Image
removed

Employees
5,631
osat 31 March 2013

Tumover

£1,511.0m

(2012. £1,457.5m)
Profit*

£5009m

{2012 £500.0my}
* Before nberest, tmand
exceptonal kems.




Regulated Seven Trent Water

Today...
We've developed

innovative and
sustainable solutions

We've invested in new innovative technology resulting in
mcreased opergbonal efficences and significontly reduang
our carbon impocts.

At our Ashbourmne Sewoge Treatment Works we've mstalled
the UK's first full scole HYBACS plant. The HYBACS unvts can be
added onto actvatad sludge plants to cope with increased
{oads into our works. The HYBALS offers operabonal cost
savangs of around 80% ond operational carbon savngs of
around 60%.

With Midtands based firm Lontr, we howe developed a version)
of the Blade Compressor™ speafically optmised for waste
water gergion The world's first full scole triol of the

has been in operobion ot our Worcester Sewoge
Treatment Works for the lost stx months. We spend oround
ﬂmﬁmugormpumforaemﬂon inour actvated sludge
plants and the design of the Blode Gompressor™ con reduce
this electraty consuroption by around 20%.
Alongside Lontro we recently won ‘Most Innovetve New
Technology of the Year' ot the Water Industry Achievernent
Awards for this groundbreaking development.

Tomorrow...
Our research is leading
to new efficiencies

As we reploce our old metol pipes with plostic cnes, detecting
ledks becomes horder

We have worked with Loughborough University to develop o
tegk detecbon system thot will recuce the tme

prototype

tokes to detect a leak on plastic ppes. Now under cornmeroal
dewetoprment with Echologees t could sigreficantly improve
effienty, resuttng i ¢ postve mopact for custorners and
the ermmnment.

Image removed
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Regulated Sevemn Trent Water
Our business model

Woater is essential to life and to the
communities in which we live and work.
Severn Trent Water is intrinsically linked
to the life cycle of water. The customer
is at the heart of our continuous drive to
s1mprove our operations and services
across collection, delivery and deaning
of water.

Severn Trent Water s a regulated business.

We work withmn five year planning cydes, with
customer pnces set by our econemic regulator,
Ofwat, to altow us to fund our investrment
programme and cover an efficient level of operating
costs. We are also subject to regulation by two
quality requlators - the Dnnking Water Inspectorate
and the Environment Agency {detafls of these
regulators are provided below).

Our prices and asset base are adjusted by RPL
inflation each year In certain crcumstances we can
ask for prices to be reviewed within the five year
pertod dute to costs assoaated with ‘notified tems’
or ‘relevont changes of circumstance’ Customer bad
debt and the adoption of prvate drams and sewers
are mcluded in these categanes for the current

five year penod.

The comparty eams a returmn on fts asset bose.

We can generate additonal retums if we outperform
Ofwat’s assumptions by becorming mare efficent in
the delivery of our capital programme, managing
our operational costs mora effectvely, and by
financing our business at a lower cost.

Our operuting performance is assessed and
benchmarked against the sector by Ofwat.

At the next price review there ts scope to eam
additonal mcome, or ncur penatbes, based on
our performance.

Regulc:tozy ﬁunmm

Comrm(muﬂﬁrwmer

Consurner Coundl for Woter s an ndependent bady designed

1o protect the nghts of corsumens. www.cowaterorg.uk

Drinlang Water Inspectorate {DWD)

The Drnking Water I mokes sure

supply water that s to drnk ond complies with ol

nunomlmd&mpecnsmndmdswwwdm.defm.gw.uk

Environment

TheEn\drumHﬁAgencylsumhﬁcbodysetuptnpmtectmd

wnprove the emironment. www.enaroniment-agency gov.ak

Hexlth and Safety Executive

The Hedlth and Safety Exeautive 1s the enforang euthorty on

heatth ond safety law. www hse.gov uk

Natural emvironment

Netural Resources Wales and Natural England.

wwwnaturdresourceswales.gov.uk

www.naturdengland.ong.uk

Ofwat

The econoimic reguiator for the water and seweroge Industry.

Tt makes sure that water comparmes Use custoners’ money

efﬁcmﬂyandeﬁectwelymdsetsowpmemts.
www.ofwot.gov.uk

The role of Severn Trent Water
kmage
removed Image
1 2
> —)
Wateris coltected Water is cleaned
(abstraction) Our 126 water treatment "
rks clean raw water to the
We pay the Environment ;::ohest standards maleng it
Agency for the water we 9 ng
col!enccty from reservorrs, rivers safe to dnnk
and underground aquifers

QCross our region.

Regulcltory fromework

. Narurulenwronment
« Ernvironment Agency
= Heaolth and Safety Executive

Risks

» Dnnkang Water Inspectorate
» Heqlth and Safety Executive

{where these are currently considered Prncapal Resks,
further detcils are proveded on poges 39-42)

* Follure of key assets may resutt
in danoge to property, mjury to
people andéor disnuption to our
obility to supply our customers.
(Pncipat Risk Ref 6 ond 8)

« Fature of key assets or processes
may resutt In a deckne in water
quality, disnuption mour supply
o customners or foilure bo meet
%g.#mrytnrgetsmpdﬁsk

Networks invested
and maintained
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Regulated Severn Trent Water
Image mage tmage tmage
4 —» 4
Clean water Customers Waste water Waste water
is distributed enjoy our services s collected is treated
A47000 kmnetworkof pipes  We bill 4 3 milion busmesses  Ourc. 92,000 km of sewers Waste water s corefully
and enclosed storage and households g yeor collect waste woter from screened, filtered and treated
reservoirs bnng a continucus Inmetum, we provide o safe, homes ond businesses, and inour 1,023 sewage treatment
supply of clean water nght to reliable supply of water and surface water from outside works to meet stringent
our customers’ taps. the collection of waste water properbies and drains ervronmental standards
24 hours aday, 365 days We pay the Ervironment
ayear Agency an annual consent
fee to retum the now treated
water to the water system,
T Lomat T vofwat T T omwae T UNotwrlenvironment |
= Dnnking Water Inspectorate  « Consumer Counal for Woter  « Environment Agency + Environment Agency

» Health and Sofety Executive - Dnnking Water Inspectorate  » Health and Safety Executive = Heatth and Safety Executive

O - —— B [T — - - —— ——— o - e oo

» The performance of our = We may be unable to suificently + Falure to ded with custormer + We may suffer

operabonat

distributon network may foll improve our performance n waste effectrely moy leod failure m our waste water
below the stondards expected by relabon to asstomer serice to sewer aperatons which results in
DWI1 or Ofwat, resulting in poor in order to delwver what our {(Pnncipol Rk Ret 7} damage tothe oodl emvironment.
service to our customers and asstomers tell us they wont. (Prncipdl Risk Ref 7)
ncreased fromouwr (Pinapad Risk Ref 1)
network. (Principal Risk Ref 7) * We oy be unable to respond

+ Folure of ane of our key ossets effectvely to the gpenmg up of
caould result m disruption to the busness retol market to
supply to Qustomers. competthon. (Prnapal Rick Ref 2)
{Prncpol! Risk Ref 8)

We are an investment led industry, and our capital programme this year Caprtal rvestment 15 added on to our asset base, colted the RCV Qur

wus £555 million, or £129 per connected property reflectng increased asset bose also nses m Line with inflgtion each year The returns that we

mvestment year on year in our woter and seweroge networks, nduding generate for shareholders on that asset base are set by our econormic

finding and foeng more leaks and reducing the number of supply reguiator, Ofwat, over five year planning cycles. We can ncrease these
mpravernents to our woter and sewage treotrment plants retums by outperforrnance.

generate, but also by borrawing money from the caprtol rmarkets,

Risks

We operate wathin a complex legal ord reguiatony environmernt os 0 water the termns of our requitory controct o5 Set out N our agreed business plan
and sewerage service provder in Englond and Wales As a resutt we face o for 2010-2015 We also face nsks assocated with possible future chenges
rumber of risks nchuding those assoooted with possible non-complionce in legssiabon which may resutt in our busness plons

with our legal and requictory framework, fuflure to obtain support from unsustaincble. (Prinapol Risk Ref 3,4 and 5 on poges 39-42)

Ofwat for cur business pian for 2015-2020 and fallure to meet
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Regulated Severn Trent Water

Overview As well gs being requiated by Ofwat, our
Industry and market performance s monitored by: .

The water industry in England and Wales mvests ' mwgnmﬁmyﬁmm
more than £3.0 billon each year ond emplays over \ations; ond

27,000 people. There are cumently 10 water and . ich controls
seweroge companies in England and Wales, as well g‘;&g&ﬂnﬂ ﬁfﬁ&%ﬁm water
as a number of smaller water only companies. .

. We also work with the UK Government (induding
The pvatisotion of the industry In 1989 has led to the Department for E-vironment, Food and Rural
improvements in customer service, better dnnking Affairs and the Welsh Assembly Government) and
water and higher environmental standards, other agenaes such as the Consumer Counall for
However, our sector still faces significant long term Water, Notural England and Naturol Resources
challenges These indude further improvements to Wales, to make sure we meet the highest customer

operational and ervironmental performance, erVIronmen whilst offermg
enhanang securty of supply, decling with extremes ieu':" mem the low&t;tal prs:caer;d orcs,
of dry and wet weather, manogmg the country’s

water resources more efficently and in the Key strengths
tong term, sustainably financing the ndustry’s Sevem Trent Water hos a number of key strengths

infrastructure imvestment. Our proposals for changes
in our industry are mforming the debate ot and we work hord to mantamn them. In particutar:

+ our gveruge bills for water and sewerage
rectng these chalenges. combined are the lowest in England and Wales;
How we're regulated = we continually work to improve our performance
Sevem Trent Water s a regulated business We work and deliver cost and operational efficencies
wathin five year planning cydes, with the pnces against KPis, which are oligned to our
we charge our customers set at the beginning of long term strateqy,;
each cyde by our economic requlator, Ofwat. + we are committed to long term sustanability,
These five year cydes are knowrn as Asset keeping in balance the needs of our customers,
Management Plan (AMP) penods. We have just the ervironment and our rvestors;
reached the end of the thind year of AMPS. * our hugh standards and effigencies keep our costs

low, which in tuem helps keep charges low for
customers and generates progressive, sustainable
returns for cur shareholders, and

+ we hove 6 dear strategy and business plon and o

strong managerment team
Progress against our long term objectives
Long term obyectve Progress in the year
1 We will provide woter » Ourdrinkdng water quaiity remained highand we martoned our cornpliance with the Dnlang Water Tnspectonate’s stondards.
tatsgoodioddink . We Invested inimprovements to our water treatmert plorts and developed Dnnbong Water sofeyPlas.
2. We will ensure water e - We wntinued to manoge our water resounces effectvely and once ogen ovoded ary hoseppe bans.
Shwys there whenyou need k- We reduced tealage to ts lowest ever level ond cut the undertyng nurmber ofmamthﬂv ..
3 We will safely take your - m|mmmmmmmmwmmmmmmmﬂofmmng
waste water owoay regester to s lowest level
e e e e e . We e substontial investrmient to mprove sewer systems. e
4 We will prowide excellent + We introduced a range of instigtves to improve Q.stomer senace, resuiting m nareased custares satisfaction soores.
| Customerserice - Weoduevedﬁrb&nmnmnmmmwmmwpeagmmmnedbyom
5. We will hove the lowest . Omuvaugemrrbmdmtermdmmgehﬂsmedmebweﬂmmgmdmm
. possblecharges - Owbilswilmmonthe lowestn 201914 e e =
& We will help you . Wetelped%,ﬂnastmasmsmggedtomybikmamgedﬂeﬂuetmﬂsmm
_fyousmuggle - Wedonated £30 miion to the Severn Trent Tnist Fund
7 We will protect our . V\lereclx:edpomtmrnderis
| _woteremvonment -+ mmwmmmmmnmmmmmmw ~
&mv\mm:tﬂre . anmofﬂmehdmtymededbywmmgmmdhaneswmpwdedw”m
erenvironment

enevgy operatons.
+_ We reduced our net greenhouse gas emissions dunng the year and are en tosget i beat our business plan toget by 2015,

9 We wil make o positve » We invested heavily 1o our network and treatment plantts, making 6 substantiol contributon to jobs and
differenve n the communty the locol
+ We tolked to schooks, cther organsations ond soad housing abaut water effiaency, contributing to one of the owest
e = oo P COPA0 COMSUMPBIONS 1 the cOLNTY .
"10. We will finance our . mOmtnmdtoermrewemvepmpeﬁyﬁmedwrthosho bdmcesheetandwestrrmgmdecrednmng
business sustanably Wec“‘t"md‘OthsmpeﬂwedebmemﬂmuemmsuyfmnmguMpmmedwrpq)a'auagngcwrse

through sustanabie finanang

- et e - _——— - — ———— s




Regulated Severn Trent Water

How we measure success
Sevem Trent has published ts own set of KPIs since
2007 In 2011/12 Ofwat adopted a set of KPIs that it

mwgen required all water companies to publish Severn Trent

1,000 properties has edapted ts own KPIs to meet this new

2013 "7 requirement. These KPIS provide Ofwat with an
overgll picture of performance against the

4.1 9 company’s commitrments made os part of the AMP5

(2012 - 4.38) price review Our KPLs are set out on page 139
For the 2015-2020 penod we have defined 10

& long termab to meet customer and

6 stakeholder needs. In April 2013 we published a
consubtation on our proposals for bills and serices

Pont of contact for the penod (Your water Your choices)

resolbon  This included constitation on a proposed new set

2013 of reasures by which our customers, stokeholders,

0 and regulators can see how much progress we

90_0 /0 are moking towards achiewing these objectves.

(2012 - 89 4%) Following the consuttation, we will be finghsing the
measires and induding them in our busness plan
which we wll submit to Ofwat In December 2013.
Further details of our performance are provided
in our Annual Regulatory Performance Report,
which s avaitable ot wwwi.stwater co uk

Averoge wotar

andsewogetd  Performance

2012113 At Severn Trent Water we focus on four key areas -

£3 26 customers, people, process and finance {as we
explamn on poge 12). Howing the right people with

(201112 -£311) the nght skills and using the nght processes, enables
us to offer high quality, low cost services ta our
customers. This in tum drives our finanodal resuits,
The following pages descnbe what we achieved in
each of these areas during the year

Averoge somer Customers

20'1;713 " For the fourth year running, cur average combined
water and sewerage bills were the lowest n England

89p and Wales, at £326. Our hills will rernain the lowest
in2013A4,

(2011712 - 85p) We axm to supply woter thot's good to dnnk and
always avallable Despite the drought ot the start of
thes year, we managed our water resources carefully
and once agan aveded any hosepipe bans or other
Umits on our customers” water use. The sutsequent
heavy rain helped restore our reservoirs and aquifers
and our wigter resources are now n good shape
Our water quality remomed high and we mamtained
our compliance with the Drinking Water

mage remaved
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Inspectorate’s standards ot 99 98%. We delivered
water at the nght pressure and further mproved our
overall performance on supply interruptions.
However our company KPI (perfomnance on
interruptions) was not as good as last year owing to
a single burst trunk main which affected numerous
asstomers. We remain foaused on cutting supply
interruptions, with further investment planning to
improve our performance.

We continue to invest to ensure we provide the best
water quality and resibence To achieve this we have
numerous projects, including renewing nearly

300 km of water mains, mproving resilience in
Sauth Gloucestershire, and refurtishing 5 kmn of

the Derwent Valley aqueduict. We're dlso renewing
sections of high nsk trunk mains, to minirmise the risk
of interruptions to supply Other significant projects
indude new treatment plants in Shropshire,
Warwickshire, Notinghomshire and Derbyshire,

to address catchment quality Issues.

We made further progress with our catchment
management programnme during the year

This involves encouraging farmers and other large
land users to reduce their impact on water
resources, The drought and wet weather maode et

a difficult year for farmers, but their interest in
catchment manogement remains high. Dunng the
year, we completed around 150 water quality
inveshigabons arsing from Drinking Water Safety
Plans, and hit our target for catchment
management tnvestigations under the EA’s
National Ervironment Programime, receiving g
positive response from the EA.

One issue associated with wet weather is an
ncreasing problern with metaldehyde, a pestade
used to control stugs and snails. We took addiionol
action from late surnmer, but coutd not prevent a
number of higher pesticide results m the autumn,
We contnue to toke a leading role nationatly in
seeking an ndustry solution to metaldehyde,

The ntense rain in 2012 led to anincrease in the
number of internal sewer flooding repeat incdents.
Lost year was the second wettest yeor on record
and parts of our region suffered severe flooding.
Some of our custorers expetienced flooding during
the year and we did everything we could to hetp the
local authonties and the EA respond, for example
by prowding lerge purnps to protect roads ond
properties adpacent to nvers.

We are mvesting significant amounts n our

waste water services to improve the service to

our custormers, Rurther details of the investment
can be found on pages 22 and 23,

Customer experience

We work hard to provde our custemerswith o
service expenence that is consistently reassunng
and relioble, whilst doing whatever we canto
personalise the way in which we deal with each
indrdual customer query.

We asprre to be gn organisation that s designed
around its customers, not Just s network. We
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Regulated Severn Trent Water

demonstrated the best
improvement in SIM
performance across our
peer group.’
know that customer expectations continue to be
influenced by the vast number of brands, products
and technologies that they interact with It's
therefore essential for us to look at our processes,
policies and general ways of working through e
custorner lens and not an operational lens. We
started this cuttural journey two years ago when
we launched our Customer Expenence Programime
By engoging every Sevem Trent colleague in the
practicol pursuit of the best possible expenence for
our customers, we've succeeded m ochievng a very
reol improvernent acrass our key indicators of
customer satisfactron.

We're proud of what we've achieved - but we worvt
stop until our customers consider us to be one of the
very best custormer service prowiders in the industry.
We are able to benchmark our performance aganst
that of our peer group via Ofwat’s tndependent SIM.

Ofwat's SIM measures our customers’ experience
of dealing with us. The SIM score has two elements:
quantitatrve, based on the number of customers
that have to contoct us, and qualitative, which
assesses our service quality when theydo

We have consistently recered good quantitative
scotes, but in the past, our quality of serace hos
fallen short. In the last 12 months, we have focused
onimproving the areas our austomers say are
important to themn, namely
» resolving therr ssues or quenes at first paint

of cortoct;
- being avallable to therm when they want us; and
- keeping them informed every step of the way.
To do this, we created a oss company group to
look at how we could drive iImprovernent in our
processes, response times and simplify the language
we use to communicate with our customers.
Thus helped us improve both elements of our SIM
score in 2012/13

We're pleased to have demonstrated the best
mmproverment in SIM performance across our peer
group, but we're not yet where we want to be from
abenchmark perspective And so the joumey
towards the best possible customer expenence
continues with a relentless focus on putting our
customers at the heart of how we opercte,

Our ‘vorce of the custormer” tool gives us direct
feedback from custorners at the end of a call or
when we've finished doing something for them.
We get around 12,000 responses amonth.

Thrs valuable feedback helps us improve our

processes and how we deal with custormers
when they feel they need us most.

We have mantaned first pont of contact resolution
at around $0%. Our Custorner Advisors are
consistently recenving satisfaction scores in the S0s
and, as o result, our complaints volurne continues
to decline at o very heolthy rate We also further
reduced written complaints, which wene down 14%

One of the important points of contoct with
custorners 1s when they receive a bill from us.
We've continued to improve our bill designto
make them easier to understand, and 10 pass on
useful information, such os the different ways
customers con get m touch wath us. We will alse be
introducing e-biling for customers who preferit.

Managing debt

Some customers choose not to pay and some
custorners genuinely struggle to pay In ine with
our commitment to fair and affordable bills for all,
we operate robust processes to influence the
behaviours of those who choose not to pay,
which in tum controls our heatthy debt tevels

For our custormers who truly struggle to pay,

we offer a range of flexible tariffs and schermes.
These can involve matching the customer’s
payments, capping bills for people with low ncomes
who have to usz large amounts of water for medical
or fomily reasons, or allowing customers to moke
payments directly from therr benefits. In 2012/13,
we helped a total of 44,821 custommers this way

The Severn Trent Trust Fund offers an aftemative
avenue of support and has helped many
custormers over the years to fund their water

bills. During the year we donated £3.0 million to

the Severn Trent Trust Fund to enable the charity to
support our customers who have difficulty n paying
their water bills. However, a austomer who struggles
with their water bill is kely to struggle with other
household bills. We wish to provide these customers
with miore rreaningful support and have therefore
entered into o partmership with the Citzens Advice
Bureau which has the skills to help customers
address their finanoia! issues ot a deeper level

We hope in this way to help our most financially
winerble customers to manage and ovoxd
household debts more effectively n the future,

Engaging with our customers

One of the significant differences between the
process for PR14 and the previous pnice review is the
increosed role for customers and other stokeholders
n helping us to formulate and chollenge our plan.
The Water Forum s our customer challenge group
for PR14 Tt includes representatives from custormers,
our environmental regulatars and locat authonbes,
and has on ndependent chaw, Dame Yve Buddand,
who s also nationol chair of the Consumer Couril
for Water,

COW ot www severmt
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Today...

We’re improving our
flood defences in
Gloucestershire

Since 2007, we've mvested over £38.0rmilion ogoss
Gloucestershure to ensure we are better dble to copewith
extrarme weather

To ersure our sewers N Gloucester can cope with heavy
rarfall we have loid over 1 kmn of new sewers. We've
our sewage pumping station ot Longleverss with underground
storage tanks and storm water pumprigand at our
Mythe Witer Treatrent Works we've nstalled flood

bamers. To ensure we atways have a back-up
supply we've built ppelines from our other water
trectrment works.
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Tomorrow...

We’re continuing to

invest across our region

Replacng our largest covered reservor ot Ambesgote,
Derbyshre ond replocing over 7 knn of sewers in Newark,
Nottingharmshire are just two of our major investment
schemes over the next five years, We will invest over
£58.0 million on these two proyects to ensure we coninue
10 provde quality water ond prevent sewer flooding.
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The role of the Water Forum is to ensure that
custorner and other stakeholders' views are
understood and represented by Severn Trent
Water when we submit our plans to Ofwat in
Decernber 2013.

Ofwat will assess our plan ogainst four citena
outcomnes, costs, risk and reward, and affordobility
and financeability Cur plen will then be categerised
as ‘ephanced’, ‘standard’ or ‘resubrmission’

This will determine the level of scrutiny and
challenge of our plan ond the finandial incentives
available. The Water Forum reports on the quality
of our customer engagement, and how well our
business plan reflects custormer views ond pnonties.
It wilt form a key input to Ofiwat's assessment oganst:
the outcomes atena

We also have ¢ broader engagement programme
and have run workshops on topics including
managing cdirnate change, water and waste water
tssues, and custormer service A wade range of
stakeholders attended these sessions. We dlso
carried out a major custorner survey, to understand
therr willingness to pay for improvernents we could
deliver as part of our plan

In Aprit 2013, we 1ssued another consultation paper,
“Your water Your choices', which set out our thinking
on what might happen to austomer bills, iInvestment
and irwestor retumns over the next five years, This will
give us further clanty on our stakeholders’ views.

People

We aim to have people with the nght slalls and
approach to work, personal development and
customer forus. To dnve the behanours we think are
importont, we have a Code of Conduct {Doingthe
right thing - The Severn Trent way) that applies
across the group ond explons our approach to
isues ranging from health ond safety, to ethics and
honesty, ond to detvermyg excellent custorner service.
Our Code of Conduct explains who we are, what we
stand for and how we work; it also tells our
customers and business partners that they can rely
on us. Further details ore provided in the Governance
report on page 50.

A safe and hedlthy worldorce

Protecting the heatth and safety of our austomers,
people and contractors s our rumber one prionty
We were delighted to reduce lost trme inadents
once agan, making 2012413 our safest year yet.

Our MindSafety™ troining contributed
to this improvernent. It teaches our people about
different staotes of owareness, so they understand
how they should work and can tuke responsbility
for their own safety. We hove coaches around the
business to remforce the MindSafety™ approach
and will be running refresher programmes.

Other inhatives to enhance safety dunng the
year induded our nsk assessments and
making sure that our people understand ther roles
and responsibiiibies.

‘We were delighted to
reduce lost time incidents
once again, making 2012/13
our safest year yet

One areq that has concemed us 5 an increase I
road traffic acadents. Whilst our staff didn't couse
these acadents, we are looking at ways to reduce
the nsk by mnimsing the rmules they trovel and
prowding traimng on safe and effective dmang and
preventative actions.

Aswell as raising safety standards, we am to be
more proactve with our people’s heatth and
well-being In 2012113, we appanted a new
occupationat heatth provider We're tegally required
to morutor the hedlth of sorne employees, for
exarmple If they're exposed to nose or vibration,

or work in confined spaces Our new occcupotional
hegith provider has a mobile unit, which wisits sites
to monitor our people This saves tme and prowides
a friendlier ermvironment than an off-site facility

We're also working with a new provider to help
employees with musculoskeletal problems.

Our partrer looks at b design and how we

can make changes to help pecple back to work,
We are increasingly locking to take action before
problems arse.

Engoging our pecple

Our annuol ernployee survey once again showed
that our people are positive about worlang for us.
Our overall Engogement Index rose to 79%, ahead
of our target of 75% and the mdustry benchimark of
74%. The survey response rate also increased, a sign
that our people know that it's mportant to us that
they give their feedbock and that we listen.

The most improved area was in people believing we
are cornrmitied to custorner service. Our score for
commutment to customners rose frorm 71% to 83%.

A number of factors were behind the mproved
survey resutts. Developing our menagers has
made them more willing to engage with their
teamns and we hove also put effort mto making sure
managers understond our business goals and can
communicate them to their teams. Our cortimuous
improvernent programme also contnbuted,

by gving our peoplethe toots and techruques to
solve problems they foce at work.

Previous employee surveys showed thet our people
wanted to see more of our exeautive tearn and

to find out how they were leading the business.
This year, we ran a rolling programme where
Executive Committee members went out to meet
people across the busmess. More than 1,000 of our
people attended these meetings, enablmg them to
ask any question they wanted. The feedback has
been posttive ond our executrves have also leamed
where we need to communiate better.
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Developng our people

Every year, we mvest significant amounts m people
developrment (£3.9 milion i 2012/13) Ths yedr,
we piloted a ‘Leeding for Performance’ development
programme n our waste water business. The gim 1s
to have leaders who con inspire and engege our
people and lead them through change - an area
where we know we can do better The progromme
helps ourleaders to understand themselves and to
leamn how to coach athers as well as build high
performing teams. After positive results, we're now
rolling out the programime across all of our
operational leadership

We have many other leadership programmes, which
together form our ‘Line Manager Journey’. They
make sure that os peaple move Into manogement,
they have the skills to lead effectvely Forexample,
to drive our perforrmance culture, we want all aur
employees to have a performance discussion with
therr manager We run programmes for managers
at all levels, so they understand the process and can
have those sormetimes diffiault conversations.

We'll soon be launching an initiative for nearty 1,400
people in Customer Relations, colled the Great People
Programme Managers will learn obout creating o
customer onentated cutture and coaching people i
asstomer service skills. Frontfine adwvisors will become
better at gving custormers a positive and mamorable
experience when they get in touch with us.

As part of our talent review process, we piloted new
development centres this year These ook peaple
identfied as promotable and ossessed ther
strengths and development needs. Each person
came out with an m depth development plan.

Ina changing world, we need leaders with a breadth
of expenence who can nse to different challenges.
We therefore reintroduced our groduate
programme, takang on nine high calibre people,

In 2013/14, we plan to increcse this to 20 and we're
also considering introducng a technical graduate
scherne, with progression to chartered engineering
Finding peopie with the nght sidls s a challenge
aaross the industry, so we further expanded our
apprenticeshup scheme, We now howe 82
apprentices at different stoges of development,
induding 22 we recruited in September 2012

for techrucal tramung, induding two for a new
environmental conservation apprenticeship.

Almost all our apprentices move on to permanent
Jobswith us.

tmage rernoved

Through a pilot programme called Employee
Ownership of Skills', the UK Government hos asked
employers to set out how we mught use public funds
alongside our own rvestment to improve the skills
we cumently have in the industry, idenbfy the skills
we'll needin the future and where we should invest.

We're also continuing to support projects inthe
Midlands to encoumge young people to study
stience, technotogy, engmeenng and maths (STEM)
subjects in order to be able to take up engineenng
and techrical careers n the future.

Attrocting a diverse workforce

Our goal is to attroct o diverse range of talent, with
a balance of gender and ethnicity that reflects

the market we operate m At the moment, our
workforce 15 slightly more drverse than the sector
average, with rrore female employees and people
from black, Asian ond ethnic minornty groups.

We have a diversity working group, with members
from across the business. Its cumrent focus isan
gender diversity inleaderstup roles. We are olso
starting to get more nsight into ethric diversity
It's important that we attract the broodest range
of condidates when we recrurt, so we track our
attraction rates across different genders ond
ethruc backgrounds. We have also refreshed our
careers website, tomake 1t appeal to o wwder ange
of people.

Helping our people to manage therr finances

In Aprii 2013, we outo enolled more than 1,000
people into cur pension scheme. We believe thot
pensions are importont and we're committed to
providing @ competitve scheme

As many of our people told us that they didn't
understand pensions, we set up a fincancid
education programme which is now part of our
ongoing trairung. So far, 1,200 employees have
attended o session to tearmn about pensions, debt,
morigoges, savings and other finanaal matters.

Process

To deliver great service to our customers, we look to
continuously improve our processes and technology.
Our gpproach to contimuous impravement is called
*Safer Better Faster’ It helps our people to find ways
to do things better, so we can Improve our service
We continue to invest, induding bulldng and training
our team of expert practizoners, who work with
colleagues to help thern use ‘Safer Better Faster'
techmques on a doly basis.
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Dunng the year, we exploted our previous
investment in SAP and desktop technologes, and
used our ‘Safer Better Faster’ opproach to mprove
our bustness processes For example, we introduced
better processes in solving bursts on private
properties, fixng stop tap problems and gvng our
custorners a better serice. We implemented
software to allow work crews to access maps and
asset data on theirtaptops, so they can pinpont
lecks and blockages more efficiently We're also
mcreasmyg the use of remote rmorstonng to improve
performance across our networks, This helps us to
detect teaks and prevent supply intemuptions,
aflowing us to respond to problems before
customers are affected.

One of our biggest challenges wos improving how
we engage with our custorers ot our call centres,
Durng the year we made a strategic iInvestment m
telephony systems, toimprove cur customers’
experience when they call us, The new systemn tinks
to our other back office systems, gving our peaple
better information to resolve customer issues during
the cdll

By investing i our people and technology, we've
reduced to almost zero the number of customers
who receive an engaged tone More custorners can
speak to someone quickly, so fewer are hanging up
because we've kept them warting.

Using text messages, our new website and other
technologies has helped us keep our customers
infermed about what we're doing. Live update maps
on our website tell customers what's going onn
their area and we're olso making more use of
Twitter. We wont customers to contact us nthe
wuy that's best for them, and around one quarter

of dll contacts are now through our website, where
customers can pay bils and update ther detais

We increasad the resitence of our technology,

by investing n new data centres. We dlso made
significant investrment in business modelling
software, wiich wil allow us to model different
planning scenanos for the next five years reflecting
the mput we have received from our PR14 customer
focus group.

We are improving the efficiency of our procurement.
We're working with our supply choin to get better
vilue for money, mduding usmg our SAP system to
aive us mare visbiity of what we buy and where,

Dunng the year, we and our One Supply Chan
framewoark partners continued to deliver greater
efficiencies n our caprtat programime. Our strategic
relationships with cur One Supptly Chein partners
help us to become more iNnovative as we work
together, for example by consolidating buying
throughout the supply chan.

We want to work with responsible supplers, so
we've developed guidelines and stondards that we

expect suppliers to meet to ensure they are dligned
to our philosophy of doing the right thing and our
underlying policies. These cover key areas of
corporate responsibiity, such as our supplers’
approach to heatth and safety, ant bribery and

anti corruption, and environmental performance.
For more detaits on ‘Doing the nght thing -

The Severn Trent way' see page 50

A number of new technologies went Iive m our
waoste water operabions this year In order to dnve
efficency we are exploting technology innovaton at
places such os Ashboume where we hove instolled
the UK's first full scale HYBACS plant. HYBACS s a
treatment technology that allows us to process
higher valumes, while using less energy. In
Birrmingham we bave nstalled the UK's first
Annamox plant to treat high concentrations of
ammonia Angerobic ammonium oxidation
intensifies the sewage treatment process, so we can
use fewer and smaller assets. In Nottnghom we are
installing one of the UK's first struvite recovery plonts
to redaim phosphate so that we can seli t on.

We have also been working with a partner which
provides air cornpressors that can reduce electnaty
consurmption by around 20%. These play an
importart part in sewage treatment. More broadly,
we work extensively with other orgonisations to
develop new processes and have more than 30
academic or industnal research partners.

Ervironment

Delivenng our emvirorrmental obligabions has a real
tmpact on our customers and the communibes in
which they ive and work.

Manoging waste water

We acheved good improvernents m our
envienmentd performance n waste water

The number of reported pollution incdents fell
from 458 n the previous year to 376, a reduction
of 18%. While we are one: of the ndustry leaders
at preventing the most senous pollution modents,
we can still improve in other less senous categornes.
We are investing in traning, working on faster
response times and using technology to try to
predict where polluticns might ocour.

Seven Trent has around 1,000 sewage treatment
works. Of these, only 0.85% foiled to reach ther
complance limits (2012. 2.54%), our best ever
perforrmance. This was down to our improverrernt
group, which has andlysed the roct couses of fallure
and enabled us to systematcally eliminote those
problerns, as well as the ongoing benefits of our

rvestment progromme and more remote
moniionng of cur sewage treatment process.

{fmage removed
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This year has seen us reach halfway on our

£200 miion major projects programme of work.
Upgrodes are under way to our key sewage
treatrnent works senving Nottingham, Lescester,
Worksop, Stoke, Coventry, Burton-upon-Trent and
Tetford. Elsewhere this year we have mvested almost
£204 milion to mairtam service to our customers
and undertaken key environmental mproverments
to our rivers. Laokang forwaord, we're investing
significantly in improving nver water quality and
have carned out a pilot study with the EA on how to
achieve zero pollutions and breaches of consent.
Sewer systems are pnrmanly designed to handle
waste water and on occasions can be overwhelmed
dunng heavy rain events.

Sewer flooding 1s one of the worst service falures
that can hoppen to a customer, Dunng the year we
have made improvements to protect 158 properties
from internal flooding and 70 extermnal areas
including substorbal ivestment to mprove sewer
systerns m Leamington Spa and Gloucester

The number of homes on the risk of sewer flooding
register i1s now at s lowest ever level. We expect
to be ahend of our target at the end of this
regulatory period.

We have o proactve programme to dean ond
repar our sewer netwark which helps to prevent
blockages, pollutions, flooding and collopses of
our sewerage system,

This was our first full year of moneging the

37,000 kam of prvate drains and sewers that
transfemed to us on 1 October 2011, While this
incregsed the number of blockages we had to

deal with, overdall we saw a lower level of reactve
work than we expected. We are camying out more
inspections and conditon/CCTV surveys of these
assets, 5o we con leam more about thermn and
have better informed plans for the future,

Deploying water resources wisely

Severn Trent s the only cormpany to target o
significant reduction m leakage during AMPS

We made further good progress, cuthing leakage
to s lowest ever level ot 441 MI/d. This compares
with 464 Mi/d last year and our internal target of
465 MI/d Our performance benefited from our
ongong Investment programime and the relatvely
mild weather,

Managing water resources effectively also means
helping our custorners to reduce the arnount they
use We have a seeable outreach programme with
schools and other organssabons, to teach people
cbout using less water We also distribute water
efficent dewaces and hove iIndustry leading mibatives
with sociol housing All of these contribute to one of
the lowest per capitn consumptions in the country.
The overall water saving this year as a result of these
measures is 3 26 Ml/d, which has contnbuted to the
continued reducton in our per copito consumplon.
Last year our custorners used an average of

121 lntres per person per day
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‘We remain at the forefront
of the industry’s debate
about its future.’

Protecting biodiversity

Sevem Trent has a role in protecting and enhanang
biodiversity at cur stes or sites offected by our
activibes. We manage 12 public occess sites whene
we work alongside volunteers and in partnership
with organisations to ensure the long temm
biodiversity value of the sites, whilst engaging with
our custorners. Agoss our region we also own or
partly manage 37 stes of speaal saentific interest,
where we work with our regulators, tenonts and
others to safeguord them

Finance

We am to finance the comparty m an efficent and
sustanable way, which helps to keep customer bills
low by keeping our financing costs low Our funding
comes fromn payment of custorner bills, issuing debt
on the capital markets and by shareholders retaming
equity in the business We have oninvestment grade
credit mting, with a stoble outiook We also look to
the long term sustainability of cur finanang and
during the year we published some further thoughts
i ‘Changing course through sustainable finandng’,
part of our continung Changing course senes of
thought papers onthe future of our industry.

More inforrmation about our finanaial performance
and our debt issuance during the year can be fourd
m the Fnanaal review on pages 35 to 38.

Outlook

We remgin focused on achieving sustainable
growth, by concentrating on our customers, people,
process and fingnce, We cim to deliver the benefits
of our investment programmes and te contmuously
improve the way we work, to rase standards and
drive efficency, Giving our customers an even better
service is an important part of this

Cr operating ermronment will change os the

UK Government passes the Water Bill and Ofwat
completes its preparations for PR14 We remain at
the forefront of the Industry’s debate about its future
and will continue to help shape the legislation and
regulation as it progresses.
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Severn Trent Services

Sevemn Trent Services is one of the world’s leading suppliers of water and
waste water treatment solubions We are known for innovation, reliabiltty,
quality services and leadership in our chosen markets.

Key strategic intentions...
Severn Trent Services has six key strategic intentions,

which define our strategy ond set out how we
intend to achieve our objectives.

1 Engaged employees with the nght skills
to delwer

2 Continuously mprove health, safety,
employee well-being and environmental
performunce

3. Determme and deliver what
custormers value

4. Develop new markets and products
through geographic expansion, end user
focus, technology innovation and strategic
partnersh:ps

5 Continue tobuld strong and
respected brands

6. Contunuously mprove and optm'nse our
products, processes and organisational
capabilities to enhance customer value and
|rnprove lEtUmS toour mvstors

Where we operate

Severn Trent Services i1s our main non-regulated
busness. It hos two business strearms -

Water Punfication and Operabing Senaces.
Woater Purfication is orgarssed around three
regions - the Americas; Asia Paafic and Chino,
Eurape, the Middle Bast and Africa Operating
Services works for customers in the US, UK,
Ireland and Itoly

mage removed

~delivered through our areas of focus

Sevem Trent Services s one of the world's leoding
water and waste water businesses. To achieve our
strategy we focus on.

Water Purification (Products)

Muniapal, commercial, ndustnal and manne
applcations require water trectment technologies to
meet ther disinfection, fittration and process needs.
The Water Punfication group’s portfolio of water
products are used around the world in support of
these opplications

Mare onWater Pmﬁcubon on puge 29

Operating Services ‘

QOperating Services delivers safe dnnking water and
waoste water treatment services. Itis responsible for
operatng more than 900 treatment facities across
its markets.

MoreonOperuthemcesonpugew

Imager
rernoved

£496m

osat 31 March 2013

Employees

2,339

os at 31 March 2013

Tumwer .

£3285m

(2012 £332 3m)
Profit*

£12.7m

{2012 £180m}
“Befors interest, tox end
el hems.
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Today...

We completed the
first retail switch

Severn Trent Costom provides water and waste water
manogement services  the UK to commeroal and industnet
LEars, delvenng woter stratemes to improve efficencies,
reduce costs, friigate nsk and manage compliance.

In October 2012, we announced First Mitk as the first business
custorner to switch woter suppler We supply, monage ond
rmonitor over 600 million ttres of water per year ocross s
First Milk sites, and are now working with First Milk to hetp
them achieve ther objectives for warter management,
“Beng able to get o doser handle on our water usage 15 not
Just beneficial to our business, but to any business, We beleve
that this controct with Severn Trent Costain will help us inour
Guest to meet some of the sustanobity targets, and help
prepare us for some of the short and long term challenges
fuang ourindustry

Paut Rowe, First Mik Group Projects Director

knage removed

Tomorrow...

We’'re well placed to
take a leading role

As the UK water supply market undergoes significant change,
we e taking a leading role. With water senaces licences
for Scotlond, England and Wales, we con offer mult-sted
businesses the benefits and synerges of a single
suppler approach.

We will continue to work in partnershep with high votume
busness users to manage the ncreasing chollenges
presented by clmate change and extrerne weather such
os floading, scaraty, nsing costs and increastng regutation.
We will develop innovotve water strategees which deliver
sustoinability, reduce costs and fulfil corporate social
responsibility agendos 1o meet the Increasing demands
from consumers and stakeholders to preserve and probect
0 valuoble resource.

Image rernaved
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Non-regulatad
Our business model

Severn Trent Services

Our business Is evolving from a traditional
base of municipal water and waste water
to one where we operate in a variety

of municipal, industrial and commercial
sectors for the delivery of both products
and services.

The market for water and waste water products
and services 15 sigruficant, with good prospects
for long term sales and profit growth due to
fundamental drvers: water scaraty, poputation
growth, dirnate change and more stringent
regulatory requirements.

Our strateqy & to introduce new technologies into
existing markets, adapting exssting techrology (for
example our BALPURE?® ballast water technology) to
fit new market opportunities, as well as growing our
Operating Services business in the US ond Europe
where we operate more than 300 fadilities and have
over £190 milicn reveniue.

We target a return on capital in excess of the
regulated water business, commonty above 10%

Key to our senaces

® Fitvation
Areas where STS offers flitration, separabon and
adsorpbon products/senaces for atl or part of
the process cyde

® Disinfection
Areas where STS affers disnfection ond related
instrumentation products/serwaes for all or part
of the process gyde

@ Opemting Services
Areas of the process cycte where STS offers
contoct operahons

Other non-regulated businesses
Renewable energy in the UK

As a group, we face an increasing need for energy due to
ever hghtening stondards. We have three man reasons
for developing our own energy, tor

+ reduce our reliance on electnaty from the nationd gnd,
+ reduce our carbon emissions; and

. ﬁ‘l"it‘ou{g'muctmmeemmomnent
Arecsoffocss ) _
Sewage gas combined heat and power (CHP) - Wehave
55 éngines on 35 sttes produang 40 MW of powet
Trade waste— We have four Sewoge Treatrnent Works
providing perrriapent trode waste storage end dosing
Energy fom arops *Our ‘energy crop’ anaesobic
digeston-plart next 1o the Stoke Bardolph Sewoge
Treatment Works in Nattmgharrshire

Hydro — We Have s hydro turbines instalied ot four stes
prodiang arolnd 17 MW.

Large wind turbines - We aim to generate 22 GWh

of electncity from four lorge wind turbines in 2015
Where we invest and where we make our retums

We are investing across the above five areas of focus
with £8 75 fiilbon invested in 2012113 We moke direct
retums i our renewdble energyoctiwtis, ond benefit
from gt soving acriss the group.

Providing Operating Services
and Water Purification Products to:

Image remaved

1 —

Municipal Water
Treatment
Severn Trent Services provides filtratton, disinfection

and process solution technologies for various
municipal water treatraent applications.

In addition, we provide contract operations and
maintenance for municipal water treatment
facitbes in the US, UK, Irelond and Italy

Disinfection =1~ ]

Product:
Advance™, ADUAWARD®, Capital Controls®, Chior-o-Voc®,
Chtoromatic™, QarTec®, MicroDynarracs®,

Filtration 8@ o
Bayoxide® O7T09™/33%,

E33, Omni-S50RB™, S0RB A
TEERAODeepBed""a |, TETRApHIX®, UAT™, TETRA Dehit=®,
Higgins Loop™, TETRA AumeFlow?®, TETRA® LP Blocks™
Services:
Waste Woter Facility Operations & Mantanance (O5M),
Water 9ystern Tragtmert & Distribution, Asset & Copital

Risks
(Where these are currently considered Prinapal
further detafls ore provaded on pages 39-42}

= We may be unable to collect and stone sufficiant woter to
meet astomer demand.

+ Mazardous processes iy resutt n our pecple bemg mured.
(vincipat Risk Ref 6)

. or polrbaal change may tead to decreosed
demand for our serices.

Risks,




Non-regulated
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Municipal Wc:ste

Water Treatment

Image removed

Severn Trert Serices proaades fitration, disinfection
and process solution technolegies for vanous
municipal woste water treatrnent applications

In addition, we prowide contract operctions and
maintenance for muricipal waste water treatment
facilities in the US, UK, Ireland and Italy

Pnmary Treatment @

Secondarleiologlca[ Treatment @ ©

m"w,mmmmm'cﬂtox

— S —

Tertiary/Advanced Treatment © ®
TETRA® , TETRA® Denite®, TETRA® NSAF, TETRA®

Shortcut-NRT™, TETRA® SNAP-T®

Final Treatment UV/Chlor Disinfection e
Copital Cortrols®, ClorTec®, hﬁuoDjlmis‘. Miaotherr®

Services:
Waste Woter Foclity

& Mosrdenance (05}, Waste Wriber

Operations
System Treatrment & Collection, Asset & Capital Management,
traatrment, Network

Design & Build, Industnal Pre-
Maintenonce & Renewal,
Studge Treatment &

Risks

Repdr,

Finance

= Faiture of products or treatrnent processas may resutt i

dernand

* Haxardous processes rdy result n our people beng mpred.

(Frnapal Rask Ref 6}

Industnal

Sevemn Trent Services offers a range
of dismfection, fittration and
process solutions for o surte of
industnd water and waste water
applications In addition, we
provicde design, build and contract
operations for water and waste
water trectment facilibes for o
vanety of industrial segments in
the US, UK, Irelond and Italy, and
supply retail water to businesses
throughout the UK.

Process Woter @ @

Capital Controis8, ClorTec®, EST™,
rics®, TETRA® DeepBod™, TETRA®

Higges EL::'-. UAT™, UttreDynarmics®,

{oolingWatere @ 6

Capitul Controls®, CloeTec®, EST™
,'smnzct.smﬁm'.
TETRA® DecpBed™, TETRA® Higgins Loap™,
LMT‘",MW.WW
Services:
Severn Trent Services provides a full ranga of

Fdxnofpmdu:lsorueotment
processes may resutt n njury to people,
envronmentd ond
WWMMS

+ Desrupton m the global supply cham
may mpact our ability to meet
astomer needs.

» We may be unable to tnke oxdvantoge
of the apening of the UK market to
competibon. (Pinapal Risk Ref 2)

B s s e saaema s s -
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Marine

Severn Trent Services offersa

range of disinfectzon, filtration
and process solutions for manne
and offshore woter and waste
water applications.

Electrochlonncmon ®
sm.mmt. SEACLOR®

Desalination @ @
Product:
SANTLEC®, SEACLOR®, LAT™, LitraDynamics®

Marine Sewerage ©©
Product

Balast Water Trectment @@

Prochuct:
BALEURE®

Dur webstes

UORDULXOMIBLD  SIUALURINGS [DOUOUY AUDAUIT)  SIUBLLRN0S [ODUDUY eI S0UDWISADD  MBINGISSEUBNG  MEIABAQ)

£107 SWNC00Y PUO LOdaY IDNULY 314 JURLL Wsanas



28

Non-regulated
3 We glso have a sector leoding renewnble energy
?:eme:vd ret operation, which provides electnaty to our UK
ndustry and marke regulated busmess, Severn Trent Water, with excess

The market for water and waste water produdsond  power supplied to the national gnd.
senaces 1 large with substartiol long term prospects
for growth n the oreas we serve That isbecausethe  Key strengths

drivers of the water and waste water business: Our non-requilated operations have the following
water scaraity; population growth; dimate chonge; key strengths.

and more stnngent regutatory requirements . .
rernain strong. our business has a clear strategy for growth, which

focuses on the growing global demond for clean
Our business wuater and safe, efficent waste water treatrment;

Severn Trent es water and e * we provide operating services to an inceasing
provid wast number of utilties, muruapalbes and commercial

water treatment products and operating senaces to customers m torgeted countries; and

utilies, municipalies and commercial customers in

« we are a leader n the design, production and sale
selected markets around the world We focus on the of water punficaton products in growth markets

growth markets and geographies where our

products and services meet the significant needs of s;ghr: :fg%mmuﬁ:; t0| dsorpE ot t!ogund
our customers.

We have two prinapal business streams, Woter How we medasure success

Punfication (Preducts) and Operating Services, which  Severn Trent Services establishes an annuol suite
are described under our areas of focus on page 24. of performance targets (KPIs) which are used to
Operating Services includes Severn Trent Costain, measure and guide the business throughout the
which provides complete business waterandwaste  year KPIs are measured and reported monthly to
water management, from source to disposal, for all employees and are aligned with the delvery of
hugh volurme commeraal and industnal waterusers  our long term strategic plan which 1s set out m our
n England, Wales and Scottand. Key Strategic Intentions (KSIs} below

Progress against our key strategic intentions
Key strategc ntenbon Progress n the year
1 Engoged ermplayees with the = Our quartery strveys show employee engagement chead of target and benchmarks for similar busmesses.
7 Continuously mprove heaith, ~ + We delivered strong health and safety performance, with o further reduction inlost biemadents.
safety, employee well-bengond = We wen owards that recogresed our commitment to protecting the environment.
ervronmental perforrmonce

3 Deterrnmne and deliver whot - We undertook a ‘it for purpose’ review of all our products ond senaces agoss Severn Trent Services ond
customers volue disposed of our anatytical and metening services operations so we could focus on our key octvbes.
« Weimplemented a new comprehensive vowe of customer process across @l ports of Sevemn Trert Senaces.
+ We developed new commurscation tooks with existing customers which have contributed to mmproved

e e e e comtractretentionsates. ke emee e e oo
4, Develop new markets and = We strengthened our Sevem Trent De Nona busness by eogunng etectrochiomnation technologees and
products through geographic estoblishing an opportunity for future growth m Japan.
expansion, end user focus, = We formed a new subsidiary, Severn Trent Costoin, to compete for commeraal and business customers
technology innovation and m the UK.
strategic partrierships = We recently ogreed to ocquare senvice controcts with 10 mundpalibes and three private entiies in
e e . .COUfOTEG providmg Us With 0 StrORger base frgrowthn theWestem S,
5 Continue to build strong and « We contnued to mvest in developing BALPURE® arvd a number of other water punficaton products.
respected bronds « Severn Trent Senaces has a senes of electrochionnabon products for batlost water, woste water and

drinking water applications, out of which our established ClorTec® fine has a strong reputation
as the leading global technalogy with ¢ proven trock record of over 3,000 globa mstaliations since 1995
+ Sevem Trent De Nora has establshed on excellent reputation ond brand name ocross the giobe and
speaficaly in the Middle East by occupying o strong leadership position in this region
* We launched new foresgn languege websites in Sporish, Itaban and Chinese within
www.sevemtrentservices.com to provide natve ianguoge product and serwice mformataon for

e e e e Yeyitematonalmakets, e e
6. Continuously improve and - Woater Punficotion reorgarused on.a regional basts, to get doser (o ts custormers
optmse our products, processas = We introduced the Severn Trent group’s ‘Sofer Better Faster approach to continuous mprovernent.
and organtsational copabilities to
enhance austomer value and

. mprove retums Lo U IVESIONS e s




Non-regulated

Performance

Sevemn Trent Services delivered an encouraging
performance, desprte continuing challenging
condibons i some of ts markets. In 201213,
revenue was £328 5 millon, while profit before
interest tax and exceptional items (PBIT) was

£12 7 million.

Dunng the year, we conducted a thorough review of
Severn Trent Services’ products and service portfolio,
incduding a fit for purpose” analysss of the structure
of each business and our shared services, In
addrtion, we took actson to strengthen our focus on
the core water and waste water markets through
the divestiture of our analybical services and
metenng senices operations in the UK. The disposat
of analybcal services also satisfied anundertalang
made to Ofwat who have now closed the Sechon 26
mvestigation into this market. Excduding the impact
of acqursibons, exchange movements and these
disposals, revenue grew by 5.3% but underlyng PBIT
decreased by 3.5%, after inaeased investment in
business development, which was £1 6 milkon
higher at £3 6 milfion. Reported revenue felt by 1 1%,
while reported PBIT fell by 29 4%, mainly due to the
loss of earmings on disposal from the metenng and
analytical services business,

Image removed

Water Purification (Products)

Water Punfication grew in emerging markets such
as Asia Pacific and the Middle East & North Africq,
while performance in North Amenca and Europe
was impacted due to deficult econormic conditions
and birmited customer investment in woter and
waste water projects.

Dwinfecton and fittraton product demand
increased due to stnngent effluent standards n
China and demand for electrochlonnation products
in offshore applications was high in Latin Amenca
{Braz)) and Asio Pacfic (Malaysk) due to mcreased
oll and gas explorabon.

To support and expand on this dernand, a small
acquisition was moade in the Japonese market —
Chlorine Engineers’ CECHLO seawoter and brine
electrochlonnation systems.

In the marime market, the Intemational Mantime
Orgarusation (IMO) has yet to roiify ballost water
treatrnent standards. However, our BALPURE®
ballast water treatment line still delvered growth
and we have a pipeline of new projects We continue
o investin BALPURE®, so it has a broader reach
across the marketploce This indudes moddying
the product to make tt more cost compettive for
srnaller ships, and toking costs out of the original
design fo improve its competrtiveness across the
product range.

To take odvartage of growth in emerging markets,
we reomanised the Water Purification business on a
regional basis, This new operating model is divided
into the Arnericas; Europe, Middle East and Africa,
Asia Pacific and Ching, and Sevemn Trent De Norq,
which has global management with operations in
the US, Ching, Italy, Japan and Singapore.
Reorgonising the business in these regions will allow
us to offer customers a full suite of products and
services, white aperating with smilar capabilites to
those we already have in North America and Europe.
Itis olso expected to reduce our costs by leveragng
global procurement.

‘Severn Trent Services
delivered an encouraging
performance, despite
continuing challenging
conditions in some of

its markets.’
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Non-regulated

Operating Services

Despite a flot market, revenue grew in the US.
Increased efficiencies made our existing contracts
n the UK and Ireland more prefitable. In Italy
perforrmance was cgan affected by economic
condihons and continued political uncertainty

In the US, fewer existing contracts came up for
renewal across the market. We therefore focused on
Increasing the proportion of our own contracts that
we retained on renewal. Overall, we secured 31 new
projects and renewed 46 contracts, Improving our
renewd rate for controcts of more thon $100,000

o year to 85%.

In Italy our performance was negatively impacted
by the political and economic envronment. We saw
a lower levet of activity and we restructured the
business to reduce our ongoing cost base

Our 25 year, £1 0 billon operabon and maintenance
contract with the UK Ministry of Defence (MoD) cut
leakoge to an all e low, exceeding the MoD's
targets. Environmental performance remains strong.
Our Severn Trent Respanse business in Iretand
operated well in o difficult econemic ervronment,
while the Severn Trent Retail Utiity Senaces

business was generally flat due to the stagnant

UK housing market.

Sevemn Trent - serving the emerging

UK business market

Sevem Trent and Costain formed c busmess in
June 2012 to offer lorge multi-site water users a
single water and waste water supplier, Sevem Trent
Costain operates ocrass England, Waoles and
Scotland, focusing on high volume commeraal and
industnal users for whom water 1s a critical process
element. [t helps customers to improve efficiency,
save costs, manage legal compliance and nsk, and
solve their water efficency challenges. It builds on
the success of our existing business with Costan,
which began in 2005 and delvers operations and
maintenance for a porbon of the UK MoD's water
and waste water gssets.

In October 2012, Sevemn Trent Costain signed

First Milk, a major UK dairy, as a custormer First Milkis

the first business customer to switch since the UK
Government amended the requlctions to allow
more businesses to choose their water supplier.
Severn Trent Costain now supplies, manages and
monitors Frst Milk's water across six major sites in
England, Wales and Scotland, mvolving more than
600 mullion litres of water a year

Continuous improvement

Environment

We must manage ond measure sur impact-on

the global water ervironment. Dunng the year, the
Delaware (US) Department of Natural Resources and
Ervironmental Contral recognised our commutment
to the ervironment, when it gave its Clean Water
Partnerstup Award to the Lewes, Delaware woste
water treatrent plant, for achieving 100%
compliance over the lost five years

The facilihes we operate m Lititz, Pennsyivania (US)
received the US Emvironmental Protection Agency's
(EPA) 2012 Source Water Protection Awand

This recognises orgonsations and communities that
take extraordinary steps to protect drinfing water
sources m the EPA's rud-Atlantic reqion. Lititz was
recognised for piotecting groundwoter sources
from contamuination through ts jaint welihead
protection programime wath the neighbounng
Warwick Township Municipat Authority No other
communubies in Pennsylvania have recened this
oward since 2009

People, health and safety

Protecting heatth and safety is one of our core
values. We advocate safety in all we do, beth
professionally and personally. Our pexformance in
the year was solid, conbinuing the improving trend
n recent vears

This continuous improvernent was evident in cur
Operating Services business m Italy, where our
employees worked 27 months without a lost time
incident (LT {(ended in February 2013). In the US,
our Qlintan, Oklahoma Cperating Serices project
received the Water Environment Federation’s 2012
Burke Safety Award for hoving the best sofety record
of all waste water treatment facilities in the state
Other successes in US Operating Services nduded
Bristol, Tennessee celebrating 13 years without an
LTI, and the Gulf region municipal ubility distnct
maintenance department working for three years
without on LTI, while performing some of the most
hazardous work across Sevem Trent Senvices. Forthe
fourth consecutrve year, Operating Services in the
UK and Ireland receved an award from the Royal
Soceety for the Prevention of Acodents for its
excepbonal track record n heatth and safety.

Image removed
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To develop our people we have introduced a
learming and development programme that has
identified top talent throughout the orgarusation.
We're working to develop and ermnpower all
employees to think creatively and to drive change
across Sevem Trert Senvices.

We camry out engogerment surveys with around 25%
of our employees each quarter, The most recent
survey showed engogernent at 81%, chead of our
72% target. This reflects a more positve attrtude to
the business os we've stepped up our communicabons
to employees and begin to see the benefits of
recrgemising and refoausing the business.

Nearty 1,000 of our people took port n the

Globat Corporate Challenge this year Thisisa 16
week programme in which teams of people record
ther physical activity each day. Our employees
walked o combined 1.1 billion steps, the equivalent
of 18 times round the world. More than 26,000
teams took part globally and we had two teams
inthe top 100 and seven inthe top 1,000, We also
came first in the global gas, electric and water
supply category Our parbicpants reported benefits
induding weight loss, ncreased energy ond
productiity, better stress management and
improved overall health.

Process

We look to contnually smprove the way we work
and have started to roll out the Sevem Trent group’s
‘Safer Better Faster’ opproach to continuous
improvernent. Water Runficabon wos the first to
Implement *Safer Better Foster’ and we are now
rolling 1t out across the business.

We're also investing i our systerns, This ndudes
implementing a new enterpnse resource planning
systemn across mudh of the business. Ths sa
significant upgrade to our previcus system and wall
help us, in conjunction with the “Safer Better Faster
programme, to improve customer service and

our operations. Over the next 18 to 24 months,

we'll be moving ahead with o number of other IT
improvements, iInduding a hurman resources system
to consolidate all our global HR actmires, @ global
austomer relationship management system and
new cloud based office management systerns.

We also enhanced our governance during the year.
As the business grows mtemationalty, we wanted
assurance that we have controls fully m place to
protect our investments and ensure we're oparabing
ethically This work induded due diligence across our
supplier base and our chonnel partners

Product technology

We recognise the importance of mamntaining o
pipeline of new products and enhancernents to
existing produicts, We do this nternally and through
relationships with technology partners, with whorn
we can jointly develop products for new and existing
markets We hove severcl new products at different
stages, induding the ongoing development of
BALPURE®, as discussed earlier.
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Outlook

To compete in the global market, Severn Trent
Services must be leon and effective, and provide
qualty products and senvices that deliver value.
The regonalsation of our Water Purificabon
structure, new product developrment and
enhancermnents to exsting products undertaken
m the last 12 months are crtical elements of
our leng term strategy

Emerging markets continue to provide opportrnities
for Water Punficabion, offseting conbinuing
challenges in tradmonal markets.

Existing political and economic factors continue
to harnper mmediate prospects in our US and
Ttaty Operating Services businesses. However,
apportunities to acquire exisbing projects are
surfucing in the US as competitors exit the market
and seek altematve strategies, The potential for
future growth in Italy is present given proposed
nvestment of €65 0 bilion in the water sector over
the next 30 years, though tming 1s uncertain.

In both countrtes we will continue to reduce costs
and ncrease efficencies of existing projects.

Renewables and green energy

For the second successive year, our renewable
energy operation generated almost one quarter
of the electncity used by our regulated business,
Sevemn Trent Water Mamntoming this performance
was parbaularly challenging beaouse of the unusually
high rainfall, which increases the requirernent for
purnping and leads to higher energy consumption
We extended our crop digeston plant m
Nottinghamshire and began constructing our

first three large wind turbine instatlotons.

These investments will prowde another big step
towards our torget of generating 30% of Sevem
Trent Water's electndty from renewables in 2015.

The remaining output growth will come from further
investment in sewage digestion efficency, new
hydro generation at several row water reservorrs,
and injecting part of the gas produced from sewage
digestion at our largest generating station into the
UK gas network Bio-methane imjection is an
emerging technology in the UK but commonplace in
Northem Europe It involves remnaving contarminants
from the gas, increasing the methane concentration,
adding an odourant and pressunng to inject the gas
into the nearby tronsraission network. Qur plant,
which will go live 1n 2014, will be one of onty a
handful in the UK and & likely to be the targest.

We lead the UK in the anaerobic digestion of sewage
and produce most of our renewable enerqy this wey.
We're now developing plons 1o expand into the
emerging UK opportunity for food waste digestion
We'll be able to offer a competitive service and see
the potenttial for this to extend our renewables
production beyond 30% as we approach 2020.
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Non-regulated

Today...

We generate renewable
electricity and heat
from sewage

Our largest waste water treotment works at Minworth recenes
the sewage from over two mihion custorners n and oround
Birmingham. The treatrent processes ensure that the
deaned effluent con be returnad to the mver The remaining
orgonic rmatter s first used 1o generate renewable energy
using the anoerbic digestan process and then recyded to
agncutture where # octs s a valuable bio-fertiliser

Anaerobic digestion uses bocteno amilar to those in the
huraon stornach to convert the sewoge nto a methane nch
broges The gos ts then used as o fuel for engines wiuch drve
generators to produce electnaty Heat ts recovered from the
engne exhaust and cooling systems to maintain the digesters’
ternperature at 38°C. This part of the process is known as
combined heot and power (CHP) Renewable energy has been
produced in this way ot Minworth for over 50 years but output
has sigruficantly increased during the lost few years foliowing
rmajor investment 1n the processes. The generating station
satisfies all of the electnoty needs of the site and also exparts
a significant amount into the national gnd.

See our fimatwwwseve-ntrentcomlmne“-mbwle;

Tomorrow...

We will be injecting
renewable gas into the
national grid

We are planming to nvest o further £12.7 millon on renewable
energy at the site aver the year to reploce ffe expired CHP units
and to ntroduce @ new process that will narease efficency by
njeching around a thed of the gas nto the nabonal gas gnd.

The process of io-methane myechion s detaied on page 31
Our plant whch goes vein 2014 wil be one of a hondfut in
the UK.and it 15 likely to be the largest. Thes plont will make
more effient use of the energy within the gas and assuch
quafifies for the finanan! support of the Renewable Heot
Incentrve that the LUK Govemment has recentty introduced.
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Looking forward

Since we published the first of our Changing course
documents back in 2010, Severn Trent has played
aleading role in shaping the future of the UK water
industry. We've continued this engasgement m the
lost 12 months, with aseries of new publicabions,
We issued ¢ paper on designing balanced incentives
that drve the nght behaviour by woter companies.
KPMG wrote a report for us on financing water
infrastructure beyond 2015 Alongside Notionat
Gnd, we produced a paper on encouraging equity
finanang n the water and energy sectors

We're pleased thaot our efforts have been productive
The changes from the UK Government, in the form
of the Water Bill, and frorn Cfwat in its recently
published consuttation on the framework for PR14,
are aigned with our own proposals. Together, these
prormise the maost signficant charges to water
industry regulation since prvatisation in 1989

The challenges for the industry

Water industry regulobion needs to change becouse
the sector has to deal with significant challenges in
the coming yeors.

Affordability 15 @ key theme for the next five years,
Households are facng dedming real incornes and
welfare reform, ntensifiying the need to keep water
bills as low as possible, Pressure is also coming from
business custorners, who want to better manage
thewr costs and have greater chowe of water supplier.

We need to respond to dimate change ond water
scardty Recent expenence shows that the UK’s
weather patterns gre changing, with droughts
followed by floods. Water compariies need to
effectvely manage custormer demand, make better
use of existmg water resouncas on a natonal rather
than regional basts, and increase the network's
resilience. This would olso create more capaaty

to move water, making water trading between
regions easier

The water industry must also be more sustanable,
This means rebalancing abstraction and taking less
water from areas where 1t's already offectmg the
environment. It dlso requires the industry to reduce
its bios towards coprtdl expenditure and promote
operahonal solutions, such as mproving
catchment management rather than building

new tregtmert works.

‘Water industry regulation
needs to change because
the sector has to deal with
significant challenges in
the coming years.’

The Water Bill

The UK Government s responding to these
challenges throughthe Woter Bill, which munisters
hope to enact in 2013/14. This builds onsts 2011
Water White Paper, which set out a vision for
‘aresthent, affordote and sustainable water
supply network’

The Bill covers four main areas. First, it ncreases the
scope for non-household retaill competition. This s
atready possible to o imited extent but the Bil will
make 1t easter for business custorners to switch
suppler This creates an opportunity for us and we
have set up Severn Trent Costain in response.
However, while retoil competition 1 positive because
it encourages effiency and promotes choice,
ttwon't transform the sector’s econormucs.

Secondly, the Bill also allows more upstream
competition and in parbicular woter troding This will
enabile better use of national water resources, a
significant improvement on the current sihuation
where companies have to look withm their region for
solutions to water shortages. This wilk lead to better
residience and lower costs for customers. However,
the nght econormic model needs to be developed to
encble water trading to happen.

Thirdly, it s designed to enhance the physical
resilience of the industry by, for example,
encouraging famers ond other land owners to
store water and to dordy the duties of Ofwat to
prormote resilience.

Finally, the Bl will reforrm the mergers and
acquisitons regerne While major mergers wil still be
uniikely, the changes create the potential for o more
efficent Industry structure, reduding costs wiuch can
be shared with customers.

Overall, the Water Bill includes measures which are
broadly inline with those we set out in Changing
course, and we'll continue to support it as it passes
through Partament
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The PR14 framework

In fanuary 2013, Ofwat publshed a consultation on
its framework and approach for PR14. The proposed
framework has four key elements.

First, it introduces separate prce controls for the
retall and wholesale parts of the business. This gives
companies a greater incentive to provide the best
customer service ot lowest cost, and will create
more choice for non-household customers. The RCV
will sty with wholesale, which currently generates
around 50% of Sevem Trent Water’s revenue This
means that the vast majonty of our reverues will
still be based on the RCV and wall be adjusted for the
movernent m the RPI eoch year.

Ofwat 15 aming to be less prescriptive about what
companies deliver during the next requlatory cyde,
so it's asking them to set the high level outcomes
they will gim to achieve These outcomes will be
focused on benefits for custormers and will give
companies more leeway to innovate in the way
they deliver therr plans.

Companies will also face fewer but greater
incentives, which will focus regulation where it's
needed most. Companies can cheose larger
incentives for autperformance but would also face
mare significant penalties for underperfarmance.
The new regme will also, in theory, address the
industry’s bias towards capital expenditure, as the
model will rnove more to a total expenditure

{or totex) basis. Companies will be able to dhoese
whether to recover this expenditure on a ‘pay as you
go’ basis, which wilt be beneficial for cash flow, or by
adding t to their RCV and eaming a returm, which will
be better for their long term retums.

Finally, the framework has @ much greater ermphasis
oncustomer and stakeholder engagement.
Customer challenge groups (such as our Water
Forum, which s discussed on poges 18 gnd 20) will
influence companies as they develop ther plans,
which should lead to plans that are better informed.
Cornpanies will still own their plans but they must
show that they have listened to their challenge
group and explain their approach where their view
differs. The customer challenge group will also report
on the quality of the company's engagement and
whether it supports s business plan This will n part
deterrrune the depth of Ofwat’s review of the plan

Ofwat's proposals are still at the consultation stoge

‘Companies will also face
fewer but greater incentives,
which will focus regulation
where it’s needed most’’

and there are important detoils that need to be
finalised. For example, it's mportant to get the level
of detaiis nght when setting outcomes. Outcomes
that arz too detated will lose the benefits of nsk
based requiotion. Conversely, If there’s not enough
detail ¢t will be hard to define meaningful measures
of success. We also need to know more about

key elements such as the basts for the average
retarl cost caleulations and how the totex baselne
expenditure will be set. Overall, though, the draft
PR14 fromework contains no surpnses for us and
we're supportve of ts ams,

Sevemn Trent Water's April 2013 consultahon, ‘Your
water Your choices’ sets out outhing proposals for
what the compary could cdhueve during 2015-2020,
with customer bills forecast to nse by no more than
inflation dunng the penod. There are a number of
important oneas whare there Is scope for choice,
however customers' ond stakeholders’ views will
directly influence the final business plan to be
submitted to Ofwuat in Decernber 2013

Sustainable finandng

In the longer termn, the water industry will need
rmore capital It has rvested £100 billion since
privatisation but the challenges outlined eartier will
require further sigruficarit investment. We belleve
that investors will continue to fund ths if they
rermain confident in the industry.

In our view, it's unlikely that debt can prowde all this
funding High gearing transfers nsks to customers
and the fallure of one company will offect oll the
others, by damaging their chances of raising further
debt. The 2008/09 financial ansis also showed that
compares cannot guarantee occess to debt finance
when they need it. Our condusion 1s that there’s a
need for long term equity in o balonced finanang
structure, which means that equity holders will
have to be appropnately rewarded for pronding
those funds.

Inthe short term, wealso need to look at the way
the waghted overage cost of caprtal (WACO)
calculated for PR14 In current market conditions,
the capital asset pnang model, which is used to
calculote the WACE, could produce an unsustainable
answer. Other models should be used to aass check
and justify the cost of equity and debt. We atso
betieve thot it's possible to differentiate the cost of
coptol bosed on company nsk. We have made all
these pomnts in a senes of publications over the year
ond are engaged with stakeholders to discuss the
future implications.

Summary

In summary, we su the general direction of
the Water Bill ond mpgggu frarmework. While the
chonges they propose are evolutonary rather

than revolutionary, they are still significant and

will help the industry to address its challenges.
We're pleased to hove played an important part

in shaping these proposuls ond will continue to

do 50 0s they progress.




Financial review

Group financial performance

The group has delivered a good financial performance.

At the regulated business, Severn Trent Water, reveriues were
negatively mpacted by lower consumption, with bad weather
in the earty part of the year alse dmang Muigher operationdt
actwities and thus costs, to meet the openating performance
standards our customers and reguiators expect. We delivered
a good performance on those costs that we directly control.
For those costs where we have less influsnce - power, quas
taxes and bad debts - we saw increases in the first two,

white we mantained performance on bad debts at 2.2% of
nsing revenues {UK GAAP) To complete the picture at Sevem
Trent Water we maintgined our long term plans for investrnent
in year three of this five year regulatory plan and invested

£19 0 milfion more thon the previous year in infrastructure
which s expensed under IFRS accounting rules.

In our non-requiated business, Sevem Trent Services, we
refocused its business activities and continued to invest in
business development where we see future growth potential
If we exdude these factors the business achieved modest
revenue and profit growth in these markets which s
encouraging for the future.

The group continued tolook to its long term finanang,
successfully issuing its first bond into the nascent UK retoll
bond market and 1ssuing a new 13 year bond into the sterfling
wholesale market raising £500 million at 3 625%, the lowest
cost Sevemn Trent has ssued in its recent history

PBIT is profit before nterest and tax, underying PBIT 15 PBIT
exduding exceptional ttems as set out in note 8,

Group tumover was £1,831.6 million (£1,770 6 milion),
anincrease of 3.4% over last year

Undertying group PBIT decreased by 1 2% to £498 0 million
(£504.2 million). The pnmary factors affecting underying PBIT
are descrbed n the commentary on Severn Trent Water and
Severn Trent Services below.

There were net iterns before tax of £5.8 million
{£50.9 milion) Group PBIT increased 4.8% to £492.2 mition
(£469 8 milion).

Regulated - Severn Trent Water

Tumover in Sevem Trent Water increcsed by 3.7%1n 2012/13,
to£1,511.0 milon Prces increasad by inflation frorm 1 April
2012 which gave nse to onincrease in tumover of £76 2 million.
The wet summer weather reduced consumption from metered
customers and overall lower metered consumphon year on
year reduced tumover by £19.3 milion. New growth, net of the
impact of meter optants, increased turmover by £1 1 milon
which waos offset by other decreases amounting to £4 5 millon.

Underlying PBIT was stable year on year at £500 9 millon
Direct operating costs increased by £18.4 mulion (see below),
there was an ncrease in mirastructure renewals expenditure of
£18 8 milbon and depreaation, profit on dispesal of fxed assets
ond relegse of deferred income, increased by £14 4 million

In the following anafysis costs related to private drans and
sewers of £10 4 milhon (£4 7 milion incurred in the prior year)
have been exduded to give a consistent view of operating costs
year on year. In total, controliable costs were up £1.2 million, or
0.3%. Employment costs increased by 12 1% to £225 0 milbon
partly due to delivery of service improvements and the growth
n our copital programme which ted to lobour and related
overheads captalised £9.9 rillion higher than in 2012 at

£86.8 rmullion. Hired and contracted costs decreased by

£13.6 mullioni to £139 1 milon. Overall net lobour costs,
including hired and contracted, were O 3% higher year on year
Raw matenals and consumatles at £43.4 milion wese 7 3%
lower than the same period in the pnor year. Cther operating
costs inaeased by £3.8 million to £46.7 million

Intotal, non-controlioble costs were up £12 5 rnillion or 6 6%.
Bad debts were 5.0% higher at £31.8 million, representing

2 2% of tumaover (UK GAAP), stable year on year. Anincrease
of £6 1 millionin net power costs to £57.9 millon arose due
to increased consurmptbon as a result of the wet weather

and hugher stnke prices on our energy swaps Quasi taxes,
which compnse rates, service charges and the Carbon
Reduction Commitmient, ncreased by £4.9 million to

£112.5 million, manly due to on ncrease in rates.

Duning the finandial year, Sevemn Trent Water invested

£555 4 roillon {UK GAAP cfter deducting grants and
contnbutions} (2012 £474 2 milion) in fixed assets and
mamntaining and improving its infrastructure network.

Included in this total was net infrastructure renewals
expenditure of £147 7 milen (2012 £128.9 mitlion), charged to
the incorme staternent under IFRS

Non-regulated - Severn Trent Services

Increase/
2013 2012  {decrease}
£m £m %
Tumover L '_ o
Servicesasreported 3285 3323 o {11%)
Structuruldlonges I 72 NV (407) o
Impact of exchange
rate fluctuations - 03
Like for ke 3074 2919 53%
Increasef
2013 2002 (decrecse)
£m fm %
UndertyngPBIT =~~~
Servicesosreported 127 T 1BO (294%)
Stuctudchanges 12 B3
Impact of exchange
rate fluctugtions - {01)
Like for tike 139 144 (3.5%)

In Severn Trent Services, the sale of our Analytical Services and
Metening Services businesses further focused this segment on
the water and waste water markets we serve, There was ke
for ke growth in sales year on year in both our core Operating
Senaces and Water Punfication businesses. However both
busmnesses were impacted by exceptiorial costs totalling

£14 6 milton, the detal of which 1s in the exceptional tems
section below

Reported tumover was £328.5 million in 2012/13, o decrease of
1.1% vs. the prior year, and reported underlying PBIT decreased
by 29.4% to £12 7 million.
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After adjusting for changes in the gmoup and the impact of
exchange rate fluctuabons tumever on a like for fike constant
currency basis was up 5 3% and underlying PBIT measured an
the same basis was down 3.5%.

Operating Services
Turnover for the year on g like for fike basis was £194 1 rrullion,
anincrease of 0-2% compared with the prior year.

Water Purification
Tumover for the year on alike for like basis was £113.4 mittion,
an increase of 15.7% compared with the prior year

Corporate and other

Corporate overheods arnounted to £14.1 millon (2012:

£15 6 milion). Qur other businesses generated an undertying
toss of £3.2 mulion (2012 profit of £0 1 million) This induded
anunderlying toss on our captive insurance activity of

£1 8 milion and an underlying loss of £0.9 mullion in our
renewables business ansing manly from feasibility and
other simitar costs written off There were exchange gains

in Corporate of £0 3 million (2012 £0.1 milion).

Exceptional items

There were net exceptional tems before tax n the year to

31 March 2013 of £5 8 rullion (2012 £50 9 rmullion) induding
exceptronal operating costs of £4.3 million (2012: £34.4 milkon)
which are described in further detoil below and a net
exceptional loss on disposal of businesses of £1 5 million,

Exceptional operating costs incdluded.

= 1n Severn Trent Water, a profit of £13.3 milbon ansing from
the disposal of a number of properties, and

« in Severn Trent Services exceptional costs of £14.6 million
comprising:

- impairment charges totaling £9 1 mitton; including wiiting
off the remaining goodwill invested m Spain (£4 6 million)
as economic conditions in this country show no signs of
improvernent and the balance (£4 5 millon) imparing oll
histoncal iInvestment in the development of a purification
product which ts showing poor performance in testing;

- pravisions totalling £5.5 mitlion, induding provisions for
a commercial legal dispute and for senior personnel
restructunng charges at Operating Services in Italy; and

+ in Corporate there were excephonal costs of £3.0 million

retated to professional fees for a transaction that did

not proceed.

Net finance costs

The group’s net finance costs before excephonal ttems were
£231 9 million, compared with £229.0 milhlonm the prior year.
There were exceptional finance costs in the pror year of

£16.5 million arising from the early redemption of debt.

Total finance costs were £231.9 milion (2012: £245 5 million)
The effective interest rate, nduding index linked debt, for the
yearwas 5 9% (2012 64%) The cash interest nate was 4.9%
{2012. 5.0%) RPI was lower year on year resulting in a reduction
in the non~cash mterest charge This was offset by an ncreased
cash interest charge on a hugher levet of net debt.

Losses on financial instruments

The group uses finanad! demaitves solely to hedge nsks

assocated with its normal busness activiies mduding

+ exchonge rate expostre on bormowings denominated in
foraxgn curencies;,

+ interest rate exposures on flogting rate borrowings, and

* exposures to inceases m electricity pnces.

Accounting rules require thet these denvatves are revalued at

each halance sheet date and, unless the strict aritena for cash

flow hedge accouniting are met, the changes in value are taken

to the ncome staterment. If the nsk that 15 baing hedged does

not impoct the income statement in the same perod thenan

occounting mismatch anses from the hedging activiies and

there s a net charge or credit to the income staternent.

Where the dervatives are held to therr fult term, these
mismatches are expected to net out. Furthermore, the changes
in value that are recorded dunng the lives of the denvatives,
unless arystalised, do not represent cash flows. Therefore the
group presents adjusted eamings figures that exdude these
hon-cashitems An analysis of the amounts charged to

the ncome statement in the period 15 presented nnote 12

to the fingnaal statements.

Profit before tax

Underlying group profit befare tax decreased by 3 3% to
£266 3 miton {2012, £275.3 million) Group profit before
tax wos £215.2 milion (2012: £156.7 million)

Taxation

The current year tax charge before exceptional items was
£57 1 millon (2012 charge of £69 2 rrvlbon). A prior year
current tax credit of £29.2 millon {2012. credit of £8 7 milion)
has ansen due to adjustments to prior year tax computations.
These: pnmarily related to anindustry ogreement over the
treatment of infrostructure iIncome. The deferred tox credit
before exceptional tax was £4 7 milion (2012 credit of

£9 1 milion}

The group’s UK subsidiary comparves have adopted the new
accounting standard FRS 101 in the cument year This has
changed the statutory accounts that form the basis for thase
cornparies’ corporation tax computabons, The most significant
mpact of this change ts that certam ameunts that hod been
taxed m previous years will now be recogrused as profits and
taxed in future penods. Therefore, to prevent such tems being
taxed twice, the tox alrecdy poid on such iterns 1s repayable
The impact of this change was an excepbional aedit of

£40.5 rmillion to current tax end an exceptional! charge of
£38.8 million to deferred tax.

There wos an exceptional credt of £36.7 million (2012

£69 1 mibon) arising from the reduction in corporation

tax rate from 24% to 23% with effect from 1 Aprit 2013

The total tax credt for the year was £15.2 milion (2012 aedit
of £17.7 milion)

The underying effectve rate of current tax, exduding prior year
credits and exceptional tax aredits, calculated on profit before
tax, excephonal tems before tax and gans/(tosses) on financial
Instruments was 25 4% (2012 25 7%).

We expect the effectve rate of current tax, as defined above,
for 2013114 to be n the range of 23% to 25%.
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Profit for the period and eamings per share

Profit for the penod was £230 4 milion (2012, £174.4 million)
Adusted basic eamings per share (before exceptional tems,
gans/(losses) on financial instruments and deferred tax)
werz 98 9 pence (2012 88 9 pence} (see note 15) Basic
eamings per share were 95 7 pance (2012: 72 5 pence).

Cash flow

2013 2012
£m £m
Cosh generated fomoperations | 7312 7259
Net copitat expenditure Loy @3512)
Netinterestpaid =~ =~ = _ 2334 Q104
Toxfpadireceved | 128 _(720)
Cther cash flows ©5 (10
Free cash flow xo0 913
Ac_qu:s:ﬁonsopddugpgsobwn ’ 111 -
Dmdends 6220 (1590
Net issue of shares 53 24
Changeinnetdebt fomcashflows ~_ (2826) (65.3)
Non-cash movements (669) (33.7)
(';hgpge innetdebt {329.5) (59.0)
Net debt1Apit T 7 (39678) (38688}
Net debt at 31 March (6,2973) (3,9678)
Netdebtcomprses: . -
Coshandcashequivalents 4036 2951
Bank overdrafts o8 o4
Cross cumency swops hedgngdebt 1007~ 1359
Bankloans e ... _ (581 (8525)
Otherloans ~ {(3,8409) (33269}
Fnance leases (201.6) {219.0)
{64,2973)  (3,967.8)

Cash generated from operations was £731.2 milkon
{2012 £725.9 million). Capital expenditure net of grants
and proceeds of sales of fixed assets was £401 8 millon
{2012. £351.2 million). Net interest poid increased to
£233 4 millon 2012 £2104 milion).

Net debt at 31 March 2013 was £4,297.3 million

{2012' £3,967.8 million) Bokance sheet gearng (net debt/net
debt plus equity} ot the year end was 83.6% (2012, 80.2%)
Net debt, expressed as a percentage of Regulatory Caprtal Value
at 31 March 2013 of £7,364 mllion was 58 4% (2012: 56 0%).
The group’s net interest charge, exduding gains/(losses} on
finanoal instrumnents and net finance costs from persions,
was covered 3.4 tirmes (2012: 3 4 trmes) by profit before
interest, tax, deprecotion ond exceptional termns, and

2.1 times (2012, 2.2 times) by undertying PBIT

The far value of the group’s net debt at 31 March 2013 1
estimated to be £5,071 1 milion (2012: £4,579.3 milkon)
compared to the book value of £4,297 3 millon (2012

£3,967 8 rnillion). Discounted future cash flows are used

to determine fair values for debt. Discount rates are derived
from yield curves based on quoted interest rotes and are
adjusted for the group’s credit nsk.
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Treasury management and liquidrty

The group’s prcpal treasury management objectives arer

* to access a broad ronge of sources of finance to obtain both
the quantum required and lowest cost compatible with the
need for continued avalability;

» to mairtain annvestment grade credit rabing, and

* to mamtan a flexible and sustainable balance sheet structure

The group continues to carefully mortor liquidity, At 31 March
2013 the group had £403.6 milion in cosh and cash equivalents
and committed undrawn faciities omounting to £500 mithon,
The group s funded for ts investment and cosh flow needs up
to January 2015.

In July 2012 the group issued a £75 million steriing
denorrinated RPT linked bond nthe retall bond market,

A coupon of 1.3% is payable on the notes which are due

to maturem hudy 2022

In Jonuary 2013 the group 1ssued £500 million 3 625%
Guaranteed Notes under its Fumo Medium Tenrm Nate
programme. The notes have a 13 year term.

Cash s mvested in depostts with highly rated banks and bquidity
funds and the List of counterparties 1s regulary reviewed and

reported to the boord,

Treasury policy and operations

Our treasury affairs are managed centrally and in accordance
with our Tregsury Procedures Manual and Policy Statement.

The treasury operation’s role 15 to manege liquidity, funding,
rwestrment and our finanaal nsk, ndluding risk from volotility n
interest ond (to a lesser extent} currency rates and counterparty
credit risk. The board determines matters of treasury policy and
its approval 1s required for certan treasury transactions.

Qur strateqy 1s to access a brooad range of sources of finance ta
obtain both the quantum required and lowest cost compatible
with the need for continued evailabilty, Our pnndpadl operating
subsidiery, Severn Trent Water, 15 a long term business
charactensed by mult: year nvestment prograrmmes.

QOur strategic funding objectves reflect this and the Lquidity
postion and the avarlabllity of committed funding are essertial
to meeting our ohiectives and We therefore am for
a batance of long term funding or commitrment of funds across
a range of funding sources at the best possible economic cost.

The group’s current policy for the managernent of interest rate
risk requires that not less than 45% of the group’s borrowings
shoudd be ot fixed interest rates, or hedged through the use of
irterest rate swaps or forward rate ogreements. At 31 March
2013, interest rates for 76 8% of the group’s net debt of
£4,297 3 million were fixed.

We use finanaol derivatives solely to manage nsks associated
with cur normal business actvibes. We do not hold or ssue
derivative financiol mstruments for finandal trading

Except for debt raised m foresgn currency, which s fulty hedged,
our business does not Involve sigrificant exposure to foregn
exchange transactions We have mvestments i vanous gssets
denominiated in foregn currences, pnncipally the US dollar

and the euro Our cumrent policy is to hedge an element of the
currency translation nsk associcted with certain foreign currency
denominated assets.
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The group issues notes In foreign cumency under its Euro
Medum Terrm Notes (EMTN) programme and uses cross
currency swaps to convert the proceeds to sterling The effect of
these swaps 1s that interest and pnnapal payments en the
bormowangs are denommnated in sterling and hence the currency
risk is elminated. The foreign currency notes and the cross
currency swaps are recorded in the balance sheet at ther fair
values and the changes in far volues are taken to gains/{losses)
on finandal nstruments in the ncorme statement. Since the
terms of the swaps dosely match those of the underlying
notes, such changes tend to be broadly equal and opposite.

The group holds interest rate swaps with a net notronal principal
of £364.5 million and cross currency swaps with a net notional
pnnapd of £610 2 million which economicolly oct to hedge the
interest rate risk on floating rate debt or the exchange rate risk
on certain foreign currency bomowings. However, the swaps do
not meet the hedge accounting rules of IAS 39 and therefore
the changes in farr value ore taken to gains/{losses) on financial
mstrurments i the income statement. Dunng the yeor there
was a charge of £26.0 million in relation to these nstrurments,

Some of these swaps, which were entered into in 2000-2005,
include ophions for the counterparty to terminate the contmcts
at specfied ponts in their lives. Dunng the yeer the group
terminated three of these contracts at o cash outlay of

£44 3 milion. These swops had a netional principal amount

of £100.0 mullon As o result of the termination the
comespond:ing amount of our net debt will now be subject to
current market interest rates, which are presently lower than
the amounts that were payable under the swaps.

The fair volue at 31 March 2013 of remaining swaps with
termination aptions was a kability of £110.0 milion and theyr
aggregate notionat prinapol armount was £275.0 million.

The next terminotion options for the remaining swaps occur
batween November 2014 and May 2016 and the group will
octvely manage its exposure to these cortracts over that penod

The group has entered into a series of forward starbing interest
rate swaps with a national prinopal emount of £450.0 million
that hedge the interest rote risk on the anbcipated bormowing
requirements of Severn Trent Water for AMPS. These swaps are
treated as cash flow hedges and the changes in foir value are
taken to other comprehensive mcome.

The group manages its electricity costs through a combination
of forward pnce contracts and finanaal dervatives. Alt of our
pawer requirements for the first four years of AMPS and some
of the remainmg year have been hedged m this way, ot pnces
below those cllowed in the Final Deterrmination.

The group's long term credit ratings are:

The final salary sections of the pension schemes were dosed
to new entrants in 2006 and the oge profile of scheme
participants is expected to nse and hence service costs are also
expected to nse until the schemes are dosed to future accrual

The defined benefit pension schermes will dose to future acaual
on 31 March 2015. A new defined contnbution pension scherme
has been established and members of the defined benefit
pension schemes will then became members of the new
defined contribution penston scheme. The exssting defined
contnbutwn pension schermne will also be replaced by the

new pension armangements with effect from 1 Apnt 2015

From 1 Apnt 2012 new employees have been outomatically
enrolled into this scheme and those ermployees who were not
members of o Severn Trent scheme were outomatically
enrolled nto this scheme from 1 Apnl 2013.

The key actuanal ossumptions for the defined benefit schemes
have beenupdated for these accounts. On an IAS 15 boss,

the estimated net position of the schermes was o defictt of
£383 7 milhon at 31 March 2013 This compares to a defict of
£345 8 milion at 31 March 2012 The movements inthe

net defictt are summansed in note 27 The funding level has
remained constant ot 81.8%

The major assurmptions used in the valuation of the defined
benefit pension schemes were as follows'

2013 2012
% %
Pnceinflgpon 32 31
Sulur_z:na’easg__ ... 30 36
Pension mcreases N payment 32 31
Pension MCreases mdeferment oo 32 03
Dscountrute o . __&& 45
Longtermmteofremmonequmes 6.6 68
Remmmnglrfeexpectur{c"jfc;r"
memberscurentlyaged 65 (ears)
~men oooLas a2
-women - 46 251
Rermnaining ife expectoncy at oge 65
for members curently oged 45 (years) | _
~men 27 N8
“—"\;wbm;eﬁ- T T T T T 82 259

The following table summarises the estimated impact on
scheme liabilities resutting from changes to key actuonal
assumptions whist holding all other assumptions constant.

Long tesr rotngs Severn Trent Plc Sevem Trent Woter

Moody’s =  _Ba;d A3
Standard and Poor's BBB- BBB+

Pensions

The group operates two defined benefit pension schemes,

of which the Severn Trent Pension Scherne (STPS} is by for the
largest. Formal tnenrot actuanal voluations and funding
agreements for the STPS were renewed os at 31 March 2010
The next triennial valuation as at 31 March 2013 1s curently
underway Defictt reduction contnbutions indude a payment of
£10 0 million per annurn in cash and a further £8.2 million per
annum through an asset backed funding arangement.

Impacton
Assumption Change In gssumption scherme Bobilbes
Discount rate Increase/decrease Decreosef/ingease

by01% by £38.0 milion

Prce mfigion [naeuseldeaease" ease  Increase/de
e DY0% by £350 millon
"Mortaity Increasein life Increase

by £55 0 million

Accounting policies and presentation of the
financial statements

Our consolidated finanaal statements are prepared in
accordance with Intemationol Finanaal Reporting Standards
that have been endorsed by the European Union,
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Risk management

Our approach to risk

Across the group our approach to nsk
balances the need to effectvely manage
inherent nsks and also the opportunity

o mmprove our performance through
selected nsks.

Within the targest part of our group,
Severn Trent Water, our approach reflects
our stotus as a regulated utility providing
essentiod services and operating as part
of the Cntical Natonal Infrastructure for
the UK. The nature of our Severn Trent
Woater business is such that there are
some significant irtherent nsks as
ilustrated in the section headed ‘Pnncipal
nsks” We aim to have a strong control
framework in ploce to enable us to
understand our nsks and manage

them effectively

Although the Severn Trent Services
businesses are not generally regulated,
we provide products and services for
clents who operate in regulated
environments and, as a result, we take
a similar approach to nsk.

Across the group the managerent of
risks takes place within the ovenall
governance framework which includes
dear accountabilties and delegated
authonty imits.

Qur Enterpnse Risk

Management process

We continue to use our established
Enterpnse Risk Managernent (ERM)
process across the group to assess and
manage our most significant risks

We analyse both the possible couses
of a nsk and what the mmpact would be
if the nsk ocaurred. Using this process,
we are able to consider the controls
needed to minmise the likelihood of
nsks occurring and those which con
help to mamarmise aur resilience to risks.
Our assessmertt of msks includes exglicit
corsiieration of the possible impact of
the nsk on the reputation of the group
os awhole The understanding wiich
we are oble to gain from our ERM process
ollows us to put in place effective

mitigabon strategies.

Key risks are reported to the Audit
Committee and to the board every
six months in the form of nsk maps.

In addition, indmdual nsks or speafic
rsk topics are also discussed by the
board dunng the year Wa also hove
reguiar nsk 'deep dives’ at. our executive
teammeetings. These take the form

of updates from individual business
tearms within Severn Trent Water on
their progress with improving controls
and providing effectwve mibigation for
their most significant nskes.

We have also continued with our work
to make sure thot the annual business
planning process within Severn Trent
Water is dosely aligned to the ERM
process s0 that we can be confident thot
our business plans adequately address
key nsk areas

Principal risks

There are a number of significant nsks

whuch are inherent to companies

operating water and sewage treatment

works, distribution networks and related

actvities. These are shown on our

business models on pages 14 to 15 and

261027 and mdude:

+ we, or our clients, operate in heavly
regulated emviranrments and are
subject to many vaned, complex and

changing obligations. As result, we face

nsks assoaated with nen-comphance;
+ Sevem Trert Water hos on extensive

network of assets and the foflure of key

indndual or collections of these assets
could result m a signficant impact on
our core busmess i

- we face nsks to the health, sofety and
well-being of our people, customers
and contractors as a result of the
nature of our operations;

= our business operations depend on the

effective performance of key supply
cham partners;

» we share a concem with many other
businesses over our ability to fund
long terrm pension prormises; and

« we share concems with other
businesses over access to funding and
over the secunty of funds pioced with
counterparties, parbcularty in the
current unsettied economic dmate.

Where appropriate, these are discussed

in the table of pancpal nsks overlea,

Risk manogement in practice

Our assets nght across our region wark

24 hoars o day seven days aweek to
provide water to our custorners or to toke
away and treat cur austomer s’ waste water.
With so many assets working so many
hours, ooosionally things break down and
we need to know about this ¢ 500N as
possible so thot services to oW customess
are not affected.

We have systerns n place to rmonitor the
nce of assets and processes so
that we can be olerted as soon as possible
to potental problems. A few examples
include desces to monror water levels in
our sewerage netwarks, chlonne levels
in ourwater distnbution network and levels
of water stored in our reservoirs,

The monitoring of our processes i antical to
us and the ERM process hos helped us to
bughbight the nsks assoaated with the: faflure
of this monitonng systemand hos allowed
us to put controls in ploce. For example,

we have reviewed our stock of oitical spares
10 ensure contsUous monitonng can be
achieved; establshed an audtable process
to track chonges to the montonng software
combined with a planned back-up of the
programme, and have set up Fromework
Agresrments {contracts) with our business
parinersto support us with maintaining

the system.

Effective nsk control within these systerns
helps toreduce interruptions to custorner
supples, and minrruse the nsk of sewer
flooding and pollutign events.

.39_
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Business review Risk rmanagement

Ref What is the nsi?

Which purt of  What does it mean for us?

" "What are we domg tol manage therisk?

Severn Trent
is affected?
Custorner Perception e e
1 Wemaybeunableto  SevemTrent Foilure to dalver the senice aLstomers We have co-ordinated progromimes of work
mprove and mantan. Water expect will lead to austomer underwoy across all parts of Severn Trent Woter
our levels of customer dissobisfachon and as a result wemay not  to snprove our processes and our technology
serace sufficently gain astomers' support forowrbusness  to enable us to defver outstanding
to deliver what our plan for the next pnce review penod astomer sevice
customers tell us {AMPS) between 2015-2020 We are plecsad that we are the mast mproved
they want. If we are unable to prowde the level of water ard sewerage company in the UK tn terms
senace we want to our custormers we of custorner satisfechon as measured by Ofwat’s
rmay also suffer finanaci penolbesunder  SIM measures. Whilst our performance in the
Ofwat’s SIM. league tables has significantly onproved, it s stilt
not as good as we would ke
We will conbrnue with our orgaresation wide
improvernent prograrnimes which indude locking
for ways to make our processes as customer-
e o hendyospossible
2 Wamay be unable o Group wide Wemaylosemcm\easaresultof Wehavewudedtmmprmeourlevelsofsemce
respond effectively to business retall custamers movingto for all custorners and we continue to focus on
the opening up of the competitors or we may fal to successfully ~ offenng the lowest charges.
busmness retall market to grow our business by offenng a more Within Severn Trent Water, we are developing o
compettion. attractive service which resufts n stroteqy for ETIRrOVING OuY oﬁem to [orge
CuSLomErs Maoving {0 us. business customers and we are mplementing
the necessary organsaticnol and systerm dchanges
I . recdbiuoevetesasomes
Legal and Regu!otory Emnmnment
3 Wemuybeunableto ~ Severn Trent Wnnjmportofof.t"ﬁ;lr\ess,Smn erjmntpubhcuﬂonwnmNuhonulGnd, T

effectively anbapate Water
and/or influence

future developments n

the UK water mdustry

resutting m our busmess

plans becoming

unsustenable,

4 Ofwat may nat support Severn Trent
gur business plan Water
subrnission for the next
price review penod
(AMP6) for 2015-2020,
or we may fall to meet
some of the targets
ogreed with Ofwat in our
current business plan.

Trent Water, operates in a ughly
requlated ermaronment. Whilst we are
broadly content wath the direction of
changes proposed for our ndustry,
there remoms q risk thet future
changes could have a signidicant
impact on Sevemn Trert.

Wes.:bmitabtsmes[iunto()fwut
every five yeors. When we submi our
plans, there 1s a nsk that they will not
achieve the requred Ofwat assessment
level. This may resutt in more changes
bemng required to the plan.

There s a nsk that we will be unable to
detiver all of our ogreed objectvesin our
cument plan., Folure to adeve the targets
could resuit m Ofwat bemg less wiling to
support our busness plan submission for
the next pnce review penod and coufd
result n addstional funding requirements
n the cusrent penod.

*Changing course through sustainable

financing” which was published during the
year set out our propesals for secunng the

long term fulure of the UK water industry

We will contintse to engoge with our peers,
Ofwat and other regulators, UK Government
deportrnents and other stakeholders to influence
_the direction of regulatory policy where possible.
In developing our five year plan for the next pnee
review penod, we have warked dosely with our
custorners and with our independent customer
challenge group, the Water Forum, to ensure our
plans reflect customers’ prionties.

We operate an established and robust intemad
business planning process. We rewew and update
our business plan on an annual bosis. Progress
ogamst the tongets agreed n our annual busness
plans is monitoned each quarter Ths enables

us to make odjustrents to plonned actwvibies

if we identrfy any concerns about our obilty to
acheeve our annual plans or the five year plan
agreed with Ofwat.

We will continue to monitor adwevernent of

our current plan and to engage wath the Water
Forumn to validate our proposals for the nest. price
review period.




Business review Risk manogement

Ref Whatistherisk? ~ Which part of
Severn Trent

is affected?

'Whot does it mean for us?

41

What are we do—iﬁg to mun(;ge thensk?

5 Theregulatory
landscape s complex
and subject to ongony
change There isansk
that processes may fail
orthat our
may not effectively keep
pace with changes in
legslabon leading to the
nsk of non-compliance

Group wide

Operations, assets and people
6 Ourossetsorprocesses  Group wide
rmay fail resulttng In
injury to an employee,
controctor or member
ofthe public.

7  Wemayfottomeetdl Sevemn Trent
of ourregulatory targets  Water
ncluding targets from
Ofwat nrelgbon to
ongomngoperatonal
performance of outr
assets resuting n
reguigtory penathes.

Our polictes and processes must reflect
the current legal ond regulotory
ermvronment and ol relevant emplovees
must be kept aware of new requirements.
Due to the spread of our operations, and
changes n activity and orgarusational
struchure ths 1s not always stroightforward.
The group as a whole may foce censure
for non-vompliance n an ndwdual group
company or a specific regoon gy which

we gperute.

The nature of our work requires our
employees and contractors to undertoke
acthvities or to use equipment which hove
potental to cause senous harmn Whilst
we take every precaution to prevent injury,
asset fathure or failure to follow agreed

resutt in somecne being
hwrt. Speafic exomples include njury to
our employees using chemicals m our
processes. Addonally, falure of one of
our key assets such as a reservorr could
result In Injury to customers or members
of the public.

" Ifwe are unable to meetoperutnmi

performance torgets, we may be
subjected to significant reguictory
penalbes either within the current pnce
review penod, or apphied to the next
Price review

Regulatory targets apply to all of

our woter treatment, distribution,
sewerage and sewage treatmernt
assets. Measures are in place in relaton
to water qualtty, continuous supplies,
sewer flocdng, sewer collapses and
poliuton events.

__ rernain fit for purpase

We have a group wide code of conduct ‘Doing the
nght thing - The Sevemn Trent way’ together with
polices, standards, procedures and relevant
trarung for employees to mibgate this nsk.
Dunng the year, we have continued with our
extensive programme to roise awareness of
updated poboes. This has included e-eaming
for retevant emplayees m relabion to Cormpetrbon
Low and Ant-Bribery and Corrupbion legistation.
We will contrue our programme of traning and
raismg awareness. We are dlso carmying out g
review of the mechanisms by which we gain
assurance that policies are fully complied with
across the group to ensure these mechanisms

standards and processes for controlling health,
safety and well-belng nsks. Qur strategy, which
seeks to ensure that no one gets hurt or made
unwelt by what we do, Indudes improvernent
actvity on the management system, behavioural
safety cutture and occupational health with a
focus on preventuing inadents. At a local level,
safely rmprovernent teams dentify and address
hazards. We monrtor safety performance and
have delivered year on yeor reductions m
Inadents and mcregses in prevention actiaty
Our assets are subject to regular and ngorous
monitarng induding mdependent inspection of
OUr resenvairs to ensure that they reman safe
and thot mamtenance work s undertaken
where needed

We will contmue with our programime of safety
education and improvernents and with our
ngorous monitoring and mantenance regrmes
formticalassets. ~__
We continue to monttor and invest in owr assets
and to improve our processes n order 1o
mantamn our senaces to our austomers. We have
contnued our major progranimes of work to
teview all aspects of our operations, mctuding the
necessary mprovements to maintaln continuous
supplies, ensure water quality, reduce sewer
collopses and sewer flooding and improve

Our business plan subrnission for the price review
penad from 2015-2020 will include the necessary
funding forupgrodes ond improvements to our
assets to allow LS to contmue to provide good
quaisty water and to effectively treot waste water
for our customers.
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Business review Risk management

Ref What isthe risk? Which partof ~ What does t mean for us? What are we doing to manage the risk?
Severn Trent
Is affected?

8  Failure of cestoinkey Sevem Trent Sorme of our ossets are aveal to the We have asset management plans n ploce
assets may resuttmon  Water provision of water to lorge populcbors for - wiich dnve investment in maintenance and
nability to provide o which there are bmited aitematvemeans— wniprovernent of our assets in order to mamtan
continuous supply of of supply These assets are regularly O service 10 austomers.
qualty water tolarge inspectad and mamicined and our We also i
populations within our assessment of the overoll condibon5g0od.  gegets mﬂﬁgﬁﬁ :ﬁ t;mprnTuT o
tl;lnle}?j,orlrtc!cnmgetcn Ifoﬁit.reweretoocmrthecur_ﬁfyeqxence supples in the event of fallure

party property would resut in temporory indbity to We will continue to develop and implernent
contrue to Serve our ustormers. asset management plans to ensure the long term
L ) N o . ___ sstonabityofouwrsemces.

FinanoglRisks

9  Thecurrenteconomic  Group wide As 0 result of current market condiions - We ensure we mamntain access to funds through
dimate may inaease and econormic conditions acress the cash held on short term depost and through our
the difficulties associated eurozone, there may be ncreased committed borrawing facilibes, We constantly
with obtaining funding difficuity for all businesses to obtan funds.  monitor the possible smpacts of econormic
for the group {at smmilar We may therefore be unoble tomeet all  conditions on the funding requirements for the
rates to those assumed of our funding requirements at group We hove diverstfied sources of funding and
in our business plan) commerciolly attractive rates. have a tmetable for replacement of comritted

lending facilibes whach allows us more than one
opportunity to go to market n order to mitgate
agamnst short term problems in the marketplace
We will continue ta monitar our finandal postion
and future requirements and to madintain access
to o diversified source of funds, We will also
continue our strateqy of eary refinancing where
o L thisis beneficel tothe group

10 Chungzng demogruphlcs Groupwide We dready provide significant funding. regulcdy revalue our schemes and monitor
and fluctuctions m the We may be called upon to provide our investiment performance.
imvestment market may more money to reduce deficits in our We have introduced new pension mts
affect our ability to fund pension schemes. wh;dqwebe[\evewilbefoﬁenarforuclil";::geme
Pension promses employees as wel as reduang the buid up
sustanably of defict in future years, thus allowng us to

continue to fund pensions sustanobly mto
the future
We will continue to menitar the of
our pension mvestrnents and to work diosely with
ol third party advisors to ensure that the

e schemes aremanoged effectvely.

11 Counterparties with Group wide Fru-nnn'\etotumwemuyhuve Wehmesmctpoluesmmactme
whorm we have invested consderable susms available which we coul we aon nvest with and iimit the
money may fak, putting have not yet invested in agreed copital amount which con be invested with mdnadual
our imvestrent ot nsk. programmes, and we need to manage counterparties. We continuously monitor the

this in the mast advantogeous way for aedit status of oll cur counterpartes to ensure
our customers and shareholders. we only deposit with those who have good redit
However, with any rvestment thereis o status. Gompliance with our polices s rorrtored
nsk of defautt whach could resuttin contmuously to mitigate thes nsk.

finanaal loss.

We will continue to monitor the external market
emvironment and maintain our policies to
mmebgate this nsk,
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Governance
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Board of dlrectors

Dr Tony Ballance
BSc (Hons) MA {Econ) PhD (48)
Durector, Stroteqy and Requiation
Apponted to the board on 2 October 2007
Tory's extensmve expenence m utlity policy ond
requiabon leaves him deally placed to leod
U\econ'purysstmtegcund reguiotory work.
rj oing Severn Trent he held the posts
CIfChIE Economst for Ofwat, economs
consultant, drector of London Fconom:cs and
was o dwector of Stone and Webster Consultants.
E‘ltemulnppnmh'nems
Member of Water UK Councll
Committee membership
Executive Cormmitiee

Image removed

Martin Lamb

BSc MBA (53)

Independent non-exacutrve director
Appomted to the board on 29 February 2008

developing engineering

the world. Martin has worked for IMI for over 25 years
where he has held a nurmber of servor ranagement
roles. His strong comemenaol acumen, expenance of
manogng complex propects, ond famdionty with
cwrent market pressures as g serving Chief Executve
leave hurn well placed to odd value to the Sevemn Trent
bussess. Previously Martm was 0 non-exeutive
director of Spactns pic.

Enmmluppoﬁnnmts

Cheef Exeauzive and mesnber of the Nommahons
Committee of IMI plc

Member of the Advisory Board of AEA
Trwvestors (UX) Limited

Committee membership
Nomnebons Committee
Rerrunernttion Comenittee

Image removed

Dr Bernard Butkin

B85 PhD FRSC FRSA FIE (71)

Independent non-executive director
Appointed to the boord on 1 Jantsary 2006
Bermnard's successful and wide ranging coreer in
ocaodema and business hos provided him within
depth expenence n soentfic, ond
engneenng industnes. He held the prorninent posibon
of Chuef Scenbist of B Alc. Hs mvolvarmant i both
innovation and pebcy on dimate chonge ord
renenable ,ard hs syndficont shllsond
expenence In delivering perfarmence impravernent
on safety ond environmental operational ssues,
make his contribution te the board invalucble.

Memdnppohmmu

Non-executve director of Ze-gen Corporetion (US)
Non-executve Charman of Pursuit Dynamics plc
Charr of the Office of Renewable Energy Deployment
atthe UK DepwmmofEne«gymd imate Chonge
Committee munbershrp

Audit Commuttee

Corporate Responsibiity Cornmittee {Charmon}
Nominations Commuttee

Rernunergtion Compittee

Michael McKeon

MA CA (56)

France Dyector

Appoeited to the boord on 13 December 2005
Michael bnngs signeficant finonog! and commeroal
expertise to the board and has over seven years’
expenence of the Severn Trent group. Pnor to jomung
Severn Trent he wos Finance Dwector of Nowr Pc ond
before that, held vanous seror roles with Rolls-Royee
Pie, including Finance Drector of Aevospace Group,
He has extensve ntemgbona! busness expenence

Chartered Accountgnt ond o Member of the Instiute
of Chartered Accountants of Sootlond

mﬂ'ﬂnmﬁ-mu“ s T
Norrexecutive director and Chamman of the
Audit Committee of The Merchants Trust Alc

Committee membeuhlp
Executive Commuttee

Image removed

Richard Davey
BA (64}
Serwar independent non-executve director

Appointed to the board on 1 Jenuary 2006

Richard spent the mojonty of his exenutive coreerin
investment banking ot NM Rothschid and Sons,
inroles nduding Heod of Investrnent Bankmg

Richard brings invatuable specafist finonon! expertse
o the board, the Audit Committee end os chalr of

the Rermuneration Cornrmittee, having run Rothschild's
Finarod! Sernces Group ond worked with @ number
of hegh street benks and nsurers. Previousty he hetd
non-executve rotes at Yorkshire Bullding Soaety,
where he wos Vice Chawman, Freeserve Pic ond
Scottish Widows Fund ond Life Assuronce Society
Exturuluppanhnenh
Nor-executive Chosnian, mermber of the Audit and
Normmabon Cormmittees of Arlin Pic
Commilttee membershlp

Audit Committee

Nomwnations Cornmittee
Rernunenation Committee (Charman)

Irmege removed

Baroness Noakes

DBE LLB FCA (63)

Independent non-executive drector

Appointed to the board ont 29 February 2003
Sheila bnngs valuable expertrse to the boord as on
experienced director and Audlt Commsttee Chaimnan
of UK Uisted companes and with extensive and vaned
professional, poliboad and prablic sector expenence

A quoliﬁed dmgred accountont, she previously
Internotional

Wales, Shefks was gppomted to the House of Lords i
2000 and hes served on the Consenstive front bench
1 vanous roles nduding os shadow treasury rmnester
between 2003 ond May 2010. Previously she held
nor-exacutive roles on the Court of the Bank of
England, Hansan Pic, ICT Ac, tohn Lang ond SThree

Bxternal appolntments
Nan-executive director, member of the Group Audit,
Group Normnabons and Board Risk Committees of
The Royal Bank of Scotlend Group Plc

uty Charrman, senor idepmdentdiectumd

Carpetnght Pic
Trustee of the Thomson mmmm

Committes membership
Auchit Commutiee (Charmaon)
Nornmotions Commithee
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tviage removed

Andrew Duff
BScFEI {54)
Non-executrve Chaxmnan

Appornted to the board an 10 May 2010 and
tharman on 20 ly 2010

dynamK ermironments

have equipped him well for the role of Charman of

the group Andrew spent 16 yeors at BP n morketing,
ond oil trodng. He janed Nabonal Power s

1998 and the board of its daughter cormpany Innogy

plc upon its dermemger from Nabienal Power in 2000,

Helad the and subsequentt sale of

Innagy to RWE In 2003 He become CEO of the

SUCCESSGT company, npower, and a member of

the RWE Group Executve Committee He was

non-axecutve Charrnan of RWE npower until hes

retirernent m December 2010.

External oppointments

Semor ndependéent director, Charnan of the

Remunengtion Committee, member of the Audit

Cormnmittee and Norminabors Cormmittes of Woiseley e

Member of the CBI President’s Commuttee

Trustee of Maanitlan Concer Support and Earth Trust

Fellow of the Energy Institute

Commitbee membership

Corporote Responsibilty Commitiee

Normunabors Cornenittee {Charman)

Rermuneroben Cormmibies

Image removed

Andy Smith

Blech (Hons) {52)

Director of Water Servces

Appointed to the boant on 2 October 2007

Andy brings o broad range of exeastive and
operotonal expertise from diverse sectors to
the board Andy has

sigrificant experience having
worked 1 the UK and overseas with global busnesses
such as BP, Mars ond Pepsi, and
operotional manogement rales. he was
Group HR Drector and a member of the boord at
Boots Group Plc.

Gordon Fryett
(59}
Independent norrexecutive directar
Apponted to the board ont 1 Jufy 2009
Gordon's extensve expenence working in and with
Intemational busnesses, mancgng copital
expenditure and i dapth retai expertise at both
exactve ond opensbonal level in a customer faang,
hughly competitve ermronrnent, enables ham to brng
substonbal expenence ond experbise to the board.
He 15 currently Group Property Director gt Tesco Pic,
hxrving previously held a number of seruor roles
vnummeTescoGrmp,ndudmg Opergbors

rector, Intermnahional Support Drector ond CEO
me;rubl:coflretmd.
External appoktments
Alurnnus of INSEAD

Cn;nmit:hnmnl-lu-ship- T )
Corporate Responsiiity Comenttee
Normunabons Comymittee

image removed

Tony Wray

85c (Hons} (51)

Oef Executrve
Appomnted to the board on 7 March 2005

Networks at Ercom, the Republic of Ireland's
tedephone operation and has heid director roles
withm Transeo and Natonal Gnd Transco.
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Martin Kane

8Sc CEng CErv MICE MIWEM FIW (60)

Chvef Executve Officer, Severn Trertt Servces
Appainted to the boord an 2 October 2007

Martin joned Severn Trent Water In 1975 and hos
held vanous seruor roles gmng hum on extensve ond
urque understonding of the design, corstruction and
operation of water ond woste water treairment plants,
water distribubon networks ond sewerage Systerms.
Martur wus Director of Customer Relabions, Severn
Trent Waoter, from May 2006 until Jonuary 2012,
M'entnmsoppontedmefmc\mveoﬁcet
Severn Trent Serwices.

Mernber of the boards of UtiTihes and Serwce
Indusines Trareng Limited ond Natiohal Assocohion
of Woter Comparves (US)

Trustee of Internabonal Socety for Trenchless
Technology
Commlt‘tamembershlp
Executve Committee
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Executive Committee

The Chief Executive s supported in his role by the executve
management team and together they compnse the Executive
Comimittee. During the year, the Executive Committee
comprised the executive directors and senior executve
managers responsible for key operational and central functions.
Photogrophs of the members of the committee, together with
their brographies are set out below

The Executive Commitiee oversees the developrment and

Dunng the year, the Exeautive Committee met to consider
, business management, policy and planning,

and operational performance.

Mermnbers of the Executrve Commuttee are delegated
responsibility to sit on steenng groups that oversee the
delivery of our strategy and business manogement.

During the year, steenng groups were set up to oversee
oreqas such as the integrated delivery of our year end results

execupon of the Severn Trent strategy It alsohos accountabilty  end Ofwat Annual Regulatory Retums.
for achieving business results. The terms of reference of the
Exeautive Committee are available on the company’s website
{www.severntrent.com) or from the Company Secretary
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Chairman’s letter
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Andrew Duff
Chairman

Gavernance in Sevem Trent
The way we qre structured

« Our omarisation s structured to allow for
effective ond effhicent deasion muking
with dear acoountabilibies.

The way we choose to behave

* OQur Code of Conduct. ‘Doing the nght
thing - The Severn Trent way’ sets
out our approach to responsible
business behoviours.

» The Code of Conduct is supported by 15
group polices and our behaviours model.
Further details of these can be found on
our website (www.severmntrent.com)

The way we ensure our effectiveness

= We atways look to ensure our people
have the nght skills in order to drve
performance mprovernent.

= Management assurance is provided by
a combination of effective manogement
processes and nsk and complonce
actnvibes.

« Independent assurance 1s provided
mnniybylnhermlAucﬁt,byouexteml
audrtors ond other external bodies.

Thewuyweare The way we

choose to behove

The way we wol
The way we
H‘Bl.leOll
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Dear Shareholder

At Severn Trent, we are committed to detvenng value to our stakeholders and building
a sustainable business, whch ts underpinned by good govemance. As o board we are
occountable to shareholders for ensuring that effective governance processes are in
place and complied with.

The board’s role is to

» understand and meet its obligations to the company's stakeholders;

+ govemn the group withim a framework of prudent and effective controls which enable
nsk to be assessed ond managed,

+ approve the group’s strategic objectives; and

+ ensure that sufficent resources are avallable to endble t to meet those objectves.

Good governance provides o framework that allows the nght decisions to be teken by

the nght pecple at the nght time

During the year I led the rewiew of our board's effectveness and looked at how we

have made progress with the areas identified as requinng further improvernent at the

last review We hove overseen the continued embedding of our Code of Conduct

across our businesses and reviewed our supporting policies

The following sections of this report set out how good govemance supports our

actvities at Severn Trent and descnbe how the board applies the prnciples of the

UK Corperate Governance Code - in the way we are structured, the way we choose

to behave and the way we ensure our effectiveness.

T heleve that assessing our governance arangements in terms of these headings

enables us to establish the right long term behaviours, which will help us to deliver the

group’s strategic objectives n a sustainable manner

I firmly behieve that we will continue to deliver volue and ochieve sustomable growth

for our company through the successful mix of good governance, a dear strategy with

o supportng business plan and a strong manogement team to execute it

Andrew Duff
Charman

Compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code

The UK Corporate Governance Code 2010 (the ‘Govemance Code’) was revised by
the publicotion of the UK Corporate Governance Code 2012 in Septermber 2012
The new code applies to financal years beginning onor after 1 October 2012,
atthough we intend to comply early with the new code where appropricte and
reasonably practicable Our formal obligation for 2013 1s to report how we have
applied the prndples of the current Govemance Code

The Governance Code 15 ovallable on the Fnanoal Reporting Coundl's website
{www.frcorgul) For the whole of the financal year ended 31 March 2013,

Severn Trert was compliant with the Governance Code, with the exception thot the
adequacy of amungemnents in relation to the campany’s whistieblowmg procedures
fafls within the remit of the Corporate Responsibility (R} Comnmittee, rather than
the Audit Commuttee. The CR Committee’s remit is to dedl with-any allegations
from employees relating to any breaches under Sevem Trent's Gode of Conduct.
The Audit Committee reviews reports of matters ansing in respect of finandal or
intemal control matters from the company’s whistieblowing procedures and the
company's procedures for preventing and detecting fraud and bribery, and

receves reports on non-compliance. The boerd considers that these armangements
are appropnate
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Governance report

Group Authonsation Armangements

The Group Authonsation Arrangements
(GAA} are the frurmework through which the
Severn Trent Plc board authaorises the nght
people, at the nght level, 1o take important
decisions os we rmanage legal, finanacl and
adrmastiative sssues throughout the group,
The GAA are designed to facilitate good
control, efficient deasion makeng and
demonstrable comphance

The flow of authonty s from the Seven
Trent Plc board to the Chief Executrve and
the Sevemn Trent Executive Committee,

1n respect of certain ssues, the delegated
authonty 1s subject to an obligation to work
with speciolist business senices areas
(such ns Tax, Treasury, Group Finance

ond Cornparny Secretanot) that provide
addrbonal expertise and a group wide

perspecinve

—

Govemance of subsialaﬁnesm

The memberstup of the board of the
listed compary, Severn Trent Ple, s the
same as that of its requlated subsicary,
Sevemn Trent Water Limuted. This structure
was implemented in 2007 when it was
decded to ntegrate the managerent

af the comparves to gain greater
fronsparency and maght of Severn

Trent Water by the Pic board.

Foltowing his appomntment as CEO of

Severn Trent Senvices in Jonwary 2012,
Martm Kane became o non-executve
director of Severn Trent Water Limited.

The two companies operate as distinct
legal entities. The boards comply with

the Sevem Trent Pic Board Governance
document and the Sevemn Trent Water
Limited Matters Reserved to the board.
They are assisted through the management
of separute agendas, meetngs and
mminutes by Company Secretanat and
odwvised in thewr reetings by the Company
Secretary where appropnote.

Subsidiary company boards are required to
be manoged saupulousty with respect to
legd!, fiscal and adrmunsstrative matters.,

In parteutar, the relationships between
Sevein Trent Water Lmited and our other
businesses such as Severn Trent Services
are monitored and controtled to ensure that
we comply with our obligations on am's
tength transoctions between therm.

The way we are structured
Board membership

Dunng the year under review the board has compnsed your non-executive Chaimman,
five executive directors and fivesndependent non-executive directors. Photographs of
the members of the board, together with their biographies and a descrption of the
complermentary skills and wealth of expenence that they bnng to bear, can be found
on poges 44 and 45

We believe this unitary board bnngs an approprate balance of innovation, expenence,
independence and challenge to ensure effective decision making

In accordance with the Governance Code, all the directors will retire at thes year's AGM
and submit themselves for reappantment by the shareholders.

Detafls of our policy on diversity n the beardroom: are provided 1n the Nominokons
Cornmuttee report on pages 52 and 53.

Role of the Chairman

The role of Andrew Duff, your Chairman, is to lead a unitary board, focilitoting the
contnbution of its members at its meetings, and to be responsible for ensunng that the
prnaples and processes of the board are maintained in Une with the board govemance
framework, which can be found on our webstte (www severntrent.com}

Agendas for board meetings are agreed by the Chairman n consultabion with the
Chief Execuiive and Company Secretary, although any director may request that an
itemm be added to the ogenda. The Chairman has authorly to act ard speak for the
board between its meetings, Induding engaging with the Chief Executive, He reports
to the board and committee charrmen as appropnate on decisions end actions token
between meetings of the board He also meets with the non-executive directors
without the executive directors present, to consider the performance of the
exequtve directors and to provide feedback.

Senior independent non-executve director

Richard Davey s your senior independent non-executive director He chairs

the Remuneration Committee and s a rmember of the Audit and Nominations
Committees. The hoard has agreed that Richard wall act as Charman of the board

in the event that the Chairman is unable to do so for any reason.

Non-executive directors

Your non-executve directors ore appainted to the board to contnbute their

mdivduad! extemal experbise and expenence in areas of importance te the group

Their competences indude corporate finance, generdl finance, corporate strategy,
custorner care, property, environmental and technology matters, general
rmanagement and supply chain management. They also provide mdependent
challenge and rigour In the board's deliberations and ore encouroged to make
independent assessments of the group’s competences. The non-executive

directors, led by the senior Independent non-executve director, meet without the
Chairman ot least once a year for them to appraise the Chaiman'’s performance

The non-executive directors ond the Chamman also meet without the executive
directors present ot least once oyear.

Your boord hos revewed the status of the non-executive directors and considers them
all to be ndependent in character and judgement os defined by the Governance Code

Chief Executnve

Responsibility has been delegated to the Chief Executive, Tory Wiy, to achieve
the company’s strateqy He 15 empowered to take all decisions and actions that

further the company’s strategy and which in s judgernent are reasonable,

having regard to the Cheef Executive limits set out m the compary’s GAA. The
non-executive directors, led by the Chainman, appraise his performance annually
Executive directors

The executive directors support the Chief Executive in dnving the implementation of
strategy forward in Severn Trent. They are committed to doing this in @ resporsible
way which takes occount of our comimitment to long term sustainable and
responsible stewardship of the busmess, the envronment, our customers and the
communities in which we live and workc




Reporting obligations
As a public Irsted company, the company is
required to comply with o range of reporting

obllgmmssetmtbylmvmﬂregl.ﬂam
5 committed to the
prnmotlo mwestor confidence by taking

steps within its power to ensure that trode
in its secuntes tokes place in an efficient
ang informed market.

The company recognises the importance of
effective cornmunicabion as a key part of
buitding shareholder value and that, to
prosper and acheeve growth, it must eamn
the trust of secunty holders, employees,
customners, suppliers and communitbes,

by being openin its communications and
nsstently delvenng on its commitments.

The compuany announces its results ona
half yearly basts and complies with the
requirement to make intenm maonogement
stoternents.

The Chief Executive hos estoblished o
Disclosure Comimittee, chared by the
Finance Director, with speafic responsibilibies
for the delvery of the interim and year end
reporting processes, The Disclostre
Committee oversees the delivery of an
integrated plan incorparating oll elerments of
the year end reporting process, namely the
group’s preliminary results announcerment
and report and ocoounts, the company’s
AGM, the stotutory and regudatory accounts
of Severn Trent Water Limited, the Annual
ulatory Complionca Statement and the
ﬁfgud Reguiatory Perforrmance Report.
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Role of the Comparnty Secretary

All drectors have arcess to the advice and senices of the Comparty Secretary,
Bronagh Kennedy, and the Company Segetanat team. Bronagh is responsible for
ensunng that the board operates in accordance with the governance framework it hos
adopted and that there are effective mformation flows to the board and its
committees and between senior management and the non-executive directors.

The appcintment and resignation of the Compary Secretary s a miatter for
consideraton by the board as o whole

Terms and condrtions of appointment

We have made the tenms and conditions of appomtment of the directors avallable for
mspection by ony person at the company’s registered office dunng normal business
hours. They will also be availoble at the AGM. The letters of appomtment of the
directors can olso be seen on our website {www.sevemtrent.com)

Board processes
We have processes m place regarding:

- the board's tasks and activities;

« the matters speafically reserved for the board’s decsion making, the
delegated to the Chief Executive, the accountability of the Chief Executive for that
authonty, and guidance on managing the relationship between the board and
the Chief Executive, and

» the boundanes on Chief Executive achon (Cheef Executive imits).

The beard has reserved the following for s own consideration.

» the appointrent of the Chief Executive, directors, the Company Secretary and the
Duector of Internol Audit;

« the strategy and budgets of the company,

the GAA which set out the group’s delegated approval imits;

+ deasions regarding the company ond its subsidiarnies required to be made by the
company’s GAA, constiiutional documents, statute or external regulation, and

- the approval or adopbon of documents {indluding the publication of reports and
statements to shareholders), requimed to be made by the board by the company’s
GAA, constitutional documents, stotute or external regulation,

Board meetings

We have regular scheduled meetngs of the board and of its permanent committees

throughout the year and any additonal meetings and ad hoe committee meebngs
are convened when required.

Papers, nduding minutes of board committees held since the previous board meeting
and performance reports, are cradated in odvance of each meeting

There is an agreed procedure in place which allows directors to toke independent
professional advice in the course of ther dubes and all directors have access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary If a director hos @ concern over any
unresolved matter they may require the Company Secretary to rmriute that concern.

In addibon to formal board meetings, the board attended a full doy strategy session
this year, where the board and exeautive managernent tearn together considered the
value proposition for Severn Trent and the potentiol areas of future value creation
across the business. During the financial year, six ad hac committee meetings of the
board were convened to consider such matters as Severn Trent Pic’s preliminary and
interim results and intenm management statements.

-

Beard attendance in 2012/13
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Instrtutional sharehalders and analysts

The board recognises the importance of
representing and promoting the irterests of
its shareholders and that it is accountable to

Presentations are made to shorehotders and
analysts following the release of the intenm
and year end results. The Chief Executive
and Finance Drector requiarty rmeet
shareholders dunng the year The Charman
and the servor independent non-executrve
director have also met shareholders
seporately from executive directots and are
avallable to meet shareholders if required.
The board receives wiitten feedbock
following meetings with mstautional
shareholders ond moritors shareholder
actvity on a quarterly basis at s meetings.

Dunng the year we hove undertaken an
investor qudst whach sets out to ascertan
g?th bondhaolders’ and shareholders’ vews

LS as a company, our strategy,
performonce, and effectveness of our
cormnmunicatiors. It also ams to determine
our standing relative to our peers and to
the equity and debt markets as a whole
The results will be gvallable early n the
2013114 finonool year.

Board committees

We have established cornmittees of the board to deal with speafic issues or approvals,
as and when necessary

The four permanent committees of the board assist in the execubon of its
resporsibilties and the board has delegoted sorne of its responsibilives to those
board committees. The committees assist the board by fulfilling thesr roles and
responsibilibes, foausing on their speaffic activities, reporting to the board on decsions
and acbons taken, and makang any necessary recommendations.

The terms of reference of the Audtt, Remuneration and Nominatons Committees
comply with the provisions of the Governance Code, except as reparted on page 47,
and are avaitable for inspection, together with the temms of reference of the

Corporate Responsibility Committee, on our website (www.severntrent.com) or

may be obtained on request from the Company Secretary.

The effectiveness of each of the committees has been reviewed during the year as
part of the mternal board review and the committees have also considered their terms
of reference dunng the year

Reports from the Chairmen of these commttees are set out on pages 52 to 70 of
this report.

The way we choose to behave
Code of Conduct. ‘Dotng the right thing - The Sevem Trent way’

Every day Severn Trent employees have to moke choices about what they do and how
they do it. Most of the ttme it 1s dlear what the right thing to do s, whether it s about
dong what 5 safe, doing the right thing for customers, dong what 1s nght ethically -
ond indeed what is nght legolly

However, sometimes it i1s not sodear ‘Doing the nght thing - The Severn Trent way’
details the pnnciples we work by This is our Code of Conduct and explains who we are,
whaot we stand for and how we work, it also tells our customers and business partners
that they can rely on us. These pinciples apply to everyone in Sevem Trent’s
businesses, no matter where in the world they are based. They provide a cormmon

and consistent framework for responsible business practices and set out the standards
we need to follow in our day to day octivities.

During the: year we have continued to roll out the Code of Conduct agoss the group to
make sure that everyone m the business understands what it s all about and upholds
our ethical standords. All employees are provided with a copy in therr local languoge as
part of thewr nduction. Training sessions are also available and dl tearns hove been
encouraged to discuss it

Polices

The Code of Conduct 15 supported by 15 group pobices and our behaviours model.
Further detoils of these can be found on our website (www.sevemtrent.com)

Dunng the year we have completed the annual review of the polidies to ensure they
are fit for purpose. In parhcular the Whistieblowing Policy has been refreshed ond new
guidance on the process has been issued to assest those who may need to deal with

whistieblowing concemns. New advertising the whistieblowing procedures
have aiso been dstributed throughout the business.
Conflicts of mterests

The board hos o full process in ploce to authorise stuational conflicts in accordance
with the prowsions of the Cornpanies Act 2006

At every boord meeting there i a standing agenda itern at the begmning of the
meeting to consider and discuss whether any potential conflicts exst. If it does then
the relevant director does not parbcipate in the discussion on that tem.

An annual review of conflicts is camed out and 1s incorporated into the yeor end
process of verifying directors’ interests. Half yearly reports are dlso made to the
board of ail directors’ conflicts and directors are reminded from time to trme of
thesr obligations.

Interests

No director had a matesial interest at any time during the year n any contract of
significance with the company or any of its subsidiary undertakings.




Retail sl'melwlder engngement strategqy

The board has an active shareholder
engogerment strateqy, the main elernents
of which are set out below

The annual rept:lrc'tf ond accounts s the
prncipal means of cormmunicating with
shareholders. The group has adopted
e-comminicabons as an atemative
method of sending company information
In March 2012 shareholders were
re-consulted as to therr preferred method
of recenng company CoMMUNCaLons.
Followang the consultabon, 54,856
shareholders {829} receve confirmation
that the annual report 1s available to view
onltne, whilst 11,829 shareholders (18%)
continue to recerve a hard copy

Our website {(www.sevemtrent.com}
contains an archive of annual reports
together with other information relevant
to mvestors. Ths includes cormprehensve
shore price nformnation, finonciol results,
company news ond finoncal colendars.
The company offers a Dvidend
Retrwestrnent Plan (DRIP) Details of the
DRIP are ovailoble on our website and
the website of Equinity, our registrar

Shurehnldernetworhngprogmmxe

The am of the progrumme & to offer retail
shareholders the opportunity to leam more
abaut the company, through site wisits and
talking to staff

As part of our Shareholder Networking
Programime, parbapants in October 2012 had
achoxe towsit ether a waste water or dean
water site. These were hosted by Smon Cocks,
Waste Water Services Drector and Andy
Smith, Director of Water Serwces. Nineteen
partciparits were taken to our Minworth
Sewage Treatment Works (Bemingham) for
a tour and presentiabon on renewable energy
Twenty-one parbapants were taken to
Carnpion Hills Water Treatrnent Works (Royal
Leamington Spa) for a tour then on to Sevem
Trent Water (Finham) for o demonstretion of
making a connection to a Tve water manand
adsplay of matenals used n the distribution
network This was followed by both groups
wsiting our operating centren Coventry
Positve feedback was gven onthe
organsation and contert with strong support
for the company continuing the prograTmine,
bo&ﬁwnstndwddesaﬂenpbyeeswm
enyayed the nterest shown n thesr work
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Shareholder engagement
Annud General Meeting

The AGM of the company will be held at the Intemahonal Convention Certre,

Broad Street, Bemingham B1 2EA at 11am on Wednesday 17 July 2013
Presentations are made an the group’s activities, perfornance dunng the year and
an operationally focused presentation prior to the formal busimess of the meeting.
The Chairmen of the Audit, Corporate Responsibility, Rernuneration and Nominations
Committees, together with all other directors, attend the AGM.

The AGM gives shareholders an opportunity to feedback to the company on
perforrmance, management and the way we work in o very direct frshion, through
the way they vote Shareholders may also meet informally with directars and

senior management before and after the meeting and ask formal questions

during the meeting.

The board encourages shareholders to attend the company’s AGM and to exerase
their nght to vote The notice of meeting end related papers are sent to shareholders
gt legst 20 working days before the meeting. Separate resolutions are proposed on
each substantally separate issue The poll results from the 2013 AGM will be made
avallable on our website after the meeting.

The way we ensure our effectiveness
Induction

On Joining the board, a director’s induction needs are evaluated and then they are
provided with a comprehensive and personalised induction pack which includes
information on the group structure, the reguiatory framework of the operating
businesses withun the group, strategic plans, firancial reports and business plans
and nformation on our govermnance framework.

Meetings are amanged with members of the executive mancgement team and with
external advisers who provide support to the relevant board commmittees onwhich
the directors may serve. Visits to operational and office sites across the group and
management presentations are olso armanged for ditectors joirung the board and
subsequently throughout the year.

Contiruing professional developrment

The directors receved updates throughout the year on matters such as changes to
best practice governance guidelines. The directors also have access to professional
development provided by external bodies and our advisers.

Contnumg professional development requirements wese considered as part of

the boord effectrveness review refesred to below No addiiondl requiremnents

were identified.

Performance and effectiveness reviews

Anindependent extemal review of the effectiveness of the board s conducted

every three years. The kast extemal review was camed out in November 2011.
InNovermber 2012, the board commenced an intemal review of ts effectveness and
the effectiveness of Its key commmittees. The review was led by the Chaimman, assisted
by the Compoany Secretary and was in the form of @ sesies of confidential mierviews
between each director, the Company Secretary and the Chairman

The board's strengths include atugh quality of debate, relevant and complernentary
collective sulls and talents and an effective use of trme The Audit, Corporute
Responsibility and Rermumergtion Committees were strong, effective and continued
toimprove dunng the year

The review also considered miade in the arees identified as requinng further
development in the ndependent extemnal review, camed out in the previous finanaal
year It conduded that good progress had been made with respect to the pnoritsation
of strategic matters on board agendas

To become even more effective, the most recent board review identified the need to
continue to allocate time for consideration of strategic matters, improve comparative
peer performance analysis and, with regard to leadership and succassion planning,
continue to foaus on development of managemertt below the Executive Committee level
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Nominations Committee

This report provides detoils of the role of the Nomitnations Committee and the work it
has undertaken dunng the year

The Committee keeps under review the balance of skifls on the board and the
knowledge, expenence, length of service and performance of the directors. It also

| reviews therr external interests with a view to identifying any actuol, perceved or

| kriage removed potential conflicts of interests, induding the tme availlable to commit to their duties to
- the company The results of these reviews are important when the board considers
succession planning and the election and reappointment of directors. Members of the
Cormmuttee take no part in any discussions cancerning their own arcumstances.

The members of the Committee in 2012/13 were the non-executive directors of the
board and the Chief Executive, Tory Wroy

A“d,mw Duff Dunng the year the Cornmittee considered the compesition of the board, the board's
Chairman of the Norminations Committee dwersity policy, the board's effectveness review and the succession plan for the Chief

o - o Executive It also reviewed the strength and depth of talent and succession planming
The man purpose of the Committee 1s to betow Executive Committee level.

assist the board by keeping the composibion In accordance with the requirements of the Governanice Code, all members of the
of the boerd under review and conductinga  board will seek re-election at the AGM in July 2013 In March 2013 the Committee

ks ond transparent process “’gfe“ formatty reviewed the performance, contribution and commitrnent of each of the
m;’{ommﬁns the directors retiing ot this year's AGM and seeking reappaintrnent, and supported and
board on 1ssues of directors’ conflicts of recommended ther reappointment to the board The Committee has confirmed that

interest and independence The fuliternsof ~ €och director continues to perform well both on an indasdual and collectve basts,
reference for the Committee canbefoundon miaking a valuable contnbution to the board's delberations and demonstrating
our website (www.severntrent.com) and are commiment to the long term interests of the company

also available from the Company Secratary

Nominations Commmittee attendance in 2012/13

Der;an'\ard Bulkin 22 Maorn Lu[pb o —212
RehordDovey _ 22 BooresNookes 202
Andrew Duff 22 TonyWray_ L.
Gordon Fryett o

Each Committee meeting compled with the terms of reference i that a minimum
of five members were in attendance, with the majorty being independent,
non-executve directors.




Govermnance Normunations Commuttee

Succession planning

‘When considenng new oppontrments to the

board, the Committee oversees the

preparation of a role specficotion that s

provided toan mdependent recutment.

organisction retaned to conduct a global

search. In oddibon to the spectfic skills,

knowledge and expenence deermed

necessary, the specification contans cntenc

such as:

= g proven tradk record of creating
shareholder value;

* unqueshoned integnty ond a dversity of
psychologica! mindset;

- acommitment to the highest standands of
governance;

= having the required time gvailable to
devote to the job;

- strategic mindset, an owareness of market
leadership, outstanding monitonng skills,

= a preparedness to question, challenge and
openly assess, and

= an independent pont of view.

53

Diversity

Further to the publication of the Dovies Report, ‘Women on Boards’, in February 2011,
boards of FTSE 350 comparies have been encourcged to promote gracter female
representation on corporate boards. Gudance from the Financiol Reporting Goundl has
also highlighted the mportance of grecter diversity of psychological profie around the
board table

Sevem Trent believes that a diverse and inclusive culture s o key factor nbeing a
successful business. Severn Trent Plc shares the aspiration of the Davies Report to
promote greater fernale representation on listed comparyy boards.

As and when board appointment opportunities anse, we will make full use of the
procedures recommended by the Davies Report and by the Govermance Code to
support this asprration. All board appontments will be based on ment and must be
in the Interests of all stakehclders.

As at 31 March 2013 and at the date of ths report, we had one female member
on our board of 11 {representing 9%) and three fernole mermbers out of 11 on the
Executive Cormnmittee (representing 27%). The total workforce gender split s 30%
fermale and 70% male

As we reported last year, we have conducted gender diversity research with women
employees in Severn Trent, Water to understand what is important to themin
developing careers at Severn Trent. The research was designed so that the insights
provided would help us to improve policies ond practices In developing women In
our organtsation.

We plan to use the same methodology to explore ethnic diversity in the future, so we

can gain more insights into this aspect of our workforce composiion ond the findings
will be examined by our Diversity Workng Group.

Graph resmoved

Andrew Duff
Charman of the Nominations Committee
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Audit Committee

Baroness Noakes DBE
Chasman of the Audt Committee

The Committee assists the board in
discharging ts responsibilities for the
mtegnty of the company’s finanoal
statements, the assessment of the
effectveness of the systerns of intemal
controls and monttonng the effectiveness
and objectty of the mtermal and external
auditors. The role and the responsibilties of
the Comfrittee are set out in written terms
of reference. These can be found onour
website (www.severntrent.com) and qre
dlso avallable from the Cormpany Secretary

This report provides detdils of the rote of the Audt Committee and the work it has
undertaken dunng the year.

The members of the Commuittee are Baroness Noakes DBE (Chairnan), Br Bernard
Bulkm and Richand Davey whose expenence and background are set out on poge 44.
The board is satisfied that Baroness iNoakes ond Richard Davey have recent ond
relevant finandal expenence ond that all members of the Committee reman
independent.

The members of the Commuitee receive updates m finanaal reporting and the
group’s regulatory framework invanous forms throughout the year The Charrman,
Chief Executive, Finance Director, Director of Internal Audit, Group Financiol Controller
and the extemal auditers normally attend, by imvitation, all meetings of the
Committee Other members of senior management are clso invited to attend

as appropnate The Committee reqularly helds pnvate discussiors with both the
internal and external ouditors.

In performing its duties, the Commyttee has access to the services of the Director of
Intemal Audrt, the Company Secretary and, if required, externol professional adwisers.

The Committee reports to the subsequent meeting of the board an the Committee’s
work It met five tmes in 2012/13 and its work focused on four key arecs:

+ financial staternents and occounting polioes,

« riskmanogement and intemal controls;

= oversight of ntemal and extemal audit; and

* the requlctory reporting obligotions of cur subsdiary Severn Trent Water Limited.

The Committee’s performance was induded in the rewew of the board referred to on
page 51. No matters requinng action by the Committee arose from that review.

Financial statements and accounting policies

The Commuttee looked carefudly ot those aspects of the financidl statements
which required sigrficant accounting judgermnents or where there wos estimation
uncertainty. These areas are explaned in note 4 of the financal statements on
poges 88 and 89. The Commitiee paxd parteutar attention to:

- whether further impaimments of the goodwill ond intangible assets reloted to
businesses n Sevem Trent Services were properly estmated,

« whether the assumptions used to calculate the amount of the defiat in the group’s
defined benefit pension schemes were reasonable and in kine with those usad by
simitar companies,

= the way in which derivative instrurnents were accounted for and in particutar the
impact of termination options which resutted n the termination of three interest
rate swops during the yeor; and

= the amount of provisions held for tax lobilties which were still the subject of
discussion with the tax authenttes.

The Committee also examined the disdlosure of tems which are desenbed as
exceptional in the consolidoted ncome statement.

The Committee reviewed the endence and assumphions underpmning the use of the
geing concerm assumption m preparing the acoounts and in making the staterment
made in the Directors’ report that the company 150 gomg concem.

In reviewing the finanaal statements, the Commuittee recenves mput from the
Disclasure Commuttee, which is chaired by the Finance Director. The work of the
Disclosure Committee ts described further on page 49

Delottte LLP (Detoitte) reported to the Committee on thew review of the half year
intenm results and on their qudit of the year end finanaal statements.

Intemal controls
The Committee receives regular seports from Interna! Audit m respect of thesr work on
internal controls and reviews management letters recerved from the extermnal auditors.

The Committee reviewed the processes for and outputs frorm our Enterprise Risk
Manogerment process, through which the principal nsks and related controls are
identified. The Committee discussed the approach to documenting nsk oppetrte gnd
providing quidance to risk owners on the board's tolerance for different types of risk.
In addition, it monitored the angoing development of our compliance and assuronce
processes in respect of the key nsks.




Govemance Audt Committee

Polcy ontheprovisionof
non-audit services

The company has opproved a formal
policy on the provsion of non-audit serices
amed at safeguarding ond supparting the
independence ond obyectwity of the
external oudttors.

The policy sets out the opproach to be taken
by the group when using the services of the
external ouditors, incduding requinng that
certain services provided by the external
auditors are pre-approved by the Cormmittee
or its Charman.

It defines the non-audit services that may
be provided by the external guditors and
separately sets out those non-audit serices
which are prohibtted, since the independence
of the extemal auditors could be threatened.

Non-audit services where the external
auditors may be used include audit related
senvices required by statute or requlation,
tax complance and tax planning adwvice,
due dibgence ¢n acquistions and

disposals, services reloted to fraud,
corporate responsibility report reviews

and regulatory support.

The approvat of the Committee or s
Charman is aiways required if a non-audtt
servce provided by the audtors s expected
to cost mere than £100,000 or f non-audt
fees for the year would exceed the amount
of the audit fee.

Furthermore, the procurement of non-audrt
services will need to comply with the

Litility Contracts Regulations and all services
requirernents aver the cument EC threshold
will have to be subject to tender
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The Committee reviews the procedures, systems and controls designed to prevent and
detect froud and bribery and receves a requiar log of nadents of froud or bribery
which mcudes the actions taken to investigate and respond to the incidents.

There were no matenal nadents dunng the year

The Gommittee also reviewed the group's approoach to IT contmuity. Gven the
increasing dependency aof the business on techniology, this is an area of crucial
importarce and further reviews will be camed out in the next year

Further detoils of ourintermnal controt framewark can be found in the Directors’ report
onpoge 71

Intermnal Audit

The Director of Internal Audit and his team report on a doy to day basis to manogernent
on the effectiveness of the group’s systems of Interndl controls and the adequacy of
these systems to manoge business nsk and to safeguard the group's ossets and
resources, This work 5 summarised and reported to the Committee on a reqular basis
and 1s a key element of the assuronce thot the Comiittee recerves on the risks and
controls in the group

The effectiveness of the Internal Audit function, its plans, level of resources and budget
are reviewed at least annually by the Committee The Cirector of Intemal Audit is free
to raise any issues with the Committee or its Charmnan at any tme during the year.

Bxtemal auditors

Delortte wene apponted auditors of the cormpany in 2005, pursuant to a competitive
tender process. Delotte audit all significant subsidiones of the group Annually, the
Committee reviews the external auditors’ audit plan and reviews and assesses information
provided by thermn confirming ther Independence and objectivity within the context of
applicable reguiatory requiremertts and professional standards The Committee also
reviews the ouditors’ effectiveness, which imvolves. assessmert of the auditors by the
Committee and key executives, ond confirmation that the quditors meet minimum
standards of qualfication, independence, expertise, effectiveness and commurucation
These assessments are carmed out pnor to the Committee recommending to the
board that the external auditors be proposed for regppointment at the AGM.

The companty does not currently have a policy of tendenng the extemal audit at specific
ntervals but would Inibate a tender process If there were any concerms about the
qualty of the audit or the independence and cbjectmty of the ouditors. In addibon the
company will comply with the tendenng requirements of the UK Corporate Governance
Code 2012 which will require an audtt tender no later than 2020 There areno
contractual cbligabons that oct to restrict the Committee’s choxce of external cudstors.

Detdils of the amounts paid to Deloitte for qudit and non-cudit services are provided
in note 7 to the accounts on page 93,

Sevemn Trent Water Limited

The regulcted activibes camed out by Severn Trent Witer Limited require two main
reporting requirerments to Ofwat wiich are reviewed by the Committee: an annual
subrnission on Sevem Trent Water Limited’s requlatory obligations, known as the
Annual Regulatory Performance Report together with the Annual Regulatory
Complionce Statement; and a statemnent that underpins the customner charges made
by Sevem Trent Water Limited, known as the Prinapal Statement.

InMarch 2013 the Committee reviewed the assurance framework in place for the
Anrwal Requlatory Compliance Statement process. In Novernber 2012 the Committee
reviewed the assunance framework for the Princpal Statement and the PR14 process.

Deloitte make reports to Cfwat m respect of Severn Trent Water Limited’s regulatory
accourtts. The Annual Regulatory Perfonmance Report, which prowides an overall
picture of companyy performance, cavers many aspects which are not fingnaial and
Severm Trent Water Limited appoints engineenng consultants, Atkins, to report on
those aspects. The Committee receves reports from Delortte and Atikans on their work
as port of tts review of the Annual Regulatory Retums.

Audit Committee ottendunce in 2012/13

Buronw Noakes _ 5/5

RechordDavey _ 515
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Corporate Responsibility Committee

Dr Bernard Bullan
Chairman of the Corporate
Responsibility Commutiee

The Committee provides guidance and
direction to the group’s Corporate
Responsibility {CR) programime, reviews
the group’s key non-financicl nsks and
opportunities and monitors progress.

The terms of reference for the Committee
can be found on our webstte
(www.severntrent.com) and are also
available from the Company Seaetory.

The Commitiee reviews annuaily the
adequacy of the group’s formal
whistleblowing policy and procedures
which deal with allegatio
relating to breoches of the Code of Conduxct
and reviews at each of its meetings the
whistleblowing nadent log.

ns frorn employees

This report provides details of the role of the Corporate Responsibility (CR) Committee
and the work it has undertaken dunng the year

The members of the Cornmittee are Dy Bernard Bulkin {Chairmnan), Andrew Duff,
Gordon Fryett and Tory Wy

The purpase of the Committee is to provide boced oversight of the manogement

of all nen-finanadl 1isks to the group. This year we alignad the structure for our

(R framework to Doing the right thing - The Severn Trent way’, our Code of Conduct.
This comprises nine key pnnciples that we work to and prowides a common frarmework
for both our businesses - regulated and non-regulated,

1 Keeping everyone hedlthy and safe

Supporting employees’ nghts and diversity

Maintaining ethical and honest behaviour

Staying free from bnbery and comuption

Keeping our communications open and responsible

Delivenng excellent customer senice

Working within the community

Protecting our environrment

Stonding up for what's nght

Within the nine pnnaples of our CR framework, we have identified focus areas that
are antical to our management of isk and reputation These areas were determined
through stakeholder didlogue, sk assessment and benchmarking within the

water industry and the FTSE 100 and are reviewed annually.

The nine prnaples of our Code of Conduct provide the basis for the forwand ogenda of
the Committee During the year the Committee has receved papers on key business
programmes and strategies linked to the terms of reference of the Committee.

These nduded water effiaency, supply chain management, envirenmentat
managemert systerns, brand and reputation, occupational health, employee
volunteenng, vulnerable customers, employee satisfaction and diversity In addition,
the Committee responds to emerging issues and receved updates on disability access
ond paltutions performance,

The Committee also receved reports from Intemal Audit with respect to their work

on non-fimanaal nsk lnked to the terms of reference of the Committee and regular
updates on heatlth, safety and envronmentol performance and whistieblowing.
Within Severn Trent Water we hove an effective performance managerment system in
place through our core business KPIs. These are overseen by the Executive Commitiee
and the board. Many of the business KPIs relate directly 1o our R focus areas and
therefore cantribute significantly to our CR performance We report intemally on our
performance through bath the Executive Committee and the Comnittee Externally,
we report through @ number of channels induding our Annuat Regulotory Rehums to
Ofwat, our websites and our annual report and accounts.

Corporate Responsibility Committee attendance in 2012/13

0o~ P WA

33 Gordon Fryett 33

33 ToyWoy 33
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Remuneration Committee

Image Removed

Richard Davey
Charman of the Remuneration Committee

The Committee determines, on behalf of
the board, the company’s policy on the
remuneration of executive directors, other
members of the Executive Committee and
the Chawrman of the board. The Committee
determines the total remuneration
packages and controctual terms and
conditions for these ndividuals. The policy
frarmework for remunerating atl sentor
exacutive managers is consistent with the
approach taken for executive drectors,

The members of the Commuttee dunng the
year were Dr Bernond Bulkun, Richard Davey
{Commuttee Charman) and Martin Lumb all
of whom are mdependent non-executive
directors. Andrew Duff, the company
Chaemnan, who was independernt on his
appaointment to the board, is also a
member Accordingly, the compostion of
the Commuttee 18 in accordance with the
Governance Code.

Dear Shareholder

This report sets cut the remuneration policy for the directors of Severn Trent Ple ond
discloses the amounts paid to themn in the year ended 31 March 2013.

The UK Government: has tabled proposals to reform the way directors’ remuneration is
voted upon and reported. The new tegssiative requirements will not come into effect
until October 2013 Although not mandatory for this report, the Committee has
sought to comply with the new requirements where practicable and where minimat
duphcabon with current reporting standards occurs, Therefore, this report has been
split into two sections, a Policy report which sets out the remuneration policy of the
executive and non-executive directors and an Implementation report which disdoses
how the cumrent remuneration policy has been implemented in the year ended

31 March 2013, We will be seeking your support for both parts of the report by way of
a single advisory vote at the forthcoming AGMon 17 July 2013

The remunerabion policy for senior executives is set with dose regard to the company’s
four key focus areas and nsk managemeant.

ey focus Rernureration polncy_

Custormer = Custorner focused KPIs forrn a substantial part of the annual
- delivering qualty - bonus scorecard.

services at prces , oy, general policy 1s to position fixed pay around the market

g‘;rsgr?jme’s can medion to ensure that remuneration remains affordable.

* Return on Regulatory Caprtal Value (RORCV) targets within the
tong Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) and financial based KPIs withn
the annual bonus are set with dose regard to Ofwat’s Final
Determination, ensunng that we dosely manage our

__ .. . __ peformancewthinthe regulatorylrmits.
Employee - Insetting directors’ pay the Committee 1s sensitive to pay and
-investingmthe  candtions m the workforce generally

nght people with . gejected KPIs for the annugl banus indude health safety and
the right skils well-being and employee engogement.

+ HMRC approved share plens {all-employee Share Incentve Plan
{SIF) and Sharesave) are aperated annually for Severn Trertt
Water {(STW) UK based executves ond employees. Sevem Trent
Services (STS) employees are eligble to parbiapate in the
___ Sharesave only gven the SIP relates to STW performance.
Ervironment + Ervronmental KP1s are included within the onnual bonus for
- reduding oll employees, induding directors.

polluonand Ur . s committee can override the formulaic bonus outtum if there

corbonfootprnt s asignificant envronmentlsse
Financid » Avariety of financial KPIs are used within the annual bonus

= making our scorecard to help ensure our financial performance 1s optimised.
business » Quttum under the LTIP 1s determined by the achievernent of
?ﬁmtg;'se to RoRCV aginst the Ofwat Fingl Determination. Payment will not

be made if performance is below the RoRCV target set by Ofwat.

* Relative totol shareholder return {TSR) is used to measure
performance in the Share Matching Plan to reward executives for
Severn Trent outperformming a peer group of cornpares in the
stock rmarket.
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Governance Remunerabion Committee

Link between pay and Severn Trent performance in 2012/13

Annual bonus payments to executive directors were between 95% and 115% of bose solary, reflecting a strong year of operational
performance of the busness Payments under the LTIP vested at 57 5% of the maaemum oward ovallable, reflecting 0 43 3%
increase in share pnce over the three years to 31 March 2013 ond T5R performance above median when compared to the

FYSE 51-150 {our TSR benchmark group for the 2010 LTIP oward).

Key policy developments for 2013/14
There are no material changes to the remuneration policy or Committee processes propased for 2013/14.

The Commuttee continues to monitor policy to ensure that it s it for purpose and aigned with shareholders’ interests, corporate
governance and all employee remuneration policies Therefore, in 2013, the Committee ntends to exarmine whether the cument
long term incentives con be srplified, assess whether sufficient wesghting is given to long term performance and to review
directors’ service contracts. The Comnmuttee will cansult with magor sharehaolders over the course of the next financial year regarding
any changes. Any amendments to the revised remuneration policy will be effective frorm 1 Apnl 2014 and will be voted upon under
the new BIS regufations at the 2014 AGM.

Richard Davey
Chairman of the Rermuneration Committee

RAMTQMC\I




Govemance Remunerghon Cormmittee

Policy report
This part of the Directors’ remuneration report sets out the remuneration policy for the company with effect from 1 April 2013

Setting the remuneration policy

Each year, the Committee reviews the remuneration policy for executive directors and other senior executive managers, tolang into
occount both the extemal market and the company’s strategic objectives over the short and the medium term. Furthermore, there
15 & dear ink between dl-ernployee remuneration polioes and those operated at a senior executive level,

The Committee addresses the need to balance risk and reward. The Committee continues to monitor the vanable pay arangernents
for the executive directors and other members of the Executive Committee to take account of the nsk profile of the company
ensunng sustamability ord how ths 1s reflected in vanable rernuneration The Committee believes that the schemes are appropnately
mancged and that the choice of performance measures and torgets does not encourage undue nsk taking by the executives The
schernes incorporate a range of intemial and extemal performance metrics, measuring both opergtionol and finanaad performance
providng a rounded assessrment of overall company performance.

Lmnkage to ¢l employee pay

The Committee addresses the need to ensure that changes i senior executive rermuneration are kept in ine with workforce pay
Whilst it has not set a speafic policy on the relationship between executve directors’ pay and that of the rest of the workforce, it
ams to ensure that executive salary movement s appropriately aligned to the rest of the workforce and specifically constders this
carefully as part of its decsion makmg process. Furthermore, bonus schemes operate on a consistent basis throughout Severn Trent
{using the same balanced scorecard) and all UK employees may paricipate n the Sharesave and Share Incentive Plan.

Shareholder views

The Cormittee engages proactively with the company’s major shareholders, and takes seriously their vews. When eny matenal
changes are made to the remuneration policy, the Committee Chairman will inform, and where appropriate, meet major
shareholders in odvance.

Remnuneration policy for the executive directors
The remnuneration policy for executive directors campnses the followsng elements:

= base sdlary;

+ annual bonus scheme;

* {ong term incentve schemes, and
= pension and benefits.

The following table sets oyt a summary of each element of the executne directors’ remuneration packages.

Tony Ballonce Martin Kane Andy Smith
Tony Wray Michael McKeon Drrector, Strategy (EO - Severn Drectorof
Component Cheef Executive Fnance Director and Regulation Trent Services Water Services
Bose salory from £575,000 £466,800 £211,300 £256,900 £274,600
ly2e3 e e
On target annual 60% 60% 60% 60% 60%
borws(%ofsalary) e me e e
Maximum annual 120% T120% 120% 120% 120%
bonus(eofsatoryy R L .
% of bonus eamed 50% 50% 50% 50%
deferedintoshares e e et e ———
Arnud LTIP award 70% 50% 50% 50%
Moofsdory) e i e e e
SMP award - 05:1 051 051 05.1 05:1
moumum ratio of
matching shares to
deferedshares . ...
Pension Cash supplement of ~Cash supplement of Defined contribution Cash supplemert of | “final salary defined
arongement 40% of base salary  40% of base satary scheme, 30% of bose salary benefit scherne
contribubions of with cash
30% of base salary supplement of 40%
of base salary above
s e e o e = e - thESGlOTY COD
Benefits A car dilowance of £15,000 per annur, farnily (evel prvate medical insurance, life assurance worth 6 x

base solary and an mcapacity benefits scheme
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Governance Rermuneration Committee

Base salary

Base salanes for endividual directors are reviewed annually by the Committee ond take effect from 1 July, Salanes are set with
refarence to indwidual performance, experience ond contribution, together with developments in the retevant employment market
(heving regard to the market mecdian for similar roles m publicy quoted companies of a comparable size and practice m other water
companes) and intemal relatvities,

The Committee gives due consideration to the current economic dimate, current market proctce and offordablity regarding
executve solary reviews and the broader employee salary review policy at the compary.

The Commuttee has reviewed salaries for 2013/2014 and has deterrruned that the bose salaries for ol executive drectors will be
increased by 2.5% from 1 July 2013, Thes leve! of increase is inLine with the average increase agoss the rest of the campany.

Annual Borus Scheme

Executve directors are eligible for annual bonuses to encourage improved performance, with targets established by the Committee
to dlign directors’ interests with shareholders’ nterests. The maximum annual bonus opportunity for all executive directors s 120%
of salary For the achievement of target performance (which requires satisfachon of chatlenging godls), 60% of salary could be
eamed All annuol bonus payments are non-pensionable

Executive directors’ bonuses are deterrmined by performance ogainst a balanced scorecard of measures with thew Indmdual
contnbutron assessed through personal objectves.

Half of any bonus paid s deferred into shares and hetd for three years following payrment. If the executive is summarily dismissed
without nobice under his/her employrment contract then the deferred bonuses are forferted. In oll other cases of cessation of
ernployment the deferred bonuses are not lost and the shares are outornatically released on the dealing day after the cessation
of employment.
Severn Trent continues to operate a dawbtack provision.
Details of the bonus outturn for 2012/13 are shown n the Implementation report on poges 64 and 65
Long termn incentrves
The executive directors are eligible to parbaipate in two long term incentive schemes: 0) LTIP, anxd b} a Share Matching Plan (SMP):
a) LTIP

The LTIP was approved by shareholders at the 2605 AGM Under the LTIP, annual conditional awards of performance shares

may be made to executive directors and senior staff, up to an annual maxmurn of 125% of base salary The policy teved of LTIP
awurds is 70% of base solary for the Chief Executrve and 50% of base salary for other directors.

RoRCV will remain as the performance metnic for the 2013 LTIP This measure 1s consistent with the megsure used by Ofwat in
setting customer prices os part of the Final Determinaticn (the process whereby Ofwat sets the level of prces we con chorge
customers) and reflects the efficiency of eamings rather than simply being an absclute measure of profit and s verfied and
publshed as part of the Annual Regulatory Performance Report. The Comimittee believes that the use of RORCV provides o strong
alignment between the long term finandal and operational perfarmance of the group and the reward delivered to
management.
Further information with regards to the performance of the 2009 and 2010 LTIP can be found tn the Implementaton report on
page 67, together with the vesting schedute.

b) sMP
Under the SMP, executive directors can receve up to one matching share for each share deferred under the annual bonus
plan, The aurent policy is that they recenve 0.5 matching share for each share deferred. Awards will normnally vest as soon as the
Committee determines that the performance condibions have been met prowded that the parbapent rermains in erployment at
the end of the three year period.

Awards under the SMP are subject to a relative TSR measure over three distinct perfermance penods. However, owards will not
nomnally vest to parbapants until the third anniversary of grant. The performance condition requares the company’s TSR is
measured relative to those comparies ranked 51-150 m the FTSE Index by market capitalisotion {excluding investment
trusts) This is considered to be the most surtable cornparator group singe the number of comparable regulated companies
aganst which to compare the company’s perfarmance remains too small to enable a meaningful anatysis. The FTSE
51-150 comparator group allows for the company performance to be measured agmnst a broader market without any cne
sector overly impacting the group. In addibon for awards to vest, the Commyttee must be satsfied that the TSR 1s reflectve of
the company’s undertying performance.

At the time of release parbicipanits will receive the vaiue of the dvdends pad an vested shares over the performance penod.

The TSR vesting schedule and detail of shares vested during the penod reported are shownin the Imptementation report.

The plan was mtroduced in 2010 with the first awards due to vest this year
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Pension

Severn Trent executive directors recenve retirement benefits from o vanety of legocy pension arrangernents including defined
benefit, defined contnbution (OC), payments made direct to persondl plans and cash tn liewu, However, whilst for legacy reasons the
executive directors participate in o vanety of different arrangements, the policy for employer contnbubons for new executive
directors 1s 25% of salary. If the value of the persion contribution is above the HMRC Annual Allowanice or Lifetime Allowarce
executive directors will receive cash n bew,

Detals of the speafic persion armangaments implemented m the year for each exeautive director are detailed inthe
Implernentation report.

Reward scenarios

The charts below show how the compasiion of each of the executive directors’ remuneration packages vanes at different levels
of performance achigvement. Target performance assumes a 60% of salary bonus, @ 0.25 to 1 match on the related SMP oward

and 50% vesting under the LTIP award for a single year Maximum performance assumes full payment of bonus and full vesting
of the SMP and LTIP awards No assumphions hove been made as to share price growth over the vesting penod.

Graph Removed
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Execubve senvice controcts

The Rernuneration Committee reviews the contractual terms for executve directors to ensure that these reflect best practice
and for new joners o new model contract was introduced dunng 2012 This provides for tenmination provisions that compnse
a maximum of 12 months’ salary and fixed benefits only.

The remuneratlon related elements of the curent contracts for executive directors are shown in thetnbie below:

Proveson Pobcy

Noticepenod Lmonthsfrometherparty ... I

Termninaton Theoreticat maximum payment in the case of redundancy or termination in breach of the qgreement by the

payment company of 175% of base salary. In deterrmining octuca! payouts, the Committee has a duty to take into
account the following.

- a reduction of up to 10% con be made gt the Committee’s sole discretion (i.e. lowenng the payout to
157.5% of salary), and
- anexpliat dause in the contract stating that the company shall not be required to reward poor performance
The value of any payment wilt not indude the release of awards which have been mode under any share plans.
o ___ The plons contain separate provisions regarding the treatment of leavers in line with best practice gurelnes.
Miigation Any termination payment will not be maode uuton’mﬂcally but will be subject toboth phosung and mitsgation

(incdluding offset aganst any earnings from new employment) unless, in the arcumstances, the Committee
considers it appropriate to achieve a dean break through payment of a lwump sum, in which case it will require

some discount for early payment.
Cﬁcnge of control ~ There a?e~no"s;5éahc contractual bﬁ}rﬁéﬁts or benefits which would be tnggered in the eventofa change n
L _ controlofthecompary. . ) o )
Contract dates  Executivedrectors Dnteofcurrentagreement _____Dateof eppaintment to Severn Trent
ToryWey ~ 20May2008 ~ 7Morch2005
Michael M_cK_eo_n _ 6 December 2005 13 Decermber 2005 o
Tony Ballance T2snez008  231uly2005
Martin Kane ) o "1_Iunuory2012 - :-__ 16“&/-9mber1975 “m_: . :
Andy Smith " "2une2008 1 Jonuary 2005

Personol shareholdings

The company opercates shareholding guidelines under which executive directors are expected to buitd and mantain a shareholding
in the company The Chief Executive 15 expected to build and maintoin a holding of shares to the value of 1.5 x base salary and other
executve directors 1 x base salary. Executive directors are expected to retain dll of the net of tox number of shares they recenve
through the LTIP, SMP and cther shore-based plans untll the shareholding guidelines have been met. Details of the current
shareholdings of the directors are set out on page 66

External drectorships

Executive directors are permitted to take on external non-executve directorships, though normally only one ather FTSE 100
appointment. In order to avoid ary conflicts of interest, all such appomtrnents are subject to the approval of the
Norminations Committee, Executave directors are normally only permitted to retan the fees ansing frorm one such
appaintment. External non-executive appointments help to bang a further external perspective to the group and helpn
the development of key ndwiduals’ expenence

Michael McKeon was appointed as a non-executive director of The Merchantts Trust Plc on 1 May 2008 and in respect of the
appointment for the year ended 31 March 2013 he was pod fees of £23,458

Tony Wray was appointed as a non-executive director of Grainger plc on 24 October 2011 and in respect of the appomtment for the
year ended 31 March 2013 hos been paxd fees of £41,250.

Both Michael McKeon and Tory Wray retained their respectve fees in aocardance with the above policy

No other executive directors currently hotd any external fee eaming non-executive directorships.
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Chairman and non-executive directors

The remuneration pelicy for non-executive directors, ather than the Chairman, s determined by the board, within the limits set out
inthe artides of associaton A single fee induding such memberships is pad, with additional fees pad for the senior ndependent
director and charmnanship of the board committees. The Charman's fee is reviewed annually by the Committee (without the
Chawrnan present). He recenes a single fee of £250,000 to cover olt his board dutes.

mg c_urr_er]t fee levels for the non—exewtiv_e _dl_rectnrs gresetoutinthe wugbdw and remain at 20_1? fee larglf )

Fees
?g”sefene"paidtqullmp-q:gecunvedlrectors L o £50,000
Supplementaryfees. - - .
= Serwor ndependent director ) o . E1000:
- Audit Committee Charman N LT £15,000
- Remuneration Committee Chairman T S £15,000
- Corporate Respansihility Committee Chairman B e £13,000

Nonexecutive directors normatly serve terms of three years They do not hove service contracts. Instead they are engaged
by letters of appointrment which are terminable by either party wath no notice penod and no compensation in the event of
such termination.

Inttial appomntment. Currertt cpportment. Cument explry dote
OrBemardBulen _ Mowoy2006 =~ lonuory2012 31 December 2014
Rchard Davey el Uonuary2006 1Jonuary2012 - 31December2014
Andrew Duff (Chawman) | 10Moy2010 = 10May2013 .. 9Moy2016 )
Gordon Fryett e eew oo o L2009 1y2012 | 30June2015
Magnlamb - 29Februory 2008 _ IMorch2011  ~ _ 28February2014
Baroness Nookes 25 February 2008 1 March 2011 28 February 2014

All of the directors are subject to reappontment at the 2013 AGM.

Implementation report
Mermbershp of the Rernuneration Committee

The members of the Committee cre listed in the toble below All are independent non-exequtve directars, as defined under the
Govemnance Code, with the exception of the company Charman who was independent on his appointment.

Dunng the year ended 31 March 2013, the Committee met five times to discuss key remuneration ssues ansing, the review and
opengtion of the company’s remuneration policy and market updates by its adwvisers.

Committee attendonce in 2012/13

r—— - [ —— - - -— . _— e e e i e ree e e e P N LT

RchardDavey _5/5  DrBemord Butkn 5/5

AndrewDuff e .. o3 Matlemd L LW
With the exception of the company Chairman, the Commyttee members have no personal finandid interest, other than as
shareholders, m the matters to be decided.

External advisers

Toensure that the company’s remunerabon proctices are market cormnpetitive, the Commuttee has access to detailed
external adwvice from experienced speddlist consultarits.

New Bridge Street (a truding nome of Aon Hewatt Limited) s the independent adviser to the Committee. Neither Aon Hewitt

Limited nor any other part of Aon plc (Aon Hewntt's parent company} provided other services to the company dunng the year.

Dunng 2012/2013, the Committee camed out o review of its advisers, and reappointed New Bridge Street.

The Chief Executve (Tory Wray), the Director of Human Resources (Evetyn Dickey) and the General Manager of Reward and Pensions
(Richard Galletly) and New Bridge Street diso attended the Committee meetings to provide advice and respond to speafic questions.
Such attendances specfically excluded any ratter conceming their own remuneration. The Comparny Secretary, Bronagh Kennedy,
is secretary to the Committee.

The total fees paid to New Bridge Street in respect of its services to the Committee dunng the yeor were £130,799 (excluding VAT).
The fees charged for major projects are normally negotioted in advance of any mayor project beingundertaken. However, an
element of the fees relate to sundry ongoing adwvice, in tine with New Bridge Street’s role to prowide ongoing support throughout
the Committee over the entire remuneration year ond are predominantly charged on a ‘time spent’ basis. New Bridge Street s o
signatory to the Remuneration Consultants’ Code of Conduct.
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The text ond tables that follow comprse the quditable part of the Directors’ rermuneration report, being the mforration required
by the UKLA Lising Rutes 986and 988,

Directors’emoluments . e e e
Totel Total
2012/2013 Totd 201172012
Annual Annual before DC ndluding DC including BC
Basicsalary  Benefits borus bonus pension  DC pension persion pension
ond fees n kind® oxsh®  deferred® Other® tontribubons contributions contributions contrbutions
{£°000) (£'000) (£000) (£000) (£:000) (£000} {£000) {£000) (F'000)
DrB&_e[r_\Org_Bulkl_n o 63.(_) s =T - 639 _ "__-___M_6“3_(‘)_“ 594
RchordDowey = 750 - . - .- 03 753 - 33 74
Andrew Duff .o »ee - - - - 2500 - 200 2500
Gordon Fryett ; 500 e . T . DLt 500 - 300 464
MartinLamb _ . 00 - . . T L o0 o . 300 464
gggonqssNoqks _ 65.0 = - 3 03 ) 6:‘3.3m T 6§3u _586
Torly_B_ullupce_ ) o 1985 15 979 .”..?..7.:?" B 15.0 L 408 728 483.6 3953
N_k_:l_rti[l_Kunen 3 2508m 49.& _144_0‘ 1440 166.8 ) “755.9 o m75§:0 mS_O_‘ih
Michael McKeon . 4522 15 2231 2231 1964 10963 - 10%3 8798
AndySmth 2568 15 1269 1269 = 667 = 5788 - = 3788 4665
quy Wy i 5524 _ 15 273.2 2?_32 ; M238§ o :}L3"38.§__ o 13386 ,1’0,3."9
Total 2,263.7 554 865.1 8651 6838 47331 728 48059 38101

Footnote:

© The figure shown for Mortn Kane s largely representative of his US cost of fvng expenses, laccommodabon £22,799, UK ond LS prvate medicol nsurance £10,605,
vehide costs £5,858, ar fares £2,662, tax adwce £7,390 and flexible benefits £71.00)

) The directors recene 50% of ther annual bonus aword n cosh and 50% n shares, The ornaunts shownn the toble howe been mods n respect of 2012/13 performance,
Outstonding unreleased annual bonus scheme awords ane shawn as non-beneficial intenests n the toble of ditertors” share rterests and i the deferred bonus oward toble.

() Cther emoluments indude expenses chargeable to ncome tax, cor allowances, travel allowances, talephone dllowonces, and ameunts paid in beu of pension contributions.
Included in other emoluments orer

- Tony Balance cor allowance £15,000.
- Martin Kane persion supphernent £75,180, cor aliowance £15,000, US disturbance allowance and utlity costs £32,309, and compensabon for UK tax suffered
onUS benefits £44,270

- Michnel McKeon penson supplemnent £181,270, car allowance £15,000 ond o telephone aiowance £112.68.
- Andy Smith pension supplement £51,670 and car allowonce £15,000
- Tany Wray pension supplement £223,300 and £15,000 ax allowarnice.

Details of variable pay eamed in the year
Annual bonus plon outtum - 2012/13

Inthe 2012113 finanaial year, the Chief Executive and Finance Director had () 80% of their bonus cuttum based on the
performance of Severn Trent Water, (i)} 10% based on the performance of Severn Trent Services and {ii) 10% based on persoral
contnbution. The remaining executve directors with the exception of the Chief Executive Officer, Sevemn Trent Services, had 90% of
their bonus outtum attributed to the performance of Severn Trent Wiater and 109% based on personal performance.

The Chief Executive Officer, Sevem Trent Services had 70% of his bonws linked to the performance of Severn Trent Senvices, 10%
linked to the performance of Severn Trent Water and 20% against personal contribution.

i} Severn Trent Water

The benus outtumn in respect of Severn Trent Water performance was operated by reference to a balanced scorecard of measures,
based on 10 of the compary’s 16 KPIs {shown on page 135), The Committee beleves that the use of the selected 10 Sevem Trent
Water KPIs continues to be both an effective and chaflenging annual bonus metne and meets the needs of the business. The bonus
entifernent was determined by reference to the aggregote number of points awarded across all the KPIs. The targets taken
together are considered by the board to have an impact on the longer term finanoia! performance of the company end a number
of them ore reported to Ofwat.
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A definition of each KPI s bsted below
Keyoeo | Ogecwe T T T T T e Pedomonce Indeotrs o T T
Employee Provide a safe working environment KPI1 Lost time incidents per 100,000 hrs worked
we oo wo . .DEvelopaconfident ondproductve woriforce  KPI2  Employee motvaton - -
Customer Qualty interaction withthe customer ~~~ KPI4  Service Incentive Mechanism - Qualitatrve

KPIS5  Service Incentwve Mechanism - Quantitabve

KPI7  Serviceabilty - Woste
o o KPL8 Serviceability ~ Water L
Financial Assetbaseenhancement ~ KPI9  Capdal Expendrture (ret) versus Final

Determination — % outperformance
Management of cost base KPI11  Operating Expenditure versus Final Detemination

e e e e e e e zHeoutperformance - )
Ermvironment Minimise environmental impact KPI12  Pollubon inddents {cat 1, 2 and 3)

KPI16 Leckage Mi/d - Post MLE

Each KPT hos 100 target points, 130 stretch points and ore uncapped. For executive directors to be awarded the maximum bonus
available they are required to achieve 1,300 aggregate points. During the year 7 of the 10 KPIs exceeded the stretch level of
performance After examining the overall performcnce and indicatve bonus outturm the Committee determined that each of the
7 KPls should be capped at the level of stretch performance As a consequenice the bonus awarded for the Severn Trent Water
portion of the annual bonus was 77.7% of its bonus eferent maximum, representing a strong performance in the year and
continues the positive progresswve trend in the outtum of the KPIs. The chart below shows the points owarded by the Committee
for bonus purposes under each of the 10 KPIs in relation to the 2012/13 annuot bonus scheme and the effect of copping of each

KPI at stretch performance,

Graph Removed

Copital expenditure (Capex) 1s measured annually and over the five year AMP period. The directors are incentivised to outperform
the anrual Capex target; however, this year the annuat target was not outperfonmed and therefore zero peints were achieved,
Severn Trent Water remains on track to meet its five year Capex target ot the end of the AMP

1i} Severn Trent Services

A proportion of the bonus opportunity for the Chief Executive {10%), Finance Director {10%} and Chief Executrve of Severn Trent
Senvices (70%) was measured against the performance of Sevem Trent Services. Performance was measured against the profit
before nterest and tox (PBIT) (before exceptional terns} and the retum on mvested coprtal (ROIC) of Severn Trent Services. A nurmber
of the personal objectives set for the directors named above also relate to the performance of Sevem Trent Services. Following a
strong year of performance, the PRIT and ROIC targets wene met in full and the bonus award for this element of the plan will pay

out at the maximum.
iy Personal contribution

All directors had 10% of thewr bonus opportunity measured against personal objectives, with the exception of the Chief Executive
of Severn Trent Services who had 20%. Performanke agamst personal ohjectives in the year was strong with directors recelving
between 90% and 96% of the maxmurm bonus opportunity avaiiable under thrs element of the annual bonus plan,

The Committee has reviewed the operohion of the annual bons plan over the year and condluded that it should operate on

a similar basis for 2013/2014.
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Directors’ penston provisions

Tony Wray and Michael McKeon recerve a salary supplement of 40% of base salary in {ieu of future pension provision and
Martin Kane receives 30% of salary

Tony Ballance 1s a member of the Sevem Trent Pension Scherme (Pension Choices section) which 1s one of the company’s defined

contnbution schemes He curmently contributes 3% of salary and the comparny contributes 309, plus a further 2.5% in respect of

death in service and ill hedlth benefits. The nomat retrrerment age for the scheme is 65 atthough retirerent prior to 65 s possible

with the consent of the company

Andy Srnith participates in the Sevem Trerit Pensston Schemne which will dose in 2015 The scheme 15 o funded HMRC registered final

salary occupationol pension scheme which provides

« a nommal retirement age of 60 years;

« an overall pension at normal retirerment oge of two thinds of final pensionable salary, which for executve directors s defined os
base salary only, subject to the completion of 20 years' pensionabie service and member contnbutions of 6%;

* life cover of 4 x pensicnable eamings;

= a pension payable in the event of retirement on grounds of ill health, and

« adependant’s pension on death of two thirds of the member’s pension

Andy Smith pariopates up to the level of the scheme specific eamings cap which in 2012/13 was £137,400. He s provided with a

cash supplement in ieu of pension entilement above this scheme cap at 40% of his salory Early retirement s available after the

age of 55 with the consent of the company, subject to actuanal reduction, other than in the case of ncapoaty

Detalls of directors' interests in def ned beneﬁt pension schemes

Increasein Tnremsem  Transfervalue
Service accrued  Tronsfervalue  Transfer volue  transfervaiue of occrued
completed n Accrued Increase - pension dunng of occrued ofoccrued  overtheyear  benefits net of

years (including  persionat 31 occrued persion the year inet of pensionat pension at net of directors’ drectors’
tronsferedm  March 2013 dunng the year nfiabon} 3t March 2013 31March 2012 contributions  contribubions

Name service credits) (£pa) {fpa) (£pa) {£000) (£000) (£000) (£000)
AndySmith 8 37,769 6452 5450 6808 4933 1793 1081
TonyWray 6 29818 347 (5%) 5115 443 872 60
Martin Kane 35 149113 14,340 10027 27489 21661 5828 264k
MNotes:

Aacrued permon figures and trarsfer value cakeuiatons provded by Towers Wotsor,

The transfer value bass has been updated snce the lost year end. Transfiar vatues quated above reflect the transfer vadue bass thot wos in foree ot the brme of the ocensed pension
eicuihon The impact of the change in methodology wos to increass the transfer valuse: o 31 March 2013 wite os folows: Andy Sith £23,400, Tery Wray £17,100, Martn Kone £83,200.

Mr Wiay ceasad to contribuste to the scheme from 31 Decernber 2011, At thes date he becurme a-deferred persioner of the scherne and stopped oconang pensionable service.
Towers Watson hove coiculated his acoued penmon ond Final Pensionable Salary as at 31 Decermber 2011, In addition, Towers Watson have coiculated hes tronsfer value as at
31 March 2013 atiowng for deferred revaluabon to ths date.

Inflaton figure used in respect of year i February 2013 (3.2%) o5 the latest ovollable figure pror bo the yeor erud, Thes approach s consstent with the prior year
Directors’ share interests

The directors of the company at 31 March 2013 and ther benefiaa! interests in the shares of the comparty were as follows:
i) Beneficial holdings and outstanding defered shares

At1 ApHl 2012 number of At 31 March 2013 number of 4122 May 2013 nurrber of

ordinary 97 Yhsp shares each ordinary 57 hsp shares each omiinary 97 "Agp shares eoch

Beneficol Non-benefical® Benehiool Non-beneficl! Benefioal Non-benefical!
Gmwmanapd@ernon—exewhvedlrectors L e
DrBemardBukn TS - 5% T hs4 -
RchardDavey 58 - 58 - 8 .
Andrew Buff (charman) 3500 - 300 - 3500 -
Matinlomb JL3me o - 302 - 3m2 -
BamnessNodkes  © 4018 - 4ol - ..o -
GodonFryett 1064 - L lwe” T - 19 -
Bxeatvedrectors
ToyBallonce 77 4218 13564 91; nM3Y 912 1317
Moinkane?. " T " TUiy162 15678 16225 13759 16674 13759
MchoelMckeon ~~ ~ B168 32574 20302 25601 20302 25601
Andysmith "7 "7 "7 " 9514 19333 16051 15364 16051 "15364
ToyWray 13429 35453 26619 29733 27,542 29,733

1 Norrbenefiaal holdings o yet to be released condibanally held under the Annual Banus Schemna, to which drectors becorne uncondibonally entitied on the thid anvwersary of grart.
2 Martin Xane ocquined 449 shares on 1 May 2013, with a miarket pce of 1,823p per share, following the exercise of hs 2010 three year Sharesave scheme opbon.
3 Tony Wy ooquired 1,123 shores on 1 May 2013, with a market pnce of 1,823p per share, foliowang the exencse of hes 2010 three year Sharesove scheme opbion,
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i) Long Term Incentive Plan

The exeautive directors have further interests i the company’s ardinary shares of 97 7/, p each by witue of having received
contingent awards of shares under the LTIP The LTIP operates on a three year rolling basis. Awards do not vest untl they have been
held in trust for three years and speafic performance anteria have been satisfied. The Severn Trent Employee Share Ownership Trust
15 operated in conpunction with the LTIP, Executive directors have a technical interest m 395,749 shares held by the Sevem Trent
Employee Share Ownership Trust. The individual interests, for the executive directors, which represent the maximum aggregate
number of shares to which each mdividual could become entitled, ore os follows:

" Maximum

outstanding awonds

Awordsgonted  Maxornurn award Awards vested Awards lapsed  as at 31 March 2013

Tony Ballapmcg“ ___________ L “7Juty2009 7405 2103 _ 5302 N -
i .._.7une20l0 6803 - _ - 6803
e e .. T2ume2011 6525 - - 655
o 19June2012 _s761 - - ~ 54
MartnKane T 7 hily2009 8154 2318 5,839 ] -
e e 2 ne2010 8304 - T . . 8504
T 22June2011 i - - 1
o o 19jume2012 79 - - 7119
MchoelMcKeon 7 ly2009 18733 530 13413 ] -
. cnnnn, 2lJunezoi0 0 17202 - - 1721
o o 22_Iune2011_ _ 14411 o - - __14,411
e o lodume2012 lae84 - - 1288
AndySmth T 7y2000 11,009 3129 7890 -
o T 21 June 2010 10126 - 7 - 101
. . 2pjane2o11 BT - - .. B7
- - ) 19June2012 7460 - - 7460
Tory Wray 7 Ihyao0s 27,769 7886 19883 -
o . 2Nlne20q¢ 25512 - - 5813
L o e . 2dneorn 0 23272 0 - - 1Ban
19 June 2012 21,875 - - 21875

Muarket price on the date of the 2012 awaord was £17 49 (19 June 2012)

The LTIP awards made in 2003 and 2010 were subject to TSR performance, measured relative to those comparses ranked 51-150
n the FTSE by market capitalisabon (exciuding mvestment trusts) At median performance, 25% of owards vest and 100% vest for
performance at or above the upper quartie In addition, for owards to vest, the Committee must be satrsfied that the company’s
TSR 15 reflectve of the comipany’s underlying performance. The 2009 award ended its TSR performance period on 31 March 2012
and vested at 28.4%. The market pnce on the date of vesting (1 June 2012) of the 2009 oward was £17 60. The 2010 award ended
its TSR performance period on 31 March 2013 and will vest at 57.5%

The performance conditions for the LTIP awards made in 2011 and 2012 are based on Return on Reguistory Capital Value (RoRCV).
A sliding scate of targets is used, inked to outperformance of the Ofwat Fincl Determenation shown graphically below:

Graph rermeoved
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This vesting schedule 15 set 50 as to ensure that executives are oppropriately rewarded for performance in excess of the Finol
Detenmination, with no payouts for performance below this, However, it s also important that executives are not over ncentivised
to achieve excessive levels of RoRCY, which could in theory mncenttivise iInappropriate behaviours such as operational performance
which does not deliver customer value or inadequate mvestrnent in our capital base. The Committee believes the above scale
encourages delvery of strong performance against the Final Deterrination, but without compromising the company’s wider values.
Perfomance is measured over three finanoal years. If the vesting result s 0% or greater than 50% then the Commyttee reserves
the discretionary power to change this resutt If it is greater than 50% it may reduce the vesting to a number not less than 50% as it
considers appropriate, and if it is 0% it may increase 1t to any figure not greater than 50% The use of this discretion 1s expected to be
exceptional, but may be invoked by the Committee in order to take into account of any of the following foctors {not an exhaustive Lst)
« actual RPI compared to the Ofwat assurned RPI figure - even though the RoRCV 15 adjusted each year for RPE a sigrsficant swing
in inflation dunng the year can result n substantial under or over performance on the RORCV target. RPE in itself is not a factor that
management can influence;
- changes to the financing of the company as approved by the board dunng the performance pencd - for example a significant
change to the level of gearing of the balance sheet would result in partially meeting this performance condibon, and
- policy changes that ocour dunng the performance period - there 1s much discussion on the future shape of the water industry
in the UK and f enacted we would wish to ensure that any changes have a neutral impact on existing awards.
Partigpants are entitled to additional shares inlieu of dmdends paid on vested shares over the performance penod.
i) Annuat Bonus Scheme

The shores in respect to 2012/2013 performance year are due to be granted in June 2013 The table below shows cutstanding
unreleased share owards from previous years.

“ o e e dv

hAnrnllnlb;nus ’ Defeneds.’nure

Dateofgrant deferredintoshares  Numberofshores  aword relegse date

Tony Ballance ) ) o _ . 7luy2009  f62294 5669 9 July 2012
- R 281une2010 £S48 4139 27June2013
S 30June2011 £51,823 3736 29June2014
T o 28June2012 £55634 73442 271une2015
MatnKame T C 7laty2009 "ésé:r}”"gs"::’ 6243 9July2012
e e T T T T JRlune2010 643100 517327 June2013
T e T T T 30June20m1 | £59319 T 4062 29June20i4
e 28lune2012 T £69887 T 4324 27June201s
MchaelMcKeon " " 74uy2008  £157590 14343 9uuy2012
YA 28June2010 _ £128724 (10355 27.une2013
T S0ure2on T RI092 776 29 4une2014
T i T8 uure012 T €119008 7370 27 une2015
AdySmth 7hy2009 T £92700 8437 9July2012
______ T T T 8une2010 | E75810 6098  27.June2013
- 30 June 2011 £66,555 4,798 29June2014
- T 28wne2012 £72210 4468 27 June 2015

TooyWoy _ 7 July 2009 £166,680 15187 9 July 2012
o - T N 28 June 2010 "§138996 11182 27 une2013
i 30June2011  £126000 9084  29.June2014
728 June 2012 £152,988 9467 27 une2015

The 2009 gwards were releosed on 9 fuly 2012 ot £16.84 per share.
The market pace on the dote of gront of the 2012 owerd was E1645 (28 June 2012)




Governance Remuneration Cornmittee

i) Share Matching Plan

Under the Shore Matching Plan executives can receive, subject to performance, matchung shores for each share deferred under the
annual bonus plan The current policy s for one matching share to be awarded for every two deferred shares. The table below
shows outstanding unreleased matching shares

N\axlr-r{um
outstanding
awards as ot

Doteofoword  Maximum award Awords vesting Awards lapsing 31 March 2013

TonyBallance _21May2010 o 2,069 - N - 2,069
e e o 0May 2011 .. 1868 T e e T 1,368
o o 25 McyZQ}g ______ 1,721 - . - 1,721
Mart;anaqe o ) 21Mﬂy20}0_ . _M2,586 . T o - 2,586
o " 2"0Muy2_011 . 2,131 - - 2.}31_
o o 25May 2012 o262 0 - - 28
Mlc"i'loel“MncKegn . L 21M_0_y2_010_ - T ... 5177
______ L _ 20May2011 3,938 T - 3,938
o, . 25May2012 3685 .t . ... 3,685
Andysmith . 21Mgy2010 0 3040 - - 3,049
. .. 0Moy2on 238 - - . 2399
o o _25May 2012 o234 - - 2,23‘{
Tony Wray s Moy 2010 5591 - o - _ 5591
_ e .. OMgy2011 __4,5"42 . - - 4,542
25May 2012 4733 - - 4733

The performance condition for the 2010 SMP awards Is the same s that applying to the LTIP awards granted m 2010, albeit with
the performance penod being three years from the date of grant.

Shown graphicatly, the vesting schedule and performance and vesting penods opply to the 2010, 2011 and 2012 SMP awords is:

Graph removed Graph removed

[n addrtion, for any awards to vest, the Committee must be satisfied that the vesting level s pustified when taking into account

the underlying financio! perforrmance of the company over the full three year performance period and that there has been no
compromise to the commeraal practices or optional standards of the group over this penod

The TSR performonce up to 31 March 2013 for the outstanding 2010, 2011 and 2012 SMP awards indicates that 67.1%, 73 8% and
0% of the maximurm award will vest for each award respectively, reflecting generally strong performance compared to the other

companies in the TSR comparator group
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Govermnance Remunergtion Committes

v) Sharesave options over ordinary shares

Exercsed  Concelled  Gronted

Atthestartof  dumngthe dummgthe dunngthe Attheendof Date from
theyeor (No  year No.of year(No.of year(No.of theyeariNo. Yeorofgmmt Exemasepmce  which
of shares} shares) shares) shares}  of sheres) of option (p} exersable  Exprydote
Sharesave! i . o L
Tony Ballance?_ 556 (556} _ - - - 2009 862 May2012 Oct2012
o s61 - - - 561 2010 808 May2013 Oct2013
_______ - - - 7% 75 2013 1261 May2016 Oct2016
Martmn Kane® 222 2y - - -7 2009 862 May2012 Oct2012
o &9 - - - 49 2010 808 May2013 Oct2013
o ) 316 - - - 316 2011 1137 May2014 Oct 2014
) - - - 152 152 2012 1177 Moy2015 Oct2015
o - - - 290 2% 2013 1,241 May2016 Oct2016
Michael McKeon 1943 - - - 193 2009 862 May20l4 Oct2014
Andy Smith__ 1123 - - - 1123 2010 808 May2013 Oct2013
o - = - 75 725 2013 1241 May2016 Oct2016
TonyWray L1230 - - - 1123 2010 808 May2013 Oct2013
- - -7 15 725 2013 1,241 May2016 Oct 2016

1 The executive directors, n cormmon with all eligible UK ermployees of the group, are entstied to partcpate in the company’s HMRC approved Sharesave Scherme.
2 Tony 8allance ocquared 556 shares on 8 Nevernber 2012, with a mrket pnce of 1,517p per share, followsng the exenase of hes 2009 three yeor Sharesove scherne options,
generating 0 £3,541 gain

3 Martin Kane acguwed 222 shores on 1 May 2012, with o market pnoe of 1,683p per share, following the exerase of his 2009 three year Sharesove scheme opions, generating
o £1,822 gan,

The terms and condibions applicable to these options are those provided in that scheme The opbiorss have no performance
condrtons as such condrtions are not permitted by legislation. No executive share options in respect of executive directors were
granted or lapsed dunng the year. At the close of business on 31 March 2013 the mud-market pce of the cormpany’s shares was
£17 12 and the range dunng the year was £1497 to £18 36

Five year total shareholder return chart

Ths graph llustrates the value, by 31 March 2013, of £100
invested in Severn Trent Pic on 31 March 2008 compared
with the value of £100 invested in the FTSE 100 Index.
The intermediate points show the value at nterverung
finanoal year ends.

Graph remaoved

Statement of shareholding voting at AGM
Atlost year's AGM, the resc?lutiqn approving the Directors’ remuneration repart recerved the following votes from shareholders:

Tctdnwnt;e.:r—c}vats 9% of votes arst
PO e e e o e e et 13101023 9696%
Aganst ] e 4231635 304%
Total votes cost e .. 139332658 SBA4T®
Abstentions i o o ’ T T 2383537 N/A

1 Aso percentoge of share coprtnl
Note: The table above does not form part of the cuditable section of the Directors’ remuneration report.

Richard Dovey
Chairmnan of the Remuneration Commiitee




Directors’ report

The directors present their report, together with the audited
finanaal statements of the group, for the year ended
31 Morch 2013

Principol activity

The pnnaipa actmty of the group is to treat and provide woter
and remove waste waterin the UK and nternationally,

Details of the prncipal joint ventures, associated and subsidiary
undertakings of the group at 31 March 2013 are shown n
notes 19, 20 and 42 to the finonaal staterments on pages 101
ond 127,

Business review

The Chairman's statement, the Chief Executve’s review,

the report and performance reviews for the group’s mamn
businesses and the Financial review on poges 35 10 38 provide
detailed mformation relating to the group, its business rmodels
and strategy, the operation of tts businesses and the results and
finanaal position for the year ended 31 March 2013,

Detalls of the principol nsks and uncertanties fuang the group
are set out in the nsk management section on pages 39to 42.

All of the above are incorparated by reference in (ond are
deermned to form part of) this report.

Directors and theirinterests
Brographies of the directors curently senang on the board
are set out on pages 44 and 45

All of the drrectors will be offenng themselves for reappointment
at the Annual General Meeting (AGM), as set out in the
Governance report on pages 48to 51

Detais of directors’ service agreemenis ore set out mthe
Drrectors’ remuneration report on page 62. The interests of
the directors in the shares of the company are shown on
pages 66 to 70 of that report,

Insurance and indemnities

The company mointains Directors’ and Officers’ Labilty
Insurance in respect of legal action that might be brought
agamnst its directors and officers. In occordance with the
company’s arbdes of assoaation, and to the extent permitted
by law, in November 2011 the company indemindied each of its
directors and cther officers of the group against certain labiies
that may be incurred as a resutt of their positions with the group
Severn Trent does not hove in ploce any indeminities for the
benefit of the auditors.

Employees
The average number of empioyees within the group s shown in
note 9 to the finanaal staternents on page 94

Sevem Trent believes that a diverse and indusive culture 1s a key
foctor n being a successful business. Apart from ensuring an
mdnaciiol hoas the ability to do the job we do not dscriminate m
any way and make every effort to ensure that those with
dsobilities ore able to be emplayed by us. We endeavour to
retan employees in the workforce if they becorme disabled,

we make all rensonable odjustments to ther role and,

if necessary, took for redeployrment opportunities to support
them in seelang an altematrve role within Sevemn Trent.

We ensure that training, career development and promotion
opportuniies are available for all our employees inespective

of their gender, race, oge or disability
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The group actrvely encourages employee involverment and
consuttation and places ernphasts on keeping its employees
inforrned of 1ts actvity and finoncial performance by way of
brefings and publication to staff of oll relevant information and
corporote announcements. To help develop employees’ interest
in the company’s performance, Severn Trent offers two
employee share plans. The Severn Trent Sharesave Scheme,

an HM Revenue and Custorns approved SAYE plan, is offered

ta UK employees on an annudl basis, The Sevem Trent Share
Incentive Plan, approved by HM Reveniue and Customs,

rmakes an annual award of shares to Severn Trent Plc and
Severn Trent Water Limited employees, based on performance
oganst the KPIs.

Research and development

Expenditure on reseorch and developrment is set out in notes 7
and 17 to the Finanad staterments on poges 93 and 99
respectvely.

Treasury management

The disclosures required undet the EU Fair Volue Directive in
relation to the use of financial nstruments by the comparty are
set out in note 32 to the Finanaigl statements on pages 108 to
118 Further details on our treasury pdlicy and manogement
are set out in the Finanaal revew on page 37

Post balance sheet events

Detalls of post balance sheet events ane set out in note 40 to
the group financial statements on page 126.

Dividends

Anintenm dividend of 30 34 pence per ordinary share was paxd
on 11 Jonuary 2013 The directors recommend a final dvidend
of 45.51 pence per ordinary share bo be paid on 26 July 2013 to
shareholders on the register on 21 June 2013 This would bring
the total dmdend for 2012/13 to 75.85 pence per ordinary
share (2012: 70.10 pence). The payment of the final dvidend s
subject to shareholder approval ot the AGM,

On 27 July 2012 q special dindend of 63.0 pence per ordinary
share was paid to shareholders.

Capital structure

Details of the company’s issued share capital and of the
movernents dunng the year are shown in note 29 to the
finanaal statements on page 109, The compariy has one class
of ordmary shares which cames no nght to fixed income

Each share carries the nght to one vote at general meetings of
the company. The ssued nominal vatue of the ordinary shares
15 100% of the total sstied nomnal vatue of all share capital

There are no specific restnctions on the sze of a holding nor on
the tronsfer of shares, which are both govermed by the general
provisions of the aricles of assocotion and prevailing legisiation.
The directors are not oware of any agreements between
holders of the company’s shares that may resutt in restrictions
on the transfer of secunties or on voting nghts.
Detoils of employee share schernes are set out in note 33 to the
financial statements on pages 119 to 122. For shares held by
the Severn Trent Employee Share Ownership Trust, the trustee
abstains from voting.

No person has any speciol nghts of control over the cornpary's
share caprtal and all issued shares are fully poid.
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Governance Directors’ report

With regard to the appointment and replacement of directors,
the company 1s governed by is artides of assoaation, the
Governance Code, the Comipanies Act 2006 end related
legislation. The artides may be amended by special resolution
of the shareholders. The powers of directors are desaribed in the
Severn Trent Ple Board Governance docurment, the arbides and
the Governance report on pages 48 tn 51,

Under its arbdes of assocaation, the directors have authonty to
allot ordinary shares, subject to the oggregate nominal armount
lirnrt set at the 2012 AGM.

There are o number of ogreements that take effect after, or
terminate upon, a change of control of the company, such as
commercicl contracts, bank loan agreements, property lease
armangements and employee share plans None of these 1s
considered to be significant in terms of therr lkely impact on
the business of the group as a whole. There are no ogreements
between the company and its directors or employees that
provide for compensation for loss of office or employment that
occurs because of a takeover bid.

Substantial shareholdings
As at 31 March 2013 the company had been nobfied in

accordance with chapter 5 of the Disclosure and Transparency
Rules of the following major shareholdings

of

No. of ordinary  votingnghts and

shares of 9717;sp 1ssued share

Name of bolder each copital

Blackrock Inc - 23457458 887%

Newton Investment

Manggementltd (12087473 509%

Legal & General Group Plc 9,627,643 404%
Percentoges rounded to two dearnal plaoss,

As at 29 May 2013, the company had been notified of the
following holdings of voting rights in the omrdinary share capital
of the company: Blackrock Inc 23,457,458 {9.87%), Newton
Investment Manogement Ltd 12,087,473 (5 09%) and iLegal &
General Group Pic 9,627,643 (4 04%).

Authority to purchase shares

The company was given authonty at its AGMin 2012 to moke
rmarket purchases of ordinary shares up te a maximum number
of 23,819,555 shares. Similar authority will again be sought from
shareholders at this year's AGM. No market purchgses were
made by the company during the year ended 31 March 2013.

Supplier payment potlicy

Individual operating companies within the group are
responsible for estohlishing appropnate palicies with regard

to the paymentt of their suppliers. The companies ogree

terms and conditions under which business transactions

with suppliers are conducted. It s group poliy that pronded

a supplier 1s complying with the relevant terms and condrtions,
including the prompt and complete submssion of all specified
documentation, payment will be maode in occordonce with
agreed termns, It 1s also group policy to ensure that suppliers
know the terms on which payment will take place when
business is agreed. Details of suppler payrment polices can be
obtained on request to the company. Trade areditors for the
group at the yeor end are estimated os representing 17.9 days’
purchases (2012 21.2 days’ purchases)

Contributions for political and charitable purposes
Ponations to chartable ongonisations durng the year
amounted to £97,707 (2012 £107,325) Donabens are gven to
charres whose projects abgn dosely with our oim to promote
the responsible use of water resources and waste water services
which provde the opportunity for longer tenm partnerships,

In additon we prowide donations to employee nominated
chartties through a matched funding scheme and hedlth and
safety reward schernes. We are also committed to supporting
WaterAud, the UK's only mayor chanty dedicated to rmproving
access to safe water, hygtene and santtotion m the world'’s
poorest countnes.

Severn Trent's pobicy 1s not to make any donations for polical
purposes n the UK, or to donate to EU polibcal parbies or ncur
EU politicd expenditure. Accordingly neither Sevem Trent Plc nor
its subsidiaries made any poltical donations or incurred political
expenditure in the financal year under review

Under the provisiors of the Poliical Porties Elections and
Referendums Act 2000 {the relevant provisions of which are
now contained in Part 14 of the Comparnies Act 2006},
shareholder authonty is required for political donations to be
made or political expendrture to be incurred by the company
or any of its subsidiaries in the EU and disdosure of any such
payment must be made in the annual report. The legislation
grves a wide defintion of whiat constitutes polibeal donations
and pdlitical expenditure including sponsorship, subscriptions,
payrment of expenses, paid leave for employees fulfiling public
dubes and support for bodies representing the business
community In policy review or reform. The company has
therefore obtained kmited outhonty from sharehdlders asa
precautionary measure to allow the company to conbinue
supporting the community and such organisations without
madvertently breaching the legislation.

At the 2012 AGM, shareholders gave the company authonties
to make politrcat donations ar to incur politicol expenditure in
the EU {which would not ordinarily be regarded as poltical
danations) up to an oggregote annuol bmit of £50,000 for the
companyangd fts subsidianes. Pursuant to those authorities,
dunng the year ended 31 March 2013 the group incurred costs
of £nil 2012+ £nil). Those authorities will expire at the 2013 AGM
and, in tne with market practice to renew the guthorities on an
annual basis, the board hos dedded to put forward a resolution
to this year's AGM to renew the authoribes to make donations
to political orgarnsations and to incur poitical expenditure up to
a maarmurm of £50,000 per annurm. As perrmutted under the
Cormpares Act 2006, this resolution also covers any polibeal
donations made or political expenditure mcurred, by any
subsidianes of the company.




Anplysis~ of sl'}arghgldipgs_ at31 M_urch 2_01?_ o

Cotegory sm':rlth@olbge?sf % of shareholders ~ Number of shares % of shares
Indvidvd ondjortoccounts 60846 913 25034928 105
Cther* T 5790 87 713330806 89.5
Total 66,636 10000 238,365,734 100.00
:qu@mwwnammmmmmmmmmmmm

Size of holding m %of shareholders  Number of shares % of shares
1-453 e e e w1 41,987 7201 9380610 393
500899 _ .. T 11,980 .. 1798 8346739 3.30
10004999 " ""sggh 853 9,771,710 410
5000-9999 - Tz T 048 T 2146409 090
1000049999 ) 30 7 048 7647097 30
50,000-99,999 T 95 7 01 6791617 285
100,000+ 253 038 194281752 8151
Total 66636 10000 238365734 10000
Internal controls The group’s procedures for exerasing control and managing nsk

The board 1s vesponsible for the group’s system of intemal
control and for reviewing its effectiveness. The board reviews
the effectiveness of the system of internal control, indiuding
financial, operabonal, complance and risk management,

at least annually in accordance with the requirernents of the
Governance Code, The internal control system can provide
only reasonable and not absaolute assurance against material
misstaternent or loss, as it is designed to manage rather than
elrminate the nsk of faiture to achieve business objectives

The Audit Committee reviews the group’s risk monagement
process and the effectiveness of the systern of nternd control
on behalf of the board and keeps under review ways in which
to enhance the control and ossurance omangements.

The Audit Committee receives reports every six months

from the Chief Executive detalling the significartt asks and
uncertainties foced by the group, an assessment of the
effectveness of controls over each of those risks and an action
plan to mprove controls where this has been assessed os
necessary Dunng the course of its review of the system of
intemal control in 2012713, the Audit Committee has not
identified nor been advised of any failings or weaknesses
which it has determined to be signuficant.

The Irtemnal Audit department provides objective assurance
and adwvice on nsk management and control The external
auditors also report on sigrificant finanaadl control iIssues to
the Audit Cornmittee

An ndependent reporter (Athins) provides objective assurance
in relartion to the Sevem Trent Water Limited Annuol Regulatory
Compliance Staternent and Annual Regulotory Performance
Report.

The board confirms that pmcedures providing an ongoing
process for identifying, evaluagting and managing the prinapal
risks and uncertainties faced by the group have been in place
for the year to 31 March 2013 and up to the dete of approval
of the annual report, which 1s in accordance with the revised
gudance on mtemal control published in October 2005

(the Tumbull Guidance).

in relation to financial reporting and preparation of consolidated
aocounts ndude:

+ the formutabon and communication of group accounting
policies which are reqularly updated for developments in
IFRS and other reporting requirements,

» spedfication of a set of finanaal controls that all of the
group’s operating businesses are required ta implement
as O MInImung

+ deployment of a group wide consolidation systern with
contrals to restrict access and maintan integnty of dotg;

+ recrutment, training and development of appropriately
qualfied and expenenced financial reporting personnel;

- oversight by the Disdosure (cmmittee of the group's
compliance with its disdosure obligabions; and

- maonthly revews by the board of finandial reports from the
group’s operating businesses,

Relevant audit information

The directors confirm that:

= so far as each of them is aware, there 15 no relevant audit
mnformation of which the company’s quditors are unoware; and

+ each of them has taken all the steps that he/she ought to
have taken as a director to make himselffherself aware of
any relevant audit Information and to establish that the
company’s audrtors are aware of that wformation.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted m
accordance with the provisions of section 418 of the
Companies Act 2006

External auditors

The Audit Committee has recommended to the board the
reappomtment of Deloitte LLPand a resolubion to that effect will
be on the agenda at the AGM. Deloitte LLP have indscated their
willngnass to continue as auditors. The Audit Committee will
also be responsible for determining the audit fee on behalf of
the board.
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Accounts of Sevemn Trent Water Limited

Regulatory accounts for Severn Trent Water Limtted are
prepared and sent to Ofwat. A copy of these accounts wall

be avaitable on the website of Severn Trent Water Limited
{www stwater co UK) or on request to the Company Secretary
There is no charge for this publication,

Going concern

The group’s business activibies, together with the factors bikety to
affect its future development, performance and position are set
out i the Chef Executve’s review on pages 7 to 10 and the
business reviews of Sevemn Trent Water ond Severn Trent
Services on poges 11 to 32 The finanaal poston of the group,
its cash flows, bguadity posttion and borrowang facilities are
descnbed in the Financial review on pages 35 to 38 The group’s
objectives, policies and processes for managing sts capital and
its financial r1sk mancgement objectives are descnbed in the
financia! review on pages 35 to 38 and in the Rsk manogement
report on pages 39 to 42 Details of the group’s financial
nstruments, hedging actviies ond exposure to credit nsk

and liquidity nsk are descnbed in note 32 to the group

finanaal statements

The group’s pnnaipa! operating subsidiary, Severn Trent Water,
15 a regulated long term business charactersed by mult year
investrnent programmes. The group's strategic funding
ohjectives reflect this. The group therefore seeks to ottan a
balance of long term funding or commutment of funds agoss
arange of funding at the best possible economic cost.

Average debt matunty s 16 yeors and the effective average
Interest cost dunng the year was 5 9%. The group s in a strong
lquidity position and had £403.6 mithon in cash and liquid
reserves and £500 0 million of undrown committed bank
fadilties at 31 March 2013, which gre expected to be sufficent
to fund its investment and cosh flow needs at least until
January 2015 in the normal course of business.

Severn Trent Water operates in an industry that s cumently
subect to economic requlation rather than market competrtion
Ofwat, the economic regulator, hads a statutory obligation to set
price imits that it believes will enable the water companies to
finance ther actvities. As a consequence the directors believe
that the group 1s well placed to manage its business nsks
successfully despite the current unertan econornic outiook.

After making enquiries, the directors have a reasonable
expectation that the company and the group have
adequiate resoLrces to continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future, Accordingly, they continue to adopt
the gaing cancem basis in preparing the annuat report

ard accounts,

Annuat General Meeting

The AGM of the cornpany will be held at the Internotional
Conventtion Centre, Broad Street, Birmingham B1 2EA ot 11am
on Wednesday 17 July 2013. The notice convening the
meeting, together with detois of the business to be considered
and explanatory notes for each resolution, i distributed
separately to shareholders. It s also availoble an the company’s
website (www severntrent.com).

By order of the board

Bronagh Kennedy \

General Counsel and Company Secretary
29 May 2013




The directors are responsible for prepanng the annual report,
Directors’ remwuneration report and the finanodl statements in
accordance with applicable low and regulotions.

Company law requares the directors to prepare finonaal
staternents for each finanaal year. Under that law the drectors
are required to prepare group fingnoal statemerts in
accerdonce with Intemational Finandad Reporting Stondards
{IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and Article 4 of the
IAS Requlation and have chosen to prepare the parent
compary fimancat statements in accordonce with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United
Kngdomn Accounting Stondards ond applicable [aw) Under
company law the directors must not approve the accounts
unless they are satisfied that they give a true and farr view of
the stote of offairs of the cormpany and of the profit or loss of
the company for that penod.

In preparing the parent company finonaal statements,
the directors ana required to

+ select surtable accounting poliaes and then apply them
consistently;

* make Judgements and accounting estimates that are
reasonable and prudent;

+ state whether applicoble UK Accountng Standards have been
followed subject to any material departures disdosed ond
explained inthe financial staterments, and

« prepare the financial statermnents on the going concem basis
unless it 15 inappropriate to presume that the company will
continue in business.

In preparing these finanaal statements, Intermational
Accounting Standard 1 requires that the directors:

+ propery select and opply accounting policies;

* present iformation, induding occountng policies, na
manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable irformation,

» provde additional disciosures when compliance with the
speafic requirements in IFRSs are insufficent to enable users
to understand the impact of particular transactions, other
events and conditions on the entity’s financal position and
finanoal perforrance; and

= make an assessment of the comparny’s ability to continue as
a.going concem

Directors’ responsibility statement
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The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that gre suffiaent to show and explain the compary’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable occuracy at any time
the finanaal postion of the company and enable them to
ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006.

They are olso responsible for sofeguarding the assets of the
company and hence for talang recsonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other rreguianties.

The directors are responsible for the mamtenance and integrity
of the corporate and finanaal nformation induded on the
company’s website. Legrsiation in the United Kingdom
goveiming the preparation and dssemmnation of financial
staternents may differ from legslabon in ather jurisdictions.

We confirm that te the best of our knowledger

« the financidl statements, prepared in cccordance with the
relevant finanaal reporting fromework, give a true and farr
view of the assets, habilites, financial posttion and profit or
loss of the company and the undertakings incduded in the
consolidation token as a whole; and

+ the management report, which s incorporated into the
Directors’ report, indludes a far review of the develcpment
and performance of the busness and the positon of the
company and the undertokings included o the consolidation
token as a whole, together with a descriphion of the prindipal

nsks qnd uncertainties that they
ﬂi& CK&A -

Andrew Duff Michael McKeon
Chauman Finance Director
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Severn Irgnt Plc

L

- 1

* . We have audrted the group finanaal staternents of Severn Trent

. Pic forthe year ended 31 March 2013 which compnse the

v

consohdated Income statemnent, the consolidated statement of
! cornprehenswe mncome, the consoldated staterment of changes

. 1n equity, the consolidated balance sheet, the consohdated cash
.. flow staterment, ond the retated notes 1to 42 The fimanacl

reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation
1s applicable low and Intemational Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adepted by the European Union
Thus report is made solely to the company’s members, as a
~body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we
might state to the company's members those matters we are
required to state to them in an audttor’s repart and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent perrritted by law, we do not
accept qr assume responsibility to anyone othier than the
company und the cormpary’s mernbers as a body, for our audit
wiotk, for this report, or for the opinons we hove formed.

Respective responsibilties of directors and ouditor
As explained more fully in the Directors’ responsibility

" staternent, the directors are responsible for the preparation of

the group financial staternents and for being satisfied thet they
give a true and fair view, Qur responsibiity is to qudit and
express an opinion on the group finanaal statements 0
accordance wath applicable law and Intemational Standards on
-Auditing (UK and Irefand). Those standards require us to
comply with the Audring Practices Boond’s Ethical Stondards for
Auditors.

Scopeofﬂaeuudrtofﬂ\efmnmlstotements

‘An oudit nvolves obtairing evidence about the amounts and
dhsdosures in the finandal staterments sufficent to give
reasonable assurance that the financal statements are free
from material misstatement, whether caused by froud or error
This indudes an assessment of whether the accounting policies
are appropriate to the group’s cincumnstances and have been
consistently applied ond adequately disclosed; the
reasonableness of sinificant occounting estmates made by
the directors, and the overall presentation of the finandal
staternents In addition, we read oll the fmanoal and non-
fmancial information in the annual report to dentify matenol
meonsistenaes with the oudited financiat statements  If we
become oware of any apparent matenal misstetements or
nconsstencies we consider the implications for our report.
Opinion on finandal stotements
Inour opiron the group finonoal staternents
* gve atrue and far view of the state of the group's affars as
at 31 March 2013 and of its profit for the year then ended,
« have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as
odopted by the European Union, and
+ have been prepared In accordance with the requirements of
the Companiies Act 2006 and Articte 4 of the LAS Regulation.

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion the information gven in the Directors’ report for
the financial year for which the group financid! statements are
prepared Is consistent with the group finanaal statements.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following.

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you

if, In our opinion.

« certam dsdosures of directors' rermuneration specified by law
are not made; or

» we have not recenved all the nformation and explanations we
require for our gudit

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

« the directors’ staterment, contaned within the Directors’
report, in relation to going concem,

+ the part of the Chairman's letter relating to the company’s
cormpliance with the nine provisions of UK Corporate
Governance Code speafied for our review; and

« certgin elements of the report to shareholders by the Board
on directors’ remuneration

Other matters

We have reported separately on the parent company financiot

statements of Severn Trent Plc for the year ended 31 March

2013 and on the nforrmation in the Remunerabion Commuttee

report that 1s described as having been audited.

Ca .«

Carl D Hughes (Senior ory ouditor)
for and on behalf of Deloiite LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audrtor

London, UK
29 May 2013
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Consollduted income statement
For the year ended 31 March 2013

2013 2012

Notes £m £m

Turnover 56 18316 17706
Operdtng costsbefore excepbonalfterns___ 7 a6 0264
Excephonal operating costs 8 “3)  Gas)
Totoloperatingeosts e i1 (13379 (1,3008)
Exceptionol loss on disposal of businesses 8 1.5} -
Profit before rterest, tax and exceptonalitems e B 4980 5042
Excepbonul iterns before interest and tox 8 (5.8) (34.4)
Profit before nterest and tox 4922 4698
Finance income o o 1o %08 1077
Fnonce costsexduding exceptionalcosts T T _11 p2n  (3367)
Exceptional finance costs 11 - (165)
Netfnoncecosts __ _ _ _ __ ____ __ = T 1)
lossesonfinandalnstruments  ~ " T T T 13 @483) (677)
Share of results of assocates and joint ventures - 02 01
Profit before tox losses on finanadl instruments and exceptionoltems .2663 2733
Exceptiond iterns before tax T o 8 {58 (509
Losses onfinancdlinstruments ] 12 {453) {67 7)
Proft onondinary actvties beforetaxaon o 2152 1567
Taxatien on profit on ordinary actvihies
Current taxexdudingexceptionaleredt .13 (279)  (605)
Deferred tax excluding exceptiond chorgef{credt) 13 AT 91
Exceptiond tax credit o 13 384 691
Total taxation 13 152 177
Profit for the year 2304 1744
Adiowobleter .
Ownersofthecompony "7~ " T 975 1718
Non-controlling interests - 26

2304 1744
Earmings per share (pence) e et e e e
Bosc_ . S LB BT 725
Diluted T T TS 952 721
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Consolidated stutement of comprehenswe income
For the year ended 31 March 2013
2013 2012
Em fm

Profit for the year

Losses on cash flow hedges takentoequty ~ "~ T T T T
Deferred tax on fosses o cash flow hedges taken to equity T
Anmntsoqg_qs*h[loyghedgesupﬂsfgggdmme|ngomestutemeﬁt":_ T

Deferred tax on transfers to ncome statement e

Actuanui losses on defined benefit pensmn schemes
Tmcp_qomcmgnallosses o L

Deferred tax moverment arising from rate change

_ 2304 -
. B8O

9.0

C 148
B4

5.4

(542)

125

(34)

_____

17

Other comprehensive loss for the year

(58.3)

(1467)

Totol comprehensive income for the year

1721

277

Atm'butuble tor

Owners of the compony
Non—conimlllng interests

1721

277
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Consollduted statement of chunges in equity

For the year ended 31 March 2013

Eqquty Gttrbutable to owners of the company Non-

Shore Share Other Retained controlling Totdl
aapital premium resenves amings Totol nterests equity
fm £m fm fm fm £m £m

At 1 April 2011 2322 800 4645 3231 10998 63 1,1061
Profit fortheperiod . - ~ 1718 1718 26 1744

lossesoncashflowhedges - - @65 - (865 - (865
I_J_eft_er_rgclt_oxonlossgg_op_cashﬂwhedges - - 208 - 28 - 208

Amounts on cash flow hedges transferred
to the income statement . - - 3?7 - 37 - 37

Deferred tax on transfers to the

mcorme staterment - - {0.9) - o9 - 09
Exchange mavement on translation of

overseas results and net assets - - as - {14 - (14

Actuanal losses e -7 Qen s - (107)
qugpggugunollosses - = _ = _ 1266 266 - 266

Defered tox arfsing fromratechange.~~ - - - 17 17 - 17
Total comprehensive income for the perod - - (643) 854 251 26 277

Share based payments

-pruceedsﬁ’omshuremswed ) 04 38 —_— ) - 42 - ) :4:‘2
-volueofemployees'seaces - T T - T a8 45 - 45
-freeshoresssued e - - - 18 (18) T 18
Current tax on share based pcuyments - - - 04 04 - 04
Defer_lea:t:éxgp_share bosedpayments_m”_i" ) - - - T 03 03 - 03

Drvidends pad - - T o7 190 (15500 a0 (1600)
At 31 March 2012 7326 838 4002 7569 9735 79 9814

Profit for the peniod - - - 2275 275 29 2304

Lossesoncumﬂowhedges L - geoy - B - 399
Deferedtaxonlossesoncashflowhedges -~ -~ %0 _ - % - 90

Amounts on cash flow hedges transferred
to the incorne statement - - 148 - 148 - 148

‘Deferred tax on transfers to the
incomestotemert = - Bey - Ba - . B4

Exchange moverment on translotion of -
oversecs results and net assets - - 4.9 - 49 05 54

W""“‘!‘Sﬁ"im“ - I T Y ) I ¥ L
Tax on actuanal losses - - - 125 125 - 125

Deferred tax ansing from rote chonge . - T T A 34) (3.4)
Total comprehensive iIncome for the period - - (13.7) 1824 168.7 34 1721

_proceeds fomsharesissued 07 e T TSN T T gg Tt LT TTeg
—volieofemployees seaces - L T T RS TggT - 768
-freeshares ssued I T T Ty a3 - 3
Current tax on share based payments " T T T "'6‘5'“_'1_98_“__2;{ o 08
Transfer of infrastructure reserve - TS plk2) 3142 . -

"Dwidends paid z - TR 60 ""16'5_)"""(3’2'2'53
At 31 March 2013 2333 897 723 4379 8332 108 8440
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Consolldated balance sheet

At 31 March 2013

2003 2012
Nota £m £m

Non-current assets

Goodwill ) e e T T 716 T Wy w9
Otherntongbleassets " "7 T T TTTT O Tz 993 1160
Property, plont and equrpmem 18 67600 _ 6,577.8
Interests i jont ventures e 03 02
Interests nassociates e T 47 46
Denvative financalinstruments ~— Cooormrrmem e 32 1301 1326

Available for sale finanadt assets 32 01 01
70362 68762

Current ossefs

T - DR » - 72
deeandoﬂ\errecewables ":”t_ _i "_ R o ‘ : 22 5060 __47?.5“
Currenttuxmcewoble L : ; __:m T o ) - "1505 ______ -
Demcrtlveﬁnanaalansmmments I 32 10 300

Cash and cosh equmalents o 23 4036 2951

9832 8389
Total assets 301S4 77151
Cument liabiibes

- . g - v eese me mre e — - e T - -
—- = — - — _—— e o bem mw o - - - o e e - —_— e -
e - [EPS— o e e - - - O U - —— = Gom s s mos = mmem e mees mam

Provisions for licbilties and d?orgés T ) o T T8 ) aro
(581.0) (550.9)

Bomowings T T T T T L3 k&3 @3
Denvotve financalnstruments ' .32 (3096)  (2880)
Tmdeandotherpayables T T Um0 T 95 (4534)  (4110)
Deferred tax S T -1 N )]
Retirement benefit obligatons T 27 (3837)  (3458)

Provisions for liabilies and charges ) 28 806 (27.0)

65944 (61828)
Total labiiies (7,1754) _(67337)
Net assets 8440 9814

By e e e s
Cdledupsharecoptal ~ ~ " T T T T T T 709 2333 2326
shorepremumoccourt e ..30 87 88
Othermeserves™ — " T T T L3173 4002

Retamed eamings T 7 T 4379 %69
Equity attributable to owners of the company w332 973.5

Nonrcontrolling interests 108 79
Total equity 8440 9814

Signed on behcdfo:j who approved the accounts on 29 May 2013

i

Chairman Fnunce D|rector

Company Number: 2366619
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Consolldated cash flow statement

For the year ended 31 March 2013
2013 2012

Note fm £m
Coshgeneratedfomoperstbors 36 _ 7Bla 759
ax paid ) (725  (720)
Net cash generated from operating actvibes 6587 653.9
Investing activities ) B o o L
Interest receved L 37 e
r_\lg_t_g:splnﬂowﬁnmsuleofbwnesses ) ) o ___"35 ) :__Wlil} H . Z
Acquesition of subsidianes o ) . T ¢ ) I
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equpment and intongble assets o 1ler 91
Purchases of intongile assets o , .. .. Gso " u20)
Purchases of property, piant and equipment T i R M e b))
Contributions and grants receved ) S 273 228
Net cosh used in investing activities {3870)  {3445)
Financing activibes ~ L o o L
Interestpad "~ ... sy Qo35
Gosed out swops T N
Interest elernent of fi ﬁhﬁcéfe?isepuwnents : ; o ) i 8.0) (13 6)
Dividends pad to shareholders of the parent T T Bno (590
Dividends paxd to non-controling interests L T . _w ) o R o 0)
Repcymentsofbormmngs o o _(2599) (}5?4_)
Repuymentsofobllgutlons mderﬂnunce legses i ) ": . : - {174 (476)
New loans rorsed . T ) 6683 2500
Issuesofshares T 66 42
Purchase of own shares T ) (13) (18)
Net cash used in finandng activibes (163 3) (329.7)
Increcse/{decrease) in cash ond cash equvglents _ ) N o 1084  (203)
Netcashond cashequivalents atbeginnng of peried 2947 3152
Effect of foreign exchange rates S T 01 (02)
Net cash and aosh equivalents at end of penod 403.2 2947
Net cash and cash equivalents compnse: i o i
Totol Gash and coshequivolents 7 T T T 36 a9
Bank overdrafts - ] o T (0.4) (04)
Net cash and cash equvalents at end of penod 403.2 204.7

The increase m cash and cash equivalents is recandled to the movement in net debt m note 36




Notes to the group financial statements

For the year ended 31 March 2013

1 General information
The Sevem Trent group has a number of operations.
These are descnbed In the segmerttal analysis in note 5.

Sevem Trent Pic is a company incorporated and dormicied nthe
United Kingdom. The address of its regsterad office s shown
on the back of the cover of the annua! report and accounts.

Sevem Trent Pleis bsted on the Londen Stock Exchange

2 Accounting policies

a) Basis of preparation

The finanaal statements have been prepared in accordance
with Intemabonal Finonaal Reporting Standards (FRS),
International Accounting Standards (IAS) and IFRIC
interpretations 1ssied and effective and endorsed by the
European Union as at 31 March 2013,

The financ! statements have been prepared on the
going concern basis (see Directors’ report on page 74)
under the histoncal cost corwention as moddfied by the
revaluation of certan financial assets and liabitities
(including denvative instruments) at far value.

The preparation of financal statements in conformity with
IFRS requires the use of estirnates and assumptions that affect
the reported armourts of assets ond liabilities at the date of the
finanaal staternents and the reported amount of revenues
and expenses for the reporting period. Atthough these
eshmates are based on manogement’s best kriowledge of
the amount, event or actons, ectudl results may ultmately
differ from those estimates.

b) Basis of consolidation

The financial statements include the results of Severn Trent Pic
and its subsidiaries, jomt ventures and assoaated undertakings.
The resuits of subsidianes, jort ventures and assooated
undertakings are induded from the date of acquistion or
incorporation and excluded from the date of disposal.

The results of subsidianes are consolidated where the group
has the power to controt o subsidiory

The results of joint venture undertokings are occounted for on
an equity basis where the company exerased joint control
under a contractual arrengement.

The results of associotes are accounted for on an equity bass
where the company holding is 20% or more or the company
has the power to exercise significant influence.

Non-controfling interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidiaries are identified separately from the group’s equity
therein Non-controlling mterests consist of the amount of those
interests at the date of the orignal busness corntination and
the non-controlling interest’s share of changes 10 equity since
that date,

All mtro-group transactions, bolances, income and expenses
are elminated on consolidation.

) Revenue recognition

Revenue represents the fair volue of consideration

receivable, excuding volue odded tax, trade discounts and
inter-cornpany sates, in the ordinary course of business for
goods and services provided.

Revenue i not recognised untl the service has been provided
to the customer or the goods towhach the sale relates have
either been despatched to the custorner or, where they are
held on the customer’s behalf, tile has passed to the customer.,

Tumever ndudes an estimate of the amount of mans
water and waste water charges unbilled ot the year end,
The accrudl s estmated usinga defined methedology
based upon a measure of unbiled water consumed by tanff,
which is coloulated from histoncot biting information

In respect of long term contracts, revenue 1s recogrised
based on the value of work comed out during the yeor
with reference to the total soles value and the stage of
completion of these contracts.

Interest incorme 1s acerued on o time basis by reference to
the pnncipal outstanding and ot the effective interest rate
applicable. Dvdend income from investments s recognised
when the group’s rights to recene payment have been
established Interest and dnvdend income are included in
finance mcome

d) Exceptional items

Exceptional tems are income or expenditure, which indmdually
or, if of a similar type, in oggregate should, in the opinion of
the drectors, be disdosed by virtue of therr size or nature

if the financal staternents are to give a true and fair view.

In this context, matendlrty 15 assessed at the segment level.
&) Taxation

Current tax payable is based on taxable profit for the year
Taxable profit differs frorn net profit as reported in the
ncome staternent because ¢ exdudes iterns of mcome and
expenses that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further exdudes items that are never taxable or deductible,
The group’s lability for aurrent tax & calaulated using tax
rates that hove been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date.

Deferred taxabon is provided In full, using the lability method,
on taxable ternporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liobilines and therr camying amounits n the finonaal
statennents A deferred tax asset 15 only recognised to the
axtent it s proboble that suffident toxoble profits will be
avallable i the future to utilise it Deferred taxation s
meastred on a non-discounted basis usng the tax rates and
lows that have been enocted or substantivety enacted by
the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the
related defered income tax asset is realised or the deferred
tox Lability 1s settled.

Deferred tax assets and labiites are offset when there s a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets agomst
cument tax labilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the group intends
to settle its current tax assets and babilties on a net basis.
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Group financial statements Notes to the group finanaal statements

2 Accounting policies (continued)

f) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the for value of purchase
consideration over the fair volue of the net assets acquired.
Goodwill ansing on acquisition of subsidiaries s Included

in ntangible assets, whilst goodwall arising on acquisttion

of assodiates is induded in irvestments in assocates

I an acquisition gives nse to negative goodwill this 1s credited
directly to the income statetnent. Far volue odustments
based on prowisional estimates are amended within one

year of the acquisition, if reguired, with a corresponding
adjustment to goodwill

Goodwill ansing on oll acquistions prior to 1 April 1998 was
written off to reserves under UK GAAP and remains efiminated
agairnst reserves Purchased goodwill ansing on acquisitions
after 31 March 1998 1s eated as anintangible fixed asset.
Goodwill is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
set out Innote 2rn) below and camed at cost less accumuleted
imparment losses. Goodwill 15 dllocated to the cosh-generating
unit that derves benefit from the goodwill for impairment
testing purposes.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and all

or part of that unit s dispesed of, the associated goodwill 1s
induded in the camymng amount of that operation when
determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation.

g} Other intangible assets

Intangible ossets acquired separately are copitalised at cost
and when acquired in a business combination are caprtalised at
fair value at the date of acquisition Following initial recognition,
the histoncal cost model s apphed to ntangible assets.

Finite life intangible assets are omorbsed on a straight line basis
over their estimated useful economic lives as follows:

Yeors
Software T '
Other assets 2-20

Amartisation charged on assets with finite [ves is taken to
the moome staternent through operating costs.

Intangible assets are reviewed for imparmment where
indicators of impairrment exst.

h) Research and development

Research expenditure is expensed when it & ncurmed.

Developrment expendrture ts capratised and written off

over its expected useful economic iife where the following

cntena are met.

= itis techrucally feasible to create and make the osset
avaiable for use or sale;

» there are adequate resources avaiable to complete the
development and to use or sell the asset;

+ there i the ntention and abibty to use or sell the asset;

* 1t 15 probable that the asset created will generate future
economic benefits; and

- the development cost can be measured reliably.

Expendrture on property, plant and equipment relabng to

research and development projects s capitalised and witten
off over the expected usefi ife of those assets,

1) Pre-contract costs

Pre-contract costs are expensed as ncurred except where it s
probable that the contract will be awarded, in which case they
are recognised as a prepayment which s written off to the
mncome statement over the ife of the contract.

The group assesses that it is probable that a contract will be
awarded when preferred brdder or equivalent status hos been
achieved and there are no significant impediments to the
oward of the contract.

J) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment & held at cost (or ot deemed
cost for nfrastructure assets on transiton to IFRS) less
occumulated deprediation. The costs of like for like replocement
of infrastructure components are recogrised in the income
staternent as they anse Where it 1s probable that the
expenditure will couse fubure economic benefits to flow to

the group, then costs are capitalised.

Where tems of property, plont and equipment are transfemred
to the group from custorners or developers, the fair value of the
asset transferred s recognised in the balance sheet. Fairvalue is
determined based on estimated deprecated replacement cost.
Where the transfer s in exchange for connection to the network
and there s no further abligation, the comespanding credit is
recognised immediately in tumover Where the transfer is
considered to be linked to the provision of engoing services

the corresponding credit 1s recorded in defermed incorme ond
released to operating costs over the expected useful bves of
the related assets.

Borrowing costs directly attnbutable to the ocquisition,
construction or production of assets, that necessanly take g
substarial period of tme to get ready for their mtended use,
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are ready for their ntended use

Property, plant and equiprment 1s deprecated to s estmated
residual value over its estimated usefit Iife, with the exception

of freehdld land which s not deprecioted. Assets inthe course
of construction are not depreaated until commissioned.

The estimated vseful ives are:

Years
Infrostructureassets . .
Impoundingresenvors 250
Rowwdteraqueducts 250
Mains . __MBQ-I 50
Sewes_ . 150200
Othergssets
Buldings T 3080
Fxedplontondequpment — __ 20-40
Vehicles and mobde plant 2-15




Group financiol statements Notes to the group financial statements

2 Accounting polices (continued)
k}Leased assets

Where the group obtains assets under leasing amangements
which transfer substantially all the nsks ond rewards of
ownership of an asset to the group as lessee (finance leoses),
the lower of the fair value of the leased asset or the presant
value of the mmimum lease payments s captalised as an asset
with a corresponding liability representing the obligatton to the
lessor Lease payments are treated as conssting of a capital
elernent and a finance charge, the caprtal element reducing the
obligation to the lessor and the finance charge heing written off
to the income statement at a constant rate over the period of
the lease mn proportion to the capitol amount outstanding
Depreciation is charged over the shorter of the estmated

useful tfe and the lease penod.

Leases where substantiolly dll the nsks and rewgrds of
ownership remain with the lessor are clossified as operating
lecses Rental costs arising under operating lecses are expensed
on a straght line basts over the term of the leose. Leases of tand
are nomally treated as operating leases, unless ownership 1
transferred to the group at the end of the lease.

() Grants and contributions

Gronts and coninbutions receved In respect of non-current
assets, induding certain charges made as a result of new
connections to the water and sewerage networks, are treated
as deferred income ond released to the income stetement
over the useful economic life of those non-current ossets.

Grants and contributions which are givenin compensation for
expenses meumed with no future related costs are recogrised in
operating costs i the income statement in the penod that they
become recenable.

m) Impaiment of non-current assets

If the recoverable armount of goodwill, an tem of property,
plant and equipment, or any other non-current asset s
estimated to be tess than its carmying amount, the camying
amount of the asset s reduced to its recoverable amount.
Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are
independent from other assets, the group estimates the
recoverabie amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. Recoverable ormount is the higher of fair vatue
less costs o sell or estimated volue in use ot the date the
mpaiment review is undertaken Foir volue less costs to sell
represents the armount obtanable from the sale of the asset
inan arm’s length transoction between knowledgeable ond
willing third parbes, less cests of disposal. Value in use
represents the present volue of fuhume cash flows expected to
be derived from a cash-generating unit, discounted using a
pre-tax discount rate thot reflects current market assessments
of the cost of capital of the cash-generating unit or asset.

The discount rate used is based on the group's cost of caprtal
adjusted for the risk profites of individusal businesses,

Goodwil 15 tested for impaiment annually Impaiment reviews
are olso camed out f there is an indication that an mporment
may have ocaurred, or, whene otherwise required, to ensure that
non-current assets are not camed above ther estimated
recoverable amounts.

Imparments are recognsed in the mcome statement.

n} Inventory

Inventory and work in progressis stated at the lower of cost
and net realsable value Cost ndudes lobour, materials,
transport and attributable overheads.

0) Service concession ggreements

Where the group has on uncondibonal nght to receive cash
from a government body m exchange for constructing or
upgrading a public sector asset, the amounts recetvable

are recognised as d finanad asset in prepayrments and
ocaued income.

Costs of corstructing or upgrading the public sector asset are
recognised on a straight line basis, before adjusting for
expected nflaton, over the life of the contract

p} Retirernent benefits

The group operctes both defined benefit and defined

contribution pension schermes

The difference between the value of defined benefit pension

scheme ossets and defined benefit pension scheme liabilibes

15 recorded on the bolance sheet as a retirernent benefit asset

or obligation,

Defined benefit pension schame assets are measured at foir

volue using bid price for assets with quoted pnces. Defined

benefit pensionscherne iabilites are measured at the balance

sheet date by anindependent actuary using the projected unit

method and discounted at the current rate of retum on high

quolty corporate bonds of equvalent term and currency to the

liobilty Service cost, which s the increase in the present value

of the habilbes of the group’s defined benefit pension schemes

expected to anse from employee service in the period, 18

nduded in operating costs The expected retumn on the

scherme’s assets and the incresse dunng the penod n the

present value of the scheme’s labilites, ansing from the

passage of time, are induded in other finance income or cost.

Actuariad gans and losses ansing from experience adjustments,

changes in actuanal assumpbions and amendments to pension

plans are charged or aredited to equity and recorded in the

statement of comprehensive Income.

Contributions to defined contribution penswon schemes

are charged to the income statement. in the period Inwhich

they foll due.

q) Provisions

Provisions are recognised where:

+ there is a present obligation as o result of a past event,

« tis probable that there will be an outflow of econormic
benefits to settle this obligation; and

- arelable estmate of this amournt con be made

Insurance provisions in the group's captive insurance subsidiary

are recognssed for claims notified and for daims incured but

which have not yet been notified, based on adwice from the

group's independent msurance advisers.

Provisions are discounted to present volue using o pre-tax

discount rate that reflects the nsks speafic to the liability where

the effect is matenal.
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2 Accounting polides (continued)
r) Purchase of own shares

Shares held by the Sevem Trent Employee Share Ownership
Trust which have not vested uncondrtionally by the balance
sheet date are deducted from shareholders' funds until such
tme as they vest.

<) Financial instruments

{0 Financiol assets
Financial assets are dassified nto the followryg categories;

+ gt fair vatue through profit or loss,

« held to maturity investrnents;

- available for sale financial assets, and
« loans and recenvables.

Financial assets at foir volue through profit or loss

Afinancial asset is classified at far vatue through profit or loss
o it s so designated or if it is classified as ‘held for trading’.
Derivative financicl assets that are not designated and effective
as hedging instruments are required to be dassified as

‘held for trading’ by IAS 39 However, the group’s Treasury Policy,
described in the Finanaal review on pages 37 and 38, is that
the group does not hold or issue dervative financiol nstruments
for tracing Financial assets at far value through profit or loss
are stated at far value, with any gains or losses ansing on
remeasurement recognised in gams/Aosses on financial
instrurments in the income stotement. Fair value is
determined using the methodology desanbed in note 32
Interest receivable in respect of denvative financial assets 1s
induded infinance.income,

Held to maturity investrnents

Where the group has the abflity and intent to hold an
investment to matunty the finanaal asset s dassified os held
to maturity. Such financia! assets are megsured ot amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method, with any gains
or losses being recognised in the income statement.
Availabie for sale financal assets

After inibal recogribion at cost (being the far velue of the
consideration paid), investrnents which are dassified as
available for sate are rmeasured at fair value, with gains

or losses recogrsed in other comprehensve income,

When an availlable for sale investment is disposed of or
mparred, the gain or loss previousty recognised in other
comprehensive ncome 1$ taken to the income statement.
Where there is no active market in the nvestments and

the farr value canrot be measured reliably, the rwestments
are held at cost.

Loans and receivables

Trade recefvables, loans and other receivables that have fixed
or determinable payrnents and that are not quoted n an
active market are dossified as loons and receivables.

Such assets are measured at far value on mibial recognitron
and are subsequently measured at amortisad cost using the
effective interest rote method unless there s objective
evidence that the asset s rmparred, where it is written down
to its recoverable amount and the imecoverable armount 1s
recognised as an expense

Trade receivables that ore assessad not to be mpaired
indviduolly are assessed collectively for mpament by
reference to the group’s historical collection expenence

for recenvables of amilar age

(@ Finanoal labilities
Finanaal labiities are dosssfied as either:

« finanagt babitties ot far volue through profit or loss, or
« other fnanaal labilties.

Financial iabilitres at far value through profit or loss

A finanda! hability is dassified at far value through profit or
loss ff it is so designated or f 1t s dassified os ‘held for trading’
Denvative financial babilities that are not designated and
effectve os hedging instruments are required to be classified
as ‘held for trading’ by IAS 39 However, the group’s Treasury
Policy, described in the Financict review on pages 37 ond 38,1s
that the group does not hold or sue denvative finonaal
nstruments for trading Finenaal habilities at farr value through
profit or loss are stated ot far volue, with any goins or losses
ansing on remeasurement recogrised in gams/losses on
financial nstruments in the income statement. Farr value 5
determmned using the methodology descrbed in note 32.
Interest poyable m respect of denvative financial babilities 5
included n finance costs.

Other financial licbilities

Other financal labilties, nduding borrewarigs, are indially
recognised gt fair value less transoction costs. After initial
recogrition, other finanagt labAties are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method

{iii) Hedge accounting

The group uses denvotive finanaidd instruments such as

cross currency swaps, forward currency contracts and interest
rate swaps to hedge its nsks associoted with foreign currency
and interest rate fiuctuations. Such denvative instruments are
recognised and measured 1n accordonce with the accouriting
poliaes described above

At the inception of the hedge relatonship, the group
documents:

« the relationship between the hedgmg mstrument ond
the hedged itern,

* its risk management objectives and strategy for undertaking
hedge transactions; and

- whether the hedgng instrument is highly effectve m
offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows (as appropnate)
of the hedged tem.

The group continues to test and document the effectveness

of the hedge on an ongoing basss.

Hedge accounting s discontinued when the hedging
instrument expires, is sold, terminated or exerased, or no longer
qualifies for hedge atcourting.

Fawr vale hedges

Where aloan or borrowing s in a fair value hedging relationship
it1s rerneasured for changes in fuir vatue of the hedged nsk at
the balance sheet date, with gains or losses being recognised in
gans/losses on finanaal instuments in the ncome statement.
The gain or loss on the hedging mstrument s taken to gains/
losses on financial instruments in the ncome statemernt where
the effective portion of the hedge will offset the gam or less on
the hedged itermn.

When hedge accounting is discontinued, the fair volue
adjustrnent to the carying amount of the hedged tem ansing
frorn the hedged risk is amortrsed to the income statement
from that date.
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2 Accounting policies {continued)
s) Financial instruments (continued)

(i) Hedge accounting (conbinued)

Cash flow hedges

The portion of the gain or loss on the heciging instrument that s
determined to be an effective hedge is recognised directly m
equity and the ineffective portion m gansflosses on finanaal
instrurnents in the income statement. The gains or losses
deferred in equity n this way are recyded through gains/losses
onfinanaal instrumnents in the income statement in the some
period in which the hedged undeslying transaction ot firm
commitrment is recognised in the income statement.

When hedge accounting s discontinued any cumulative gain or
loss on the hedging instrument recognised in equity 1s held in
equity until the forecast transoction oceurs, or transferred to
gansflosses on financal nstrurents in the mcome statement
if the forecast transaction 1s no longer expected to occur
Hedges of net irvestments in foreign operations

Where forward currency contracts and foreign currency
bomowings are used to hedge net investments in foreign
curency denominated operations, to the extent that they are
designated and effective as net nvestment hedges, they are
matched in equity oganst changes in value of the related
assets. Any ineffectiveness is token to gains/losses on finanaal
instruments in the Income staterment.

{iv) Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in other finandal instrurments or other
host contracts ore treated os separate denvatives when therr
risks and choracteristics are not closely related to those of the
host contract and the host contract is not camed at fairvalue,
with gains and losses reported in gomsfosses on finangial
instruments in the incorne statement.

t) Share based payments

The group operates a number of equity settled share based
compensation plans for employees. The farr volue of the
employee services received Inexchange for the grant 15
recognised s an expense over the vesting penod of the grant.

The fair value of employee services s determined by reference
to the fair value of the awards granted, colculated using an
appropriate pnang model, excduding the impact of any
non-market vesting condiions. The number of awards that
ore expected to vest tokes inte account non-market veshing
conditions nduding, where appropnate, contmuing
employment by the group The charge is adpsted to reflect
shares that do not vest as o result of falling to meet o
nor-market condibion.

u) Cash flow staternent

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cosh and cash
equnvatents include highty lqund mvestments that are readily
comvertible to known amounts of cash and which ore subject
to anirssgraficant nsk of change in value. Such investments are
nomally those with tess than three months’ matunty from the
date of acquisitron ond ndude cash and bank balances ond
mvestments m iquid funds. Cash and cash equivalents also
indude overdrafts repayable on dernand.

Interest pad n the cash flow statement indudes amounts
charged to the income statement and omounts included

in the cost of property, plant and equipment.

V) Forelgn currency

The results of overseos subsidiory and associated undertakings
are translated mito sterling, the presentational currency of the
group, using average rates of exchange nuling during the year
The net investrments in overseas subsidiary ond assocated
undertakings are translated into sterling ot the rates of
exchange ruling at the year end. Exchange differences arising
are treated as movements in equity. On disposat of a foreign
currency denominated subsidiary, the deferred cumulative
amount recognised in equity since 1 April 2004 relabng o that
entty 5 recognised n the income statement under the
transibional rule of IFRS 1.

Exchange differences ansing inrespect of foreign exchange
instruments taken out os hedges of overseas investments are
also treated as movermnents N equity to the extent that the
hedge 15 effective (see note 25)

All other foreign currency denominated assets and labilities
of the company and its subsidiary undertakings are translated
into the relevant funchonal carency ot the rates of exchange
ruling at the year end Ary exchange differences so ansing

are deatt with through the income statement.

Forexn currency transactions onsing during the year are
translated into sterling at the rute of exchange ruling on
the dote of the transoction All profits and losses on
exchange ansing during the year are dealt with through
the incorme statement.

w) Discontinued opertions and assets held for sale

Where an asset or group of assets (o disposal group) s available

for mmedicate sale and the sale s Highty probable and expected

to occur within one year thien the disposal group s classified as

held for sale. The disposal group s measured at the lower of the

carrying amount and fair vatue less costs to sell

Where a group of assats which comprises opengtions that can

be deary distingurshed operationally and for fmanaial reporting

purpases, from the rest of the group {a component), has been

dhisposed of or dassified as held for sale, and it

* represents a separate major lne of busness or geographicot
area of operations; or

- is port of a smgle co-ordinated plan to dispose of o separate
major line of business or geographical area of operations, or

» 15 0 subsidiary acquired exdusnely with a view to resole;

then the component s dassified as a discontinued operation.

Non-current assets dassified os held for sole are measured at
the lower of camyng amount and fair wlue less costs to sell.

Depreaation s not charged on such assets.
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3 New accounting policies and future requirements
The followng standards have been issued by the Intemational
Accounting Stundards Board and ore tikely to affect future
finonaat statements.

IFRS 9 ‘Financaal instruments’ is lkely to affectthe
measurement and disdosure of finandal instruments.

The standard is required to be implemented by the group

with effect from 1 April 2013, subject to EU endorsement.

IFRS 10 ‘Consolbdated Finonaal Stotements’ was 1ssued n

May 2011 and 1s required to be mmplemented by the group
frorn 1 Aprll 2013. The standard indudes a new defintion of
control to be used to determine when entites are consclidated.
The standard s not expected to have o matenal impact on the
group’s financial statements.

IFRS 11 Jomrtt Agreements’ was issued in May 2011 and is
required to be implemerrted by the group from 1 Aprit 2013
IFRS 11 replaces [AS 31 ‘Interests in Joint Ventures' and SIC-13
*Jointly-controlled Entities’ IFRS 11 uses the definion of control
gvenin IFRS 10 to define joint control and removes the option
to account for joint ventures using proportionate consclidation
This 1s not expected to have a matenat impact on the group’s
financial statements.

IFRS 12 ‘Bsclosure of Interests in Other Entities’ was ssued n
May 2011 and ts required to be implemented by the group from
1 April 2013. The standand provides disdosure requirements

for subsidianes, assoaates, joint agreements and structured
entities which were previously covered in IAS 27, IAS 28 and
1AS 31 Additional discdtosures will be required in the group
financial statements to meet the requirements of the standard.

1FRS 13 Far Value Medgsurement’ was issued n May 2011 and is
required to be implernented by the group from 1 April 2013

The standard provdes addrbonal gudance onhow to megsure
faur vatue but does not change when farr vatue is permnitted or
required. The standard may impact the methods of
determining fair value which are currently employed by the
group and will require further disdosure of these methods.

IAS 19 Employee Benefits' (revised) ndudes a requirement

to measure the expected retum on the defined benefit pension
scheme assets using the discount rote opplied to the scheme
liabdibes. The estimated effect thes will have is to reduce profit
by £16.0 million and increase actuarial gains n the statement
of other comprehensive mcome by £16.0 milhon m the year
ended 31 March 2014. The stondard is required to be
implemented by the group with effect from 1 April 2013

The directors assess that the other standards and
interpretations issued but not yet effective are not bkely to
have a significant impact on future financial statements.

4 Significant accounting judgements and key sources

of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the group’s accounting policies, the i
group 15 required to moke certan judgements, esimates and |
assumptions that i believes are reasonable based on the

information available.

The moere significant judgements were,

) Tax provisions

Assessing the outcome of uncertain tax posttions requires

Judgements to ba mode regarding the result of negotiaions

with and enquines from tax authorities n o nurnber of

junsdichons, The assessments mode are based on advice

from independent tax advisers and the status of ongaing

discussions with the relevant tax authorbes.

b) Provisions for other labities and charges

Assessing the finanoial outcore of uncertain commercial
and legal positions requires judgerments to be made regarding
the relatve ments of ecch party’s case ond the extent to
which any daim agamst the group s ikely to be successful.
The assessments made are based on adwice from the

group’s intemal counsel and, where appropnate,

independent legal advice.

The key accounting estimates were:

a) Goodwill impairment

Determining whether goodwdl is impaired reguires an
estimnation of the value in use of the cash-generating urit
{CGU) to which goodwill has been allocated. The vatue in use
caladation requires the group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the CGU and o suitable discount rate
to colculate present value Details of the ossumptions Lsed are
set out nnote 16 to the finanaal staterments.

b) Deprediation and camying amounds of property, plant and
equipment

Caleulating the depreaation charge and hence the camyng
value for property, plant and equipment requires estmates to
be made of the useful bves of the assets. The estimotes are
based on engineering data and the group’s expenence of
similar assets. Details are set out nnote 2 j).

¢) Retirement benefit obligations

Determnuning the amount of the group’s retirement benefit |
obligatrons and the net costs of prowiding such benefits requires |
assurnptions to be made concerrung long tamn interest rates, |
rflation, salary and pension incregses, investment retums and |
longevity of current and future persioners. Changes in these

could sgnificantly impact the amount of the
oblgatiors or the cost of prowiding such benefits. The group
makes assumptions conceming these matters with the
ossstonce of adwce from independent qualified octuaries.
Details of the assumptions made are set out tn note 27 to the
financidl staterents
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€) Provision for impairment of trade receivables

Provisions are mode ogamst Severn Trent Water's trade
recevables bosed on historical expenence of levels of recovery
from accounts m a parscular ageing cotegory. The octual
emounts collected coutd differ from the estimated level of
recovery which could impact operating resuits.

4 Significant accounting judgements and key sources
of estimation uncertainty {(continued)
d) Unbilled revenue

Severn Trent Water rases bills and recognises revenue in
accordance with its nght to receive revenue in line with the
bmits establshed by the periodic requiatory pnce review
processes. For water and waste water custorners with water
meters, the amount recognised depends cn the volume
supplied induding on estimate of the soles volue of units
supplied between the date of the lost meter read and the
year end Meters are read on a cydical basis and the group
recognises revenue for unbldted amounts based on estimated
usage from the lost billng to the end of the finanaal year.
The estmated usage 1s based on histoncal dota, judgement
and assumptions.

5 Segmental analysis

The group has two reportable segments. Severn Trent Water and Sevem Trent Services The key factor determining the identrfication
of reportable segrments 1s the regulatory ervironmment in which the businesses operate. Severn Trent Water s subject to econom
regulation by Ofwot and operates under a licence to provide water and sewerage services within a defined geographical region
nEngland and Wales. Sevem Trent Services is not subject to econoric regulation and operates in markets in the US, Europe

ond Asia,

The Sevemn Trent Executive Committee 1s considered to be the group’s chief operating decision maker, The reports provided to the
Fxecutive Committee indude segmentat information prepared on the basis described above Details of Severn Trent Water's
operations are described on pages 12 to 23 of the Business review ond those of Severn Trent Services on pages 2410 32,
Transactions between reportable segments are included within segrental resuilts, assets and liabities in accordance with

group accounting pelicies. These are eiminated on conschidation.

The group has o large and diverse customer base and there 15 no significant reliance on any smgle custormer

The rneasure of profit or loss that 1s reported to the Executive Committee for the segments 1§ profit before interest, tax and
exceptional tems (undertying PBIT) A segmental analysis of sales and underlying PBIT 15 presented below

Sevemn Trent  Severn Trent
Water Serwces

2013 £fm £m
Etemalsdles s - e o 1083 3206
[nter-segment sales - 17 79
Total sales 15110 3285
Profit before interest, tax and exceptional tems o e __._.5009 127
Exceptondlites 0 777 T 133 {16.1)
Profit/(loss) before interest ond tox 5142 34}
Profit before interest, tax and exceptional items s statedafter. .~~~ o o

Amortsation of mtangibie assets "~ _ T .. 2 15
Deprecialion of property, plont andequpment "~ " T T 0 2614 53
Loss/(profit) ondsposal of ficed assets T 15 )
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5 Segmental analysis {continued)

Sevem Trent  SevernTrent
Water Sennces

2012 £m £m
Extemofsgles 14561 3133
‘Inter-segment sales ’ ) 14 190
Total sates 1,457.5 3323
Profit before interest, tax and excepticnal iterms B __ 5000 180
Eicephonclltems oo e commnomrm o e 103 (447)
Profit/{loss) before nterest and tax 5103 (26.7)
Proﬁr'gnbgfqre:@{gt:tnxundexcephomlftenﬁtsstotedafter ) i : —— i __ ) r “j o “
Amortisation of other intangible assets . 2’7 15
Deprecation of property, plont and equpment 77 "0 T 0 7 T 0 a5 59
Profit on disposal of fixed assets %2 {0.2)

The group’s treasury and tax affairs are monoged centralty by the Group Treasury and Tax Departments Finance costs are
managed on a group basis and hence interest Income and costs are not reported at the segmentd level Tax 1s not reported tothe
Executive Committee on a segrnental basis,

Interests in joint ventures and associates are not matenal and are not inctuded in the segmental reports reviewed by the
Executive Committee.

Separate segmental analyses of assets and liabilses are not reviewed by the Executive Committee The balance sheet measure
reviewed by the Executve Commnittee on a segmental bosis is copital employed which includes the fallowing components.

Severn Trent  Sevemn Trent
Wigter Serices

2013 fm fm
DOperatingossets ) L2187 I3
Googwl L. .. R & B
Interests in jomtvenmresondossmates coT T 01 4G
Segmentassets L S 72201 197
Segment operating liabilities {1,137.4) (94 0)
Capital employed 6,0827 1257
Severn Trent  Sevemn Trent

Water Services

2012 £m £m
Operatngassets = __ I e e e e L. 70223 1855
Goodwil B o o o . .. -1
Interests in jomt vertures and ossoaates 01 46
Segmentussels e - 7,02_3.0 zgég—
Segment operating ligbilthes ] T i ) T T (0643 1953
Capital employed 59587 1396

Operating assets compnse other intangible assets, property, plant and equipment, inventory and trade and other recenables.
Operohing bubitites compnse trade and other payables, retirement benefit obligations and provisions.
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5 Segmental analysis (continued)
Additions to other intangible assets and property, plant and equipment were as follows:

Sevemn Trent  Severn Trent

2013 £m fm
Other mtangible gssets 136 22

Property, plant and equiprment ) 4516 86

Water Services
2012 £m £m
Other ntangible assets 93 21

Properly, plant and equnpment 4053 55
The reportable segments’ revenue is recondiled to group tumover as follows.

2013 2012
fm fm

Severn Trent Water 15110 1,4575

SevernTrentSenices T T 7 .. _ 3.5 33
Other o . - i L o 101 98

Inter-ség"mer;t-sc!es ) ) ) " (180) {290)
Group tumover 1,8316 1,77G6

Segmental underiying PBIT 15 recondiled to the group’s profit before tax and discontinued operations as follows:

2013 2012
frn £m

‘Underlying PBIT

~SevemTrentWoter 0 75008 T 5000
TS_EVP!“T’G""S‘?_‘"F&E e e e e e .. X270 180
- Corporate and other 3 o _ o (168  (153)

Consclidation odjustrnents 12 15
Group undertying PEIT 4980 5042

Exceptional items allocuted ho segments )

~SevemTrentWater T T T 0 0133 103
~SevemTrentServices e TS TR 7Y
-Coporteandother e i B -
Shareof resulfs of assodiatesandjointventures " T T T g) 01
Netfrancecosts T T eng (s

Losses on finandal instruments (453) (67 7
Profit before tox 2152 1567

The reportable segments’ assets are recontled to the group’s total assets as follows.

2013 2012
£m £m

~ Sevem Trent Water _ ) S ] . TTin;oe1 70230

“SeemlentSenices T TTUTTTT T T T T Thie7 " g
Corporate and other assets 495 464

Syﬂrrgpt“mx recovembte o L o 405 -

Consolidation adjustrments (452) (470
Total assets 80194 77151

The consolidation adjustments comprise eirmination of intra-group debtors and unredised profits on fixed assets.
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5 Segrmental analysis (continued)
The reportable segments’ labilhes are reconcled to the group’s total babilities os follows.

2013 2012
£m £m

Segment babilities

“SevemTrentWater 0T {11374 (1,0643)
-SevemTrentSevces R . B ¥ )}
Coporateliabiites ~ 647) (578)
Other finandial kabilites L N o o _(5111.8) (4,687.3)
Current tax i - T - (46 5)

R o 1 . St

Consolidation adjustments 183 190
Totol liabilines (7,1754) (6,733.7)
The consolidation edjustments compnse elimination of intra-group creditors.

Geographicat areas

The group’s sales were denved from the following countries:

2013 2012
£m £m

UK 15847  1,5380

us ] S T ) T w22 1365

Other 1047 961
18316 17706

The group’s nen-current assets (exduding financial instruments, deferred tax assets and retirerment benefit assets) were located
in the following countries.

2013 2012

£fm £m

UK ] 68342 66704
us . . ...6 592
Other U ) R 108 140
6,906.1 6,743.6

6 Revenue

2013 2012
fm £m

Water and seweroge services. ) 15009 14463

Otherservices s 1914
Saleofgoods 1107 944

Service concession amangements {note 38} 399 385
_Total tumover R o Ap316 17706
Interest recenvable (note 10) ) 26 7.0

1,834.2 1,777.6
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7 Operating costs

2013 2012

Before Before
exceptonal  Excepbonat exceptionol  Exceptional
costs oSt Total aosts costs Total
fm fm £m £m fm f£m

Wogesandsdlaries. 2825 12 281 2642 76 2668

Seaotsecurtycosts 7 202 " -7 202 w7 01 178
Penston costs L L 298 - 298 275 . 231) 44

Share based payments ] } 68 - 68 41 - 41

Totdlemployeecosts 3397 12 3409 3135 (204) 2931

Power N e 658 - 6§,_E§_______ 59.0 - 590
Carbon Reduction Commitment i L 5.7 - 5% 59 = 5 9
[Row materials and consumables i 1308 - 130 8 1350 0.4 135 4

Rates T 132 - 732 694 - 694

Chargeforbad anddoubthldebts ~~ ~~ " 331~ - 331 307 215 _ 522
Service charges 319 - 319 333 - 33 3

Depremotlon of property, plont and equtprnent _ 2646 = 264 é ) ;:256.0 - 256.0
Amortisation and imparment of other intangible ossets _30.5 i 36 34 1 8~ - 30“8"
Impmrment of goodwiil - 46 4 6 - 229 229

Hredand contractedsenices .~ T 7T " 1962 37 1999 2192 43 2235

“londandbuldngs T T T T 7 31 =731 34

-other S - T S & SO - 15
r!rreofpluntundmudwlnery o &4 - 44 56 - 58
Researd’landdevdopmente&pend'@ure ) 56 - 54 &5 - _45

Lns:sl(proﬁt) on disposal of property, ptant and

equpment 29 (133) Q04 00 sy -

Foregnexchange (gansiiosses (0.3) - o3 oi_ - ol
Infrostructure maintenance expenditure 147.7 - 147.7 128 9 - 128.9

Other operating costs T 732 T 4s 977 502 57 649

.34

14298 A3 14341 13516 344 13860

Release ﬁom defen'ed moome (9.3) - (93) 87 - 87

Own work caprtatised ®69 - (869} 765) - {765}

13336 43 13379 12664 344  1,3008

Further details of exceptional costs are given in note 8.
Dunng the year the following fees were charged by the auditors:

Fees payable to the company’s auditors for

- the audit of the company’s annudl accounts 01 01

~the audit of the company's subsidiaries 0.5 05

Totol audit fees 06 06

Fees payable to the company’s auditors and thewr associates for other services to the group

-uuditlelatedassuunce Sevices ST ) —_6—2_- B di

-~ services relating to corperate finance 01 -

Total non-audit fees 03 0.2

Detais of directors’ rermunerotion are set out in the Directors’ remuneration report on poges 57 to 70
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8 Exceptional items before tax

2013 2012
E£m £m

Exceptionad operating costs
SeeemTentWoter =~ ==~ _
Profit on disposal of fixed assets

Curtailment gains on defi ned benefit pension schermes

{13.3) (10.3)

Sevem Trent Servkes

Impalrment of development co§ts and reluted usseE o
Impairment of goodwill

Provisions for co:ri\:rfle_ragl djsipufes and restructunng _ ) o

Provistons for bad debts R B
Curtatment gains on defined benefit pen5|on schemes

T T T T T T T
C T T T T 46 229
- - B 1
. L - a5

Corporate and other i
Professional fees on proposed transaction that did not pmceed

Total exceptional operating costs

Exceptional loss on disposal of businesses
Exceptional ﬁncmce costs
Costs mcurred on early redemption of debt

Excephional iterns before tax

Exceptional tax is dsclosed mnote 13

9 Employee numbers
Average nurmber of employees (induding executive directors) dunng the year

2013 2012
Nurmber Number

SeemTentWater

Sevem Trent Services
Corpomte ond other

T 5458 5162
o N T 2,749 2878

8,221 8,051

10 Finance income

Interest revenue eamed orx

Barkdeposts I L S >
Other finondal income - 29
Totolinterest revenue - o Y - 70

Expected retum on defined benefit pensan scheme assets
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11 Finance costs

2013 2012
Before

Total costs costs Total

£m £m £m £m

Interest on bark loons and overdrafts ... ._za___ 8 - 28
nestonctherloars 0 T T i Tiees | LT Tiess
Interest on finance legses s 9.7 - 97
Total borrowing costs 2278 2375 - 2315
e S | (R 1)
Interest cost on defined benefit scheme obligations 922 977 = 977
3227 336.7 165 3532

Bormowing costs of £10 4 mitlion (2012 £10.5 million) incurred funding eligible capital projects have been caprtalsed at an
interest rate of 5 12% (2012 5.93%)

12 Losses on financial instruments

2013 2012
£m £m
Loss on cross currency swaps used as hedging mstruments in fair volue hedges I (5 B 5]
Gain ansing on adjustment for foreign cumency debt in fair value hedges o 3% 18
Exchonge loss)/gan onotherloans O ¢ VI + £
Losson cashflow hedgestronsferred fromequity || ] . I 2]
Loss ansing on swaps where hedge accounting is not opplied (255) (1023)
(453) €77)
The group’s hedge accounting arrangements are described m note 32 f).
13 Taxation
a) Analysis of tax credit in the year
2013 2012
Before
ten tox Total Totd
£m £m £m £m
Lumenttax e e e e e v e e e
Current year at 24% (2012:26%) . L. ... wosy 166 692
Prior years ot 28% (2012 28%) (29.2) - {292) (87)
Total current tax 279 {40.5) (12.6) 605
Deferedtox L e . . e e e
Origination and reversal of temporary differences - curentyear 03 388 = 385 - (140)
Ongination ond reversal of temporary differences - prioryear @& - @4 49
Exceptiond credit onsng fromratechonge - 867 G671 (691
Total deferred tax 4.7} 21 2.6) (782)

23.2 (38.4) {15.2) {17.7)

The group’s UK subsidiary componies hove adopted the new acoounting standard FRS 101 n the current year. This has dhanged the
statutory accounts that form the bases for those companies” corporation tax computations. The most significant mpact of this
change 1s that certain armounts that had been taxed in previous years will now be recogrssed as profits and taxed in future periods.
Therefore, to prevent such items being taxed twice, the tax alreody paid on such iterns s repayable The impact of ths change was
an excephional credit of £40.5 million te current tex and an excephona charge of £38.8 rillion to deferred tax.

Current tax credrts hove arisen due to adjustments to prior year tox computations, In 2013 these pnmarily related to an ndustry
agreement over the treatrment of infrastructure ncome.

The exceptonal deferred tax credit arises from the reduction n the rate at which the temporary differences are expected to reverse
frorn 24% to 23%. On 20 March 2013 the Govemiment announced that the main rate of corporation tax in the UK wouid reduce to
23% with effect from 1 Apal 2013 with subsequert reductions per annum to regch 20% by 1 Apnl 2015.
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13 Taxation (continued)
b) Factors affecting the tax aredit in the year
The tax credit for the year is recondiled to tax on profit at the standard rote of comporation tax in the UK below

2013 2012
£m £m
Profit on ordinary activiies before tax 2152 1567
Tax at the stondord rate of corporationtaxnthe UK 24% (2012 26%) 516 408
Tax effect of expenditure not deductible ndetermining taxable profits 41 120
Current year impact of rate change. o o R ¢ ¥ R 5
Effect of different rates in overseas unsdictions o B o7 05
Adjustments in respect of prior years i _ . R == 12 _33
Exceptional deferred tox credit ansing from rate dmnge (367) (691)
Total tax credit (15.2) (177)
<) Tax credited directly to equity
In addition to the omount credrted to the income staternent, the followsng amounts of tax have been credited directly to equity
2013 2012
£m £m
Current tax o o i
Tax on share based payments I e (04)
Tax on persion contnibutions in excess of profit ond loss charge (15) (88)
Total current tax credited to equity {23} {9.2)
Defered tax o ~ o L
Tax on actuanal losses o i - ’ o __ (1‘1 0) (17.8)
Tuxoncushﬂmhedges ,:, ”_" 7 i T ) _m‘ C T (58 (199)
Toxonshare based payments ) - ©3)
Effect of change 1n tax rate B o 34 an
Total deferred tax credited to equity {132) (397
14 Dividends
Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the penod:
2013 2012
Pence per Pence per
share fm share fm
Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2012 (2011) o L 4206 999 3905 = 925
Intenm dwvidend for the yeor ended 31 March 2013 (2012) 3034 72.2 2804 66.5
Totd ordinary dvidends 7240 1721 6709 1590
Specal divdend T 7 e300 1499 - -
Total divndends 13540 3220 67.09 159.0
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2013 4551

The proposed final dvdend 1s subject te approval by shareholders at the AGM and has not been induded as a labibity n these
finanaal statements.
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15 Earnings per share

Basic eamings per share are calculated by dwiding the eamngs attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue dunng the year, exduding those held in the Severn Trent Employee Share Ownership Trust
which are treated os cancelled,

For diluted eamings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue is adjusted to assume conversion of all
potentially dilutive ordinary shares. These represent share ophions granted to employees where the exercise price &5 less tharn the
average market pnce of the company’s shares during the year

Basic and diluted eomings per share from continung operations are coloulated on the basis of profit from continung operations
attnbutable to the equity holders of the company

The calcutation of basic and diuted eamings per share is based on the following data:

Eamings for the purpose of basic and diluted eamings per share fram continuing operctions

97

2013 2012

£m £m

Profit for the penod attibutable to the equity holders of the company 2275 1718

Number of shares

2013 2012

m m

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic eamings per share o 2377 2370

Effect of dilutve poterticl ordinary shares~ — 7 77 o o o

- share options and LTIPs B S 11 12

Weighted average nurnber of ordinary shares far the purpose of diuted earmings per share 2388 2382
Adjusted earnings per share

2013 2012

penca pence

Adjusted basic earnings per share 98.9 889

Adpsted diluted ecrmings per share S84 885

Adjusted earnings per share figures are presented for continuing operations. These exdude the effects of deferred tax, losses
onfinanaal instruments and exceptional items in both 2013 and 2012 The directors consider that the odjusted figures provde
a useful additional indicator of performance. The denominators used in the calculations of adjusted basic and diluted eamings
per share gre the some as those used in the unadpsted figures set out above,

Adjustments to eamings
The odjustments to eamings that are made in caleulating edjusted eamings per share are as follows:

2013 202

fm £m

Eamings for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings per share from continuing operations 2275 1718
Adustments for ; — e e e e .

— exceptonal tems before tox_ o ——._ 58 509

a:renttaxrelatedtoexoeptond:temsat24%(201z 26%) N _(95) a9

— losses on financial mstruments ~ - - 7,

deferedtaxexdudngexceptionalcharge 7 "7 7 T G )

- excephonul tax 384) (69.1)

Eamings for the purpose of adjusted basic and diluted earmings per share 2350 2107
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16 Goodwill

2013 2012

£m £m
Cost - _ L
mtapdl .. .. 618 683
Exchange adjustmerts T 14 035)
At 31 March 692 6738
Impainment, e e e . e e e e e
AtiApl e S 29 -
Amounts wntten off (4.6) (22.9)
At 31 March 27.5) {229)
Net book value - e e
At 31 Morch ST T oo 417 449

Goodwillimpaiment tests

Goodwill is allocated to the group’s cash-generating urnits {CGUs) identified acconding to country of operation and business segment.
All of the group’s goodwill 1s in the Sevem Trent Services segment.

A summiry of the goodwill allocotion by CGU 1s presented below

2013 2012

£m £m

Water Purfication US o211 263
ContractOpertons ] ST o R " I § ¥
Services Italy 3 i ) B n o T R 23 22
Services Spain ) oo ’ ) - 47
417 449

The group has reviewed the camying value of goodwill for inparment: in accordance with the palicy stated 1n note 2 m)

The value in use calcutations use cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering a

five year penod. The key assumphion underlying these budgets ts revenue growth, Manogement of each CGU deterrmines
assumptions based on past experience, curent market trends and expectations of future developments

Cash flows beyond the five year penod are extrapolated using an estimated nominat growth rate stated below. The growth rate
does not exceed the long term average growth rate for the ecanommy in which the CGLY operates. The assurnphions used mn relation
to growth rates beyond the five year period and discount rates were,

Nominal growth rate Discount rate

2013 012 2013 2012

% % % %

‘Water Purification US _______ ] 735 35 62 58
Controct Opergtions e e 35 35 65 59
Servicesltaty e e . L2530 82 110
Services Spain 25 3.1 88 89

The weighted average growth retes used are consistent with the forecasts induded in industry reports. The discount rates used
are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the CGU

As a resuit of the imparment review, the group has fully imparred the goodwill in Services Spain by £4.6 million. This follows
the further deterioration of the economic outiock In Spain

Changes in the growth rate cutside the five year period orin the dscount rate apphied to the cash flows may couse a CGU's camymng
value to exceed its racoveroble omount. However, in the opinion of the directors, the changes in growth rate or discount rate that
would be required to reduce the recoverable emounts of Water Purtfication US and Controct Operotions below their camying volue
are not reasonably possible and therefore senstivity analysis has onty been prowded for Senices Italy.

Surphus of recoverable Change required for
amount over aaTyng recoverable amount to
QMo equal camymng amount

Growthate Dsoount rate

percentage  percentoge
fm ponts pomnts

Services Ttaly 111 (21.5) 98
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17 Other intangible assets

Computer software Other
Internally - Internolly
genercted  Purchased genemmd Tota
Em £m £m

Apd2011 T T T T CUUTIAS el 28 3164
Additons - 03 97 20 120
Dsposals - oy = 04}

AL1 April 2012 1218 179.6 266 3280

Additons o T 60 s’ 15 160
Aoqustton ofbusnesses e e e e e e T e T 1313
Dsposalofbusinesses e e e T e T a7____an

Exchange adjustments - 06 05 11
Al 31 March 2013 1278 188.7 282 3447

Mlppdzoli | T T T T T T T g0 g6). | (128) ei)
Amorhsatlonfortheyeor____ o o N ¢ 2 I I/ I v v/ I (_3(}8]_
Disposals. e . " 02 - Q.2

Exchange odjustments - - 01 01
At 1 April 2012 _1022) (95.7) 141)  (2120)

Amortlsotlon fortheyear (16 7) _{124) a4 (05

Exceptloml u'npmrment e e T i Ge _ G386
Dsposalofbusinesses o e - 12 12

Exchange odjustments - 02 03 0%
At 31 March 2013 (1189)  (108.3) (182)  (2454)

At 31 March 2013 89 80,4 10.1 993
At 31 March 2012 196 839 125 1160

Cther assets pnmanly comnprise caprtolised devetloprnent costs and patents.

UOIDULIONIARQ  SIUSLLISIONS [05UDLY AUDLUO)  SIUBUSDIS [OTUDUY dNCID  EDUDWBAOD  MBIARISSBLISNE  MBIUN0

£ 1)Z SN2y pud POCSY [BNULY  Jid UL WSS



100

Group financial statements Notes to the group financidl statements
18 Property, plant and equipment

tandond Infrastructure plurf;e\g Movable

busidings mssets  equpment plant Total

£m fm fm £m £fm

COSt
At1April 2011 T Tt T T TTTOS609 . 41917 32662 567 10,0845
Addtons __Jgs 1188 1815 45 | 4117
Disposals N - MU - VSO - M I )
Exchange udjustments - - {0.8) 0.1 (0 7)
AL1Api 2012 ] o 26732 43104 34205 570 104611
Addtions o 172 1033 2207 87 4599
DlSpOSGlS o o i Ly o Q45 B4a) ﬁﬁl_B)
Disposal of busimesses oy N <V R v’ 1]
Exchange adjustments 01) - 21 0.7 27
At 31 March 2013 27862 44136  3,6013 620 10,8631
Depreaigion L o o o
At1Apil2011 o 8161) (1,0935) (1,7154)  (325) (3,6575)
Charge for the year - o 60y (282)  (1651) 67  (2560)
Disposals 33 - 228 38 F 299
Fxchange adjustrments T Tl 703 03
AtlApil2022 o (8688) (1,121.7) (18574) _ (35.4)_ (38833)
Chorge fortheyear - 09 o6 (1675)  (66) (2646
Dsposats S T S T s U S
Dsposal of businesses R - T & 1 - B S - )
Exchange adiustments 05 01 (12) 01 07
At 31 March 2013 9187)  (1,1512) (1,9952)  (380) (41031
Netbookvolwe . .. _ e e e« e e o o
At 31 Morch 2013 o 18675 32624  1,606.1 240 67600
At 31 March 2012 18044 31887  1,563.1 216 65778

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment ncludes the falowng amounts in respect of assets
finance teases.

held under

Fixed

landand Infrostructoe plant and Mavabie
buildings assels  equpment plont Total
im £m £m £m £m
Netbockvalue e e o e e e -
At 31 March 2013 - 118.5 548 - 1733
At 31 March 2012 - 1192 763 - 195.5

Property, plont ond equipment mcudes £509.2 milion (2012 £372 3 mifion) in respect of assets i the course of construcbion

for which no depreaiation s charged
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19 Interests in joint ventures

2013 2012

£m £m
Group'sshareof . [
Nop-cureetassets ... __._ _ ..o 0
Gmetossels ~ 7T TUTTTUT TS ST T TTort g
Cument babiibes oo e T {0.5) 06

03 02
_Grgug’sgl_wre_of o o L N o i ) .
Tumever i . o 04 04
Operating costs T - T {0.4) {0.4)
Proﬁtbeforetgx . ) . ) o _ - -
Jox T - -
Profit after tax - -

As at 31 March 2013 and 2012 the joint ventures had no sigreficant contingent liabibities to which the group was exposed and the
group did not have any significant contingent labiities in relation to its nterests in the joint ventures. The group bad no capstal
commtments in relation to its interests in the Jont ventures at 31 March 2013 or 2012

Porbiculars of the group’s pnincipal joint venture undertakings at 31 March 2013 were.

Country of Proportion of
Name incorporation ownership interest
Cognealimted .. Coee e me JSrotBntan . 0%
Jockson Water Partnership Us 70%

The partnerstup agreernent for the Jockson Water Partnership requires that certan key deastons require the unanimous consent
of the partners and consequently the partnership has been accounted for as a jont venture.

20 Interests in associates

2013 2012

£m fm

AtlApn - T Tae a8
Saotpois - T TTT L T T e Toar
Exchange odpsstments 01) 03}
At 31 March 4,7 46
Group's share of S
Todlassets U T T 8 47
Totol bobdites U o ooToooomonommmmmmnnt (201 201)
47 46

Turnover 47 1.7
Profit after tax 02 01

The assoaate company at 31 March 2013 was Servizo Idrico Integrato S.c.p.c., a company meorporated in ftaly.
The proportion of ownership interest held by the group was 25%.

At 31 March 2013 and 2012 the assocate companty had ne sigruficant contingent tiabilities to which the group was exposed.
The group had no capital commitrments in relation to its nterests in the assoaate at 31 March 2013 or 2012,

The group has given certam guarantees in respect of the assoaate’s borrowangs. The quarantees are imited to €11.2 milion
{2012 €11 2 million} The group does not expect any licblites that are not provided for in these financial statements to arise
from these amangements,

21 Inventory
2013 012
f£m £m
Inventory and work In progress 321 344

UOROLLIOMJ3UI0  SIUSLLSIDNS 100U AUDGLUDT  SIUSLUEONS 100UDUY dNOID  SOUDLUAASE)  MOIKAI SSBUISNG - MBIAIBAD

£107 Sunonoy pun jiodey oNULY  3)d WadL LA



Group financial stoternents Notes to the group finanadal staternents

22 Trade and other receivables

2013 2012

£m £m

Truderecewbla_“w n _ 337 3063
Less provisions for mpanment of recalvables (1380) {1252)
Net trode receivables o L 1967 1811
Amounis receoble fom relatedpartes R Y
Otheramountsrecevoble ~ ~  __  _ _ _ _____ _ . . . _.. 35 _ 35
Prepayments and ocaued ncome 2768 2656
506.0 4794

The carrying values of trade and other recevables are reasonable approximations of their fair values

Prepaymenits and accrued income include £26.8 mullion (2012 £27 1 million) in respect of amounts due from customers for
contract work and £39.5 millon (2012 £43.1 million) which s recoverable after more than ane year

Credit control policies and procedures are determined at the indnadual business unit level The most significant business unit of the
group 15 Severn Trent Woter Lirruted, which cortnbutes 82% of group tumover and 80% of net trode receivables. Severn Trent Water
has a statutory obligation to provide water and sewerage senvices to customers within s region. Therefore there is no concentraton
of credit nsk with respect to its trade receivables and the credrt quality of its customer base reflects the wealth and prospenty of all
of the commercial businesses and domestic households within its region None of the other busmess units are indiadually significant
to the group.

Movernents on the doubtful debts prowision were as follows:

2013 2012

m £m

At1Apil —— e e L. ...122 0 985
Amourtts wrtten off during the year L ) o "lm ) (44)
Amourts recovereddunng theyear o k)
Charge for bad and doubtful debts o - - 5| 307
Exceptonal charge forbad anddoubtfitdebs  ~ — ~  ~ T 7T 915
Exchonge adjustments 18 (0.8)
At 31 March 1380 125.2

Induded in trode recevables are balances with o camying amount of £176.4 milkon (2012 £157.8 million} which were past due
at the reporting date: but for which no specfic provision hos been made as the collective iImpaimnent recorded agamst such assets
s considered o be sufficient allowance for the risk of non-collection of such balances.

The aged anolysis of recenvables that were past due ot the reporting date but not iIndividually impaired is as follows:
2013 2012

fm £m

Upto90days R e . el .. _ A94 464
91-365days e el LDsT0A
1-2years ] . e e e .. 309 264
23years . . R, o3 95
More than 3 years 70 54
1764 157.8

Induded in the allowance for doubtful debts are provisions amounting to £25 1 milion (2012- £27 5 million} ogainst speafic trode
receivables. The age of the mmpaired recesvables was as follows:

2013 2012

fm £m
UptoSOdays R L AU,
91365days .l e 238029
S © 2 ¥
23years . J N £ X A )
Mogre than 3 years I 34 41

271 28.0
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23 Cash and cash equivalents
2013 2012
fm £m
Cashat bark andinhand _ o 419 374
Shorttermdeposits T T 3557 2517
403 6 295.1

Ofthe £355 7 milion (2012. £257.7 mullion) of short term boank deposits, £26.1 million (201.2: £26.9 milbon) is held as secunty
deposts for msurance obligations and 1s not available for use by the group.

24 Finance leases
Obligations under finance leases are as fallows.

2013 2012

£m £m

Gross obligations under finonce leases o L o %51 2921
Less future finance charges {635) (731)
Present value of leqse obligattons 2016 2190

A moatunty analysis of gross obligations under finonce leases s presented innote 32 Net obligations under finance leases fall due
as follows:

2013 2012

fm £fm

Within 1 year 0.5 -
1-:'!yeg£:ih L ) ) o o o _212 o 17_2_3
3Syeas o e ... .G85 855
After more than 5 years 1134 1157
Induded in non-current iabilites 2011 2190
2016 2190

The rerainung tenms of finance leases ranged from 3 to 20 years at 31 March 2013, Interest tenms are set at the inception of the
leases Leases with caprtal outstanding of £201 6 million (2012 £219.0 rrullion) bear fixed interest ot a weighted averoge rate of
5 4% (2012 5 4%). The lease obligations are secured ogainst the related assets.

There were no contingent rents, escalation clouses or matenal renewal or purchase options, The terms of the finance leases do not
mpose restniction on divdend payments, additional debt or further leasing.

25 Trade and other payables
2013 2012
£m £m
Current liabilties S I,
Todepayobles T T T T gg Ty
Sooglsecurity ondothertaxes . — U £ * S/
Otherpaysbles o ) 257 184
Deferedmcome ~ T ST TOTTm T T T 82 88
Aocwals oo s e 3284 3285
3990 3976
Non-cumentbobibes e e "
Trade paychies e 20 -
Otherpoyables ~ ~ T T T _ 04 04
Deferedincome e __ 437123966
Accruals S T Tt T o 138 140
4534 4110

The directors consider that the camying value of trade payobles is not matenally different from their fair values.
Accruals includes ni (2012 ml) in respect of amounts due to customers for contract work.
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26 Deferred tax
An analyss of the movements In the deferred tax babilibes and assets recogrised by the group is set out below:
Acceleroted  Retirerment Far volue of
tax benefit financiol
depreouton obigaion  Taxlosses msinanents Other Total
fm £m £m £m £m
AtlApd2011 o . 10919_ (9 64 (248) (654 9194
Credit tomcome o 83y 137 - (67 770 __ (9 1)
Credit to ncome ansing from rate change ) Tew 28 0 - 11 @6 (691)
Credittoequty _ _ VL - D (19: 9) . o3 (389
Credit to equity ansing from rate dmnge (5.5) 3.0 - 0.7 01 1.7
AL 1 Apri 2012 — - T 9309  (n2)  (64)  (596) 108 _ 8015
Charge to Income ) o (o4) 65 64 01 346 342
Credit to income 0n5|ng from rute change o (390) 14 T - 1 2 (0.3) (36 7)
Credittoequty I < 1) B 56) - (166)
Charge to equity onsing from rate chonge - 21 - 1.2 0.1 34
At 31 March 2013 8915 {88.2) - {62.7) 452 7858

Defetred tox assets and liablities have been offset. The offset amounts, which are to be recovered/settled after more than
12 months, are as follows

2013 2012
fm £m
Deferred tax asset . ] . aesn) (1989
Deferred tax liability o ) ) 9549  1,0004
785.8 8015
27 Retirement benefit schemes
a) Defined benefit pension schemes
() Amount induded n the balance sheet ansing from the group’s obligations under defined benefit pension schermes
2013 2012
£ £m
Fair value of scheme assets L L
Buges . T o TT T T waT e
Gits .. D B __.J2hE 52
Coporatebonds ~ ~ e . 3609 3391
Property _ R 1. B -
e S | SO 1.4
Cash 80 260
Total fair velue of assets 17243 15572
Presentt value of the defined benefit oblgations - funded scherres. 77 (0087 (1,8944)
GTa) G372
Present value of the defined benefit obligations - unfunded schemes e T 93) {86)
Liobility recognised in the balance sheet (383.7)  (345.8)
Movernents in the far value of the scheme assets were as follows:
2013 2012
£m £m
Far value at 1 April e e IO . 1 SO . -5
Bpectedretumonschemeossets ... 82 1007
Contribubons from the sporsoring companies ——~ ~ - 435 535
Contributions from schememembers T T 7T . 5L 56
ACDJarlolgtleEI(losses) recogn:sedmﬁlestﬂtementofmmprehenswemcome o ) 0 N )
Benefits pad (710 (715)

Fair value at 31 March 1,723 15572
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27 Retirement benefit schemes (continued)

a) Defined benefit pension schemes (continued)

) Amount induded in the balance sheet arising from the group’s obligations under defined benefit pension schemes (continued)
Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as follows:

2013 2012

£m £m
Present ygluekat 1 April 198030 1,7655
Sewiceost ... ..;m8 26
Post senicecost . e e B
Interest cost Sl Ll U -~ > 13 )
Net curtaliment gan o L e (3.1}
Contrbubons from scheme members - 1)
Acmcmai1osssretognssedtnﬂ1estatementofcompreheragggngmde ________ o ) 155_5 106.2
Benefits paid 710) @15
Present value at 31 March 21080  1,9030
Of which.

2013 2012

£m £m
Arnounts relating to funded schemes 28T 18944
Amounts relating to unfunded schemes 93 8.6
Present vaolue ot 31 March 2,108.0 1,903.0
(i) Amounts recognised in the incorme staternent in respect of these defined benefit pension schemes

2013 2012

£m £m
Amounts charged tooperatingcosts =~ e o
Current service cost B T 28 (28)
Exepordartoiventgon 77 TT T T T ot T
Past service cost S (0.4) -
"""""""" ~ o L 232y 05
_Qr_rp_t.lmsd'nrgedtofmncecosts o . o L
Interest cost O 2 B 72/
Amounts credrted to ﬁnance |ncome L
ExpectedreMmmsdmemeusets S ST T T T T T T T T T T gR2 100.7
Total amount {charged)/credited to the income sigtement {27.2) 35

The actuadl retum on scheme assets was a gain of £189 5 milllon (2012. gain of £95.9 millien),

Actuariol gains and losses have been reported in the statement of cornprehensive income. The cumulative amount of actuanal
gains and losses recognised in the statement of comprehensive income since the adoption of IFRS 15 a net loss of £334.3 million
{2012 netloss of £280.1 mullion).
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27 Retirerment benefit schemes (continued)
a) Defined benefit pension schemes (continued)

ii) Background

The group operctes a number of defined benefit pension schermes inthe UK, covenng the majonty of UK employees The defined
benefit pension schemes are funded to cover future salary and pension increases and therr assets are held in separate funds
adminstered by trustees. The tnustees are required to act in the best interests of the schermes’ benefiaanes. A formal octuanol
valuation of each scherme 15 camied out on behalf of the trustees at tnenmial intervals by an independent professionally qualified
actuary. Under the defined benefit pension schemes, memnbers are entitled to retirernent benefits colculated as a proportion
{varying between 1/30 and 1/80 for each year of sernice) of thewr salary for the final year of emnployment with the group or,

if higher, the average of the highest three consecutive years’ salary in the last 10 years of employmert.

The defined benefit pansion schames will close to future accruad on 31 March 2015 A new defined contribution pension scherne
hos been established and members of the defined benefit pension schemnas will then become members of the new defined
contnbution pension schesme. The existing defined contnbution pension scheme will also be replaced by the new pension
orrongements with effect from 1 Aprl 2015

From 1 Aprit 2012 new employees have been autormabically enrolled irto this schermne and those emplayees who were not
mesmbers of ¢ Severn Trent scheme were automatically enrolled into this scheme from 1 April 2013

The final salary sections of the pension schemes are dosed to new entrants ond the oge profile of scheme participants

1s expected to nse and hence senice costs are also expected ta nse until the schemes are dosed to future accrual.

The schemes typically expose the comparty to actuanal nsks such as market nsk, interest rate nsk and longewity risk,

The UK defined benefit pension schemes and the date of therr last formal actuanal valuation are as follows.

Date of lost formal actucnal valuation
31 March 2010

Severn Trent Mirror Image Pension Scheme ) 31 March 2010
*The STPS is the lorgest of the group’s UK defined benefit schemes.

The group has an abligation to pay pensions to a number of former emplayees, whose benefits would otherwise have been
restncted by the Finance Act 1989 earmings cap. Provision for such benefits amounting to £2 3 millon (2012 £8.6 million)

5 nduded as an unfunded scheme within the retrement benefit cbligaton.

{iv) Actuorial assumptions

The major assumptions used in the vatuation of the STPS (also the approximate weighted average of assumptions used for the
valuations of all group schemes) were os follows:

Sevem Trent Pension scheme (STPS)*

2013 2012

% %

Prce nflaton e S e - a2 M
Salaryincreases . L L3 36
Pension Increases in payment ' 3231
Mﬁq’"na&ﬁiﬂhdﬁnﬂ&ﬂ{m "_: B C """"“: "’_" . oo """"h o __-__32__ o 3}_
Dscountrate " T T L LA e
Long term rate of retumn on. o i o L .
Eaurhes oo T - 66 62
s~ T S U *
Goporiebonds S e R -
Bopety T 55 58
Hedgefunds e e e 8083
3 33

The assumption for pnce inflation 1s derived from the difference between the yields onlonger term fixed rote gilts and on
index-linked gitts, The discount rate s set by reference to AA rated sterling 18 yeor corporate bonds

The expected rate of retun on scheme assets is based on market expectations at the beginning of the penod for retums
over the ife of the benefit obligation For gilts and corporate bonds the expected rotes of return are based on market yrelds.
For equrbies, property and hedge funds, arisk premwum has been added to the gilt rate

The mortaltty assumnptions are bosed on those used in the triennial valuation of the STPS as at 31 March 2010 updated by a

further inveshgation camed out in connection with the 2013 valuation, which ndicated that members’ ife expectancy had not
been as high os the previous investigation had predicted.
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27 Retirement benefit schemes {continued)
a) Defined benefit pension schemes {continued)
{v) Actuanal assumptions {continued)
The mortality assunnptions adopted at the year end and the life expectandes ot age 65 mplied by the assumptbions are as follows:

2013 2012
Mortalitytableused _ e _ e
~men T shpSIMA L SAPS' SINMA, L
women T e _SINRAL O SINFAL
Mortality toble compared withstondardtable '~~~ T T T T T T
Smen 1% 110%
-women .. . - - — % 78%
Rfure rmprovementperonnum — C T T T 10% - 05%
Remaining bfe expectancy for members cunently aged 654eors) C
kLU 2. 5 S =
-women e L 246 5
Remaning fe expectancy at age 65 for members cumently aged 45 (years) T e
1T - = A - ¥
-Women ) ST T 26.2 i 259

The calculation of the scheme liabilities is sensitive to the actuanal assumphions and in particular to the assumptions relating to
discount rate, pnce inflation and mortahty The following table summanses the estimated impact on scherne labilibes and
senace cost resulting from changes to key actuarial assumptions whilst holding all other assumptions constant.

Assumphion Change in assumption Impact on scheme liabfibes

Dscountrate .~~~ Inaease/deaease by 0.1% Decregsefincease by £380milion
Preeflabon . Increcsedegeaseby01%  Incecseldeceoseby £350mion
Mortolity Increase in Ife expectancy by 1 year Increase by £55.0 million

In reclity, interrelationships exist between the assumptions, particularty between the discount rate and price inflaton.
The above analysis does not take into account the effect of these intemelationships.

{v) Effect on future cash flows

Contribution rotes are set m consuttation with the trustees for each scheme and each particpating employer

The average duration of the benefit abligabon at the end of the year is 18 years (2012: 18 years). The expected cash flows
payable from the schemes are presented in the graph below.

Image Removed

It s anticipated that normal contnbutions to the scherme in the year ended 31 March 2014 will be unchanged. The trienrual
waluations for both schernes for the year ending 31 March 2013 s in progress. Pending completion of thrs valuation, future ump
sum defict contributions will Indude a payment of £10 0 milion per annum in cosh and a further £8.2 million per annumn through
an asset backed funding amangement.
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27 Retirement benefit schemes {continued)
a) Defined benefit pension schemes (continued)

{v) History of actual and expected performance of pension scheme assets and babilres

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

fm Em fm £m fm
Present vaue of defined benefitobligations _~~ __ __(21080) (1030) {17655} (17479)_ (1,3080)
Farr value of scheme assets 1,7243 15572 14734 13930 10750
Defictt in schemes (3837) (345.8) {292 1) {3549) {233 0)
Difference between actual and expected return on scheme assets 103 (4.5) 122 2704 (329 8}
Expenence adjustments on scheme babilittes {155 5) {106.2) 1051 198 {7.9)

b) Defined contribution pension schermes

The group also operates defined contribution arrangerments for certam of ts UK and overseas employees In September 2001,
tha Severn Trert Group Pension Scherme {an occupational defined contribution pension scheme) wos established to ersure
compliance with stakehotder tegislation and to provide the group with an citemative pension arrangement. This was dosed
to new entrants on 1 Apnl 2005 and replaced by the Severn Trent Stakeholder Pension Scheme.

The total cost charged to operating costs of £6.6 million (2012 £4.9 million} represents contnbutions payable to these schemes
by the group ot rates speafied in the nules of the schemes. As at 31 March 2013, oll contrbutions (2012 100%) due in respect
of the current reporting period hod been patd over to the schemes.

28 Provisions

Temninated

Onerous  operations
Restructunng  Insuronce controcts ond disposals Other Totcd
fm £m £m £m fm £m
AcdApdl2012 e .. l9 M9 55 64 53 440
Chorged/{releosed) toncomestatement 07 90 (03 02 20 116
Utisotonofprovison (04 B8 @9 20 ___©2 (143
Drsposalofsubsdiones ~ - - @4 - 01 (03
Uwindingofdsscount o - s - 01 06
Exchange differences T - o T2 - 01 o1
At 31 March 2013 22 251 24 46 74 417
2013 2012
£m £m
Indudedm e e e o e s o e
Curentlabibes - . e . o MY 170
Non-current liabilities o T T T 306 270
417 440

The restructuring provision reflects costs to be ncured in respect of commtted restructunng programmes.
Derwent Insurance Limited, a captive insurance company, is a wholly owned subsidiary of the group Provisions for daims are made
as set out in note 2. The assoaated outflows are estimated to anse over @ penod of up to five years from the balance sheet date.

The onerous contract proviston retates to speafic contractual bobilites ether assumed with businesses acquired or ansing n
existing group businesses, where estimated future costs are not expected to be recovered in revenues. The associoted outflows
are estimated t0 ocour over a penod of 10 years fror the balance sheet date

Provisions relating to termmuoted operations and disposals indude omounts that it is probable will be paid in respect of dams
ansing from services performed by these businesses and the indemnities descnbed in note 37 b).

Other provisions indude provistons for dilapidations and commeraiol disputes. The assoaated outflows are estmated to arrse over
a penod up to six years from the balance sheet dote
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29 Share capital
2013 2012
£m £m
Totdissuedond fully padsharecapital e e e n o
238,365,734 ordinary shares of 97V7hsp (2012; 237,608,111) 2333 2326
Changes in share copital were as follows
Number £m
Odmnarysharesof 7%hsp . . L L e - . e e
Attap2on .. e e e e e 37042536 2322
Shares issued under the Employee Sharesave Scheme e o e aan . BA2593 04
Shares issued under the Unapproved Share Opion Scheme 22,984 -

AttApAZO12 . . R 237608111 _ 2326

Shares tssued under the Employee Sharesave Scheme 757,623 0.7

At 31 March 2013 238,365,734 2333
30 Share premium

2013 2012

£m £m

Atlpdpnl o o L 838 800

Share premium anising on issue of shares for Employee Sharesave Scheme - . 33, 3.7

Share premium ansing on issue of shares for Unapproved Share Option Scheme - 01

At 31 March 897 833
31 Other reserves

Coptol Translation
redemption  Infrostructure  exchange Hedging

reserve reserve reserve reserve Totol

£m £m £m £m £m

Atlppzon . _1s61__ 3th2_ _ 25k (312) 465

Totol comprehensive loss for the year - - (1.4) {62 9) (64.3)

AtTApd2012 1531 __ 3142 240 (941) 4002

Totat comprehensive loss for the year - (314.2) 49 (18.6) (327.9)

At 31 Morch 2013 156.1 - 289 (112.7) 723

The caopital redempbon reserve arose on the redemption of B shares,

The mfrastructure reserve arose on the group’s transition to IFRS from restating Severn Trert Water Limited’s infrastructure assets to
fair value os deemed cost. In the cuent year Severn Trent Wiater Limited has adopted the new accounting standard FRS 101, which

uses the recognitionand measurernent crtena of IFRS. The mfrastructure reserve has now been recognised in Severn Trent Water
Limited. During the year Sevemn Trent Water Limited used its infrastructure reserve to issue bonus shares, which were subsequently
cancelled. These transactions result in a transfer from the infrostructure reserve to retamed esrmimgs in these finanaal stotements.
The translaticn reserve arises from exchange differences on translation of the results and finanaal position of forexgn subsidianes
as well as foreign exchange differences ansing from hedges of net rwestment.

The hedging reserve arises from gains or losses on interest rate swaps token directly to equity under the hedge accounting
provisions of IAS 39 and the transttion nules of IFRS 1.

32 Financial instruments

a) Capitol management

The group’s prinapal objectrves m managing capital are

» to occess a bread range of sources of finance to obtain both the quantum required and lowest cost compatible with the need
for continued avaiiability;

= to maintain an investment grode aredit rabing; and

+ to mantain a flexible and sustomable balance sheet stnucture

The group seeks to achieve o bolance of long term funding or commitment of funds across a range of funding sources at the best

possible economic cost.

The group does not hove a spedific geanng target but seeks to maintan gearng at a level consistent with its caprtal management

objectives described above.

The group’s dividend policy ts a key tool in achieving its coprtal manogement ohjectives. This policy s reviewed and updated in

Tine with Severn Trent Water's five year price contral cycle and takes mto account, inter glia, the planned investment program me,

the appropnate gearing level achisving a balance between an effidert cost of capital and retaining an investment grade aredrt

rating and delivering an attractive and sustanable return to shareholders.
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32 Financial instruments (continued)
0) Capttal management {continued)
The group manitors future funding requirernents and credat market conditions to ensure continued availability of funds.

In July 2012 the group issued a £75 million sterbing denominated RPI inked bond i the retail bond market. A coupon of 1.3%
is payable on the notes which are due to mature in July 2022,

In January 2013 the group ssued £500 million 3.625% Guaranteed Notes under fts Eure Medium Termn Note programme
The notes have a 13 yeor term.

Dunng the year, the group repaid a £200 rilllon bank loan that was due for repayment in July 2013
A 10 yeor bilateral bank facility of £100 million wias drawn in the pemod.
At 31 March the group’s equity and debt capttal compnsed the following

2013 2012
£m £m
Cash and short term deposits o 4036 2951
Bankoverdrafts T Y 7 B <V
Bankfoans ) s8N (8525)
Other loans e L .. g9 (33269
Obligations under finance leases S 0 (o1e) (2190
Cross currency swaps 100.7 1359
Net debt (42973) (39678)
Equity atinbutable to the owners of the company ) ’ (8332)  {973.5)
Total copital (5130.5) (4941.3)
b} Categories of financial assets
2013 2012
fm £m
I-‘qlrvuluetl'lroughpmﬁtundloss o o . o . L
Crosscumency swaps- farvoluehedges ~ ~ o .. . 603 952
Fomlgn exchange forward contracts - nothedge accounted o . 0.1 -
Interest rate swaps - not hedge acoounted i L . o 210 237
Energy swaps - cosh flow hedges e - 08 25
Cross currency swaps — hot hedge accounted 48.8 412
1311 1626
Avdiloble for sole mvestments camied ot forvglee i o
Unquoted shares 0.1 0.1
loans and receivables (induding cgshand cashequnglents} L
Trodereceobles 0 0 T T T T T 9967 1814
Shorttermdeposts ) _ 387 2577
Cash at bank and in hand o 480 374
600 4 476 2
Total finanaal assets 731.6 6389
Disdlosed inthe batonce sheetos. " " T T T T T T
Non-currentassets e
Dervaive fingnadlinstuments T 1301 1326
Available for sale finanaal assets Tt T 01 01
130.2 1327
‘Curent gssets . o
Denvave francalmmments T 77T T TT TN T T 5 gy
Coshond coshequvalerts o T 4036 2951
TTOdEFECEI\IﬂblES(nOtEEZT—~ oo e s e B 1967 1811
6013 506.2
7315 6389
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32 Finandial instruments {continued)
¢) Categones of finanaal liabilties

2013 2012
£m £m

Farvaluethroughprofitendloss .
Cross cunency swops - not hedge aocourtted

’ 84 (05)
Interest rate swaps - cash flow hedges

.m0 w18

Interest rate swops - not hedge accounted et e L) 1944)
Energy swaps - cosh flow hedges y i (14

02 06)
(3102)  (2885)

Foféign exchange forward contracts - nat hedgé accounted

Other finoncalbabiltes

Bonkloans B ] . L as8n (8523
Otherlogns ) o (38409 (3,3269)
Obligations under finance leases e . Core) (190)

Bank overdrafts T (- I L
Trodepayobles } i T o (30.7) (349)

(4,8323) ([(#4337)
Total financal kabilties (5142.5) (4,7222)

Non-cument liabitibes

RS- e mm e r—— — - - - - - [PV, - - e —

Dervative finanaat instruments : _(305 é_) ) :(~2—8—8 0)

Bonomﬁgs _________________ i T - T T T T 66313) (4,3095)
Todepayobles ’ S T G -

(6,9429) (45975
Current labites o o
Denvatvefinancglinstruments L e . B l0S)
Bomowngs U703 (893)
Trade payables (note 25) (28.7) {349)

{199.6} (1247)

{5,142.5) (4,722.2)
d) Fair values of financial mstruments

Except as disdosed betow, the directors corsider that the carrying omount of financal assets and babilbies recorded m the
financd statements approxamate therr fair volues.

2013 012

Bookwilue  Farwive  Bookwalue  Farvohe

£m £m £m £m

Bankloans -omortisedcost . -~ . . ... . U38D  (816) - (8523)  (8583)
Otherloans o et o - e B89 4,852) B3265) (3,9367)
Obligations under finance letses - amortised cost (2016)  (208.2) (2190) {215.4)

{4,8012) (55750}  (4,3984) (5,0099)

Discounted future cash flows gre used to determine far values for debt. Discount rates are derived from yield curves based on
quoted interest rotes and are adjusted for the group's credit nsk.

Farr volue measurerments recognised n the balance sheet

In 2013 and 2012, all the fair volues of finandial instruments that were measured subsequent to intial recognition at farr value,
were based on obsenvable inputs other than quoted prces for dentical instruments, defined os Level 2" InIFRS 7,

The fair value of mterest rote swaps is cadaudoted os the present value of the estimated future cash flows estmiated and discounted
based on the application of yield curves denved from quoted interest rates,

Cross currency swaps and forward exchange contracts are vatued by reference to quoted forward exchange rates at the

balance sheet date and yreld curves derved from quoted mterest rates matching the maturites of the contracts.
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32 Financial instruments {continued)
€} Finanaial risk factors

The group’s activities expose it toa vanety of fimanaial nsks market nsk (induding currency and interest rate risk), credit risk,
lequidity nsk and inflabion nsk. The group’s overoll risk monagement programime oddresses the unpredictabiity of financial
rmarkets and seeks to reduce potential odverse effects on the group's financol performance or position.

Anancial nsks are managed by a.central treasury department (Group Treasury) under policies approved by the board of
directors Group Treasury identifies, evatuates and hedges finanaal risks in close cooperation with the group’s operating
units. The boord provides wnitten pnnaples for overall nsk management, as well as written policies covenng specific oreas
such as exchange rate nsk, interest rate nsk, credit nsk and the use of dervetive and non-dervative finanaal instruments.
Denvatrve finoncial mstruments are used to hedge exposure to dhanges in exchange rates and interest rates.

The group’s policy ts that derivative finanool instruments are not held for trading,

() Market nsk

The pnnapal market isk that the group 1s exposed to s fluctuations in interest rates

Interest rate nsk

The group’s iIncome and operabing cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market nterest rates.

The group’s interest rate nsk arises from long tern bomowings. Borrowings issued at vanable rates expose the group to

cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the group to farr volue interest rate risk. The group’s policy
Is to maintain 45% to 90% of its net debt in fixed rate instruments. At 31 March 2013 76.8% of the group’s net debt was at
fixed rotes (2012: 74 0%).

The group manages its cash flow interest rate nsk by using floating te fixed interest rate swaps. Such interest rate swaps have the
economic effect of converting borrowings from floating rates to fixed rates, Under the termns of the interest rate swaps, the group
agrees with ather porties to exchange, mainly sermi-onnually, the difference between fixed contract and floating rate interest

rates calcutated by reference to the agreed notional prinapal amounts The group has entered into a series of long dated mterest
rate swaps to hedge future interest payments. Economically these act to fix the nterest cost of debt withun the group whichis
denominated as floating rate, but do not achseve hedge accounting under the stnct antena of TAS 39 This has led to 6 £25 2 milion
charge {2012. charge of £80 3 million) in the income statement.

Some of the group’s debt is Index-linked, that 15 its cost 5 linked to changes inthe Retail Pnce Index {RPT) This debt provides an
econpmic hedge for Severn Trent Water's revenues ond Reguiatory Capital Value that are also RP1 Iinked under tts regulatory regime

Financial kiabilities analysed by mterest rate after taking account of vanous interest rate swaps entered into by the group

Non-interest

bearing Flogting Fixed Index-

lhabiltes rate rate linked Total
2013 £m £m £m fm £m
Bank loans and overdrafts o o = (3004 (19100 _(267.7)  (758.1}
Otherloops__ o i o L (12) (1952) (2541.0) {1,103.5) (3,8409)
Financeleases . R T T T o) - (2016
Other financial loblities {30 7) - - - {30.7)

_B19)  (4956)  (29336) (1371.2) (4,8323)

Impuct of Interest rate swaps not matched against

speaffic debt instuments - 3649 (364.9) - -
31.9) (1307) (3,2985) (13712) (4,8323)
Weighted average interest rote 5.44%

Weaghtedaverugepenodforwhlchlnterestlsfxed(years) o ) ) 113
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32 Financial instruments {continued)
&) Financial risk factors {(cortinued)

(1 Morket risk (contmued)
Financial babiities anatysed by interest rate after taking account of various riterest rate swaps entered nito by the group (continued)
NorHnterest

e e e ed o
2012 £fm £m £m £m fm
Bonkloonsondoverdpgfts - (5004) {1922) {1603} _ (8529)
Otherfoans R (12) ~ (2652) (0631) (9974} (33269)
Finangce leases e 1] 0} I 3 11
Other finoncialliobiitles - = (34.9)

G61) _ (7656) _ (2,474:3) 1577) %4337

_[m_Bc—Jc'E of nterest rote swdps—notﬁr'ﬁafﬁed ogc—nﬁsf )

specific debt instruments - 4563 6 {463 86) - -
(361) (302.0) (29379 (1157.7) {44337
Weghted averoge interest rate e e e L2BA® L
Weighted average period for which interest is fixed {ye {years) 128
Finanaal assets analysed by interest rates
Non-nterest
beanng Foatng Fixad Index-
assets rote rate {inked Total
2013 fm fm £m £m £m
Avalable for scle finanaidessets o0t - - ... 01
Loansandrecevobles o ___1967 L T -, =X
Cash and cash equwalents - 403.6 - - 4036
1968 403.6 - - 600.4
Non-nterest
beanng Hoating Fixed Index-
assets rate rate lnked Totdl
2012 £fm fm £m fm £m
Avdlable forslefinoncal essets . o1 - - .. -._.09
Loans and recenvables e e M0 - oD L1810
Cosh and cash equivalents - 295.1 - - 2951
181.1 295.1 - - 5762

Interest rate sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity of the group’s profit after tax, cash flow and equity, mduding the impact on derivative finoncial instruments,
to changes in interest rates at 31 March is as follows.

2013 2012

+10% -1.0% +1.09% -1.0%

£m fm £m £m

Profit after tax j L 628 a4) 753 (901)
Cshfow @n 21 01 (1)
Equity T 28 T (306) 0 1217 (1431)

Inflation rate sensibvity analysis

The sensitvty of the group’s profit ofter tax and equity to changes in inflation at 31 March is set out i the following table
Ths analysis excludes any impact on Sevemn Trent Water's revenues and Requiated Caprtal Vialue, or accounting for
defined benefit pension schemes.

2013 2012
+1 0% -1.0% +1,0% -1.0%

£m £m £m £m

Profit ofter tox (l04) 104 88) 88
Fquty (104) 104 {8.8) 88

LONOULOMULAY  SLALLSI0NS [ounLty AUpduusey)  SIUSUUNS [DOLOWY) 0RAKS)  S0UDLLIADD  MEWA) SSEISNG  MBWEND
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32 Finencial tnstruments (continued)

e) Financial risk factors (continued)

(i) Market nsk (continued)

Exchange rote risk

The group operates internationally and is exposed to exchange nsk arising from net investments in foreign operations, primarily
with respect to the US dollor and the euro However, since substantially all of the group’s profits and net ossets anse from
Sevem Trent Water, which has very firmited and ndrrect exposure to changes n exchange rates, the sensitwty of the group’s
results to changes in exchange rates is not material,

The group's net debt incdudes foreign currency bormowangs, parmarily denorminated in yen and euros The group's policy is to
manage the exchonge nsk ansing from foreign cumency bormowangs by entenng mnito cross curency swaps or forward contracts
with external parbes.

The group’s gross and net currency exposures arising from currency barmowings are summarised below.

Euro US dollar Japanese yen  Czech krona
CKm

2013 €m Sm ¥bn
Bomowngsbyeurency _ . L . . o_.. ... ..\7218 &00) {245  {€200)
Cross cumency swaps - hedge occounted e e ....21990 500 145 6200
Cross currency swaps - not hedge accounted 7000 - 100 -
L e . - . S ¢ 22/ AU S
Cash 3.9 381 - -
Net cumency exposure 2.2 381 - -
Euro S dollar Jopanese yen  Czechkrono
2012 €m Sm Vbn ZKm
Bomowngsbycurrency ___ . (1208 600 G0G {1,700
Crosscumency swaps-hedgeaccounted ——139 500 200 13700
Cross currency mwﬁ"s - not hedge accounted 7000 - 100 -
e e o e s e e = e R ./ e
Cash T 5377 221 - -
Net curmency expasure 4.6 221 - -

The eure ond US dollar net cash bdlances relate to operations in which the euro or US dollar is the functional currency.
Mongctary assets and robiitres by currency, exdudming functiendal currency

Certain of the group’s subsidianes enter into transactions in currencies other than the funchonal currency of the operation
Exchange nsks relating to such operations are not moterial but are manoged centratty by Group Treasury through forward
exchange contracts to buy or sell currency

() Credit nsk

Operationally the group has no sgnificant concentrations of aredit sk, It has pobaes in place to ensure that sales of products
are made to customers with an appropriate credit history, other than in Sevem Trert Water Limited, whose operating licence
obliges t to supply domeshc customers even n cases where bills are not paid. Amounts provided against accounts recevable
and movernents on the provision during the year are disdosed in note 22

For finanang purposes, derivative counterparties and cash transactions are Umited to hegh credit quality financial mstitutions.
The group has poliaes that bmit the amount of credit exposure to any one finanaial institution.

Credit risk analysis
At 31 March the aggregate cred:t limits of authonsed counterparties and the amounts held on short term deposits were as follows:
Credit Bt Amount deposited
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m fm
AAA w_ 200 200 13 01
Double A range N [ 1. T+ 1500 82.0 1111
Single A range 6250 4500 2724 1465

7950 6200 355.7 2577
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32 Financial instruments {continued)
&) Financial risk factors {continued)
() Credit nsk {continued)
Credit sk analysss {continued)
The fair volues of derivative assets anclysed by aredrt ratings of counterparties were as follows.
Denmvative assets
2013 2012
Ratng £m £m
Double A range ; s - . 446
Single A range o T T ) 1014 1180
1311 1626

() Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity management implies raintaming sufficient cash batances and the availability of funding through on adequate
amount of commtted fodlibes and the ability to dose out market positions Group Treasury manages bquidiity and flexibility in
funding by moritonng forecast and actual cash flows and the matunty profite of financiol assets and Liabiltes, and by keeping
cormnmitted aredit ines available

At the balunce sheet date the group had committed undrawn borrowing facilities expiring as foltows:

2013 2012
£m £m
1-2 years o - -
25yeas . ... .sw0_ 5000
After more thanfveyears o7 T - 1000
5000 6000

Non-dervotive finanaal instruments analysed by maturity date

The following tables detail the group’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-denvative net finanaol abibties,
Theinformation preserited s based on the earliest date on which the group can be required to pay and represents
the undiscounted cash flows nduding pnnapol and interest.

Between Between Betwean Between ten Greater
Withinone onecndtwo twoondfve fireowiten andtwenty thontwenty

year years years yeors years years Total

2013 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Owedreft . 0N - T I Do -, .. 03
Borkloans e e e, (1823) (123 @363 G197 290 - (68796
Gherloans (1994) _ (4012) (20710  (6067) (21799) (56779) (11,1361)
Financeleases (4.6) (282} (813) (319 (11313 - (2651
‘Other financid liabilibes = - - - (307)
{4174) (4417} (24886) {964.3) (23220) (56779) (1231159)

Fnoncdlgsses T e —
Toderecenatiss "7 T T UgEF T T I T T T T ey
Cash and short term deposits 4036 - - - - - 4036
600.3 - - - - - 6003

Net cash flows 18296 (4417) (2488.6) (8643) (23220) (56779} (11,71156)

UOOOLUOJU R0 SIUSUANONS j00UDL)) AUDdW)  SJUBWISHIS |DoUsUL dNoIS  S0UDUIANDD  MaIna) SSBUSIE  MAIND
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32 Finandal instruments {continued)

) Finanaal risk factors {(continued)

{iip) Liquxdity nsk (continued)

Non-demvative finanaal instruments analysed by matunty date {continued)

Between Betweoen Between Between ten Greqter
withnone oneondtwo twoondfve fmeondten andiwenty thontwenty

yeor years years years yeors years Toted
2012 £m £m fm £m £m £m £m
Frendalbobies_ . __ . . ...
Overdraft _ o o4 - = - - = (04)
Barkioans o o ___(297) (3846)  (1914)  (3401) (339) - (9707}
Other louns i i 2621y (7)) (1,908.9) 837 7) (2,224.8) (6 0227) (11 431.3)
F'nonceleos&s i &) (254 (10836) (3156)_ @231y - (2921)
Other financial fabilires {349) - - - - - (34 9)
(3225) (5851) (2,2039) (1,2134) (23818} (60227) (12,7294)
Fnoncalassets ) i L
Trade recenvables I - § I &
Cash and short term deposits - 7% T - - - 2951
4762 - - - - - 476.2
Net cash flows 153.7 (5851) (2,2039) (1,2134) (2,3818) (6,022.7) (12,2532)

Other loons indude mdex-inked debt with maturities up to 55 years The principat is revalued ot fixed intervals and is linked to
movernents n the Retail Price Index. Interest payments are made biannually based on the revalued prinapol. The prinapal

repayment equals the revalued amount at matunty. The calculotions above are based on forward inflation rates at the
balance sheet date

The group has bank loans which may becorne repayable in certain crcurnstances following a change in controt of Severn Trent Ple.
The camying volue at 31 March 2013 of bank leans subject to such conditions was £617 3 riflion.

Derivative finanaal instruments analysed by matunty date

The following table details the group's lquidity analysis for its dervative finanaal instruments, The tables are based on the
undiscounted net cash inflows/(outflows) on the derivative financial mstruments that settle on a net basis and the undiscounted
gross inflows/outflows) on those derivatives that require gross settlernent. When the amount payable or recenvable is not fixed,
the amount discdlosed has been detemnined by reference to the projected interest and foreign currency rates denved from the
forward aurves existing at the batance sheet dote Actual amounts may be signficantty defferent from those indicated below.

Between Between Between Between ten Greater
Withnone oneondtwo twoondfive fiveandten andtwenty thoniwenty

2013 o Tem o o Tim Tem s
Denvamellatﬂl"m"ems“ o - o o
Instumentssetedret " " T T T o T
Interestroteswops  _____ (363) (412} (1109 (976) _ (559) _ 2 __ (441
Energy swaps {03) {1.5) - - - - (1.8)
(366) 42.7) (1109) {97 6) (55.9) (2.2) (345.9)
Derivativegssets e e
Instryﬁrl\gntssetﬂednet o T i - L .
Interestroteswaps  B6 86 41 - o 213
Energyswops 10 - - - e . ..A0
Instrumﬁssetﬂe?giro&?’ o T
Crossaumencyswaps T e
cashrecepts ""373 1254 6835 56 407 - 8925
- cash payments {36.2) (98.3) (600.2) 3.2) 237} - (761.6)

107 35.7 87.4 24 170 - 153.2
Net cash flow (25.9) (7.0} {235) (95.2) (389) (2.2) {192.7)
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32 Fnandial instruments (continued)

) Financial risk factors {continued)

(i) Liquidity risk (continued)

Derivotive financial instruments andlysed by maturity date {continued)

Between Between Between Between ten Greater
Withnone onecndtwo twoondfve fveondten ondtwenty than twenty

year years years years yeas years Total
2012 ifm Em £m £m £fm £m £m
Devawveboblbes
Instumentssetilednet e e+
nterestroteswops " (@35 (394)  (1106) " 936) (49) __(46)__ (3568
Energy swops - (04) (1.1) - - - {1.5)
(335) 398 (111.7) (936) (74.9) {46)  (3581)
Instruments settled net R
Interestteswops 38 32 0 34 - T s
Eremgyswaps L . . LB .07 - - B O = 3
Instruments settled gross T
JCosaumengyswops
_-coshrecepts 1239 34 8149 52 &7 o~ 10281
- cosh payments {978) 370)  (7154) {3.7) (248) - {878 7)
337 43 1029 1.5 139 - 1623
Net cash flow 0.2 (35.5) (8.8) {92.1) (550) {46) (1958
f) Hedge accounting

The group uses demvative finanaal mstrurnents to hedge exposures to changes in exchange rates and interest rates,

Hedge accounting s adopted for such instruments where the cntena set out n1AS 3% are met.

(i) Farr value hedges

The group raises debt denominated in currencies other than stering - principally yen and euro, Cross currency swaps are entered
mto at the time that the debt is drawn down to swap the proceeds into sterfing debt beanng interest based on LIBOR in order to
mitigate the group's exposure to exchange rate fluctuabons, The terms of the recervable leg of the swap dosely match the temns
of the underlying debt hence the swaps are expected to be effective hedges At the year end the ameounts of cross cumency swaps
designated as far value hedges were as follows.

Notiond! princpa amourt Far value
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m
US dollar T 270 270 87 76
Buo 14 114 93 78
Yo T M 984 33 590
Czech krona o - T 147 47.2 70 208
1245 1840 603 95.2

(@) Cash flow hedges

The group has entered into interest rate swaps under which it has ogreed to exchange the difference between fixed and floating
interest rate amounts caladated on ogreed noticnal pinapal amounts. Such contracts enable the group to mitigate the nsk of
changing interest rates on future cash flow exposures ansing from ssued vanable rate debt. The group also erttered into a number
of interest rate contracts with future start dates dunng the AMPS regulatory period. Such contracts enable the group to mitigate
the nsk of changmg mterest rates on debt which i highly probable to be issued over the AMPS penod to fund Severn Trent Water’s
capital programme and have been accounted for as cash flow hedges. The far value of interest rate swaps at the batance sheet
date s determined by discounting the future cash flows using the yield curve prevailing at the balance sheet date and the aredit sk
inherent n the contract

The nterest rate swaps pnmarily settle net on a biannual basts. The floahng rate on the interest rote swaps s six month LIBOR.

LOGOULIO AL SIUSLUSAMS pounuy AUcduxy) — SILSLUSINS JORUDUL ON0ID.  B0LDLUAADE  MBAD) SSBLUBTIY  MBILBAD
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32 Finandial instruments (continued)

f) Hedge accounting {continued)
(i} Cash flow hedges (continued)
Details of interest rate swaps that have been accounted for os cash flow hedges are summansed betow:
Average cordroct fixed
nterest rate Notona! prnapal amount Far value

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Penod to motunty % % £m £m £m £m
Less than 10 years o - - T T C e .l
1020years . __50m% 507%_ fo10) @e23) (i280)  (918)
More than 20 years -

507% 507% (491.0) {492.3) (1280) (91 6)

The group hos entered into a series of energy swaps under which it has agreed to exchange the difference between fixed and
market prices of elecincity at six monthly mtervals up to March 2015

Details of energy swaps that have been accounted for as cash flow hedges are summansed below

Avernge contract pnce  Notienal controcied amount Fow value

2013 2012 013 2012 2013 2012

Penod to motunty £/MWh EMwh MWh Mwh £m £m
Lessthon1year o 533 488 550368 725088 @ 06 18
1-2years L 629 533 174720 550368 {15 03
2-5years - 629 - 174,720 - (10)
556 522 725088 1,450,176 {0.9) 11

Chonges in the amounts deferred in equity during the period reloting to cash flow hedges were as follows:

2013 2012

fm £m

Far value (losses)/gains deferred in equity at the start of the penod (644) 184

fairvalue losses recognised in equitynthepened o Beo (865}
Fair value gains transferred to finance costs in the penod 148 37

Fair value fosses deferred in equity at the end of the period (88.6) (64.4)

(i) Interest rate swaps not hedge accounted

The group hus a number of interest rate swaps which are not accounted for os cash flow hedges. Dunng the year, the group
terminated three of these swaps, with a notional vatue of £100.0 mitlon, at a cash outlay of £44 3 milion

Contracts where the group pays fixed rote interest are summansed below:

Average contract fixed
interest rate Notonal prnapa! gmount Farvalue
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Penod to matunty % % £m £m £m £m
Lessthan1year e e e e e e T i e T T = =
-2years e e e T e .. T T s e
2boyears e e 832 632 250 250 G17 G719
2 10yeas O S P
Wyeas | T 0 053 AT OIS 336 (06 (1146)
20-30 years 510 510 1250 1250 {49.5) {41.9)
559 5.61 5643 663.6 {171.8) (194.4)

Contracts where the group recemves fixed interest are summansed below:

Average controct fixed
interest rate Notional panapat amount far value
2013 2012 2m3 2012 2013 2012
Period to matunty % % £m fm £m £m
Lessthanlyear = i o T T e = i e T -
By e — & e e e e T = e T o
2-5 years 518 518 2000 200.0 210 237

518 518 2000 2000 21.0 237
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33 Share based payments

The group operates ¢ number of share based remuneration schemes for emnployees. Dunng the year, the group recogrised

total experises of £6 8 milfion {2012. £4.1 rmullion) related to equity settted share based paymment transactions.

The weighted average share price durmyg the penod was £16 49 (2012: £15.00)

At 31 March 2013, there were no options exerasable (2012: none) under any of the share based remuneration schemes.

a) Long Term Incentive Plans (LTIPs)

Under the LTIPs conditional awards of shares may be made to executive directors and senior staff Awards are subject to
performance conditions and continued employiment throughout the vesting penod. Awards have been made on different bases
to Severn Trent Pic and Severn Trent Water employees (the LTIP) and to Severn Trent Services employees (the Services LTIP).

() Awards outstanding

Awards made under the LTIP

InJuly 2012 awards over 99,886 shares (2012: 112,446 shores) with a fair value of £15 36 (2012: £12.16) were made to

16 ermployees (2012. 18 employees) under the LTIP These awards are subjact to Severn Trent Water's achievernent of Return

on Regulated Capital Value in excess of the level nduded in the Severn Trent Water AMPS busmess plan aver a three year

veshng penod. It has been assumed thot performance against the LTIP non-rarket condibions will be 100% (2012: 100%)
Awards rmade under the Senaces LTIP

In July 2012 awards over 28,599 shares (2012 38,493 shares) with a far volue of £15 36 (2012: £12 16) were made to nine
employees (2012: 10 employees) under the Services LTIP These awards are subject to achieverment of turnover and profit torgets
m the year ending 31 March 2015. It has been assumed that performance agamnst the 2011 Services LTIP non-market conditions
will be 10% (2012: 75%) ond the 2012 Services LTIP will be 75%

The awards granted in July 2008 vest n three equal tranches which are subject to achieverment of tumover and profit targats in the
years ending 31 March 2011, 2012 and 2013. It has been assumed that performance agamst the 2008 Setvices LTIP non-mcrket
conditions wilt be 0% (2012: 0%)

Detafls of changes n the number of awards cutstonding dunng the year are set out below

Number of owards

LIP ServicesLTIP
Outstonding at 1 April 2011 __ - 402701 101,387
Gurteddunngtheyear T 112446 38493
Fofeteddunngtheyear ~~~ ~ " " T T T agee) T (10329)
Lopsed during the year T(116,714)  (34,607)
Outstondngat1Aprl2012 383487 94944
Goredduongtheyear . 99886 2859
Vesteddunngtheyer T epsy -
Lapsed duning the year (116,324) (33,671}
Outstanding ot 31 March 2013 321024 89872
Detatls of LTIP and Services LTIP awards outstanding at 31 March were as follows.

Number of awards
Date of grant Nonmia! date of vesting 2013 2012
Juyz008 w2 - 33671
dy2008 e et e e LD 2013 314531145
July2009 e e e o 2012 - 151786
Jayoi0 T 3 15568 127,727
My20m T TT T T T T a0k 129209134102
July 2012 e 2015 124,974 -

410,896 478,431
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33 Share based payments {continued)
a) Long Term Incenttive Plans (LTIPs) (continued)
(i) Farr value

The share price at the grant dote was £17 49 (2012: £13.98). The vesting period commences before the grant date
Performance in the vesting penod pror to the grant date is taken into account n determining the far value of the award.

The fair value of the LTIP awards made dunng the year was cdiculated using the Black-Scholes method with the prnapal
assumptions set out below:

Assurnptions 2013 2012
Expected volatilty - SevemTrentPc e . 18 21%
Expected dvidend yield 4.3% 4 7%

Expected volatiltty is measured over o histoncal penod, prior to grant, cormmensurate with the expected term of the awards
Volatility has been colculated based on histoncal share price movements over the three years pnor to the date of the grant.

The nsk free rate is denved from yields at the gront date of gilts of similor duration to the LTIP awards.

The dnrdend yeeld s calouloted using the expected didend for the year dvided by the share price at the date of grant.
Detaits of the basis of the LTIP schemes are set out in the remuneration report on pages 67 and 68

b} Employee Sharesave Scheme

Under the terms of the Sharesave Scheme, the board may grant the nght to purchase ordinary shares in the company to those
employees who have entered into an HMRC approved Save As You Eam contract for a penod of three or five years.

{1} Options outstanding
The number of employees entering into Shareseve contracts and the number of options granted durng the year were as follows

2013 012

3 yeor 5 year Iyear 5 year

scheme scheme schermne scheme

Number of employees 1,872 412 1610 363

Numberofoptionsgronted 77T 77T 556821 144594 440930 127,631
Details of changes m the nurmber of options outstanding during the year are set out below

Weghted

Number of average
share opbons exerose pnog

Outstondingat1Apri2011 i 3128185  904p
Granted dunng the year - S T © se8SEl  1177p
Forfetedduringtheysor S ~ (60730 903p
Cancelled dunngthe year L o (51,578) _ 947p

Exercised dunng the year o o T T T Twkased) | 928p
tapsed dunng the year ) oo (57357 913p
Outstondrnget1Apd202 3084486 950
Granteddunngtheyear T T T T e01415  141p
Forfefted during the yeor o T T e e 1005
Concelled duingtheyer o (aA590) 1094p
Eneruseddunngtheyear e O L 1 T £ ___?_2_8;1_
Lapsed during the year T (7,708)  1028p

Outstanding ot 31 March 2013 2,834,486 1,027p
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33 Share based payments (continued)
b) Employee Sharesave Scheme (continued)
{i) Options cutstanding (continued)
Sharesave options outstanding at 31 March were as follows.
Number of share optons
Oate of grartt Normdl date of exerase  Option pce 2013 2012
Joruory2005 i . 2012 759p - S2%12
Jonuary2006 T o mo 2013 823p 20468 20468
Jonuary2007 T T 012002014 CL172p 11392 78280
Jonuary 2008 e 2013 1221p 74976 78488
January 2009 o 201202014 862p 511960 1,141,447
Janwory2010 T 013002015 806p 774028 810413
Jonuary2011 T T T T T T 014 0r2016 1,137p 315258 334,910
Jowary2002 T Tt T T T T 15 0r017 T 1177p 52553 567,568
January 2013 2016 0r 2018 1241p 600 870 -
2834486 3084486
(i) Farr value

The farr value of the Sharesave options granted during the year wos calaulated using the Black-Scholes model.

The pnnapal assumptions were os follows:

2013 2012
Assumphions sc?uﬁ sc?e;ye:é sd\eme3m m
Boectedvolatity o e )R 18% 2T% TR
Expecteddivdendyeld T T A% 4%  46%  46%
Rk freergte 0 .0 046% o 096% 0.53% 1 75%
Far value per share 257p 239p 320p 339p
Expected volatility s measured over a histancal penod, prior to grant, commensurote with the expected term of the awards.
Volablity has been calcutated bosed on histoncal shore prce movements over the three years pror to the dote of the grant.
The nsk free rate is derived from yrelds at the grant date of gilts of similar duration to the Sharesave controcts.
The ddend yield s coladated usmg the expected dividend for the year divided by the share pnce ot the date of grant.
The followng dato was used in calculating the far vatue of the Sharesave options:
2013 2012
3year Syear 3year 5 year

scheme  scheme

scheme  scheme

Sharepceatgmntdate T 1g05p 1605p  1520p  1520p

Vesting peniod (years) 3 5 3 5
Opton life (years) a5 55 35 55
) Share Incentive Plan (SIP)

Under the SIP the board rmiay grant share awords to ermployees of group componies. Bunng the year the board hes announced
that it will make gwards under the SIP based on performance against Severn Trent Water's targets for its Key Performance
Indicators. Eligible employees will be entrled to shares to a rmamamum value of £750 It is expected that these awards will be

made in August 2013 SIP shares vest with the employee on the date of grant.
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33 Share based payments (continued)
d) Share Matching Plan {SMP)

Under the Share Matching Plan members of the Executive Committee receive matching share awards over those shares which have
been acquired under the deferred share component of the annuat bonus scheme Matching shares may be awarded at a maxmum
rato of one matching share for every one deferred share and are subject to o three year vesting penod. Dunng the year mafching
shares were awarded at a rabo of 0.5:1

Matching shares are subject to total shareholder returm over three years megsured relative to the comparies rerked 51-150

by market capitalisation in the FTSE Index (exduding imvestment trusts) This replicates the LTIP performance condihion for the
Jly 2010 award.

The number of shares subject to an award will increase to reflect dvidends pad through the performance penad on the basis of
such notional dividends being reinvested at the then prevailing share price. Awords will nommually vest as soen as the Remuneration
Committee determines that the performance condiions have been met provided that the participant remains m employment at
the end of the performance penod

{)) Awards outstanding

During the year 18,024 (2012. 19,072) matching shares with a farr value of £11 43 (2012 £8.84) were awarded to 10 employees
(2012:11).

Number of awards
Outstanding at 1 April 2011 o - o B 25187
Gronted dunng the year o o i o j—_ m . . _ o 19072
Cancelled dunng the year o ~ i - o (1,900
Vested dunng the year B ) {909)
Outstanding at 1 April 2012 - L 41450
Granted during the year o - . 118024
Cancelled dunng the year - o (2,091)
Outstanding at 31 March 2013 57,383
Details of share matching awards outstanding ot 31 March were as follows
Nurnber of owards
Date of gront Normot date of vesting 013 2012
May 2010 L ~ __June2013 20748 22378
Moy 2011 LT T T I T ol T sen Csom.
May 2012 May 2015 18024 -
57383 41450
(i) Far value
The fair value of the share matching owards made dunng the year was calcutated using the Monte Carlo method using the
principal assurmphions set out below:
ASSUMpoNS 2013 2012
Expected volatiity - Sevem TrentPle ) i o 182% | 258%
Risk free rote T T o 0.3% 14%

Share price volatility 1s based on observations over 6 histarical penod pnor to the date of grant, commensurate with the expected
terrn of the performance period Volotlity has been colaudated based on histoncal share price movements aver the three years prior

to the grant dute,
The share price at the gront dote was £17 01 (2012: £15.02).

Dadends poid on the shares dunng the vesting penod are accumulated dunng the vesting penod

ond released subject tothe

achievemertt of the performance condition, in the same manner as the undertying shares. As a result a didend yield assumption

1s not required,
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34 Acquisitions

In Juty 2012 the group acquired the trade and assets of Chlorne Engineers’ CECHLO business (CEC) for cash consideration
of £1 3 million, This transaction has been accounted for by the purchase method of aocounting.

Book value Farrvalue
£m £m

Net assets gequired. | L e e i
Intongible ossets 13 13
Total consideration 13

Saisfiedby i e e e e e = e e e
Cash 13

CEC contributed £2 1 million to revenue and incurred a loss before tax of £0.1 milllon for the penod between the date
of acquistion and the balance sheet date

35 Disposal of businesses

On 22 June 2012 the group completed the sale of its meter installation, repair and replacement business to Enterprise Plc.
On 4 February 2013 the group disposed of Sevem Trent Analytical Senvices to ALS Limited.

The net assets of the businesses ot the dates of disposal were os follows:

Net assets disposed of

Infongbleassets~ ~ 0 T T T T T T T .08
Property, | pluntandequlpment R, 85
Inventory L e A2
Trodeondotherrecevables S S 50
deeundotherpayubles L T 3 |
Bankoverdroft . i . 2\

Provisions (24)

Costs assodated with dsposals.

Dlsposclcosts o e o R -
Provnsnonsansmgondlsposd 21

Net loss on disposal (1.5)
Total consideraton 103
Satsshed by:

Net cash flow ansing from disposals.

Considenation receved mcshand coshequatents T 7 T T T L 103

Bank overdraft disposed of ) R o 21

MOGDULOM /BUI0)  SUREIDNS [0outuy AUode)  SIURWAIDIS IDRUDUY e SIUDLLBAOS  MBINGI SSAUISNE  M3INRA0
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36 Cash flow statement
a) Reconciliation of operating profit to operating cash flows

Profit before interest and tax 4922 469.8

Depreaation of property, plant and equipment 2646 256.0

Amortsation of mtangibleassets " T T T T 0 TP T U305 T 308
Exceptonal impaiment e . 82 Ay
Pensionservicecost ) o < - 226
Curtglmertgon . _ L i (23.1)
Pension contributions ~~ """ T T e t5) (535
Sharebasedpoymentscharge T T N - I )
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment and mtong'bleossmg!g::"t"_ R ¢ = N .
lossondisposalofbusinesses e e S
Deferred incorme movement o sy _ 87
Provsions charged to the income staterment. ) 7T 116 168
Utilisaion of provisions for babiirties and charges : ) “ S a3y a1y
Decreasef(increose) n mventory o T £ N )
(Increase)/decrease in amounts re recenvoble (29.49) 61

(Decreaselincrease n amounts poyuble (24) 50
Cash generated from operations 7312 7259

Tox pad 725 720
Net cash generated from operating activites 658.7 6539

b) Non-cash transactions

No addibons to property, plant and equipment during the year were financed by new finance leases (2012 ml) Assets transferred
frorn developers were £23.0 milion {2012 £37 0 million)

c) Exceptional cash flows
The following cash flows arose from tems dossdied as exceptional in the income statement.

2013 2012
fm £m

Restructunng costs G4  (144)

Disposaloffeed assets S o R S
Customer controctual dsputes N - . T - . -
Reguiatory matters - (3.9

Finance costs - (16.5)

d) Recondliation of movement in cash and cash equivalents to movement Innet debt

Asat RP1 uplift on Other Asat

1 April Forwlve index-inked Forsgn  noncash 31 Morch

2012 (oshfiow odpstments debt  exchonge movernents 013

£ £m fm £m im £m £m
Coshandcashequwvalerts 2951 1084 - - 01 - 4036
Bank overdrafts (04) - - - - - {04}

Net cosh and cosh equavalents 2947 1084 - - 01 - 4032
Bark loons (852.5) 1013 - {7.5) - - (758.7)
Other loans (3.326.9) (5097 34 32.1) (11) 255 (38409
Finance leases N o (2190 174 - - - - (201.6)

Cross curency swaps 1359 e (80) s - 272 100.7
Net debt (35678  (2826) {46) (396) (10 (1.7)  (4,2973)
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37 Contingent liabilities

a) Bonds and quaroniees

Group undertokings have entered into bonds ond guararttees in the normal course of business. No liability 15 expected to anse in
respect of either bonds or guarontees.

The group has given certain quarantees m respect of the borrowings of its assoaote, Servizio Idrico Integrato S.cp.a. The guarantees
are kmited to €11 2 millien (2012 €11.2 million). The group does not expect any lablities thot are not provided for in these finanad
statements to anse from these arrangements.

b) Disposal of subsidiaries

The group has gven certan quarantees and ndemnities i relation to disposals of busmesses,

Following a hearng in the Cormmercia! Court in Belgrum in February 2010 in relation to a daim from Veolia Proprete S.A. (Veolia)
arsing from the sale of Biffa Belgium to Veoba in 2006, the Court rendered judgement m favour of the group on 1 Apnl 2010 and
declared all of Veolia’'s daims to be unfounded Veolia has filed an appeal against this decston, however, the group considers that
Veolia's case rermains unfounded and no provision has been recorded inrespect of this matter.

The group 15 not aware of any other lability that is likely to result from these guarantees and indermnities thet has not been provided
forin these financial stoternents

38 Service concession arrangements

The group’s contract to provide water and waste water services to the Ministry of Defence (MoD) 1s o service concession
arrangernent under the definition set out n IFRIC 12 The group acts as the service provider under the MoD Project Aquatnne
Package C - a 25 year contract spanning 1,523 sites across England covenng the Eastem sea border ond from Lancashire m the
North West to West Sussex on the South Coast.

Under the contract the group mamtains and upgrades the MoD infrostructure assets and provides operating services for water and
waste water. The mamtenance and upgrade services are chorged at an ogreed rate, adjusted for inflation, that 15 agreed in the
contract. The operating services are changed under an agreed volurnetne tariff

Since the group has an unconditional nght to receve cash in exchange for the maintenance and upgrode services, the amounts
recervable are recogrused as a financiol asset within prepayments and accrued mcome. At 31 March 2013 the amounts recevable
were £26.8 millon (2012 £25 5 million).

There have been no sigruficant changes to the amangement dunng the year.

39 Financidl and other commitments
a) Investment expendrture commitments

2013 2012
£mn £m
Contracted for but not prowded in the finandol staternents 2249 159.8

In addition to these cortractual commitments, Severn Trent Water Limited has longer term expenditure plans which ndude
investments to achieve mpravements tn performmance maondated by the Director General of Water Services {Ofwat) and to prowide
far growth m demand for water and seweroge senices.

b) Leasing commitments

At the balance sheet date the group hod outstanding commitments for future munirmum operating lease payments under
non-cancellable operatng leases, which foll due as follows:

2013 2012

fm fm

Wb L year e e — el AT
ISV e e e 109 120
After more thon 5 years o T B 7.0 81
226 248

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the group for certain of its office properties, plant and equpment.

UOMDULIGJUI B SIULsmS joounuy Aunduua) SIUUIIMS [ODUSUY ONOMD  SDUDLBADS)  MOINGS SSBUISNE  MBIARAD
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40 Post balance sheet events

Followang the year end the board of directors has proposed a final dvdend of 45 51 pence per share Further details of this are
shown in note 14.

41 Related party transoctions

Transactions between the company and s subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consoldabon
and ore not ndluded in this note Transactions between the group and its assoaates and jomt ventures are disclosed below.

Trading transactions

Amounts due Amourts due

Sote of goods Purchase of goods from related parbes to reloted parties

2013 2012 2013 012 013 2012 2013 2012

£m £m £m fm £m £m £m fm

S1I 6.9 5.6 - - 164 161 - -

The related parties are assooates and joint ventures in which the group has a participoting interest. The retrement benefit schemes
operated by the group are considered to be related parties Details of transactions and balances with the retirement benefit
schemes are disdosed in note 27.

Remuneration of key management personnel

Key management personnel compnse the members of the Executive Committee duning the year

The remunerction of the directors s nduded within the amounts disclosed below Further information about the remuneration of
individual directors 1s provided in the oudited part of the Directors’ remwuneration report on pages 57 to 70

2013 2012
fm £m
Shorttermemployeebenefts . e 60 .51
Postemploymentbenefts .01 05
Share based payments 10 08
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42 Subsidiary undertakings

Principal subsidiory undertokings

Detatls of the principal operating subskiiones as at 29 May 2013 are given below. A complete [st of subsidiary undertakings
s avadlable on request to the company and will be filed with the next Annudl Retum.

All sharehaldings ore in ordinary shares.
All subsidiary undertakings have been induded In the consolidation.
Country of Propaorton of
Name inCorporation Prmapal actty ownershup interest
Provision of insurance services
Derwertt Insurance Limited Ghbratar ~  toothergoupcomparves 100%
Sevem Trent Costain Limuted Great Britain Operutongf‘!vatemndsewemgemfmstmctgl_e__m 0%
Sevemn Trent Costain Water Limited GreatBritan  Provision of woter and seweroge seces toMoD 80%
Sevem Trent Environrmentol Servioes Inc US Operation of woter and seweroge nffostructyre  100%
SevemnTrent Selectlimted  ~ GreatBritgin _ Provision of licensed water and sewerogeservices ———— 100%
Severn Trent Se[vdlncms__umpr;g_q_ L "Greajt_sntam Distnbution of water punfication products _ ... 1o0%
Sevgml:enthtaUngédm e o Grect Brtom Prws\onofregjlutedwutemndsewemgg_ge_wmes T 1.
Manufacture ond distribution of
Severn Trent Water Punfication Inc. Us water purification products 100%
Subsidiary audit exemptions

Sevem Trent Plc has issued guarantees over the liabllities of the following companies at 31 March 2013 under section 479C of the
Comipanies Act, 2006 ond therefore auditors have not been appointed for these entibes.

Company nurmber
City Analyticol Serwces Limnited 2050581
Bast Worcester Water Limited 2757948
Gunthorpe Fields Limited 42450764
Severn Trert (WES) Limited 3995023
Severn Trert Carsington Lenited 7570384
Severn Trent Corporate Holdings Linnted 4395566
Sevem Trent Data Portal Limited 8181048
Severn Trent Draycote Limited 7681784
Severn Trent Fnance Holdings Limited 6044159
Sevemn Trent Finance Limited 6294618
Severn Trent Rnanding and Irvestrments Limitedt 6312635
Sevem Trent Holdings Lirnited 5656363
Severn Trent Investrnent Holdings Limited 7560050
Sevem Trent Overseas Holdings Limited 2455508
Sevem Trent Power Generabon Limited 2651131
Severn Trent Property Solutions Limited 8181033
Sevemn Trent Services Holdings Lmuted 4395572
Severmn Trent Services Intemational (Overseas Holdings) Limited 3125131
Sevemn Trent Services Purificabon Limited 2409826
Sevemn Trent Systerms Limited 2394552
Sevem Trent Utility Services Limited 4125386
Sevem Trent Wind Power Limited 7742177

£107 SIUNCODY PUD Hoday |DNULY 344 JUSIL WIOARS



Independent auditor’s report to the members of Severn Trent Plc

We have audited the parent company financial statements of
Savern Trent Plc for the year ended 31 March 2013 which
compnse the company balance sheet, the company statement
of {ota! recognised gains and losses, and the related notes 1 to
17 The financial reporting framework that has been applied in
their preparation 15 apphicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice).

This report is made solely to the company’'s members, as @
body, 1n accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so
that wa nught state to the company’s members those matters
wa are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no
offier purpase. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume: msponsihiﬁty fo anyone other than the
oomparly and tha company’s members as a body, for our audit
work, for tf'nsrepod or for the opinions we have formed

Respective rqepons:blliﬁos of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Diréctors' responsibility
statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of
the parent company financial statements and for being satisfied
thatlhey give 4 true and fair view.” Our responaibility 15 to audrt
and express.an opamon on Ihe parent company financal
statements in accordance with law and Internationat
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards
requife us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical
Standartls for Auditors.

Scope of thé sudit of the financlal statements
An audit involivés olitainiig evidence about the amounts and
distiesres in the finaricial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance (hat the financial statements are free
frorp material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or efror
includes an assessment of whether the accounting
m are appropnate to the parent company’s circumstances
and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed,
e reasonableness of significant accounting estmates made
by the directors; and the overall of the financial
statements In addition, we read all the financial and non-
finahcial information in the annual report to identfy material
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements  1f we
becoma aware of any apparent material misstatements or
fnconsistehcies we consider the implications for our report.

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinicn the parent company financial statements
* give a true and fair view of the state of the parent
company’s affaws as at 31 March 2013,

+ have been properly prepared m accordance with
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

= have been prepared in accordance with the
requiremnents of the Companies Act 2006.

Opinion on other mattors prescribed by the Companies Act
2006
in our opimion
= the part of the Directors' remuneration report to be
audited has been properly prepared in accordance
with Companies Act 2006, and
+ the information given in the Directors’ report for the
financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the parent company
financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters
where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you i, in
our opinion:

» adequate accountng records have not been kept by
the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been'received from branches not visited by
us; or

+ the parent company fingncial statements and the part
of the Directors’ remuneration report to be audited are
not i agreement wth the accounting records and
retums; or

« ceriagin disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified
by law are nol made; or

+ we have not receved all the information and
explanations we require for our audit

Other matter
We have reporied separately on the group financial statements
of Sevem Trent Plc for the year ended 31 March 2013.

CaN q.h

Carl D Hughes (Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
London, UK

29 May 2013
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Company balance sheet
At 31 March 2013

Tangblefredassets T T T T T T TR 08
Irweslments n SLdenns 3 36416

36 6380

o e R, T Pr——T—S BETL S AR SR L AL b ey i T M S et = e = e _—

Derivative finanadt mstruments 158

208

36582

3,6530

Current L assets

Debtors ) 4 405

Denvaﬁvefnamql.mt,um T SREEEETCE . o2

Cash at bank and ¢ hand 30

2856

Creditors amaunts folling due within one year 5 {1856)

(181 0)

Net current {labities)/assets {142.0)

104.6

Total pssets less cumrent rubﬂibes 3,516 2

Creditors armounts falling due after more than one year 6 (1638) ~

3'763 6

(96.9)

Net assets 33524

3,666.7

Caledupshorecopitdl o e 3332

Shore premm acc»qug}_
Other reserves

P e m an s R e e e e e e mAL Gl b e e essaremies becastreoma mw wese sesees o0

Retained eommgs 2_,—875 0

. e e e e [ - R e e o, 4w - won 9 - v muw on
9

2326

1524

3,979

9
Total coptal and reserves 9 33524

3,666.7

Signed on behalf of the who approved the accounts on 29 May 2013

2N, Mt

Andrew Duff Michael McKeon
Chairman Finance Director

Company number: 2366619

Company statement of total recognised gains and losses
For the year ended 31 March 2013

2013
£m

012
£m

(Loss)/profit for the year (6.8)

9933

Tmnsferstoﬂwpmﬁtamlnssocmmtonmshﬂowhedgs 25

23

Defered tax on tronsfers to the profit and loss account (0.6)

{0.5)

Total recogrused gains and losses for the year (4.9)

9550
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Notes to the company financial statements

For the year ended 31 March 2013

1 Accounting policies

a) Basis of accounting

The financial staterments have been prepared under the histoncal

cost converbion as medified by the revaluation of finanad assets

and fiobilies {induding dermvative instruments) at fair value
profit or loss and m occordance with applicable United

Kingdormn Accourting Standards and comply with the requirements

of the United Kingdom Companies Act 2006 (the Act),

As permitted by Secbion 408 of the Companies Act 2006,

no profit or loss accourtt is presented for this company

The cornpany has taken of the exemption under
Finanaal Reperting Standard 1 ‘Cosh flow statements’ and
has not produced a cash flow statement.

The company meets the definrtion of a qualifying entity under
FRS 100 1ssued by the Finanaol Reporting Council (FRC)
Accordingly, in the year ending 31 March 2014, the company
intends to transition ta reporting under FRS 101 os 1ssued by the
FRC. The company intends to take advantage of the dsclosure
exemptions available under that standard. Any shareholder
who objects to this proposal should wnte to the Company
Secretary at the Registered Office (oddress set out on the back
of this document)

Sevem Trert Plc1s a partner in Severn Trent Linited Partnershup
{the partnership), which is registered th Scotland. As the
partnership 1s induded i the Severn Trent Plc consolidated
accounits, the cormpany has taken odvantage of the exemption
conferred by Regulation 7 of The Partnership (Accounts)
Reguilations 2008 from the requirernents of Regulations 4 to 6.
b} Tangible fixed ossets and depreciation

Tongible fixed assets are nduded at cost less accurmulated
depreciation. Freehold land 1s not depreciated. Other assets
are depreciated on g straight line basis over therr estrmated
economic ives, which are pnnapalty as follows.

Years
Buldings ... . . .. 3060
Computers and software 2-15

) Impairment of fixed assets and nvestments

Impaiments of fixed assets and rvestments are calaulated
as the difference between the camying values of net assets
of ncorme generating units, mduding where oppropnate
vestments and goodwill, and ther recoverable amounts.
Recoverable amount 1s defined as the higher of net realisable
wolue or estmoted value In use at the date the impairment
review is undertaken. Net reaisable value represents the net
amount that can be generated through sale of the assets.
Volue in use represents the present volue of expected future
cash flows, discounted on a pre-tax boss using the estimated
cost of capital of the mcome generatng unit. Imparment
reviews are camed out if there i an indication that an
impairment may have occumed, or where otherwise required,
to ensure that goodwill and fixed assets are not camed above
their estimated recoveroble amounts. Impaiments are
recognised in the profit and loss occourt.

d) Financial instruments

i) Finanoial gssets

Financial assets are dassified into the following categories.

= at fair value through profit or loss,

* held to motunty investments;

= avalable for sale finanaal assets; and

* loans and recevables.

Finoncral assets at farr value through profit or loss

A finanad asset 1s dassified at far vatue through profit or loss
it 1s so designated or ff it 1s dassified os *held for troding’.
Denvative finanaal assets that are not designated and effectve
as hedging nstruments are required to be dassified as

‘held for trading’ by FRS 26. However, the group’s Treasury Policy,
descnibed in the Financial review on page 37, 1s that the group
does not hald or 1ssue denvative finanaal Instruments

for trading Finanaal assets at far volue through profit or loss
are stated at fair vatue, with any gains or losses arising on
rerneasurement being recognised m the profit and loss account.
Farr volue s deterrmined using the methodology desaibed n
note 32 to the group’s finandal staterments.

Held to maturtty mvestments

Where the company has the ability and intent te hold an
investment to rmatunty the financial asset s dassified os held
tomaturty Such finanaal assets are measured ot amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method, with any gams
or losses being recogrised in the profit and less account.

Available for sale financial assets

Alter mitial recognition at cost (being the far value of the
consideration paid), nvestments which are dlassified os
available for sale are measured at fair value, with gains orlosses
recognised in equity When an avaitable for sole investment 15
disposed of or mpaired, the gain or loss previcusly recognised

in equity s taken to the profit and loss account. Where there is
no active market n the Investments and the foir volue cannot
be meosured relably, the investrments are held ot cost.

Loans and recenables

Trade recenvables, loans and other receivables that have fixed
or determinable payments and that are not queted Inan
active market are dassfied asloans and recenables,

Such assets are meosured at foir value on intial recognibion
and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective nterest rate method unless there is objective
evidence thot an asset is mpared, when it s written down
to its recoverable amount and the irecoverable armount is
recognised as an expense

iy Financial babilrhes

Fnondal lobilbes are dassified as etther:

« finanad babilties at fair value through profit or loss; or
+ ather financiol kobidites.

Fnanaal lobities ot for value through profit or loss

A financial liability 1s dassified at fair value through profit or loss |
¥ it 1s so designoted or f it 1s dasstfied os “held for trading”
Detivative financial labilises that are not designoted and
effective as hedgng mstrurments are required to be dassified
as ‘held for trading’ by FRS 26. However, the group's Treasury
Policy, described in the Financial review on page 37, s thot the
group does not hold or issue demative financal instruments
for trading. Finanaiat liabilbes ot foir vatue through profit

or loss are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising
on remeasurerment being recogrised in the profit and loss
account. Far value s determined wsing the methodology
described n note 32 in the group financial stotements.

Other finanoal habilities

Other financal liabiltes, including borrowings, are initially
recognised at fair value less transaction costs. After initiol

recognition, other finanadl liabiltres are subsequently measured
at amortised costusing the effective interest rate method.
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1 Accounting policies (continued)
o) Financial instruments (continued)

iii} Hedge accounting

The company uses derivative financial mstruments such as
Css cumency swaps, forward cumency controcts ond interest
rate swaps to hedge its nsks assooated with foresgn currency
and interest rate fluctuations. Such demvative Instruments are
recognised and measured in accordance with the accounting
policres descnbed above,

At the meephion of the hedge relationship the company
documents-

» the relabonship between the hedging instrument and the
hedged itern;

* its sk manogement objectives and strategy for undertaking
hedge transoctons, ond

« whether the hedging instrument s lughly effective In
offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows (os appropnate)
of the hedged temn.

The compariy continues to test ond document the effectiveness
of the hedge on an ongoing bosis.

Hedge accounting s discontmued when the hedging
rstrurnent expires, 15 sold, terminated or exercised, or no longer
qualifies for hedge ocounting

Fair vaiue hedges

Where a loan or borrowing s in a farr vatue hedging retationship
it 15 remeasured for changes in farr value of the hedged nsk

at the balance sheet date, with gains or losses being recogrused
in the profit and loss account.

When hedge accounting is discontinued the farr value
adustment to the camying amount of the hedged itern

ansing from the hedged nsk is armortised to the profit and

loss aceount from that date.

Cash flow hedges

The portion of the gain or loss on the hedging mstrument that
s determined to be on effective hedge 15 recognsed drectly m
equity and the ineffective portion m the profit and loss account.
The gans or losses deferred n equity in this way are recycled
through the profit and loss account in the same peniod in which
the hedged undertying transaction or firm commitreent

ts recogrised in the profit and loss account.

When hedge accounting 15 discontinued ony curmulative gam
or loss on the hedging mstrumernt recogrised in equity is kept in
equity untdl the forecost transachon occurs, or transferred to the
profit and loss account if the forecast transaction s no longer
expected to oceur.

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations

Where forward currency contracts and foreign currency
borrowings are used to hedge net investrments in foreign
curency denominated operations, to the extent that they

are designated and effective as net nvestment

they are matched in equity agoinst changes in value of the
retated assets. Ary meffectiveness is taken to the profit and
loss account.

iv) Embedded derivatives

Dervatives embedded m other finanadt instruments or ather
host contracts are treated as seporate derivatives when their
risks and charactenstics are not dosely related to those of the
host controct and the host contract s not camed at foir value,
with gains and losses reported in the profit and loss account.

@) Investrments

Investments m subsidiary undertakings ore held ot
histoncal cost.

After intsal recognition ot cost (being the fair value of the
considergbon pad), rvestrments which are dassified as held
for trading or avallable for sale are measured at fair value,

with gains or losses recognised in profit and loss or equity
respectvely. When an available for sale mvestment s disposed
of or impaired, the gain or lass previousty recognised in reserves
s taken to the profit and loss account.

f) Share based payments

The compary operates a number of equity settled share
based compensation plans for employees The farr volue of
the employee senices received n exchange for the grant is
recognised as an expense over the vesting period of the gront.
The farr value of emplayee senices s determmined by reference
to the fair value of the gwards granted colauloted using a
pncng model, exduding the impact of any non-market
condriions, The number of awards expected to vest takes

mto account non-market vesting condttions nduding,

where appropriate, continuing ermployrnent by the group

The chorge s adjusted to reflect shares that do not vest os

a result of failing to meet a non-market based condition,

g) Deferred taxation

Deferred toxation s fully provided for in respect of timing
differences between the treatment of certam items for taxation
ond accounting purposes only to the extent that the company
has an obligation to pay more tax in the future or a right

to pay less tox in the future. Deferred tax assets are cnly
recognised to the extent that taxable profits are expected

to anse in the future Matenal defered taxaton balances
ansing are discounted by appiying on appropriate nsk free
discount ote,

h) Pensions

The company poridipates in the group’s defined benefit and
defined contribution pension schermes, detalls of which are

set out in note 27 to the group financial statements.

However, the company s currently unable to identify its share
of assets and babilibes relating to the defined benefit schermes.
The pension costs charged i the profit and loss account are
the contributions payoble to the scheme in respect of the
accounting penod in respect of the defmed benefit and defined
contribution schemes.

1
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Company financial statements Notes to the company financiat statements

2 Tangible fixed assets

Lond and
bulldngs and software Total
fm £m fm

Cost

- - p— B e - I

At1Apni 2012 o o o 07 0o8_ 15
Addltlons 01 0.6 07

Arnounts written off ’ B 7" T T Ten
At 31 March 2013 a1 14 15
Deprecation

At1ApMi2012 o o ) i T T e ee. 13
ngrgeformeygcr L o _ . N - {0.1) . (01)

Amounts wntten off ) 0.7 - 07
At 31 March 2013 - ©.7) 07
Net book value o o L

At 31 March 2013 oo - 70 0.7 08
At 31 March 2012 - 0.2 02

3 Investments

Subsidrary undertokings

Shores Loans Tatal
£m £fm £m

At1 April 2012 ” 33073 3307 36380

Addtionsfloans advanced ) - 32 04 36
At 31 March 2013 3,310.5 3311 36416

Details of pnincipal substdiaries of the comparty are given in note 42 of the group financial statements
4 Debtors

Amounts owed by group undertakngs 45 344

Deferredtax . e1_ 719
Corporation tox recoverable i 295 -
Otherdebtors - 03

Prepayments and ocauedincome 0.4 17

5 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2013 2012
£m £fm
Bank overdrofits (196 (310

Other loans - - (228)
Bormowings (note 7) . (se (538

Dervatwvefinancalnstruments —————~ " " T 02 {04)
Tmodecreditors ~  ~ — — UTTT T T T 0e 04
Amountsduetogroupundertakngs T T T T T sy 200
Other creditors 60 (59)

Accrued expenses (40) (04)
(1856) (1810}




Company fmancial statements Notes to the company finanadl staterments

6 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

2013 2012
£m Em
Borrowmgs - ather loans (note 7) . 72 I
Amousduetogoupundertakings T T T T o B0 -
Dervative financial instruments (317 (379)
(163.8) {969}
7 Borrowings
2013 2012
£m £m
Bormowings due within one year 196 538
Borrowangs due after more than one year . N L
Between one and two years o i N o . 33 -
Between two ond five years L L o 216 590
After more than five years B 7 752 -
Total borrowings due after more than one year 1291 550
1487 1128
Bormowings analysed by interest rate after taking account of interest rate swaps entered into by the company were.
Non-mterest
beanng Foating Fixed Index
babilizes rote rate Ginked Total
2013 £m £m Em £m £m
Bonkloonsand overdrofts L - w96 - - 196
Otherloons T TS 539 -0 752 1291
Other finanadl lisbiltes 08 - - - 06
e e 06 735 - 752 1493
Impact of nterest rote swaps rot matched aganst T B
spedfic debt nstruments - (225.0) 2250 - -
056 (151.5) 2250 752 1493
Weighted average interest rate k3%
Weighted average period for which nterest 1s fixed (years) 25
Index
m Flout{"rtag % finked Total
2012 £m fm £m £m £m
Bankloonsondoveedrofts - 30 _ - - 310
Otherloons T - R, -1
Other finoncial iabilties o - - - 04
- L o4 1128 _ - -__ 1132
Tmpact of interest rote swaps not matched ogamst
specific debt instruments - {2250} 2250 - -
04 {1122} 2250 - 1132
Weghted qvernge mterestrote —na = .. S,
Wexghted average penod for which mterest s fixed (years) T 35
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Company financial statements Notes to the compary financial statements

7 Borrowings (continued)

The company’s borrowings are denominated m sterling, after taking account of aoss cumency swaps the company has entered inta.
There 15 no significant difference between the book value and the fair value of the company’s borrowmgs. Farr values are based on
the expected future cash flows discounted using zero coupon forward interest rates related to the expected timing of payments

At the bolance sheet date the company had commitied undrawn bomowing faclities expinng os follows:

2013 2012

Bayeos e e e e o D

2-5 years " 3000 " 3000
20002000

This facility is shared with Sevem Trent Water Limited.
8 Share capital

2013 2012
fm £m

Total issued and fully paid share capital

238 365 734 ordxnary shares of 97%hsp (2012 237 608, 111) 2333 2326
Changes in share capital were as follows

Nurnber fm

Ordinary shares of 97" %hsp

At1Apri2012 eI 1326

Shares issued under the group ] Employee Sharesave Scheme 757,623 0.7
At 31 March 2013 238,365,734 2333

9 Reconciliation of movermnents in shareholders’ equity

Capital
Share Hedgng redempnm Retaned
Shore capitol premum reserve eamnngs Total
£m fm £m £m £m fm

At1Apr 2011 2322 800 (55)_ _ 1561 23505  2,8223

Coshflowhedges T T T T TR e
-tmnsferstonetpmﬂt e e e ™ T ___}é - “m;““"__wl_.g_
Share based payments _ _ e
- proceeds from sharesissued _"_______: D04 38 - - - 42
-owardsgrantedbysubsidiones - " - - - 41 41
Net profit for the year _ - - - - 9933 9933

Drvidends - - - - T(159.0) (159 0
At1 April 2012 2326 838 (3.7 1561 31979 36667

Cshfowhedges e e
- trarsfers tonet profd. - - 20 - - 20

Share based payments T T o

:"?Zw-eeeggﬁp_nlﬂwmizs?sﬁ“""“ 0759 - = S
- awards granted by subsdiories ... T s - " 22
B T e e - 69 6.9

Dindends - Z - -T2 6220
At 31 March 2013 2333 897 17 1561 28750 33524

The capital redempbion reserve arose on the repurchase of B shares, This s not distributable

In previous years £1,221.2 milion of the company’s retained profit crose as a result of group restructunng exerases, and is not
considered (ikely to be distributable.
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Company financial statements Notes to the company finanaal statements

10 Employee costs and auditors’ remuneration

£m £m
Wagesandsdones o e e e LA
Social secunty costs 03 02
Pensoncosts S & S ¥
Total employee costs 31 33

For details of directors’ remunengtion see the Directors’ remunerabon report on pages 57 to 70.

Fees payoble to Delotte LLP and ts assocates for non-audit services to the company are not required to be disdosed becouse
the consolidated financial statements are required to disclose such fees on a consolidated basis.

11 Employee numbers
Average number of employees of the cormpany (induding executive directors) dunng this year was 12 (2012: 12).
All were based in the United Kingdom.

12 Employee share schemes

For detais of employee share schemes and options gronted over the shares of the company, see note 33 of the group financial
staternents. Detalls of the LTIP conditional awards and share options granted by the company to its emiployees are set out below

The cornparty has charged £0.1 millon (2012 £0 1 milion} to the profit and loss account i respect of share based payments.
At 31 March 2013, there were na options {2012 no options) exeraisable under any of the share based remuneration schemes
a) Long Term Incentive Plon

Changes in the number of awards outstanding dunng the year:

Number of owards
Outstanding at 1 April 2011 e 1280
Gunteddunngtheyeor e 3702
Lapsed during the year T (3,566)
Oustandngat1Apdl2012__ T e = 12,937
Gonteddunngtheyear it a0 e ¢ e e e 3396
Vestedduringtheyeor ~ "~ " 7 T 7T T T T T T T asee)
Lapsed during the year (3,447)
Cutstanding ot 31 March 2013 11,480
Awards outstanding at 31 Morch were:
Number of awords
Date of grart Normdl date of vesting 2013 2012
My20o o m - 4gm
wiy2e00 " D 7T T T T T T T 20137 T es22 | AAZR
Fy NS ' S L S Y./ )
July 2012 2015 3,356 -

11,480 12,937
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Company financial statements Notes to the company finanodl statements

12 Employee share schemes {continued}
b} Employee Sharesave Scheme
Changes in the number of options outstanding dunng the year;

Welghted
quertge
Number of exerdse price
share optons ®
Outstandngat3 Apri2021 . - SN - - -
‘Granted during the year ) . L L 916 1177
Forfetted during the year L B 7 B - -
Tronsferred from other groupcompanies .. 1%
Exercised dunng the year (314) 1 221
Outstanding ot 1 Aprd 2012 ) o .. 583 918
Gronted dunngtheyear 7 T - > B V15
Exercised during the year DT . sy %30
Transferred duning the year B T ) T 4858 947
Qutstandmng ot 31 Morch 2013 10,082 391
Options outstanding at 31 March were,
Number of share options
Date of gront Normal date of vesting  Option pnce 2013 2012
January 2009 L . 20120r2004  862p 4352 3723
Jonuary200 7 20130r2015 806p 1,602 898
Jonuory201t T T T T T op14or2006 1137p 0 949 316
Janvary2012 20150:2017_‘ _1177p 0 1247 916
Jonuary 2013 2016 0r 2018 1,241p 1,932 -
10,082 5853
¢) Share Matching Plan
Changes in the number of awards outstanding dunng the year:
Number of aowords
Ol.rtgtﬂnd'lrgotlApnlzm‘l e . e e -‘!.5"7_
Gronted dunng the year 360
OutstandmgatlApril2012 _ o ) L . .- U
Grunteddunngtl'leyecr o T T ] 348
Outstanding at 31 March 2013 1,165
Awards outstanding at 31 March were:
Number of awands
Date of award Norrnal dote of vesting 2013 2012
May2010_ = .. _ el e .. May2013 457 457
May20tz =~ _ R e May214 360 360

May 2012 May 2015 348 -
1,165 817




Company financial statements Notes to the company financial statements

13 Pensions

The company participates in two defined benefit pension schemes (being the Severn Trent Pension Scheme and the
Sevemn Trent Mrror Image Pension Scherme). In addition, the company operates an unfunded arrangernent for certan
ernployees whose eamings are above the pension cap.

Further detalls regarding the opesation of these schemes are grven in note 27 of the group fimanaal statements

The company is currently unable to identify s share of the underlying assets and babilites from the group’s defined
benefit pension schemes, ond hence it continues to acoount for the cost of contribubions as f the scheme was a defined
contribution pension scherme

The pension charge for the year was £1.1 millon (2012 £1.7 milion).

14 Related party transactions

The company has taken advantage of the exernption under FRS 8 ‘Related Party Disdosures’ and not dsciosed details
of transactions with other undertakings within the Severn Trent group of compares

The retirernent benefit schennes aperated by the cornpany cre considered to be related parties. Detalls of transachions
and balarces with the retrernent benefit schermes are disciosed i note 13

15 Contingent liabilities
a) Bonds and guarantees

The company has entered into bonds and guarantees in the nonmal course of business No liobilites are expected
to arise in respect of etther the bonds or guarontees.

b) Bank offset armangements

The banking arangerents of the company aperate on a poaled buss with certain of its subsidiory undertakings.
Under these arrangerments participating companies guarantee each other's overdrawn balances to the extent
of ther credt batonces, which con be offset against balances of partapoting comparues.

16 Post balance sheet events
Following the year end the board of directors has proposed a final dvidend of 45 51 pence per share.

17 Dividends

For details of the dvidends paid in the yeors ended 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012 see note 14 n the
group finanaal stotements.
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Five year summary

2013 2012 201% 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m £m

Turnover 18316 1,7706 1,7113 17039 1,642.2

mﬁbeﬁ_m_@%‘?*ﬂ%@‘l@ﬁﬂ. o ——— __‘1?_3_9 . _5_0_‘*£M 2 -_527_1”__ 4699
Netexceptionaltemsbeforetax =~~~ L b8 {509y (214) _wan (189

Net interest payable before lossés on finanaal instruments and
‘exceptonal finance costs g (2290) (2306)  {2188) (196 4)

Losses on financiol instruments #53) (677 _ (4 857 870}

ResUftsofassodiatesandjontventures T TR T g "1 T T 0 -
Profit before taxation 2152 1567 2530 3344 1676

Qumenttaxgbon T T TTTTTRET T e08)  (21) (W07 (527)
Deferred taxation 26 782 536 %22 (ans
Profit after taxation 2304 1744 2745 2515 (56.0)
Net assetsemployed ) i _ e
Fixed ossets T 6961 67436 66353 65161 61699
Other net liabibties exduding net debt, retirement benefit obligation, ) '

provisions and deferred tax Q738  (3413) (3204) (3172} (2872

Dervatne finoncalmstumentst © T T T T TRy T s ®) | (905) (1253) . (1539)
Retrement benefitobligaton e 3w 7) (3458) (921  (3549)  (233.0)
Prowsions for liabiltses and charges and defened tax (827. 5 (845 _5_) _(9574) (10103) (9880}

‘Net assets held for sale - - - - 4.2
51413 59492 49749 47084 45120

Financed by i _ e , e
Calledugshorempttd . Y - & R = » £ __g_§2§2_*___ 23_1_§___ 2310

Reserves 5959 - 8676 709.1 -7151
Total shareholders’ funds 8332 9735 10998 9407 946.1

Nonconwolingmeresis _____ _ 77708 T 79 63" 6360

Net debtt 47973 39678 38688 37614  3,5599
51613 49492 49749 47084 45120

Eamings per share -pence o T ey 725 1152 1056 (246)
Adjusted earmings per share - pence T 77 ss9 T "s89 1056 1228 927
DMdend§pershare (excludmg specnuldmdend) penc_e________“ 758 701 651 3 673
Dwidend cover (before excepbonal tems and deferedtd 13”13 T 16 . T 17 1A
Geaing 0 T TTTURSE%  802%  778%  799%  78.9%
Ordinary share price ct 31 March - pence 1,720 15440 14460 11950 9500
Averagenumberofemployees e e s v e s e e —

-SevemTrentWater TSGR TTTS46 5237 5686 5624

- Other 2,763 2,889 3,045 3,102 3,144
1 Exducdes mstrurnents hedging foreign cumency debt

2 Inthudes mstruments hedgng foregn aumency debt

Geanng has been caiculated os net debt divided by the sum of equity and net debt.




Severn Trent Water - delwermg agalnst our KPIs

201213 2011712
Bass kP Outum  Outtum
MAT 1_ Losttime madents per 100,000 hrs worked? 02 03
QR 2 Employee motivation %2 ~__ T e 1%
MAT3 " DWIReportable events (Category 34,5)° T 1 30
AT 4 Servce Incertve Mechansm - Qualitome® T T T T 636 396
MAT'S _ Servce Incentive Mechanism - Quontitative®* T T 7 205
MAT 6 Unplanned lntﬂTupbons(peIIOOOyogemes} e 1248 1112
MAT 7 SeviceablityWoste . .. .. .. . . L B
MAT 8 ServiceabllityWater R 80 na .
ATS Copex-fm L e e W18 Mo
ACT 10 Debtor days® e e . . 367 38
ACT 11 Opex-—£m _ e . -
MAT 12_Pollution nadents {Category 1,2,3)3¢ o o 376 458
ACT 13 gevygg_g_t:eatment works - failing consént |.IIT\ILS% ) o o GE!S% | 254%
ACI'llt SemntycfSupply o L L o 99 55
MAT 15_Net energy Use GWh* . B0 679
"MLE 16 {eckage MUd - PostMLE® Tt T T T 441 464
Notes 1. Actual performance across all KPI 3 Darking Water Inspectorate -
MAT = Moving Annual Total employees and ogency staff. Reportable events. This KPI measures
QR = Quarterty Review 2 Performance based on annuol survey  the number of significant events
MIC.E = Mux:mLcllrn Likethood Estmate of all employees. reported to the DWI
ACT =Year End Actual KPI 7 Serviceabilty Waste Water
3 mﬁﬂﬁﬁgﬁzﬁ,ﬁo Y THskpisan indriyx based on pollutions
ﬁgUl'ES are pmnd at this stoge as Ond blod(oges (t”th measures thow
the Anruol Requigtory Performance our below ground assets are pesforming)
Report will be published on the and sewage treatrnent works
Severn Trent Water webstte non complionce (above ground).
www.stwater.couk)on 17 June 2013 The index reflects a 5050 weghting
4. Actual performance based wholly or for above and below ground osets
parhally on intemal data. KPI 8 Serceability Water This ndex s
5. Actuat performance based on mﬁmﬂ?@uﬁ
audited UK GAAP finanaial staternerts
for the year ended 31 March 2013, (both measures of how our below
ground essets are perforrming) and
6. Measure for catendar year to Water Treatrment Works (WTW)
31 December 2012. non compliance (above ground).
The index reflects a 50-5C weighting
for above and below ground assets.
KPI 14 Security of Supply Index (SOSD s a

measure of how resilient we are agamnst

periods of drought. The index calculation
is based upon the difference between the
water avoilable to use and the volume of

water we expect to put nto our supply
network m order to meet demand.
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Information for shareholders

Severn Trent shareholder helpline

The company’s registror s Equinti Limited Equirut?s rmain
responsiilities inciude mantaning the shareholder register and
makng dividend payments,

if you hove any quenes relating to your Severn Trent Fic
shareholding you should contact Equinti

Regstrar contact details.

Online, www.shareview.co.uk from here, youwil be able
to securely email Equinitt with your query.

Telephone: 0871 384 2967*

Overseqs enquines: +44 121 415 7044

Text phone: 0871 384 2255*

By post: Equintty, Aspect House, Spencer Rood, Lancing,
West Sussex, BNG9 6DA

Corporate website

Shareholders are encouraged to visit our websrte

www severntrent.corn which provides,

= company news and informaton,

binks t0 our operational businesses’ websites,

details of our governance amangements;

details of gur ;

detdils of the group’s business models and business plan; and
the company’s approach to operating responsibly

There 15 also a dedrcated Investors section on the website which
contains up to date mformation for shareholders ncluding:
comprehensive share price nformation;

financial results;

a history of dividend payment dates and armounts; and
access to current and histoncal shareholder doouments such
as the annual report and accounts.

Electronic communications
By regrstenng to receive sharehalder documentation from
Severn Trent Plc electrorucally shareholders can benefit from
being able to;
+ view the annual report and accounts onthe day it
& publshed;
+ receive an emai clert when shareholder documents
are available;
» cast their AGM vote electrorucally; and
» manage their shareholding quickly and securely online,
through Shareview.
Electronic shareholder communications also enable the
company to reduce its mpact on the environment and
benefit from savings associoted with reduced prnting and
mailing costs.
For further informabion and to register for electromic shareholder
communioations visit www .shareview.co uk

+

Dividend payments

Bank mandates

Divdends can be paid autornaticatly into your bank or building

society occount.

The benefits of domng this are you will

* recene deared funds in your bank aoccount on the
payment date,

* ovord postol deloys, and

+ remove the risk of your cheques getting lost in the post.

Totake advantage of this service or for further detalls contoct

Equiniti or visit www.sharevew.co uk

Dividend reinvestment plan (DRIP)

The DRIP gives shareholders the aption of using their dwvidend
payments to buy more Sevem Trent Plc shores insteod of
recevingcash If you would ke to participate in the DRIP,
please request  dwdend reinvestment plan mandate from
Equiniti Finanaal Services Limited.

Telephone: 6871 384 2268*
Telephone number fram outside the UK. +44 121 415 7173

Buying and selling shares in the UK

If you wish to buy or sell certrficated Severn Trent Plc shares, you
will need to use a stockbroker or hugh street bank which trodes
on the London Stock Exchaonge There are olso many telephone
and onfine senaces available to you I you are selling, you will
need to present your share certficate at the time of sale

Details of low cost dealing services may be obtamed from
www.shareview.co uk or 0845 603 7037+,

Share price information

Shareholders can find share pnce information on cur website
and i most natronal newspapers. For a real ime buying or
sefling price, you should contact a stockbroker

Shareholder security

Share froud includes scarns where investors are called ond

offered shares that often tum out to be worthless of non-

extstent, or an inflated pnce for shares they own, These calls
come from fraudsters operating n ‘boiler reoms’ that are mostly
based abroad.

Ifyou are offered unsolicted investment advice, discounted

shares, a premium pnce for shares you own, or free company or

research reports, you should take these steps before handing
over any money*

» get the narme of the person and omganisation contacting you,

« check the Ananciot Services Register (the Regster) at
www.foaorg.uk to ensure they are authorsed;

* use the details on the Register to contact the firrm;

+ cafl the Anandol Conduct Authority (FCA) Consumer Helplne
on 0800111 6768 ff there are no contact details on the
Regrster or you are told they are out of date;

» search the FCAlist of unouthonsed firns and individuals to
avoid doing busmess with, and

+ remember, if t sounds too good to be true, it probably is.

‘Cdscmaps'mpﬂnmeplsmmkmu'smopmfnn&mmssqmmmymmhy
** Lies are open Monday-fiaday, 8000 0 4.30prn for deoting, and el &00pm for enquines.
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Other information Information for shareholders

If you use anunouthonsed firm to buy or sell shares or other
mvestents, you will not hove access to the Finanaal
Ombudsman Service or Finanaal Services Compensation
Scheme if thmgs go wrong.

1f you are approached about a share scaom you should tell the
FCA using the share fraud reporting form at www fea.orgauk,
where you can find out about the latest investment scams.
You can also call the Consurmer Helplne on 0800 111 6768,

You should contact Acbon Fraud on 0300 123 2040 f you have
already paid money to share fraudsters.

Unsolicted mail

The company is legally obliged to make s shore regster
available to the genenal public. Consequently some
sharehdiders may receive unsoliated mal. If you wish to limit
the amount of unsoficted mail you recene please contact:

The Mofing Preference Servace (MPS), Freepost 29 LON20771,
London WIEOZT

Altematively, regrster online at www.mpsonline.org uk or
call the MPS Regrstration ine on 0845 703 4599

Finanaal calendar
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American Depositary Receipts (ADRs)

Severn Trent hos a sponsored Level 1 Armerican Deposttary
Recetpt (ADR) programime, for which The Bank of New York
Mellon acts as Depasitory.

The Level 1 ADR programme trades on OTCQX which s the
prermier ber of the US over-the-counter (OTC) market under
the symbol STRNY itis not listed on a US stock exchange)
Each ADR represents 1 Sevem Trent ordinary share.

If you have any enquries regarding Severn Trent ADRs please
contact The Bank of New York Mellon.

By post: The Bank of New York Mellon, PO Box 358516,
Fittsbungh, PA 15252 - 8516, Us

By telephone:

If calling from within the US. (888) 269 2377 (toll-free)

If caling from outside the US. +1 201 680 6825

By email. shirelebons@brymellon.com
Website: www.bnymellon.com/shareowner

Ex dwidend date - final dvidend L 15 une 2013
P:gg_)zqgg_t.e_tobeehgbleformefnold‘mend e 21Jun92013_
AGM i 17 July 2013
Infenm management staternent - Q1 Year ending 31 March 2014 _ ) 17 ny2013
ﬁnaldmdendpoyment date L o 26July2013
Intenm resutts onnouncemert -Yearendmg 31March 2014~ T~ 26November2013
Exdwdenddate-interimdnidend T " T T bDecember 2013
Record date to be etigible for the nterim dvidend T T T T December 2013
Intenm dwidend payment date 10 January 2014
All dotes are indiootive and may be subject to change.
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Logo removed

Severn Trent Plc
Regstered officer
Severn Trent Centre
2 St John's Street
Coventry

iz

Tel 02677 715000
www.sevemntrent.com

Registered in England and Wales
Registration number: 2366619




